
OFFERING CIRCULAR 

Hutchison Whamfoa Finance (CI) Limited 
(incorporated in the ayman Islands with limited liability) 

US$750,000,000 6.950% Notes due 2007 
US$500,000,000 7.450% Notes due 2017 
US$500,000,000 7.500% Notes due 2027 
US$250,000,000 6.988% Notes due 2037 

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by 

Hutchison Whampoa Limited 
(incorporated in Hong Kong wtth limited liability) 

Hutchison Whampoa Finance (CI) Limited (the “Issuer”) proposes to issue US$750,000,000 principal amount of 6.950% Notes due August 1, 2007 
(the “Series A Notes”), US$500,000,000 principal amount of 7.450% Notes due August 1, 2017 (the “Series B Notes”), US$500,000,000 principal 
amount of 7.500% Notes due August 1, 2027 (the “Series C Notes”) and US$250,000,000 principal amount of 6.988% Notes due August 1, 2037 (the 
“Series D Notes” and, together with the Series A Notes, Series B Notes and Series C Notes, the “Notes”). The Notes will be unconditionally and 
irrevocably guaranteed as to the payment of principal, interest and Additional Amounts (as defined herein), if any (the “Guarantee”), by Hutchison 
Whampoa Limited (“Hutchison Whampoa” or the “Guarantor”). 

The Notes will bear interest from August 1, 1997 at the rates set forth above, payable semiannually in arrears on February 1 and August 1 in each 
year (commencing February 1, 1998). The Notes will not be redeemable by the Issuer prior to maturity, except upon the occurrence of certain changes in 
Cayman Islands, Hong Kong or PRC tax law requiring the payment of additional amounts as described herein. The Series D Notes are subject to 
repayment at the option of the holders as described herein. The Notes will be unsecured. See “Description of the Notes and the Guarantee - 
Redemption” and “ - Repayment”. 

The Notes are being offered and sold by the Purchasers in the United States to qualified institutional buyers in reliance on the exemption from the 
registration requirements of the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), provided by Rule 144A under the Securities 
Act and to a limited number of Institutional Accredited Investors (as defined) in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities 
Act, and outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act. See “Plan of Distribution.” 

Notes sold in reliance on Rule 144A will be evidenced by one or more global Notes, in fully registered form without coupons, deposited with a 
custodian for and registered in the name of a nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”). Beneficial interests in the global Notes will trade in 
DTC’s Same-Day Funds Settlement System. Except as described herein, beneficial interests in the global Notes will be shown on, and transfers thereof 
will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC and its direct and indirect participants including Euroclear and Cedel. Any Notes sold in 
reliance on Regulation S will be evidenced by one or more separate global Notes and any Notes sold other than in reliance on Rule 144A or Regulation S 
will be issued in certificated form. The Notes will be issued only in registered form in denominations of US$lOO,OOO and integral multiples of US$l,OOO in 
excess thereof. See “Description of the Notes and the Guarantee”. 

See “Investment Considerations” for a discussion of certain factors that should be carefully considered by 
prospective investors. 

Application has been made to list the Notes on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. 
The Notes have been rated “A3” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and “A+” by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group. See “Ratings”. 

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR WITH ANY 
SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD IN THE 

UNITED STATES OR TO ANY U.S. PERSON (AS DEFINED IN REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT), EXCEPT IN TRANSACTIONS EXEMPT FROM OR NOT SUBJECT TO THE REGISTRATION 

REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. FOR A SUMMARY OF CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS 
ON RESALES, SEE “TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS”. 

Per Series A Note 
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Per Series B Note. 
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Per Series D Note 
Total ............ 

Total ............................................. 
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..................... 
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..................... 

Price to 
Investors(l) Discount 

Proceeds to 
Issuer(l) (2) 

$250.000.000 

$1,994,452,500 $15312,500 

0.650% 
$4,875,000 

0.875% 
$4,375,000 

0.875% 
$4,375,000 

0.675% 
$1,687,500 

98.417% 
$492,085,000 

99.325% 
$248.312.500 

$1,979,140,000 

(1) Plus accrued interest, if any, from August I, 1997 to the date of delivery. 
(2) Before deduction of expenses payable by the Issuer. 

The Notes are offered by the Purchasers, subject to prior sale, when, as and if delivered to and accepted by the Purchasers and subject to certain 
further conditions. The Purchasers reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify such offer without notice and to reject any order in whole or in part. It is 
expected that delivery of the Notes will be made against payment therefor on or about August 1, 1997. 

Joint Lead Managers and Bookrunners 

~ Goldman, Sachs & Co. Merrill Lynch & Co. 
~ Chase Securities Inc. HSBC Markets 

J.P. Morgan & Co. Peregrine Fixed Income Limited UBS Securities 
BancAmerica Securities, Inc. CIBC Wood Gundy Securities Corp. 
CITIC Industrial Bank Citicorp Securities, Inc. Deutsche Morgan Grenfell 

The date of this Offering Circular is July 24, 1997. 
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FOR NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS ONLY: NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATE- 
MENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE NEW 
HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A 
SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW 
HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE THAT 
ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER RSA 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER 
ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A 
SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY 
UPON THE MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY 
PERSON, SECURITY, OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO BE MADE, TO ANY 
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER, OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION INCONSISTENT WITH 
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH. 

Hutchison Whampoa Property 
The property group of 
Hutchison Whampoa Limited 

Hongkong International 
Terminals Limited 

m Hutchison 
n n Telecom 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited 

EZzilEHGix/L?W 

El Husky Oil 

CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING MAY ENGAGE IN TRANSACTIONS THAT 
STABILIZE, MAINTAIN OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE NOTES, INCLUDING OVER- 
ALLOTMENT, STABILIZING AND SHORT-COVERING TRANSACTIONS IN SUCH SECURITIES, AND THE 
IMPOSITION OF A PENALTY BID, IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING. FOR A DESCRIPTION OF 
THESE ACTIVITIES, SEE “PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION”. 

http://www.oblible.com

http://www.oblible.com


The Issuer and the Company accept responsibility for the information contained herein. To the best 
knowledge and belief of the Issuer and the Company (which have taken all reasonable care to ensure that 
such is the case), the ‘information contained herein is in accordance with the facts and does not omit 
anything likely to affect the import of such information. 

All inquiries relating to the Issuer, the Company. this Offering Circular and the offering contemplated 
herein should be directed to the Purchasers. Each prospective investor is hereby offered the opportunity to ask 
questions of, and receive answers from, the Issuer, the Company and th9 Purchasers concerning the Issuer, the 
Company, the Notes or the terms ,and’cqnditions of this offering. 

The Notes have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the “Commission”), ,any, state securities commission ,or any other regulatory authority in the 
United States or elsewhere, nor have ,my of the foregoing authorit@ passed upon or endorsed the merits of 
this ,offering or the accuracy or adequacy of this Qffering Circular. Any representation to the contrary may be 
unlawful. 

Neither the Purchasers, the Issuer nor the Company is making any representation to any prospective 
investor or purchaser of the Notes regarding the legality of investment therein by suCh prospective investor or 
purchaser under applicable legal investment or similar laws or regulations. 

The “Company” means Hutchison Whampoa Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with 
limited liability, and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requi:es, and references in the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial Statements t? the ‘!,Group” are to the Company ar+d all ?f its direct and indirect 
subsidiaries and also includes the Company’s interest in associated companies on the basis set forth in 
Note 1C to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company. Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries are 
not wholly-owned, as described more fully herein. As used in this Offering Circular, ’ “China” or the “PRC” 
means the People’s Republic of China,, “RMB” means the Renminbi, the official currency of the PRC and 
“,.I.$” means Cayman Island ddllars. References and statements htrein’regarding China do not apply to 
Macau or Taiwan. 

The Company publishes its financial $atements in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$“). For the convenience of 
the ,reader: this Offering Circular presents translations into U.S. dollars (“US$“) of certain Hong Kong dollar 
amounts at the rate of HK$7.73 = US$l.OO., No representation is made that Hong Kong dollars have been, 
could have been, or could be, converted into U.S. dollars at the rate indicated or at any other rate. On July 24, 
1997, the noon buying rate in New York City for-cable transfers in foreign currencies, as certified.for customs 
purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New y6rk (the “Nopn Buying Rate”) was HKF7.7385 = US$l.OO. 

This Offering Circular does not consti@te an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer or the 
Company or by or on behalf of the .Purchasers to subscribe for or purchase any of the Notes in any jurisdiction 
to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such-jurisdiction. The distribution 
of this Offering Circular and the offering of the Notes in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons 
into whose possession thjs Offering Circular comes are required. by the Purchasers, the Issuer and the 
Company to inform themselves about and to observe any ‘such restrictions. For a further description of certain 
restrictions on this offering, sale and resale of the Notes and on ,the distribution of this Offering Circular, see 
“Plan of Distribution” and “Transfer Restrictions”. , 

No invitation m:y be ma&e to the public in the Cayman Islands to subscribe for any of the Notes. 

Enforcemknt of Civil Liabilities 
The Issuer is ‘incorporated in the Cayman Islands and Hut&son Whampoa is incorporated in 

Hong Kong. All or a substantial portion of the assets of the Issuer and the Company are located outside the 
United States. In addition, none of the directors and executive officers of the Issuer and the Company are, and 
certain of the experts named herein are not, residents of the United States, and all or a substantial portion of 
the assets of such persons may, be located outside the United States. As a result, it may,not be possible for 
investors to effect service of process within the,United States upon such persons, the Issuer or the Company, 
?r to enforce against them judgments obtained in United States courts ,predicat&d upon the civil liability 
provisions pf the federal. securities laws of the United States. The Company has been advised by its 
Hong Kong cqunsel, Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, and the Issuer has been advised by its Cayman Islands counsel, 
Maples and CQlder Asia, that there is doubt as to the enforceability in Hong Kong or thk Cayman Islands, in 
original ‘actions or in aktions for enforcement of judgments df United States courts, of civil liabilities 
predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of the United States. 
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SUMMARY 

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information and financial 
statements appearing elsewhere in this Ofleering Circular., 

Hutchison Whampoa 

Hutchison Whampoa Limited is the holding company of the Hutchison group of companies. It is a Hong 
Kong-based diversified corporation listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong 
Stock Exchange”) with interests and activities in the following core businesses: property development and 
investments; ports and related services; retailing and manufacturing; telecommunications; and energy, 
infrastructure, finance and other investments. The Company and its subsidiaries and associated companies 
principally operate in Hong Kong, a Special Administrative Region of China (“Hong Kong”). In addition, 
they also operate in the mainland of China, elsewhere in Asia and in Europe and North America. 

The Company’s ,diversmed activities are grouped into the following core divisions: 

Property. The property division is a leading property developer in Hong Kong and is engaged in the 
business of building major developments comprising residential, commercial, office, hotel and 
recreational facilities, principally in Hong Kong and mainland China, the long-term ownership of 
major commercial premises in the Company’s residential/commercial developments, and manage- 
ment of the Company’s investments and development activities. The Company’s current policy is to 
retain its office buildings and the major commercial areas in its property development projects as long 
term holdings. As of December 31, 1996, the Company maintained a portfolio of approximately 9.2 
million square feet, excluding 1.8 million square feet occupied by the Company, of long term holdings 
in Hong Kong, consisting of office buildings, retail shops, industrial buildings and residential units. 

Ports and Related Services. The ports and related services division, tracing its origins to the last 
century, is one of the world’s leading operators of container terminals. Hutchison Whampoa holds 
interests in ports in Hong Kong and mainland China, the United Kingdom (the “U.K.“), Myanmar 
and the Bahamas. The Company has recently been awarded a concession to operate port facilities at 
both ends of the Panama Canal, and has recently signed a joint venture agreement to build and 
operate a container port at Indonesia’s developing deep-sea port of Bojonegara. The core holdings of 
the division are its interests in Hong Kong (Hongkong International Terminals Limited (“HIT”)) 
and in mainland China (Yantian International Container Terminals Limited (“Yantian”), Shanghai 
Container Terminals Limited (“SCT”) and Hutchison Delta Ports Limited (“Delta Ports”)), and in 
the U.K. (Port of Felixstowe Limited (“Felixstowe”)). HIT, an 80%-owned subsidiary of the 
Company, is the world’s largest privately-owned container terminal operation in terms of throughput 
handled and operates ten of the eighteen container berths in Hong Kong. The Company, through 
another 80%-owned subsidiary, also has a 50% interest in a joint venture (“COSCO-HIT”) with 
China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company, which operates two additional adjacent container berths. 
In 1996, Hong Kong handled more containers than any other port in the world and HIT and 
COSCO-HIT handled approximately 42% of the container traffic passing through Hong Kong. The 
division also has interests in ship repair, salvage and towage operations in Hong Kong. 

l Retail and Mamfactuving. The retail, manufacturing and other services division is principally com- 
prised of A S Watson & Company Limited (“AS,,‘) and Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited. 
ASW, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company having its origins in southern China in the early 
1800s is one of Asia’s largest retailers and operates major chains of supermarkets, personal care stores 
and electrical appliance stores in Hong Kong and in several other countries in Asia. ASW also 
manufactures and distributes food and beverage products in Hong Kong and mainland China. 
Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited has joint ventures with Procter & Gamble which manufacture 
and distribute certain Procter & Gamble products throughout mainland China. Hutchison Whampoa 
(China) Limited also has joint ventures providing aircraft maintenance services in southern China. 
The Company also owns, operates, acquires and develops hotels which are primarily located in Hong 
Kong and mainland China. .’ 
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l Telecommunications. The telecommunications division has grown swiftly since its formation in 1985 
to become a significant participant in mobile telecommunications in Hong Kong and the ‘U.K. The 
division has developed expertise as both cellular network operator and service provider offering a 
comprehensive and integrated range of wireless telecommunications. In Hong Kong, the Company 
has secured multiple wireless licenses giving it the ability to offer services using Global System for 
Mobile Communications (“GSM”), Code Division Multiple Access (“CDMA”) and Personal 
Communications Service or System (“PCS”) technologies, thereby giving it ‘the widest spectrum 
allocation and highest spectrum capacity of any operator in Hong Kong. The Company is the leading 
provider of paging services, and has recently begun to provide fixed line services in, Hong Kong, 
including international dialing services. The Company, through associates, is also engaged in satellite 
communication and radio broadcasting services. The division’s telecommunications operations are 
‘mainly located in Hong Kong, Europe and the Asia Pacific region. 

. &krgy, Infvastvuctuve, Finance and Other Investments. The energy, infrastructure, finance and 
other investments division comprises a 84.5,8% interest’ in Cheung Kong, Infrastructure Holdings 
Limited (“Cheung Kong Infrastructure”) and a 49% interest ,in Husky Oil Ltd. (“Husky”). Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure is engaged in the development, ownership, operation and management of 
infrastructure businesses in mainland China, including power plants,sroads, toll bridges and a water 
plant, and infrastructure materials businesses in Hong Kong and mainland China, including the 
manufacture and sale of cement, the production and delivery of concrete, the production and laying of 
asphalt and the quarrying and selling of aggregates. Cheung Kong Infrastructure also has a 35.74% 
interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited (“Hongkong Electric Holdings”). Hongkong 
Electric Holdings, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited 
(“Hongkong Electric”), generates, transmits, distributes and is the sole provider of electricity to 
Hong Kong Island and Lamma Island. Husky is a Canadian-based integrated oil and gas company 
engaged in the exploration for and development of crude oil and natural gas, as well as the production, 
purchase, transportation, upgrading, refining and marketing of crude oil, natural gas liquids 
(“NGLs”), sulphur and petroleum coke, and the marketing of refined petroleum products, including 
asphalt. The Company also receives substantial income from its investments held in managed funds 

‘and other investments, which are accouuted for in this division. 

,The Company currently maintains a significant market share, in each of its core businesses in Hong Kong. 
The Company has achieved a leadership position by obtaining land in prime locations for property 
development, land rights for container terminal berths, commercial rental locations in Hong Kong for its retail 
chains, and licensed spectrum for wireless telecommunications. The Company’s overall business strategy is to 
expand its core businesses and their market shares in Hong Kong and elsewhere, particularly in mainland 
China and other regions in Asia, where it can export its expertise in certain of its core businesses, such as 
property development, ownership and operation of container terminals, management of retail store chains and 
wireless telecommunications networks. As part of its overall strategy, the Company seeks to expand its 
recurrent income base and to maximize the coordination of its core businesses by, for example, utilizing retail 
space in existing Company properties for its retail chains, developing for commercial and residential purposes 
existing land formerly used for industrial and other purposes, and utilizing the Company’s retail chain outlets 
in Hong Kong to promote and distribute its telecommunications products and services. 

In mainland China, the Company is focusing’on its core businesses and is concentrating its efforts in the 
locations where its established relationships and business know-how are the strongest, such as in Guangdong 
Province, Beijing and Shanghai. The Company’s most active businesses in mainland China include port 
operations, property development, infrastructure, power generation, manufacturing and retailing. 

Hutchison Whampoa, whose origins date back to the early 1800s was established in July 1977 as the 
result of the merger between Hutchison International Limited and Hongkong and Whampoa Dock Company 
Limited. Hongkong and Whampoa Dock Company Limited, registered,in 1861, was the first company to be 
registered in Hong Kong. Hutchison Whampoa became a publicly listed company in 1978. Cheung Kong 
(Holdings) Limited (“Cheung Kong”) became a major shareholder of the Company in 1979 and M r. Li 
Ka-shing, a substantial shareholder of Cheung Kong, became the Chairman of the Company in 198 I. Cheung 
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Kong is the largest shareholder of the Company, owning approximately 49.94% of its issued shamcapital as of 
June 30, 1997. See “Principal Shareholder”. The Company and Cheung Kong have certain common directors 
and cooperate primarily on major property development projects in Hong Kong and mainland China. 

Based on the closing price of its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on July 24, 1997, the 
Company had a market capitalization of approximately HK$272,123 million (US$35,203 million); the 2nd 
largest market capitalization on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Company, Cheung .Xong and 
Hongkong Electric Holdings are three of the 33 constituent stocks which make up the Hang Seng Index, the 
key index reflecting the performance of trading of shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. 

:1 
As of December 31, 1996, the Company’s total consolidated shareholders’ funds were HK$68,899 million 

(US$8,913 million), and the Company’s total consolidated borrowings were HK$40,653 million (US$.5,259 
million). The total consolidated short term debt and capitalization was HK$143,426 million (US$18,554 
million) as of June 30, 1997. For the years ended December 31, 1994, 1995 and 1996, the Company’s profit 
attributable to shareholders was HK$8,021 million, HK$9,567 million and HK$12,020 million (US$1,555 
million), respectively. -See “Capitalization” and “Selected Consolidated Financial Information”. 

The Company’s: registered office is located’ at 22nd Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong 
Kong. 

_’ 
Group Reorganization 

On January 6, 1997, the Company unconditionally agreed to purchase for cash 7,750,OOO ordinary shares 
of Hongkong Electric Holdings at an aggregate price of approximately HK$205.4 million resulting in the 
Company increasing its interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings to 35.01% of the issued share capital of 
Hongkong Electric Holdings on such date. Also on January 6, 1997, Cheung Kong, the Company and Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure entered into an agreement pursuant to which, on March 10, 1997, (i) Cheung Kong 
increased its interest in the Company from,45.36% to 48.95% of the Company’s outstanding ordinary shares, 
(ii) the Company increased its interest in Cheung Kong Infrastructure from 3.93% to 84.58% of Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure’s outstanding ordinary shares, and (iii) the Company transferred its interest of 35.Oi% in 
Hongkong Electric Holdings to Cheung Kong Infrastructure (the “Reorganization”). For a summary of~these 
transactions, their pro formameffect on the Company’s results of operations and the accounting treatment 
adopted in the Company’s financial statements,. see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of 
Operations and Financial Condition - Group ,Reorganization”. 

Recent Developments 

On June 27, 1997 the Company entered into a HK$12,000 million five year loan facility agreement with a 
syndicate of financial institutions. The unsecured loan bears interest at 39 basis points over the Hong ‘Kong 
Inter-Bank Offered Rate and is repayable in full on June 27, 2002. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company 
borrowed HK$9,000 million on July 7, 1997 and HK$7,965 million of such borrowings was used on the same 
day to repay short term debt. The Company currently intends to use the remaining amount of the facility in 
July 1997 to repay short term debt. 

The ,Issuer 

The Issuer is .a wholly-owned finance subsidiary of the Company incorporated on April 11, 1997 with 
limited liability for an,indefinite period under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The primary purpose of the 
Issuer, which has no material assets, is to act as a,finance subsidiary for the Company. The registered office of 
the Issuer is located at the office of Maples and Calder, Ugland House, P.O. Box 309, South Church Street, 
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. All of the issued shares of the Issuer are 
owned by the Company. 
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The Offering 

Issuer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Hutch&n ‘Whampoa Finance (CI) Limited, a company incorporated in 
(’ ,I the Cayman Islands with limited liability. 

Guarantor. . . . . . . . . . . . . I .’ . . ‘. . ” ‘Hutchison Whampoa Limited, a Hong Kong company. 

Series A Notes . . . ,. . . . . . . . ‘. . s ‘US$750,000,?00 principal amount of 6.950% Notes due 2007. 

Series B Notes . . . . . . . . . ; ,. . . . US$5OO,qOO,OOO principal amount of 7.450% Notes due 2017. 

Series C Notes . . . . . . . . US$500,000,000 principal amount’of 7.500% Notes due 2027. 

Series D Notes . . . . . . . ,. . . . . . US$250,000,000 principal amount of 6.988% Notes due 2037. 

The Offering . . . . . . . US$2,000,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Notes are being 
offered (i) in the United States to “qualified institutional buyers”, as 
,defined in, and in reliance on, .Rule 144A (“Rule 144A”) under the 
Securities Act (“QIBs”) and to., a limited number of institutional 
investors ~that qualify as “accredited investors” as defined in 
Rule 50i(a)(l), (2), (3) and (7) under the Securities Act (“Institu- 
tional Accredited Investors”), and (ii) outside the United States in 
reliance on Regulation S (“Regulation S”) under the Securities Act. 
See “Plan of Distribution”. ,. 

Issue Price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . In the case of the Series A Notesi 99.801% of principal amount, plus 
accrued interest, if any-, from’ August 1, 1997. In the case of the Series B 
Notes, 99.897% of principal amount, plus accrued interest, if any, from 

I August 1, 19917’. In the case of the Series C Notes, 99.292% of principal 
amount, plus accrued interest, if any, from August 1, 1997. In the case of 
the Series D Notes, 100% of principal amount, plus accrued interest, if 
any, from August 1, 1997. 

Maturity Date . . . . . . . . . . . . . In the’case of the Series A Notes, August 1, 2007 
In the case of the Series B Notes, August 1, 2017 

.I In the case of the Series C Notes, August 1, 2027 
In the case of the Series D Notes, :August 1, 2037 

Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . ,. . . . . . The Notes will bear interest from the date of original issuance at the rate 
I of 6.950% per annum (in the case of the Series A Notes): 7.450% per 
,.‘. annum (in the case of the Series B Notes), 7.500% per annum (in the 

case of the Series C Notes), and 6.988% per annum (in the case of the 
,: Series D Notes) payable semi-annually in arrears. 

Interest Payment Dates . . . . . . . . February ‘1 and August 1 of each -year, commencing February 1, 1998. 

Status of Notes and,‘Guarantee. . The Notes of each series will constitute direct, senior, unsecured and 
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu, without any 
preference or priority of payment; among themselves and with all other 
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Issuer. The Guaran- 
tee will constitute a direct, senior, unsecured and unsubordinated obliga- 
tion of the Guarantor ranking pari.passu with all other unsecured and 
unsubordinated indebtedness of the Guarantor. 

Covenants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ,. . . . . In the case of each series of Notes, the Issuer and the Guarantor have 
agreed to observe certain covenants. See “Description of the Notes and 
the Guarantee - Certain Covenants”. 8’ 

Additional Amounts . . .‘. . . . . . . . In the event that certain Cayman Islands, Hong Kong or PRC taxes are 
payable in respect of payments pursuant to the Notes of any series or 
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Redemption . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Repayment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Denomination, Form and 
Registration of Notes . . . . . . . . 

pursuant to the Guarantee, the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may 
be, will, subject to certain exceptions, pay such additional amounts under 
the Notes of such series as will result, after deduction or withholding of 
such taxes, in the payment of the amounts which would have been 
payable in respect of the Notes of such series had no such deduction or 
withholding been required. See “Description of the Notes and the 
Guarantee - Additional Amounts” and “- Redemption”. 

None, except that Notes of each series may be redeemed at the option of 
the Issuer or the Guarantor, in whole but not in part, at the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest, in the event the Issuer 
or the Guarantor would become obligated to pay certain’ Cayman 
Islands, Hong Kong or PRC taxes in respect of the Notes of such,series. 
See “Description of the Notes and the Guarantee - Redemption”. 

The Series A Notes, the Series B Notes and the Series C Notes will not 
be subject to repayment at any time prior to maturity. The Series D 
Notes will be subject to repayment at the option of the holders thereof on 
August 1,2009 (the “Optional Repayment Date”), in whole or in part in 
increments of US$l,OOO (provided that any remaining principal amount 
of such Note will be at least US$lOO,OOO), at a price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount to be repaid, together with interest accrued on such 
principal, amount to the date of repayment (and any additional 
amounts), on notice given to the Issuer by the relevant holder not more 
than 60 nor less than 30 days prior to the Optional Repayment Date. See 
“Description of the Notes and the Guarantee - Repayment”. 

The Notes of each series will be denominated in principal amounts of 
US$lOO,OOO and in integral multiples of US$l,OOO in excess thereof. 
Notes offered in the United States (i) to QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A 
will be represented by one or more permanent global Notes in definitive, 
fully registered form without interest coupons (the “Rule 144A Global 
Notes”) deposited with Bankers Trust Company as Fiscal Agent (the 
“Fiscal Agent”), as custodian for and registered in the name of Cede & 
Co., as nominee of DTC, and (ii) to Institutional Accredited Investors 
will be represented by individual certificated Notes in fully registered 
form without interest coupons. Notes offered outside the United States 
in reliance on Regulation ‘S will be represented by one or more perma- 
nent global Notes in definitive, fully registered form without interest 
coupons (the “Regulation S Global Notes”) deposited with the Fiscal 
Agent as custodian for and registered in the name of a nominee of DTC 
for the respective accounts of Morgan Guaranty Trust Company’ of New 
York, Brussels office, as operator of the Euroclear System 
(“Euroclear”), and CEDEL Bank S.A. (“CEDEL”). Prior to the 
40th day after the later of the commencement of the offering and the 
closing date, beneficial’interests in the Regulation S Global Notes may 
be held only through Euroclear or CEDEL. 

DTC will credit the, account of each of its participants, including 
Euroclear and CEDEL, with the principal amount of Notes being 
purchased by or through such participant. Beneficial interests in the 
Global Notes will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only 
through, records maintained by DTC and its direct and indirect partici- 
pants, including Euroclear and CEDEL. 
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Transfer Restrictions . . . . . . . . . The Notes, other than Notes represented by the Regulation S Global 
Notes, will bear a Securities Act legend, and such Notes (or any 
beneficial interest therein) may not be transferred except in compliance 
with the transfer restrictions set forth in such legend. A transfer of a 
benehdial interest in the Notes of any series, other than Notes repre- 
sented’by the Regulation S Global Notes, to a person that takes delivery 
through an interest in the Regulation S Global Notes is subject to ceitain 

’ certification requirements as set forth in the Fisdal Agency Agreement. 
A transfer of a beneficial interest in th6 Regulation S Global Notes to a 
person that takes delivery through an interest, in the Rule 144A Global 
Notes or individual certificated Notes is also subject to certification 
requirements. See “Transfer Restrictions’,‘. 

Governing Law . . . . . . . . The Notes and the Guarantee will be gbverned by and construed in 
‘accordance with the laws of the State of New York. 

I 
Ratings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . The Notes have been rated “A3” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. 

(“Moody’s”) and “A+” by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group (“S&P”; 
S&P and Moody’s are each referred to as, a “Rating Agency” and 
together, the “Rating Agencies”). These ratingssare subject to change by 

: the Rating Agencies in future reviews. 

Listing . . . . . . . . . . . : . : .’ .’ . . . . . . Application has been made to list the-Notes on the Luxembourg Stock 
Exchange. 

See “Description of the Notes and the Guarantee” for more detailed ihformation concerning the terms of 
the Notes. 
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Summary Financial Information ‘,’ 

The follow&g tables p;es+ht summary consolidated financial information of the Company. This 
information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the 
notes thereto (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”), the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Results of Operations and,Financial Condition’! and the other historical financial information that appear 
elsewhere herein. The summary consolidated financial information for the three years ended December 31, 
1996.i~ derived from &e consolidated Financial Statements for those periods, which have been audited by 
Price Waterhouse, certified public accountapts, .whose report thereon is- included herein. 

On January 6, 1997, ‘the Company uncbnditionally agreed to purchtise for cash 7,750,OOO ordinary shares 
of Hongkong Electric Holdings at an aggregate price of approxi&tely HK$205.4 million resulting in the 
Company increasing its interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings to 35.01% of the issued share capital of 
Hongkong Electr& Holdings on such date. Also on January 6, 1997, Cheung Kong, the Company and Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure entered into an agreement pursuant to which, on March 10, 1997, (i) Cheung Kong 
increased its interest in the Company from 45.36% to 48.95% of the Company’s outstanding ordinary shares, 
(ii) the Company increased its interest in Cheubg Kting Infrastructdre from 3.93% to 84.58% of Cheung Kong 
Infrastructtire’s outstanding ordinary shares, ‘and: (iii) the Company transferred its interest of 35.01% in 
Hongkong Electric Holdings to Cheung Kdng Infrastructure. As a consequence of these transactions, from 
and after March 10, 1997, Cheung Kong InfraStrudture is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company. For a 
summary of these transactions: their pro forma’ effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial 
position, a,nd the accounting treatment adopted in the CompaFy’,s financial statements, see “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conhition - Group.Reorganization”. 

The .Copsolidated Financial Statements are prepared and presented in accoe with generally 
accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong GAAP”), which vary m certain significant 
respects from generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). For a 
description of certain of the differences between Hong Kong GAAP and U.S. GAAP with respect to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, see “Summary of Principal Differences Between Hong Kong GAAP and 
U.S. GAAP”. 

Financial statements of the Issuer have not been presented since the Issuer has no material assets and will 
conduct no business, except in connection with financing operations of the Company. 
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Consolidated Profit and Loss: 
Year Ended December 31. 

Turnover 

Operating profit : 
Share of,profits less losses of associated companies 
Exceptional item 
Profit before taxation 
Taxation 

Hong Kong 
Company and subsidiaries 
.Associated companies 

Overseas 
Company and subsidiaries 
Associated companies ‘. 

Profit after taxation I 
Minority interests 
Prom attributable to Shareholders 
Dividends 

” 
Profit for the Period-Retained 

Earnings per Share 
Dividends per Share 

1994 1995 1996 1996 

HK$ HK$ HK$ US$ 
(in millions, except per share information) 

30,168 35,026 36,662 4,743 

5,141 6,523 6,262 810 
5,099 3,902 1 ,, 3,631 470; 

-‘- 756(l) - : 4,100(2) 53012) 
10,240 11,181 13,993 1,810 

810 508 556 72 
692 436 324 42 

142 
(58) 

8,654 
633 

8,021 
3.362 
4,659 

2.22 
0.93 

88 202 26 
101 229 29 

10,048 12,682 1,641 
481 662 86 

9,567 
4,261 
5,300 

2.65 
1.18 

12,020 1,555, 
5.703 738 
6,317 817 

3.32 0.43 
1.50 0.19 

(1) Reflects the profit on the sale of the Company’s remaining 18% interest in STAR Television. 

(2) Reflects the profit recognized as the result of the global offering and listing of shares of Orange plc (“Orange”) in April 1996. 

Ratios 

Year Ended December 31. 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 - __ - - 

Earnings to Fixed Charges 5.2 7.6 7.1 5.1 5.9 
EBITDA/Gross interest coverage 7.8 10.9 8.1 5.8 7.0 
Operating Cash Flow/Net Debt 90.4% 297.8% 73.8% 94.4% 132.4% 
Net Debt/Net Capital 14.7% 5.6% 16.4% 16.2% 12.3% 
Gearing 18.3% 7.0% 19.6% 19.4% 14.0% 

Earnings - Represents profit before taxation and fixed charges. 

Fixed charges - Consist of interest (including capitalized interest) on all borrowings. 

EBITDA - Earnings, including exceptional items of a cash nature, before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is 
not presented herein as an alternative measure of operating results or cashflow, but rather to provide additional 
information as to the Company’s ability to service its debt. 

Net Debt - Net debt is defined as total interest bearing borrowings including interest bearing loans from minority shareholders, net 
of bank balances and cash equivalents, long term deposits, managed funds and other listed investments. 

Net Capital - Net capital is defined as total borrowings plus share capital and reserves, minority interests and deferred taxation, net of 
bank balances and cash equivalents, long term deposits, managed funds and other listed investments. 

Gearing - Net interest bearing borrowings as a percentage of the aggregate of shareholders’ funds and minority equity and interest 
free loan. Net interest bearing borrowings is defined as total interest bearing borrowings including interest bearing loans 
from minority shareholders net of bank balances and cash equivalents, long term deposits, managed funds and other 
listed investments. 



’ Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

Current assets 
Current liabilities 
Net current assets (liabilities) 
Managed funds and other investments 
Fixed assets 
Deferred expenditures 
Associated companies 
Employment of Capital 

Share capital 
Reserves 
Shareholders’ Funds 
Minority interests 
Long term liabilities 
Deferred taxation 
Capital Employed 

As of December 31, 
1994 1995 1996 1996 --~- 
HK$ HK$ HK% US$ 

(in millions) 

17,851 
17,490 

361 
13,223 
52,192 

1,153 
21.705 

23,658 
28.987 

(W9) 
15,965 
54,508 

2,536 
22.778 

88,634 90,458 111,291 14,397 

18,385 
20,288 

(1,903) 
22,55 1 
63,188 

1,086 
26,369 

2,379 
2,625 

(246) 
2,917 
8,174 

141 
3.411 

905 904 905 117 
56,252 57,935 67,994 8,796 
57,157 58,839 68,899 8,913 

5,144 5,333 7,814 1,011 
26,189 26,174 34,459 4,458 

144 112 119 15 - - ~ - 
88,634 90,458, 111,291 14,397 

/-- 

I 
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INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS 
‘“’ 

Investors should consider, among other ‘things, the factors set forth below as well as other considerations 
with respect to investments in Hong Kong corporations not normally ‘associated with ,,investments in the 
securities of issuers in the United States and ,other jurisdictions. This Ofleering Circular, including particularly 
the information set forth under the caption “Business” in so far as it describes properties,, proj’ects, business 
ventures or strategies at an early stage of development or ful@llment, includes ‘tforward looking statements”. 
Although the Company believes that its plans, intentions and expectations reflected in such forward looking 
statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such plans, intentions or expectations will be achieved. 
Important factors that could cause actual results to di’er materially from the Company’s forward looking 
statements are set forth in this Ofering Circular, but particularly include those set forth below. All forward 
looking statements attributable to the Company or persons acting on itsjbehalf are expressly qualified in their 
entirety by’ the investment considerations set forth below. 

Hong Kong and Mainland China 

A significant portion of the Company’s operating assets are located in Hong Kong, and a majority of the 
Company’s revenues are derived from its operations conducted in Hong Kong. As a result, the Company’s 
financial condition and results of operations may be influenced by the political situation in Hong Kong and by 
the general state of the Hong Kong economy and the economies in the surrounding region, particularly 
mainland China. 

As of July 1, 1997, Hong Kong ceased to be a Crown Colony of the U.K. and became a Special 
Administrative Region of China. Although the Sino-British Joint Declaration on the Question of Hong Kong 
(the “Joint Declaration”) and the Basic Law of Hong Kong (the “Basic Law”) provide that Hong Kong will 
have a high degree’ of legislative, judicial and economic autonomy, there can, be no assurance that the 
Company’s financial condition and results of operations will not be adversely affected as a consequence of the 
exercise of Chinese sovereignty over Hong Kong. I’n addition, political and social developments in China have 
from time to time adversely affected the, Hong Kong economy and property market. 

The Company has investments in many joint venture companies in mainland China. The value of the 
Company’s investments in mainland China may l&adversely affected by significant political, social or legal 
uncertainties or changes in China. The Chinese government has been reforming its economic and political 
systems since the late 1970s. The ‘continued implementation of reforms may be influenced by internal political, 
social and economic factors. Changes in economic policy or legal requirements may have adverse effects on 
the Chinese economy, and could discourage foreign investment. 

The Company has investments in several joint venture companies formed to develop, own and/or operate 
property in mainland China. Development projects in mainland China are dependent on obtaining the 
approval of a variety of governmental authorities at different levels, receipt of which cannot be assured. 
Development projects in mainland China have been and may in the future be subject to certain risks, including 
the cyclical nature of property markets, changesbin governmental regulations, and economic policies, including 
regulations and policies restricting construction of properties and buildings and related limitations on 
extensions of credit, building material shortages, increases in labor and material costs, changes in general 
economic and credit conditions and the illiquidity of land and other property. There can be no assurances that 
required approvals will be obtained or that the cost of the Company’s developments will not exceed projected 
costs. 

The Hong Kong economy in general, and the Company’s port operations in Hong Kong and mainland 
China, in particular, benefit from the substantial amount of trade between China ‘and the rest of the world. 
China currently enjoys Most-Favored-Nation (“MFN”) status granted by the United States, which results in 
its exports being subject to the lowest applicable tariffs upon their entry into the United States. The United 
States annually reconsiders the renewal of MFN trading status for China. MFN status may be extended by 
executive order of the President of the United States, subject to the power of the United States Congress to 
rescind such extension by a two-thirds vote of both houses of Congress. No assurance can be given that 
China’s MFN status will be renewed in future years, and China’s loss of MFN status could adversely affect 
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the performance of the Company. A significant reduction in trade as the result of the loss of MFN status, the 
imposition of other trade restrictions or other reasons could adversely affect the Hong Kong economy which 
could lead, among other things, to a reduction in real property- values and rent levels and in the Company’s 
retail business. A significant reduction in trade between China and the rest of the world could also adversely 
impact the Corn&&y’s port operations in Hong Kong and mainland China by reducing the amount of cargo 
handled by the Company”s ports in Hong Kong and mainland China. 

Hkmg Kong Property ken&Is and Values 
. 

The Company has, and expects that it will continue to have, substantial property and hotel interests in 
Hong Kong. The Hong ‘Kong property market has been cyclical. For example, rental m@.s for office space rose 
sharply in 1989 and 1990 and were significantly lower in the following years, particukrly in 1991 and 1992 
when substantial amounts of new office space became available. Rental rates and pwaerty values for office 
space once again increased to record highs during 1993 and the first half of 1994. Since then rental rates and 
property values decreased considerably before stabilizing toward the end of 1995 andtdnrly 1996. In the latter 
part of 1996 and first half of 1997 property prices increased. Historically, Hong Ken property values have 
been affected by supply and demand of comparable properties, the amount of new lan.,, made available by the d! 
Hong Kong Government to third parties, the rate of economic growth in Hong Kong: political and economic 
developments in China and Sino-British relations. Since leases of Hong Kong properties are often for a short 
duration (typically two to six~years, depending on the type of property) or contain provisions requiring periodic 
adjustments of rent within a short period of time (typically three years), the Company’s income-from property 
may be subject to more.frequent adjustments than would be the case in other real.eWe.markets. 

The Company is also subject to the general risks incidental to the ownership atid,&&ation of office and 
related commercial properties including, among other things, competition for tem$, changes in market 
rental levels, inability to collect rent from tenants due to bankruptcy or insolvency ofjenants or otherwise, and 
the need to renovate, repair and relet space periodically and to pay the associated costs. : _ ’ 

The Company is similarly subject to the general risks inherent to property dev&@rtent, including, among 
other things, rhe risks that financing for development may not be available on, favorable terms, that 
construction may not be completed on schedule or within budget (for reasons including shortages of 
equipment, material and labor, work stoppages, interruptions resulting from inclement weather, unforeseen 
engineering, environmental and geological problems and unanticipated cost increases),.that development may 
be affected by governmental regulations .(including delays or failure to obtain the. requisite construction and 
occupancy approvals), that long-term financing may not be available on completion ,of construction, that 
developed properties may not be leased or sold on profitable terms and the risk of purchaser defaults. 

, 
Property Available ‘for Future Acquisition 

The. Company’s business is dependent, in part, on the availability of land, buildin& &d hotels suitable for 
development or investment. As property values have appreciated in Hong Kong, it has,+ecame more difficult 
to locate suitable property to acquire at economic prices. To the extent that the Compairlr is unable to acquire 
property at econ,omi.c prices in Hong, Kong, the Company’s ,ability to grow its property division could be 
adversely affected. 

Telecommunications 

The telecommunications industry,, is highly competitive and has been subject &I :rapid and significant 
changes in technology. The Company faces competition from entities providing otb .telecommunications 
technologies and may face competition in the future from technologies being developedME to be developed in 
the future. Cordless technology? private and shared radio networks, satellite-based pe$&hal communications 
services and other communications services which have the technical capability to &ndle mobile telephone 
calls (including interconnection to the fixed line telephone network) may provide competition to cellular 
networks. The effect of emerging and future technological and regulatory changesI,on the viability or 
competitiveness of the Company’s, Hong Kong telecommunications business cannot be accurately predicted. 

14 



The Company has also recently begun to provide fixed line services, including international dialing services, 
and faces competition from existing and new fixed line service providers. 

‘The. Company is currently building a fixed line network in Hong Kong. The Company’s ability to increase 
its fixed line business depends upon the successful construction of the network. The buildout of the network is 
subject to construction risks and uncertainties which could delay the introduction of service ,in some areas and 
increase the cost of network construction. 

The Hong Kong telecommunications industry operates under ~ licenses granted by ‘the Hong Kong 
regulatory authorities; The Company’s telecomr&ications operations could be adversely affected by ‘any 
revocation or amendment of its’ existing licenses or the granting of new licenses. There can be no assurance 
that the existing regulatory and licensing framework will remain unchanged after China’s.recent resumption of 
sovereignty over Hong Korig. 

Infrastructure Projects 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure, in I which the Company has a 84.58% interest, is, ;engaged in the 
development, ownership, operation and management of infrastructure businesses in mainland China and 
infrastructure materials businesses in Hong Kong and mainland China. In addition to the normal political risks 
associated with other investments in mainland China, there are a number of construction,, financing and other 
risks associated with infrastructure investments in mainland China. Infrastructure projects of the types 
undertaken by the Company typically require substantial capital expenditures during the construction phase 
and usually take many months, sometimes years, before they become operational and generate revenue. The 
time taken and the costs involved in completing, construction can be adversely affected by many factors, 
including shortages of materials, equipment and labor, adverse weather conditions, natural disasters, labor 
disputes, disputes with sub-contractors, accidents, changes in government priorities and unforeseen problems 
and circumstances. Any of these could give rise to delays in the completion of construction‘and/or to cost 
overruns. Delays in the process of obtaining the requisite licences, permits or approvals from government 
agencies or authorities can also increase the cost, or delay or prevent the commercral operation of a business. 
Construction delays can result in, the loss of, revenues. The failure to complete construction according to its 
specifications may resu’lt in liabilities, reduced efficiency and less desirable returns. ,,, 

Controlling Shareholder : I ,, 
‘, 

Approximately 49.94% of the issued share capital of the Company was held by certain subsidiaries of 
Cheung Kong as of June 30, 1997. Cheung Kong is also listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and was 
the sixth largest company on such Exchange in terms of market capitalization as of July 10,1997. In addition, 
approximately 0.20% of the issued share capital of the Company ivas as of June 30, 1997 held by a unit trust 
and by’s company controlled by such trust and all the units of such trust are held by discretionary trusts, the 
discretionary beneficiaries of which are, inter alia,, Mr. Li Ka-shing, the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Ci is 
also the Chairman and Managing Director of Cheung Kong and is one of the discretionary beneficiaries under 
certain unit trusts which unit trusts control companies which together hold approximately 33.59% of the issued 
capital of Cheung Kong as of June 30: 1,997. Although Cheung Kong and the Company are currently 
&operating in major development activities in Hong Kon g and mainland China, ‘there is no assurance that 
Cheung Kong will not compete with the Company in connection with its property-related businesses in the 
future. 

Although the Company believes that its relationship with Cheung Kong provides it with significant 
business advantages, the relationship results in various related party, or “connected” transactions. All such 
transactions are required to be entered into by the Company on an arm’s length basis. All transactions between 
members of the Company and its Directors or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing 
Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), which term includes Cheung Kong) will 
constitute connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules and, unless exemptions are 
applicable or waivers are granted under the Listing Rules, will be subject to independent shareholders’ 
approval in a general meeting. 
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Holding Company Structure 

The Issuer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has no material assets and will conduct no 
business except in connection with financing the operations of the Company. The Guarantee is solely an 
obligation of the Guarantor. The Guarantor is primarily a holding company and its ability to’make payments 
to the Issuer or pursuant to the Guarantee in respect of the Notes depends largely upon the receipt of 
dividends, distributions, interest or advances from its wholly or partly-owned subsidiaries and associated 
companies. The ability of the subsidiaries and associated companies of the Guarantor to pay dividends may be 
subject to applicable laws. Payments on the Notes are structurally subordinated to all existing and future 
liabilities and obligations of each of the Guarantor’s subsidiaries (other than the Issuer) and associated 
companies. Claims of creditors of such companies will have priority as to the assets of such companies over 
the Guarantor and its creditors, including holders of the Notes seeking to enforce the Guarantee. 

Market for the Notes 

The liquidity for the,Notes will depend in part upon the activity of market makers for the Notes in the 
over-the-counter market. Representatives of the Purchasers currently intend to make a market in the Notes, 
but they are not obligated to do so and no assurance can be given that they actually will do so, or if they do so, 
that they will continue to make a market. No assurance can be given that an active trading market for the 
Notes will develop. 

THE ISSUER 

The Issuer, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Guarantor, was incorporated as an exempted company with 
limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands on April 11, 1997. Its registered office is located at 
Ugland House, P.O. Box 309, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands and its 
principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at 22/F Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Central, 
Hong Kong. The Issuer will not, as long as the Notes are outstanding, engage in any activity other than those 
in connection with issuing the Notes and advancing the net proceeds thereof to the Company. 

The directors of the Issuer are Mr. Canning Kin Ning Fok, Mr. William Shurniak and Mrs. Susan M.F. 
Chow. Further information on the particulars and experience of the directo:q. is set forth below in 
“Management”. 

The authorized share capital of the Issuer is US$SC$OOO divided into 50,000 sh& of US$l.OO par value 
each, of which one share is issued and outstanding. No part of the equity securities 4f the Issuer is listed or 
dealt on any stock exchange and no listing or permission to deal in such securities is be&g’or is proposed to be 
sought. The Issuer does not have debt outstanding other than the Notes now being &bed. The Issuer has no 
subsidiaries. 

The Issuer has not audited or published, and does not propose to audit or publish, any of its accounts 
since it is not required to do so under Cayman Islands law. The Issuer is, ~however, required to keep proper 
books of account as are necessary to give a true and fair view of the state of its affairs and to explain its 
transactions. 
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USE OF PROCEEDS 

The net proceeds of the sale of the Notes, estimated to be approximately US$1,978,000,000, will be 
initially advanced by the Issuer to one or more subsidiaries of the Company. The Company intends to cause 
the net proceeds of the offering to be used for general corporate ,purposes, including funding capital 
expenditures in the Company’s core businesses. 

EXCHANGE RATES 

The Hong Kong dollar is freely convertible into other currencies (including the U.S. dollar). Since 
October 17, ‘1983, the Hong Kong dollar has been officially linked to the U.S. dollar at the rate of HK$7.80 to 
US$l.OO. The link is supported by an agreement between Hong Kong’s three banknote-issuing banks and the 
Hong Kong Government pursuant to which banknotes issued by such banks are backed by certificates of 
indebtedness purchased by such banks from the Hong Kong Government Exchange Fund with U.S. dollars at 
the fixed exchange rate of HK$7.80 to US$l.OO and held as cover for the banknotes issued. When banknotes 
are withdrawn from circulation, the issuing bank surrenders certificates of indebtedness to the Hong Kong 
Government Exchange Fund and is paid the equivalent amount in U.S. dollars at the fixed rate of exchange. 
The agreement does not have a fixed term, and the Hong Kong Government has not announced any plans to 
change the link. Hong Kong’s three banknote-issuing banks are The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking 
Corporation Limited, Standard Chartered Bank and the Bank of China. 

The market exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar against the U.S. dollar continues to be determined by 
the forces of supply and demand in the foreign exchange market, although the Hong Kong Government, 
acting through the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, has a number of means by which it may act to maintain 
exchange rate stability. The market exchange rate has not deviated significantly from the rate of HK$7.80 to 
US$l.OO. Exchange rates between the Hong Kong dollar and other currencies are influenced by the exchange 
rate between the U.S. dollar and such currencies, 

The following table sets forth the average, high, low and period-end Noon Buying Rate between Hong 
Kong dollars and U.S. dollars (in Hong Kong dollars per U.S. dollar) for the periods indicated: 

Hong Kong Dollars/U.S. Dollars 
Noon Buying Rate 

Average (1) High Low Period-End 

HK$ ;HK$ HK% HK$ 

1992 7.7402 7.7745 7.7233 7.7430 
1993 7.7357 7.7660 7.7230 7.7280 
1994 7.7290 7.7530 7.7225 7.7375 
1995 7.7357 7.7665 7.7300 7.7323 
1996 7.7345 7.7440 7.7310 7.7347 
1997 (through June 30) 7.7448 7.7550 ,7.7340 7.7475 

(1) Determined by averaging the’ rates on each business day during the relevant period. 

Sources: Federal Reserve Bulletin, 1990-1994. Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System; Federal Reserve Statistical Release 
H.10 (5Z2). 1995-1997, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System; Federal Reserve Bank of New York. 

The Basic Law of Hong Kong provides that after July 1, 1997, the Hong Kong dollar will remain the legal 
tender in Hong Kong. The Basic Law does not alter the Hong Kong Government’s commitments with Hong 
Kong’s three banknote-issuing banks described above. The Basic Law also provides that the Hong Kong dollar 
shall remain freely convertible and that no exchange control restrictions shall be applied in Hong Kong. See 
“Hong Kong”. 
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CAPITALIZATION 

The following table sets forth the consolidated capitalization of the Company as of June 30, 1997 .(except 
where otherwise indicated) and as adjusted to give effect to the issuance of the Notes, a loan. of HK$9,00Q 
million borrowed on July 7, 1997 pursuant to a HK$12,000 million long term loan facility and the repayment 
of HK$7,965 million of short term debt on the same date. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Results of Operations and Financial Condition - Liquidity and Capital Resources”. The table has been 
prepared on a basis consistent with the principal accounting policies of the Company as set out in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and should be read in conjunction with such Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

!v 
As 6f June 30, 1997 

Actual. :As Adjusted As Adjusted 
HK% HK$ -us$ 

(in millions) 

Short term debt (including current portion of long-term debt) 20,537 .I 12,572 1,626 

Long term debt (net of current portion) 
Notes offered hereby 
Shareholders’ funds 

Ordinary shares 
Share premium 
Capital’ redemption reserves* 
Properties revaluation reserves* 
Exchange translation reserves* 
Retained earnings* 

Total shareholders’ funds 
Total capitalization 

. . 
39,146 ’ / ,&,I46 6,22k 

, ii - 15,460 2,000 
” “,,..’ 

968 : 968 ‘I$‘;., 
28,034, :I tr:~28,034~ 

404 A L! :’ I 404 2 
19,641 ,I; I2 189,641 

(613) 1 _:I (613) 
A 35 309 ,. ll%!L1 35,309 

83,743 ; :;!, &743> 
122,889 [<,I, 147,349 

125 
3,627 

-52 
2,541 

-4,568 (79) 

10,834 
.19,062 
1 

Total short term debt and capitalization 143,426 159,921 20,688 

*Amounts as at December 31, 1996, 

The authorized share capital of the Company is HK$1,565.2 million divided into 4,650,000,000 ordinary 
shares with a. par value, of HK$0.25 each and 402,717,856 71/2% cumulative redeemable participating 
preference shares of HK$l- each, of which 3,873,633,401 ordinary shares have been issued and fully paid at 
June 30, 1997. 

Except for adjustments included in the table above, there has been no material cWig@,in the consolidated 
indebtedness of the Company since June 30, l997 or any material change in the capitalization of the Company 
since December 31, 1996. 

‘3 -. : 
: ,I\‘, :‘_ : 

,,,I ,/I 
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCL4L INFORMATION 

The following tables present selected consolidated financial information of the Company. This informa- 
tion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements, the “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Results, of Operations and Financial Condition” and the other historical financial 
information that appear elsewhere herein. The selected Consolidated Financial Information for the three years 
ended December 31, 1996 is derived from the Consolidated Financial Statements for those periods, which 
have been audited by Price Waterhouse, certified public accountants, whose report thereon is included herein. 

,’ 
On January 6, 1997, the Company unconditionally agreed to purchase for cash 7,750,OOO ordinary shares 

of Hongkong Electric Holdings at an aggregate price of approximately HK$205.4 million resulting in the 
Company increasing its interest in’ Hongkong Electric Holdings to 35.01% of the issued share capital of 
Hongkong Electric Holdings on such date. Also on January 6, 1997, Cheung Kong, the Company and Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure entered into an agreement pursuant to which, on March 10, 1997, (i) Cheung Kong 
increased its interest in the Company from 45.36% to 48.95% of the Company’s outstanding ordinary shares, 
‘(ii) the Company increased its interest in Cheung Kong Infrastructure from 3.93% to 84.58% of Cheung Kong 
.Infrastructure’s outstanding ordinary shares, and (iii) the Company transferred its interest of 35.01% in 
Hongkong Eiectric Holdings to Cheung Kong Infrastructure. As a consequence, of these transactions, from 
and after March 10, 1997, Cheung Kong Infrastructure is expected to be accounted for as a subsidiary of the 
Company. For a summary of these transactions, their pro forma effect on the Company’s results of operations 

-and financial position, and ~the accounting treatment adopted in the Company’s financial statements, see 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition - Group Reor- 
ganization”. For further information concerning Cheung Kong Infrastructure, see the financial statements of 
Cheung Kong Infrastructure as at December 31, 1995 and 1996 and the two years-then ended attached as 
Appendix I hereto. ‘, 

The Consolidated ,Financial Statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Hong Kong 
GAAP, which vary in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. For a description of certain of the 
differences between Hong Kong IGAAP and US1 GAAP ‘with respect to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, see “Summary of Principal Differences Between Hong Kong GAAP and U.S. GAAP”.’ 

Financial statements of the Issuer have not been presented since the Issuer has no material assets and will 
conduct no business, except in connection with financing operations of the Company. 

‘/ 

’ 

1, 
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Consolidated Profit and Loss: 

Turnover 

Operating profit 
Share of profits less losses of associated companies 
Exceptional item 
Profit before taxation 
Taxation 

Hong Kong 
Company and subsidiaries 
Associated companies 

Overseas 
Company and subsidiaries 

.’ Associated companies 
Profit after taxation 
Minority interests 
Profit attributable to Shareholders 
Dividends 
Profit for the Period Retained 

Earnings per Share 
Dividends per Share 

Year Ended December 31, 
1994 1995 1996 1996 - - - 
HK$ HK% HK$ US$ 

(in millions, except per share information) 

30,168 

5,141 
5,099 

- 

10,240 

810 
692 

142 
(58) 

’ 88 
101 

8,654 10,048 
633 481 

35,026 366k2 4,743 --,A- 
6,523 6,262 810 
3,902 3,631 470 

746(l) 4,100(2) 
11,181 

530(2) 
13,993 1,810 

508 556 72 
436 324 42 

8,021 9,567 
3.362 4.267 
4,659 

2.22 
0.93 

. 

5,300, 

2.65 
1:18, 

202 
229 

12,682 
662 

12,020 
5,703 
6,317 

3.32 
1.50 

26 
29 

1,641 
86 

1,555 
738 
817 

0.43 
0.19 

(1) Reflects the profit on the sale of the Company’s remaining 18% interest in STAR Television. 

(2) Reflects the profit recognized as the result of the global offering and listing of shares of Orange in April 1996. 

Ratios 

Earnings to Fixed Charges 
EBITDA/Gross interest coverage 
Operating Cash Flow/Net Debt 
Net Debt/Net Capital 
Gearing 

Year Ended December 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 - - - - 

5.2 7.6 7.1 5.1 5.9 
7.6 10.9 8.1 5.8 7.0 

90.4% 297.8% 73.8% 94.4% 132.4% 
14.7% 5.6% 16.4% 16.2% 12.3% 
18.3% 7.0% 19.6% 19.4% 14.0% 

Earnings - Represents profit before taxation and fixed charges. 
Fixed charges - Consist of interest (including capitalised interest) on all borrowings. 
EBITDA - Earnings, including exceptional items of a cash nature, before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is 

not presented herein as an alternative measure of operating results or cashflow, but rather to provide additional 
information as to the Company’s ability to service its debt. 

Net Debt - Net debt is defined as total interest bearing borrowings including interest bearing loans from minority shareholders, net 
of bank balances and cash equivalents, long term deposits, managed funds and other listed investments. 

Net Capital - Net capital is defined as total borrowings plus share capital and reserves, minority interests and deferred taxation, net 
of bank balances and cash equivalents, long term deposits, managed funds and other listed investments. 

Gearing - Net interest bearing borrowings as a percentage of the aggregate of shareholders’ funds and minority equity and 
interest free loan. Net interest bearing borrowings is defined as total interest bearing borrowings including interest 
bearing loans from minority shareholders net of bank balances and cash equivalents, long term deposits, managed 
funds and other listed investments. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet: 
As,of December 31, 

‘, i :  

Current assets 
Current liabilities 
Net current assets (liabilities) 

‘Managed funds and other investments 
Fixed assets 
Deferred expenditures 
Associated companies 
Employment of Capital 

Share capital 
Reserves 
Shareholders’ Funds 
Minority interests 
Long term liabilities 
Deferred taxation 
Capital Employed 

1994 1995 1996 

HK% HK$ HK% 
(in millions) 

17,851 23,658 18,385 
17,490 28,987 20,288 

361 (5,329) (1,903) 
13,223 15,965 22,551 
52,192 

1,153 
21.705 
88,634 

905 
56,252 
57,157 

5,144 
26,189 

144 
88,634 

54,508 63,188 
2,536 1;086 

22,778 26,369 
9’0,458 111,291 

904 905 
57,935 67,994 
58,839 68,899 

5,333 7,814 
26,174 34,459 

112 119 
90,458 111,291 

1996 
US% 

2,379 
2,625 

(246) 
2,917 
8,174 

141 
3,411 

14,397 

117 
8,796 
8,913 
1,011 
4,458 

15 
14,397 

21 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
RESULTS OF OPERATION AND FLUANCIAL CONDITION 

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements 
included elsewhere in this Offering Circular. 

O&view 

The Company is a holding company and engages in its various activities,.@rough subsidiaries and 
associated companies. While a substantial majority of the Company’s profits aregenerated by subsidiaries, 
historically associated companies engaged in property development for sale and Hongkong Electric Holdings, 
in which the Company held a 34.6% interest as of December 3 1, 1996, have made a significant contribution to 
the Company’s results of operations. The information set forth below does not reflect the transactions, which 
occurred in 19,97, described below under ‘.‘Group Reorganization.” 

The following table sets forth the Company’s turnover and profit attributable to shareholders by activity, 
and the percentage of the total represented by such activity, for the periods indicated. 

Turnover (1) 

.I 

‘Activity: 

Property 
Ports and Related Services 
Retail, Manufacturing and 

Other Services 
Telecommunications 
Energy, Finance and Other 

Investments 
Total 

Year Ended December 31, 
1992 : 1993 1994 199Si 1996 I: 

HK$ ‘% HK$ % HK$ % HK$’ % HK$ %I 
(in millions, except percentages) . :I ., 

1,208 5.8 1,566 6.3 1,912 6.3 1,968 5.6 2,156 5.9 
4,486 21.3 5,408 21.9 6,210 20.6 6,548 18.7 7,813 21.3 

9,534 45.3 11,048 44.6 13,605 45.1 15,959 45.5 18,102 49.4 
4,876 23.2 5,717 23.1 7,228 24.0 8,601 24.6 1,042 19.2 

926 4.4 1,549 4.2 - - 1,009 4.1 1,213 4.0 1,950 5.6 
21,030 100.0 24 , 748 100.0 30 168 100.0 ----_1_----- 35,026 100.0 36,662 100.0 

(1) Includes turnover for the Company and its subsidiary companies, without adjusting for minority interests. 
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Profit Attributable to Shareholders (1) f{ 

Year Ended December 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 

HK$ % HK$ k HK$ % HK$ ” % 

‘I (in millions, except p,ercentages) 

1996 
HK$ % 

Activity: 
Property 
Ports and Related Services 
Retail, Manufacturing and 

Other Services 
Telecommunications 

1,824 ” 59.8’ 2,318 36.8 3,311 41.3 i,936 30.7 1,409 11.7 
” 868 28.4 1,285 20.4 ‘2,021’ 25.2 2,201 23.0 2,369 19.7 

165 5.4 323 5.1 596 7.4 686 1.2 1,034 8.6 
9 0.3 13(2) 0.2 184 2.3 ;’ 324(3) 3.4 3,642(4) 30.3 

Energy, Finance and Other 
Investments 186(5) 6.1 2,365 37.5 i,909’ 23.8 3,420 35.1 3,j66 29.7 - - 
Total 3,052. loo.0 6,304- 100.0 8,021 100.0 9,561 a 100.0 

---- - 12,020 
--7 - - 

,’ ’ ! 
(1) Includes profit attributable to shareholders for the Company, its subsidiary companies, after adjusting for minority interests, and its 

proportionate share of associated companies’ profit. 

(2) Includes a HK$1,660 million profit on the sale of a portion of the Company’s interest in STAR Television and a HK$1,406 million 
provision for the Company’s U.K. telecommunications business. 

(3) Includes a HK$756 million profit on the sale of remaining interest in STAR Television. 

(4) Includes a’ HK$4,106 million profit ‘on flotation of Orange. 
~ 

(5) ‘Includes a HK$1,422 million provision for ‘the investment in Husky. 

In 1992, 1993, 1994, 1995 and 1996, the profit attributable to shareholders of the property division was 
HK$l,824 million,, HK$2,3 18 million, HK$3,3 11 million, HK$2,936 million and HK$1,409 million, respec- 
tively, accounting for 59.8%, 36.8%, 41.3%, 30.7% and 11.7%, respectively,, of total profit attributable to 
shareholders. The division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders declined in ,1996 compared to 
1995 primarily due to higher profits from sales in 1995 of units in the completed South Horizon development, 
in which the Company has a 50% interest. 

The contribution of the ports and related services division to the Company’s profit attributable to 
shareholders has grown substantially over the past five years. In 1992, 1993, 1994, 1995 and 1996, the profit 
attributable to shareholders of the ports and related services division was HK$868 million, HK$1,285 million, 
HK$2,021 million, HK$2,201 million and HK$2,369 million, respectively, with a compound annual growth 
rate of 28.5% over the five year period ending December 31, 1996. 

The retail, manufacturing and other services division contributed HKS165 million, HK$323 million, 
HK$596 million, HK$686 million and HK$1,034 million in profit attributable to shareholders in 1992, 1993, 
1994, 1995 and 1996, respectively. The Company’s retail and manufacturing operations have been a 
consistently growing contributor to the Company’s results of operations. The profit attributable to shareholders 
of these operations has grown at a compound annual rate of 58.2% over the five year period ending 
December 31, 1996. 

The telecommunications division contributed HK$9 million, HK$l3 million, HK$l84 million, HK$324 
million and HK$3,642 million in profit attributable to shareholders in 1992, 1993, 1994, 1995 and 1996, 
respectively. Over the past several years, the Company has used the profits generated from its Hong Kong 
telecommunications operations to offset the losses incurred in the development stage of its start-up operations 
overseas, such as Orange. In April 1996, as the result of the global offering and listing of shares of Orange, the 
Company recognized a HK$4,100 million exceptional profit. 

The Company’s energy, finance and other investments division has performed well in recent years due to 
the strong performance of Hongkong Electric Holdings and significant income from the Company’s 
investments held in managed funds and other investments. The division contributed HK$186 million (after 
deducting a HK$1,422 million provision for the Company’s investment in Husky), HK$2,365 million, 
HK$1,909 million, HK$3,420 million and HK$3,566 million in 1992, 1993, 1994, 1995 and 1996, respectively, 

23 



to the Company’s profit attributable to shareholders. In 1996, the energy, finance and other investments 
division accounted for 29.7% of the Company’s total profit attributable to shareholders. 

Group Reorganization 

On January 6, 1997, the Company unconditionally agreed to purchase for cash 7,750,OOO ordinary shares 
of Hongkong Electric Holdings at an aggregate price of approximately HK$205.4 million (the “Acquisition”) 
increasing the Company’s interest from approximately 34% to 35.01% of the issued share capital of Hongkong 
Electric Holdings. 

As a consequence of the Acquisition, an obligation for the Compaiiy to make a mandatory offer (which 
offer was made by an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Offeror”)) for issued shares 
of Hongkong Electric Holdings was triggered, under the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers 
(“Takeovers Code”). Accordingly, on January 15, 1997, a conditional cash offer (the “Offer”) was made on 
behalf of the Offeror to acquire all the issued shares (other than those already owned by the Offeror or parties 
acting in concert with the Offeror) of Hongkong Electric Holdings at a price of I-W$26.50 per share, which 
represented a premium of 4.95 percent to the closing price of HK$25.25 as quoted bii’ the Hong Kong Stock 
Exchange on January 3, 1997. Acceptances of the Offer were less than the amount necessary for the Offer to 
become unconditional and as a result the Offer lapsed on February 5, 1997. As a consequence, the Company 
(together with persons acting in concert) may, subject to the restrictions set out ins the Takeovers Code, 
acquire further shares in Hongkong Electric Holdings without incurring an obligation to make a general offer. 

Also on January 6, 1997, Cheung Kong, the Company and Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into an 
agreement pursuant to which: on March 10, 1997, (i) Cheung Kong increased its interest in the Company 
from 45.36% to 48.95% of the Company’s outstanding ordinary shares, (ii) the Compdny increased its interest 
in Cheung Kong Infrastructure from 3.93% to 84.58% of Cheung Kong InfrastructurrYs outstanding ordinary 
shares, and (iii) the Company transferred its interest of 35.01% in Hongkong Elect&Holdings-to Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure. :/ 

i. 

,,, : 
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The corporate structure of the Cheung Kong group of companies, immediately following the Acquisition 
but prior to completion of the Offer and the Reorganization, as it relates to the Reorganization is set forth 
below. 

,, 
Infrastructure 

’ Holdings Limited 

45.36% 

Hutch&n 
* Whampoa 

3.93% Limited 

35.01% 

Hongkong Electric 
Holdings 
Limited 

The corporate structure of the Cheung Kong group of companies, immediately following the completion 
of the Offer and the Reorganization, as it relates to the Reorganization is.set forth below. 

Cheung Kong 
(Holdings) 

Limited 

Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure 

Holdings Limited 

Hongkong Electric 
Holdings 
Limited 

* Subsequently increased to 49.94% as of June 30, 1997. 

** Subsequently increased to 35.74% as of June 30, 1997. 



Transfer of Hongkong Electric Holdings Shares to Cheung Kong Infvastvuctrcve. On March 10, 1997, 
the Company transferred 707,295,862 ordinary shares of Hongkong Electric Holdings, representing 35.01% of 
the issued share capital of Hongkong Electric Holdings, to Cheung Kong Infrastructure for approximately 
HK$18,743 million, or HK$26.50 per share, which was satisfied by the issue of 886,209,945 new ordinary 
shares of Cheung Kong Infrastructure, representing approximately 39.3% of the enlarged issued share capital 
of Cheung Kong Infrastructure following the Reorganization, to the Company at a price of HK$21.15 per 
share (being the closing price of Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s ordinary shares on the Hong Kong Stock 
Exchange on January 3, 1997). 

Transfer of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Shares to the Company. On March 10, 1997, Cheung Kong 
transferred 966,689,OOO ordinary shares of Cheung Kong Infrastructure, representing approximately 42.88% of 
the enlarged issued share capital of Cheung Kong Infrastructure following the Reorganization, to the 
Company for approximately HK$20,445 million, or HK$21.15 per share, which was satisfied by the issue of 
254,316,978 new ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately 457% of the enlarged issued 
share capital of the Company following the Reorganization, to Cheung Kong at a price of HK$58.50 per 
ordinary share (being the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 
on January 3, 1997), and approximately HK$5,568 million in cash. 

Accounting Consequences 

As a consequence of the transactions described above, from and after March 10, 1997, Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company. The following table summarizes the pro forma 
effect on the Company’s consolidated profit and loss and consolidated balance sheet of the transactions 
described above as if such transactions had occurred on January 1, 1996. There can be no assurance that 
actual, consolidated profit and loss would not have been ‘materially different than-,as presented had such 
transactions actually occurred on such date. In addition, the pro forma financial information is prepared and 

,, ‘* ,: ’ 
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presented in accordance with Hong Kong GAAP, which vary in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. 
For a description of certain of the differences between Hong Kong GAAP and U.S. GAAP with respect to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, see “Summary of Principal Certain Differences Between Hong Kong 
GAAP and U.S. GAAP”. 

Consolidked Profit and Loss: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 1996 

Actual Pro Forma(l) 

HKS HK% 
(in millions, except per 

share information) 

Turnover 
Operating profit 
Share of profits less losses of associated companies 
Exceptional item 
Profit before taxation 
Taxation 

Hong Kong 
Company and subsidiaries 
Associated companies 

Overseas 
Company and subsidiaries 
Associated companies 

Profit after taxation 
Minority interests 
Profit attributable to Shareholders 
Dividends 
Profit for the Period ketained 

36,662 
6,262 
3,631 
4,100(2) 

13,993 

556 
324 

202 
229 L 

12,682 
” 662 
12,020 
5,703 
6,317 

Earnings per Share 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4 

(3 

3.32(4) 

39,703 
6,677 
3,647 
5,342(3) 

15,666 

587 
324 

203 
229 

14,323 
1,021 

13,302 
5,703 
7,599 

3.44(5) (1) 

The pro forma information is based on:the issue of 254,316,978 new ordinary shares of the Cpmpany,and the payment of HK$5,568 
million to the Cheung Kong group of companies, The payment has been assumed to be financed by,,borrowings at a pre-tax interest 
cost of 6 per cent. The pro forma information also assumes that the maximum amount of the current estimate of goodwill arising on 
an acquisition of Cheung Kong Infrastructure of approximately HK$8,990 million, is written off against reserves of the Company in 
accordance with its accounting policy and therefore goodwill would have no impact on the consolidated.earnings of the Company. In 
the event that the entire amount of the current estimate of goodwill is ‘allocated to the underlying assets of Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure and amortized over approximately 20 years, the pro forma pro@ attributable toshareholders and earnings per ordinary 
share of the Company would be approximately HK$12,849 million and HK$3,32,,respectively. 

Reflects the profit recognized as a result of the global offering and listing of shares cXOrange in’Aprill996. 

Includes (2) above and a profit of approximately HKSl,242 million recognized as a result of the sale of Hongkong Electric Holdings 
to Cheung Kong Infrastructure. The profit recognized as a result of the sale of Hongkong Electric Holdings to Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure is included as permitted by Hong Kong GAAP. US. GAAP may not permit recognition of, this gain in income. 
Presentation of pro forma’information in the United States would require this gain to be excluded‘from the pro forma profit and loss 
account. ‘, ; 

Based on a weighted average of 3,616:784:011 of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue during 1996. 

Based on a weighted average of 3,871,100,959 of the Company’s ordinary shares assumed to be in’ issue during 1996. 
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Consolidated. Balance Sheet: 

As of December 31, 1996 

Current assets 
Current liabilities 
Net current liabilities 
Managed funds and other investments 
Fixed assets 
Deferred expenditures 
Associated companies 
Employment of Capital 

Share capital ’ 
Reserves 
Shareholders’ Funds 
Minority interests 
Long term liabilities 
Deferred taxation 
Capital Employed 

Results of Operations for 1994, 1995 and 1996 

1996 Compared to 1995 

Actual Pro forma 
HK$ HK$ 

(in millions) 

18,385 
20.288 

(1,903) 
22,551 
63,188 

1,086 
26,369 

111,291 

905 968 
67,994 74,349 
68,899 75,317 

7,814 10,979 
34,459 40,027 

119 124 
111.291 126,447 

22,503 
22,981 

(478) 
22,341 
64,815 

1,219 
38,550 

126,447 

Turnover for 1996 increased HK$1,636 million, or 4.7%, compared to 1995, principally due to the 
continued expansion of the Company’s businesses. The Company’s profit before taxation, excluding excep- 
tional items, decreased HK$532 million, or 5.1%, in 1996 compared to 1995. Profit attributable to 
shareholders, including the exceptional profit of HK$4,100 million resulting from the global offering and 
listing of shares of Orange in April 1996, increased by HK$2,453 million, or 25.6%, in 1996 compared to~l995. 

Turnover for the property division for ‘1996 increased HK$188 million, or 9.6?, compared to 1995; 
primarily due to increased rental income generated from the continued expansion of the Company’s property 
investment portfolio which was partially offset by a reduction in the sale of devglopment properties. The 
division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders decreased HK$1,527 million, or 52.0%, compared 
to 1995, primarily due to higher profits from sales in 1995 of units in the South Horizons development, in 
which the Company holds a 50% interest. The Company’s accounting policy is to recdgnize profits on sales of 
property either on the date of sale or on the date of issue of the occupation permit, whichever is later. The 
Company’s investment properties are substantially fully rented and continue to generate satisfactory rental 
returns. 

Turnover for the ports and related services division for 1996 increased HK$l,?65 ,million, or 19.3%, 
compared to 1995, and the division’s contribution to profit attributable to sharehqkkrq increased HK$168 
million, or 7.6%, compared to 1995. The improved results were primarily attributable to combined throughput 
at all company operations reaching 11,286,881 TEUs in 1996, an increase of 10.2% compared to 1995. While 
throughput growth at the Company’s contai’ner terminal ‘operations at Kwai Chung ‘slowed in line with the 
downturn in Hong Kong’s export performance, progress continued .to be made iaknproving operational 
efficiency and strengthening relationships with international shipping lines. Total throughput of the Company’s 
HIT and COSCO-HIT operations at Kwai Chung was 5.65 million TEUs in 1996, an increase of 7.2% 
compared to 1995. Total throughput of Felixstowe was over 2.0 million TEUs in 1996, an increase of 6.9% 
compared to 1995. The new container port which is being developed in phases at Yantian has grown rapidly 
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since commencing operations in 1995 and, as as result, construction of the second phase, three-berth facility 
has already begun. 

Turnover for the retail, manufacturing and other services division for 1996 increased HK$2,143 million, 
or 13.4%, compared to 1995, due to continued growth in: and expansion of, these businesses. In addition, 
comparable same store sales growth for the division’s three chain store operations in Hong Kong ranged from 
3.5% to 6% in 1996. The division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders increased HK$348 
million, or 50.7% compared to 1995 primarily as a result of increased retail outlets, improved efficiency and 
cost controls. Overall profits reported by ASW for 1996 were higher than in 1995. Park’N Shop Hong Kong, 
Watson’s Personal’ Care Stores’and the Fortress chain each generated increased profits over 1995. Pa&N 
Shop continued to establish its operations in mainland China, while Watson’s personal care’stores bolstered its 
position as the largest such retailing network in Asia. The addition of new product lines together with 
improved customer service helped Fortress achieve increased profits. 

Turnover forthe telecommunications division for 1996 decreased HK$1,559 million, or 18.1%, compared 
to 1995, primarily due to the completion of the flotation of Orange in April 1996, which resulted in the 
Company’s interest in Orange being reduced below 50% and Orange being accounted for as an associated 
company rather than a consolidated subsidiary. In 1996 the division’s contribution to profit attributable to 
shareholders increased HK$3,318 million compared to 1995: primarily due to the profit recognized as the 
result of the global offering of shares of Orange. 1996 was a significant year for the Company’s telecommuni- 
cations businesses in Hong Kong;with the virtual completion of the change’over ‘from two limited capacity 
analog systems to two digital systems with substantially greater subscriber capacity. While profitability was 
initially adversely affected as a result of operating duplicate systems, the telecommunications businesses in 
Hong Kong have continued to build profitably on a strong foundation by consolidating resources, enhancing 
service standards and expanding the subscriber base:The Company’s cellular telephone subscriber base tripled 
during 1996. 

Turnover for the energy, finance and other investments division for 1996 decreased HK$401 million, or 
20.6%, compared ‘to 1995, and the division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders increased 
HK$146 million, or 4.30/d, compared to 1995. The division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders 
was principally comprised of the Company’s 34.6% share of Hongkong Electric Holding’s profits attributable 
to shareholders, the Company’s 49 % share of Husky’s profits attributable to shareholders and investment 
income from the Company’s investments held in managed funds. Profit attributable to shareholders of 
Hongkong Electric Holdings for 1996 decreased HK$32 million, or 0.8%, compared to 1995, due to a 
reduction in profits from Hongkong Electric Holdings’ associated property company, which sold the remaining 
units in the South Horizon development in 1995. The earnings from Hongkong, Electric Holdings’ core 
electricity generation and distribution activities; however, were more than 11.7% higher than in 1995, partially 
due to a 3.9% net tariff increase implemented in January 1996. Husky contributed profits to the Company well 
above the profit generated in 1995, reflecting Husky’s efforts to increase productivity and reduce operating 
costs and debt levels. The Company’s investments held in managed funds continued to generate satisfactory 
levels of investment income. 

The Company’s share of profits less losses of associated companies for 1996 decreased HK$271 million, 
or 6.9%, compared to 1995, primarily due to the decrease in profits from associated companies engaged in 
residential property development discussed above. The Company’s share of profits of associated companies 
principally reflects profits from its 34.6% interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings as of December 31, 1996, 
49% interest in Husky and its minority interests in property development companies. 

The Company recorded a HK$4,100 million exceptional profit in 1996 as the result of the global offering 
and listing of shares of Orange in April 1996. 

Profit before taxation for 1996 increased HK$2,812 million, or 25.1%, compared to 1995. ” 

Taxation for 1996 increased HK$178 million, or #15.7%, compared to 1995, reflecting provisions for 
deferred taxation ,in line ‘with the increased profits from Husky and the associated’ company holding the 
Laguna City development. Profit after tasation for 1996 increased HK$2,634 million, or 26.2%, compared to 
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1995, primarily due to the HK$4,100 million exceptional profit recognized as the result of the global offering 
and listing of shares of Orange, partially offset by the decrease in profits from associated companies. : 

Minority interests for, 1996 increased HK$181 million, or 37.6%, compared to 1995. Minority interests are 
attributable, primarily to the interests of shareholders other than the Company in certain ports and 
telecommunications businesses. 

Profit attributable to shareholders for 1996 increased HK$2,453 million, or 25.6% compared to 1995. 

1,995 Compared to 1994 

Turnover for 1995 increased HK$4,858 million, or 16.‘1%, and profit attributable to shareholders 
increased by HK$1,546 million, or 19.3%, compared to 1994. The. increase in turnover was primarily due to 
the continued expansion of the Company’s businesses. The increase in profit attributable to shareholders 
included an exceptional profit of HK$756 million in 1995. 

Turnover for the property division for 1995 increased HK$56 million, or 2.9%, primarily due to increased 
gross rental income. The division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders decreased HK$375 
million, or 11.3%, compared to 1994, primarily due to lower property development profits as a result of a 
downturn in the Hong Kong property market as the result of certain measures announced by the Hong Kong 
Government in June 1994 to moderate residential property prices. The Company, took advantage of the 
downturn in the market to replenish its land bank through government land auctio.ns,,directly through the 
acquisition of land and indirectly through participation in property development jai.@ ventures. See “Busi- 
ness - Property -, Property Development”. Gross rental income in 1995 increased! HK$358 million, or 
23.5%, compared to 1994, primarily as the result of the completion of the two Harbourfront Office Towers in . , 
December 1994., ‘I ,/ 

Turnover for the ports and related services division for 1995 increased HK$338 million, or 5.4%, and the 
division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders increased HK$l80 million, or 8.9%, compared to 
1994. The improved results were primarily due to higher throughput at the Company’s HIT and COSCO-HIT 
operations at KiYai Chung, which increased 13% from 4.6 million TEUs in 1994 to 5.2.million TEUs in 1995, 
and more efficient Company operations. The improved results also reflect higher throughput at Felixstowe, 
which increased 12% to 1.9 million TEUs in 1995, and SCT, which increased 14% to 1.3 million TEUs in 
1995. 

Turnover for, the retail, manufacturing and other services division for 1995 increwd HK$2,354 million, 
or 17.3%, compared to 1994, due to continued growth in these businesses. The; pontribution to profit 
attributable to shareholders for 1995 increased HK$90 million, or 15.1%, compared to 1994. The higher profits 
principally reflect the improved performance in the retail and manufacturing businessep, as evidenced by an 
improvement in same store sales. During 1995 retail and manufacturing operations expanded in key Asian 
markets such as mainland ‘China. I 

Turnover for the telecommunications division for 1995 increased HK$1,373 milliod, or 19.0%, compared 
to 1994. The division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders increased HK$14@million, or 76.1%, 
compared to 1994. The higher profits principally reflect a HK$756 million profit on the&di:lof the Company’s 
remaining 18% interest in Satellite Television Asian Region Limited (“STAR Televisiqn”) offset by losses in 
the telecommunications business. Telecommunications results .were adversely affected, by the write-off in 
connection with the phase-out of Hutchison Paging’s “Tien Dey Seen” second genera&h cordless telephone 
system (CT2) and cellular analog systems during 1995 as the result of rapidly changing, technology ‘and the 
loss of a substantial number of the Company’s higher-usage cellular subscribers as they iwitched from the 
Company’s cellular phones utilizing analog technology to competitors’ cellular phdnes utilizing digital 
technology. The Company commenced its digital cellular telecommunications services in Hong Kong in 
May 1995. 8, 

Turnover for the energy, finance and other investments division for 1995 increasqd, HK$737 million, or 
60.8%, and the division’s contribution to profit attributable to shareholders increased HK$1,511 million, or 
79.2%, compared to 1994. Profit attributable to shareholders of Hongkong Electric Holdings for 1995 
increased HK$338 million, or 8.8%, compared to 1994. Earnings of Husky Oil after tax and before ownership 

‘, 
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charges, increased from C$12.3 million in 1994 to C$69.6 million in 1995. Investment income from the 
Company’s investments held in managed funds and other investments increased HK$l,339 million, due to an 
improved bond market and additional surplus cash invested during the year. 

‘, 
The Company’s share of profits less losses of associated companies for 1995 decreased HK$l, 197 million: 

or 23.5%, compared to 1994, primarily due to a decrease in profits from associated companies engaged in 
residential property development. 

The Company recorded a ‘&KS756 million exceptional profit in 1995 as the result of the sale of STAR 
Television mentioned above. 

Profit before taxatioh for 1995 increased HK$941 million, or 9.2%, compared to 1994. 

Taxation for 1995-decreased,HK$453 million, or 28.6%, compared to 1994, primarily due to a decrease in 
profits from associated, companies and increased interest expenses. ‘Profit after taxation for 1995 increased 
HK$1,394 million, or 16.1%; compared ,to 1994. 

Minority interests for 1995 decreased HK$152 million: or 24.0%, compared to 1994, due to the phase-out 
of the CT2 and cellular~analog systems and the loss of cellular subscribers described above. 

Profit attributable to shareholders for’ 1995 increased HK$1,546 niilliori, or 19.3%, compared to 1994. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The Company finances its working capital requirements through finds primarily generated, from 
operations. The Company had cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 1994, 1995 and 1996 of 
HK$12,333.5 million, HK$16,282.9 million and HK$10,797.0 million, respectively. ‘Net cash provided by 
operating activities in: 1994, 1995 and 1996 were HK$6,618 million, HK$8,552 million and 
HK$ll,435 million, respectively. Dividends received from associated companies in ‘1994, 1995 and 1996 were 
HK$3,407 million, HK$3,217-million and HK$2,397 million, respectively. 

Net cash used in intesting in fixed assets,’ associated companies, managed funds and other investments in 
1994, 1995 and 1996 were HK$12,917 million, HK$10,650 million and HK$18,243!,miliion, respectively. The 
following table sets forth the Company’s capital expenditures by division during 1994, 1995 and 1996. 

Capital Expenditures 

Property (note) 
Ports and Related Services 
Retail, Manufacturing and Other Services 
Telecommunications. 
Energy, Finance and Other Investments 

Year Ended December 31, 
1991 1995 1996 
HK$ HKS HK$ 

m millions) 

‘! 1964(. ) 255 3,735 
1,746 1,537 1,011 

600 1.222 596 
;/ 2,707 3,140 2,252 

14 20 17 

Note: Capital expenditures exclude costs incurred on property developments for sale of HK$l3,1 million, HK$137 million and HKS5.353 
million in 1994, 1995 and‘1996, respectively. 

The Company’s curfent budgeted total capital expenditures for 1997 include three projects requiring 
larger than normal expenditures in 1997. The: ports division’s budget includes a land premium payment for the 
development rights at container terminal number 9 ,and land and development costs to develop the 2-berth 
second phase of Yantian Port. The telecommunications division has budgeted for the construction and 
development of its Hong Kong CDMA, PCS and fixed line network infrastructure. Excluding these three 
projects, the budgeted capital expenditures for 1997 are generally consistent with the Company’s total capital 
expenditures in 1996 (both excluding costs of property developments for sale). The Company expects to 
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finance such expenditures from cash on hand, internal cash generation and, to the extent required, by external 
borrowings, including the offering of the Notes hereby. 

Net cash inflow from financing activities in 1994, 1995 and 1996 were HK$14,039 million, 
HK$8,348 million and HK$5,404 million, respectively. See Note 22(d) of the Notes to the Accounts. 

The Company’s borrowings, net of cash, managed funds and other listed investments, at December 31, 
1994, 1995 and 1996 were HK$11,610 million, HK$11,915 million and HK$10,416 million, respectively. At 
December 3 1, 1996, approximately 48% of the Company’s total borrowings were denominated in HK dollars, 
8% in pounds sterling, 43% in US dollars and the remaining 1% in other currencies. At December 31, 1996, 
approximately 14% of the Company’s borrowings, excluding non-interest bearing loans from minority 
shareholders, were repayable within one year, 56% were repayable between one and five years and 30% were 
repayable beyond five years. Committed borrowing facilities available to the Company, but not drawn at 
December 31, 1996, were equivalent to HK$20,501 million in the aggregate. Interest paid on the Company’s 
borrowings in 1994, 1995 and 1996 was HK$1,307 million, HK$2,808 million and HK$2,821 million, 
respectively. 

On June 27;1997 the Company entered into a HK$12,000 million five year loan facility agreement with a 
syndicate of financial institutions. The unsecured loan bears interest at 39 basis points over the Hong Kong 
Inter-Bank Offered Rate and is repayable in full on June 27, 2002. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company 
borrowed HK$9,000 million on July 7, 1997 and HK$7,965 million of such borrowings was used on the same 
day to repay short term debt. The Company intends to use the remaining amount of the facility in July 1997 to 
repay short term debt. 

The Company’s overall treasury and funding policy is that of risk management and control. The Company 
operates a central cash management system encompassing all of its subsidiaries in Hong Kong whereby daily 
cash balances are aggregated at the Company level to meet the daily funding requirements of the .Company 
and its subsidiaries. Surplus cash is placed on deposit in the money market in line with credit limits’ 
established according to the creditworthiness of the counterparty. Working capital banking arrangements with 
approved banks are monitored and approved at the Company level. Long term borrowing requirements are 
monitored based on consolidated cash flow projections and loan agreements are negotiated and finalized at the 
Company level. Except for finance leases, the Company’s policy is to arrange unsecured loans, most of which 
are guaranteed by the Company. At December 31, 1996, secured loans amounted to HK$2,923 million. 

Foreign Currency and Interest Rate Management 

Since October 17, 1983, the Hong Kong dollar has been officially linked to the U.S. dollar. See 
“Exchange Rates” and “Exchange Controls and Other Limitations affecting Noteholders”. The Company 
matches, where practicable, the Company’s assets located in other countries with the appropriate level of 
borrowings in those countries’ currencies. To hedge against major non-HK and non4JS dollar exposures as 
well as to assist in managing the Company’s interest rate exposures, the:Company at&es forward foreign 
exchange contracts and interest and currency swaps when suitable opportunities arise and when considered 
appropriate. The Company currently does not have major non-HK dollar and non-US&Bar exposures. 

Inflation 

Hong Kong has experienced high rates of inflation since the late 1980s. The aver~geannual inflation rate 
in Hong Kong was 9.5% from 1991 through 1995, although it declined to 6.5% in 1996 and to 6.1% for the first 
quarter of 1997. High inflation has contributed to an increase in rents and property V&M, which has benefited 
the Company’s property development and property investment business. Inflation has &so led to increased 
costs, particularly in the Company’s more labor-intensive businesses, such as ASW. I : 
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BUSINESS 

Overview 

Hutchison Whampoa Limited is the holding company of the Hutchison group of companies. It is a Hong 
Kong-based diversified corporation listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with interests and activities in 
the following core businesses: property development and investments; ports and related services; retailing and 
manufacturing; telecommunications; and energy, infrastructure, finance and other investments. The Company 
and its subsidiaries and associated companies principally operate in Hong Kong. In addition, they also operate 
in mainland China, elsewhere in Asia and in Europe and North America. 

The Company’s diverstied activities are grouped into the following core divisions: 

l Property. The property division is a leading property developer in Hong Kong and is engaged in the 
business of building major developments comprising residential, commercial, office, hotel and 
recreational facilities, principally in Hong Kon, 0 and mainland China, the long-term ownership of 
major commercial premises in the Company’s residential/commercial developments, and manage- 
ment of the Company’s investments and development activities. 

l Ports and Related Services. The ports and related services division is one of the world’s leading 
operators of container terminals. Hutchison Whampoa holds interests in ports in Hong Kong and 
mainland China, the U.K., Myanmar and the Bahamas. The Company has recently been awarded a 
concession to operate port‘ facilities at both ends of the Panama Canal and has recently signed a joint 
venture agreement to build and operate a container port at Indonesia’s developing deep-sea port of 
Bojonegara. The core holdings of the division are its interests in Hong Kong (HIT), and in other ports 
in mainland China (Yantian, SCT and Delta Ports), and in the U.K. (Felixstowe) . The division also 
has interests in ship repair, salvage and towage operations in Hong Kong. 

. 

. 

Retail and Manufactwing. The retail, manufacturing and other services division is principally com- 
prised of ASW and Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited. ASW is one of Asia’s largest retailers and 
operates major retail chains in Hong Kong and in several other countries in Asia. ASW also 
manufactures and distributes food and beverage products in Hong Kong and mainland China. 
Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited has joint ventures with Procter & Gamble which manufacture 
and distribute certain Procter & Gamble products throughout mainland China. Hutchison Whampoa 
(China) Limited also has joint ventures providing aircraft maintenance services in southern China. 
The Company also owns, operates, acquires and develops hotels which are primarily located in Hong 
Kong and mainland China. 

Telecommunications. The telecommunications division has grown swiftly since its formation in 1985 
to become a significant participant in mobile telecommunications in Hong Kong and the U.K.. The 
division has developed expertise as both cellular network operator and service provider offering a 
comprehensive and integrated range of wireless telecommunications. In Hong Kong, the Company 
has secured multiple wireless licenses giving it the ability to offer services using GSM, CDMA and 
PCS technologies, thereby giving it the widest spectrum allocation and highest spectrum capacity of 
any operator in Hong Kong. The Company has recently begun to provide fixed line services in Hong 
Kong, including international dialing services. The Company, through associates: is also engaged in 
satellite communication and radio broadcasting services. 
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l Energy, Infrastructure, Finance and Other Investments. The energy, infrastructure, finance and 
other investments division has a 84.58% interest in Cheung Kong Infrastructure and a 49% interest in 
Husky. Cheung Kong Infrastructure is engaged in the development, ownership, operation and 
management of infrastructure businesses in the PRC, including power plants, roads, toll bridges and a 
water plant, and infrastructure materials businesses in Hong Kong and mainland China, including the 
manufacture and sale of cement, the production and delivery of concrete, the production and laying of i :I: i 
asphalt and the quarrying and selling of aggregates. Cheung Kong Infrastruc&f~.&o has a 35.74% 
interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings. Hongkong Electric Holdings, thror,r&.$s wholly-owned 
subsidiary, Hongkong Electric, generates, transmits, distributes and is the sofe,,$$der of electricity 
to Hong Kong Island and Lamma Island. Husky is a Canadian-based integrate,,oil gnd gas company 
engaged principally in the exploration for and development of crude oil and natural gas. 
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The following chart illustrates the main activities of the Company and~its associates: 
I I 

Hutchison Whampoa Limited 
I 

Commercial 
Office 
Industrial 
Residential 

Hong Kong development 
property 
Residential 
Commercial 

Mainland China development 
property 
Residential 
Commercial 

U.K. development property 
Residential 

I 

Ports and Related Services 
Hong Kong 
HIT Terminals 4, 6, 7 & 9(l) 
COSCO-HIT Terminal 8 East 
Mid-Stream operations~ 
River trade terminal 
Mainland China ports 
Yantian International 
Container Terminals 

Shanghai Container Terminals 
Della ports in: 
Guangdong province - 
Nanhai, Yhantou, Jiangmcn, 
Jiuzhou and Gaolan 

Fujian province - Xiamen 
Europe and the Americas ports 
Port of Felixstowe, U.K. 
Port of Freenort. 

Grand Bahima 
Port of Balboa, Panama 
Port of Cristobal, Panama 
Other ports 
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Indonesia 

Ship repairing, salvage & 
towage in Hong Kong 

and Other Services 
Park’N Shop supermarket 
chain in: 
Hong Kong 
Mainland China 

Watson Personal Care Stores 
chain in: 
Hong Kong 
Mainland China 
Taiwan 
Singapore 
Malaysia 
Thailand 

Fortress electrical appliances 
chain in: 
Hong Kong 

Bhsl Tie Rack and 
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(1) HIT has the rights to develop, own and operate two berths at container terminal number 9. 

I 
Telecommunications 

Hong Kong 
Digital cellular services 
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- GSM 
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Paging services network 
Fixed line services network 
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Hutchison Whampoa was established in July 1977 as the result of the merger between Hutchison 
International Limited and the Hongkong and Whampoa Dock Company Limited. Hongkong and Whampoa 
Dock Company Limited, registered in 1861, was the first company to be registered in Hong Kong. Hutchison 
Whampoa became a publicly listed company in 1978. Cheung Kong became a major shareholder of the 
Company in 1979 and Mr. Li Ka-shing, a substantial shareholder of Cheung Kong, became the Chairman of 
the Company in 198 1. Cheung Kong is the largest shareholder of the Company, owning approximately 49.94% 
of its issued share capital as of June 30, 1997. See “Principal Shareholder”. The Company ‘and Cheung Kong 
have certain common directors and cooperate primarily on major property developmint projects in Hong 
Kong and China. 

Based ‘on the closing price of its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on July 24, 1997, the 
Company had a market capitalization of approximately HK$272,123 million (US$35,203 million), the second 
largest market capitalization on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Company, Cheung Kong and 
Hongkong Electric Holdings are three of the 33 constituent stocks which make up the Hang Seng Index. 

As of December 31, 1996, the Company’s total consolidated shareholders’ funds were HK$68,899 million 
(US$8,913 million) and the Company’s total consolidated borrowings were HK$40,653 million (US$5,259 
million). The total consolidated short term debt and capitalization was HK$143,426 million (US$18,554 
million) as of June 30, 1997. For the years ended December 31, 1994, 1995 and 1996, the Company’s profit 
attributable to shareholders was HK$8,021 million, HK$9,567 million and HK$12,020 million (US$1,555 
million), respectively. See “Capitalization” and “Selected Consolidated Financial Info&nation”. 

Business Strategy 

The Company currently maintains a significant market share in each of its core businesses in Hong Kong. 
The Company has achieved a leadership position by obtaining land in prime locations for property 
development, land rights for container terminal berths, commercial rental locations in Hong Kong for its retail 
chains, and licensed spectrum for wireless telecommunications. The Company’s overall business strategy is to 
expand its core businesses and their inarket shares in Hong Kong and elsewhere, particularly in mainland 
China and other regions in Asia, where it can export its expertise in certain of its core businesses, such as 
property deyelopment, ownership and operation of container terminals, management of retail store chains and 
wireless telecommunications networks. As part of its overall strategy, the Company seeks to expand its 
recurrent income base and to maximize the coordination of its core businesses by, for example, utilizing retail 
space in existing Company properties for its retail chains, developing for commercial and residential purposes 
existing land formerly used for industrial and other purposes, and utilizing the Company’s retail chain outlets 
in Hong Kong to promote and distribute its telecommunications products and services. 

In mainland China, the Company is focusing on its core businesses and is concentrating its efforts in the 
locations where its established relationships and business know-how are the strongest, such as in Guangdong 
Province, Beijing and Shanghai. The Company’s most active businesses in mainland China include port 
operations, property development, infrastructure, power generation, nianufacturing and setailing. 

Each of the Company’s divisions has the following specific business strategies: 

The property division plans to continue, where possible, to redevelop its-. existing Hong Kong 
properties with a view to enhancing the properties’ values and returns. The division also seeks to 
replenish its landbank during periods when it believes that there has been a downturn in Hong Kong 
land prices. The Company plans to retain its office buildings and major commercial areas of its 
property development projects as long-term holdings in order to increase its base of recurrent income. 

The ports and related services division plans to continue to enhance the performance of its existing 
port operations while pursuing expansion opportunities in Hong Kong and elsewhere. The Company 
seeks to improve the operating results of the ports it acquires by upgrading existing infrastructure, 
management systems and management based upon its successful HIT and Felix&owe operations. 

l The retail, manufacturing and other services division plans to build on its base in-Hong Kong through ’ 
a policy of carefully managed growth. while tightly controlling costs. The Company believes that it 
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can use the retail and manufacturing expertise it has gained in Hong Kong to expand and grow its 
retail and manufacturing operations in other regions of China and elsewhere in Asia. 

l The telecommunications division is striving to become the leading operator of wireless communica- 
tions in Hong Kong and to develop wireless telecommunications as a platform for integrated service 
offerings of mobile, paging and fixed line communications, with international’ dialing services. In 
Hong Kong, the Company has secured multiple wireless licenses giving it the ability to offer services 
using GSM, CDMA and PCS technologies, thereby giving it the widest spectrum allocation and 
highest spectrum capacity of any operator in Hong Kong and allowing it the opportunity to provide its 
customers in Hbng Kbng with roaming capability in countries with any one of the three technologies. 

l The energy, infrastructure, finance and other investments division seeks investments with the 
potential fbr sustained growth. Cheting Kong Infrastructure’s prinfary focus is to extend and build 
upon its current road and power plant projects, while seeking opportunities to participate in clusters of 
infrastructure projects in fast growing regions of mainland China in partnership with local govern- 
ments and’invest in infrastructure projects in other Asian countries. The Company believes Hongkong 
Electric is well-positioned for expansion Bs it seeks td increase its generating capacity to keep pace 
with Hong Kong’s rapid growth ahd development. Husky’s primary business objective is to maximize 
the cash ‘flow and profit generated from its upstream ahd downstream operations. 

Property 

The Company’s property division is a leading property developer in Hong Kong and is engaged in the 
business of building major developments comprising residential, ‘commercial, office, hotel and recreational 
facilities, principally in Hong Kon g and mainland China, the long-term ownership of major commercial 
premises ‘in the Company’s residential/commercial developments, and management of the Company’s 
investments .and development activities.’ In 1996, ievenues from sales of theI Company’s development 
properties and its share of revenues of associates were HK$2,598 million. As of December 31, 1996, the 
Company maintained a portfolio of approximately 9.2 million square feet, excluding 1.8 million square feet 
occupied by the Company, of long term holdings in Hong Kong, consisting of office buildings, retail shops, 
industrial buildings and residential units. In 1996, gross rentals from the Company’s investment properties 
were HK$1,933 million. 

For the past several years, the Company’s primary objective in its property business has been, where 
ppssible, to redevelop its existing Hong Kong properties with a view’to enhancing the properties’ values and 
returns. The Company has redeveloped long-held properties formerly used for dockyards and other facilities 
into residential developments for sale and is currently redeveloping the site of the Hongkong Hilton Hotel into 
a Grade A office tower in the Central district of Hong Kong. The Company generally targets its Hong Kong 
residential developments for middle-income fimiliesl The Company also seeks to replenish its landbank 
during periods, such as 1995, when it believes that there has been a downturn in Hong Kong land prices. 

In mainland China, the Company cooperates with local Chinese partners to build its development 
properties in mainland China. The Company believes that it is conservative in the expansion of its property 
development operations in mainland China by concentrating its activities in areas of high demand and 
financing its activities with cash on hand and cash flow from consolidated operations. 

The Company also enters into joint ventures with Cheung Kong in connection with major property 
development projects in Hong Kong and mainland China. The Company’s current policy is to retain its office 
buildings and major commercial areas of its property development projects as long-term holdings in order to 
increase its base of recurrent rental income. 

Overview of Hong Kong Property Rights and Government Policies 

Hong Kong consists primarily of Hong Kong Island, the Kowloon Peninsula and the New Territories, and 
has a total land area of approximately 414 square miles. Virtually all land in Hong Kong is effectively owned 
by the Hong Kong Government. Land held by private parties is generally leased from the Hong Kong 
Government under long-term leases. Such leases are for a nominal annual rent. The lessee of the Government 
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lease is commonly referred ‘to as the ,owner of the leased property. Prior to the Joint Declaration in 1984, 
Government leases were generally granted for 75, 99 or 999’ year terms. 

Pursuant to the Joint Declaration, the Hong Kong, Government could not, prior to June 30, 1997, grant 
new leases for terms expiring later than June 30, 2047. The Joint Declaration provided that all rights in 
relation to Government leases granted before or pursuant to the Joint Declaration are to be recognized and 
protected by the Gpvernment of Hong Kong. The Hong Kong Government has. enacted an ordinance 
effectively extending to June 2047 most leases in the New Territories that would otherwise have expired in 
June 1997, at a rent as from the date of expiry equal to 3% per annum of the rateable value of the property. 
However, many Government leases on Hong Kong Island and in Kowloon will expire before 2047 without 
renewal rights. These leases are not covered by any legislation and the lessee will have to negotiate renewal 
terms with the Government of.Hong Kong. As of December 31, 1996, approximately 99.5% of the Company’s 
properties in Hong Kong were on land with Government leases expiring in or after 2b4’/. 

The Joint Declaration limits the amount of new land, excluding land for, public rental housing, which may 
be leased by the Hong Kong Government to third parties to 50 hectares (approximately 5,382,OOO sq. ft.) a 
year ‘up to March 3 1, 1997, A Land Commission, comprised of equal numbers of officials designated by the 
British, and Chinese governments, was established pursuant to the Joint Declaration to monitor, consider and 
approve proposals for increasing the 50 hectare limit. For the year ending March 31, 1997, a supplemental 
land disposal program was approved providing approximately 170 hectares of land for public housing, 
container terminal number 9, the Central MTRC station and other purposes. The Land Commission was 
dissolved on June 30, 1997. 

The Hong Kong Government has various, projects involving the reclamation of lqed,.&m the harbor in 
Hong Kong which land, if subsequently released for development, would permit the ;tddSti~n of considerable 
space, to the office, commercial/retail and residential markets in the next several years,,Those related to the 
Mass Transit Railway Corporation (“MTRC”) airport railway would provide office, commercial, retail and 
residential space and hotels to be completed in stages from 1998 to 2008 and possibly beyond. 

l@ng Kong .hopevty Values 

Hong Kong property rentals and values have risen rapidly in recent years, reaching peak levels in mid: 
1994. In June 1994 the Hong Kong Government announced certain measures intended hmarily to moderate 
residential property prices. These governmental efforts had a dampening effect on property prices in Hong 
Kong and on overall activity in the Hong Kong property market. Rental rates and pr&eqy values stabilized 
toward the end of 1995 and early 1996 and showed signs of improvement during the la&‘gart of 1996 and the 
first half of 1997. : 

: ! 
Leases of Hong Kong office and commercial properties are usually for a short dn&on (typically three 

years) compared to longer terms in, other countries. Consequently, the Company;‘,s,rental income from 
property is subject to more frequent, adjustments than may be ,the case in other real estate markets. 
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Hong Kong’s office property market has experienced three major corrections since 1980, during which 
periods (1982-83, 1991-92 and 1994) supply exceeded demand resulting in higher vacancy rates and lower 
effective rents. The tables set forth below provide information on new supply, take-up and vacancy rates for 
the periods indicated. 

All-grades office - supply, take-up and vacancy 
(net area in .thousands of square feet) (1) 

1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 - - ~ - - - - - - ~ - - - - - - - 
New supply within the 

J’GN 3,196 3,432 5.875 6,359 2,356 3,314 495 2.658 2,658 2,894 2,152 4,939 6,079' 4:444 5.403 3.820 2,894 
Take-up within the 

yea* 1,334 2,184 2.722 3.992 4.831 4,143 2,755 2:894 3,809 1,098, 1,453 2,572 5,100 5,778 2.303 3.637 1,679 
Vacancy at year end 2,184 3,250 6,165 8,533 6.036 5,208 2,862 2,593 1,?34 2,808 3,314 5,434 6,338 4,616 7:244 7.285 8.866 
Vacancy rate at year 

end 8.3% 11.0% 17.6% 20.6% 13.8% 11.1% 6.0% 5.5% 2.7% 5.3% 6.1% 9.2% 9.7% 6.7% 9.8% 9.4% 11.2% 

SOL&X Hong Kong Property Review. Rating and Valuation Department of the Hong Kong Government. 
‘: 

(1) All figures are converted from square meters at (1 square meter = 10.76 square feet. Net are? refers to the area of all enclosed’space 
of the unit measured to the inter& face of enclosing external and/or party walls. ‘. ,, c 

’ 8, I, ’ 
Grade A office - supply, take-up and vacancy 

(net area in thbusands of square feet) (-1) 

1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 ~ ~ - ~ - - ~ - __ - - - - - 

New supply within the year 3,303 3,743 651 2,206 158 1,828 2.389 2,297 692 3,002 3,658 2,044 3,550 2,389 1,410 

Take-up within the year, N/A 1,932 2,653 2.797 1,088 1,056 2,995 1.370 l,l$O 1,603 2,927 3,949 968 3,131 1,334 
Vacancy at year end 2;4?9 4,290 2,258 1.667 737 1,509 903 1.830 1,372 3,013 '5,734 1,829 4,272 3,519 3,798 
Vacancy rate at year end 14.2% 20.2% 10.3% 6.9% 3.1% 6.4% 3.5”’ 6.5% %iw '9.2% l&2%, 4.8% 10.3% 7.9% 8.3% 

Source: Hong Kong Property Review, Rating and Valuation Department of rhe Hong Kong Government. 

(1) All figures are converted from square meters at 1 square’ meter = 10.76 square feet. Net area refers‘to the area of all enclosed space 
of the unit measured to the internal face of enclosing external and/or party walls. 

Office space in Hong Kong is classified by the Government in Hqng Kong Property Review into Grade A, 
Grade B and Grade C, depending on the size, quality of management, and amenities of the building. After a 
substantial drop in office property prices from their peak levels in mid-1924, office prqperty prices stabilized 
towards the end of 1995 and early 1996 and increased during the latter part of 199.6 and the first halt of 1997. 
The volume of office property transactions increased during 1996 as compared to 1995 and Grade A office 
rents and vacancy levels remained stable during 1946 and the first half of 1,997. 8’ 

Hong Kong’s commercial property market has experienced two major corrections since 1980. However, 
as there have not been significant vacancy rates, capital and rental values of commercial properties have not 
experienced severe’ setbAcks. The table set forth below provides information on new ‘supply, take-up and 
vacancy rates of comm+ial properties for kach yeal’ from 1980 to 1995. 

Commercial - supply, take-up and vacancy 
,(net area in thousands of square feet) ( 1) 

1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 -__-~ --- ~~ --- ~-~ 

New supply with/n the year 2,921 ES9 3.960 2,905 2,144 2,619 1,872 3,066 2.5Si 2,120 2,512 2,205 1,715 2,831 2.682 2.221 1,302 

Take-up within the year 1,549 1.915 2,130 2,615 2,464 2,840 2,292 3,852 I$:3 1,356 2,087 1,905 1,334’ 764 1,001 947 521 
Vacancy at year end 3,583 4.551 i.36~ 5.827 5,918 5,638 5,014 3,960 4,iOO 4,250 4,110 3,777 3,615 5,176 5,878 6.811 8.113 
Vacancy rate at year end 7.4% 8.9% 10.7% 10.1% 9.9% 9.0%' 7.8% 5.4% 5.5% 5.8% 5.2% 4.6% 4.4% 5.1% 6.8% 7.S% 9.1% 

$ource: Hong Kong Property Review. Rating and Valuation Department of the Hong Kong Government. 

(1) All figures ate converted from square meters at 1 square meter = 10.76 square feet. Net area refers to the grea of all enclosed space 
of the unit measured to the internal face of enclosing external and/or party walls. 
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The Company believes that the commercial property market in Hong Kong stabilized towards the end of 
1995 and capital and rental values have increased since the beginning of 1996. 

1 
Hong Kong’s residential property market peaked in April 1994. As the result of measures taken by the 

Hong Kong Government to cool the market and measures taken by banks to tighten lending, the market 
underwent a downturn. However, the residential property market stabilized in October 1995 and average 
prices have substantially recovered during the intervening period. 

The table set forth below provides information on new supply, take-up and vacancy rates of residential 
properties for each year from 1980 to 1995. 

Residential units - supply, take-up and vacancy 
(number of units) 

New supply within the year 
Take-up within the year 
Vacancy at year end 
Vacancy rate at year end 

1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 --- -- ~-- ~---- 

24.500 33JlXl 23~100 21,600 22,300 29,900 34,100 34.-M 34,500 36,500 29,400 33,400 26,220 ‘27,670 34,170 22,620 19,870 
20,2OC 18,000 19,300 26,200 23,500 29,500 30,Mo 35.100 33,900 23,700 30,700 23,350 22,&q 17,320 23,250 24,710 20,480 
16,700 29,700 31,200 24,400 22,400 22,100 24.700 22.300 20.200 30,300 26,150 33,000 34,076 32& 40,710 36,200 34,050 

3.5% 5.9% 6.0% 4.5% 4.0% 3.7% 3.W 3.-l!? 2.9% 4.2% 3.5% 4.2% 4.2% 3.9% 4.7% 4.1% 3.7% 

Source: Hong Kong Property Review, Rating and Valuation Department of the Hong Kong Government. 

Property Development 

The Company has been a market leader in the creation of “garden city” developments in Hong Kong by 
redeveloping former dockyards, as well as industrial and warehouse sites. One of the Company’s first garden 
city developments was Whampoa Garden, an estate of 88 residential towers containing more than 10,000 flats 
on the site of the former Hung Horn dockyards. It was completed in 1991 and has-become the leading 
commercial center in East Kow-loon. The development also includes schools, social centers, a public transport 
terminus and a recreational complex. 

In conjunction with Cheung Kong and Hongkong Electric Holdings, in 1995 the Company completed the 
fourth and final phase of the South Horizons project, a garden city development located on Ap Lei Chau, 
Hong Kong. The development consists of 34 residential towers containing more than 9;81@I flats and comprises 
approximately 7.8 million square feet of residential area and approximately 360,000 square feet of commercial 
space. Hutchison Whampoa, Cheung Kong and Hongkong Electric Holdings hatie ‘50%, 30% and 20% 
interests, respectively, in the joint venture which developed the project. 

In addition, in 1994, the Company, jointly with Cheung Kong, completed Laguna’,c$y, a major garden 
city development in East Kowloon. Located near Hong Kong International Airport in Kgwloon, Laguna City 
consists of 31 residential towers containing more than 6,500 flats and comprises ap@ximately 5 million 
square feet of residential space and approximately 186,000 square feet of commercial space. Virtually all of the 
remaining residential units at Laguna City were sold during the first half of 1996. The Company entered into 
the Laguna City project in 1988 through a 50% interest in a joint venture with Cheung Kong in respect of the 
first, second and fourth phases of the’project. Cheung Kong has a 100% interest in the third phase of the 
project. 

Both South Horizons and Laguna City feature landscaped gardens and a wide range of recreational and 
shopping facilities. 

Other major developments completed by the Company in Hong Kong include: Harbourfront Office 
Towers in Hung Horn, Aberdeen Centre in Aberdeen and Provident Centre in North Point. For a description 
of the Harbourfront Office Towers and Aberdeen Centre, .see “- Rental Properties - Principal Rental 
Properties”. 
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The following table sets forth certain information for the Company’s residential development projects, 
including the Company’s share of projects completed by its associates, for each of the periods indicated. 

Year Ended December 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 __ - - - - 

Floor Area Completed (thousand sq. ft.) 1,058 1,134 1,824 702 432 
Floor Area Sold (thousand sq. ft.) 1,058 1,134 1,416 869 615 
Revenue from Residential Sales (HK$ millions) 2,532 3,867 5,685 3,974 1,215 

Floor area completed, floor area sold and revenue from residential sales declined in 1996 due to the sale 
of the remaining units in the South Horizon development, which ‘was completed in 1995. 

The following table summarizes the ‘Company’s current development properties. 

Development Properties Property Type 
Total Gross Percentage Completion 
Fioor Area Ownership Date 

(in thousands 

Hong Kong Property 
Cheung Kong Center 
Tsing Yi Airport Railway Station 
King’s Road 
KCRC Hung Horn Terminus 
KCRC Hung Shui Kiu 
Ma On Shan 
Tai PO 
Broadcast Drive 
Tung Chung 
Chong Yip Street 
Castle Peak Road 
Tsing Yi Terminal 9 Building 
Wan Hoi Street, Hunghom 

Subtotal 
Mainland China Property 
Orient Plaza, Beijing 
Metropolitan Plaza, Chongqing 
Westgate Mall, Shanghai 
Huamu Residential Development, Shanghai 
Xuhui District Urban Redevelopment 

Scheme Phase II, Shanghai 
Huangsha Underground Railway Station 

Redevelopment, Guangzhou 
Pacific Plaza, Qingdao 
Tang Jia Wan Residential Development: 

Zhuhai 
Low-Cost Housing, Chongqing 
Chao Yang Site, Bei.jing 
Xuhui District Urban Redevelopment 

Scheme Phase III, Shanghai 
Subtotal 

United Kingdom Property 
Royal Gate Kensington 
Graham Terrace 

Subtotal 
Singapore Property 

Bayshore Road Parkway/East Coast 
Total 

Golf Course 
Lakeview Golf Course, Dongguan, China 

Oflice 1,260 100% 1998 
Residential 2,680 60% 1999 

Hotel/Commercial 561 39% 1999 
Hotel/Commercial 1,423 25% 2000 

Residential 1,300 35% 2002 
Residential 1,390 ), 50% 1999 
Residential 131 35% 1998 
Residential 216 50% 1999 
Residential 3,305 25% 2000 
Industrial 125 64% 1998 

Industrial/OlTice/Commercial 179 25% 1998 
Hotel/Service Apartments/Commercial 2,546 55% 2000 

Residential/Commercial 711 50% 1999 

Commercial 6,060 
Hotel/Commercial 1,865 

Commercial 861 
Residential 1,152 

Residential/Commercial 256 

Residential/Commercial 1,869 
Residential/Commercial 617 

Residential 3,607 
Residential 1,593 

Residential/Commercial 3.57 

Residential/Commercial ‘1,343 
19.580 

of sq. ft.) 

15,833 

Residential 
Residential 

140 
61 

201 

Residential 

Golf Course 14,244 46% 1998 

22% 
40% 
21% 
50% 

35% 

45% 
30% 

35% 
SO% 
40% 

40% 

2001 
1999 
1997 
1998 

1999 

2000 
1999 

2003 
1998 
1999 ‘, 

2000 

48% 1998 
50% 1999 

24% 2000 
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Principal Hong Kong Properties under Development 

The Company’s major properties currently under development in Hong Kong include: 

Cheung Kong Center (former Hong Kong Hilton Hotel site). The Company is redeveloping the site of 
the former Hilton Hotel, located at 2 Queen’s Road in the Central district of Hong Kong, into a 1.26 million 
square foot Grade A office tower and public car park. The former Hilton Hotel building was demolished 
during 1995 and work has commenced on the foundations for the ofice tower and carprk. The underground 
car park will accommodate 1,050 cars. The office tower, which will be more than 60 stories high, is expected to 
be completed at the end of 1998. The Company has a 100% interest in this project and the office tower is 
expected to be held for long term investment. 

Tsing Yi Airport Railway Station. The Company has an interest in a consortium which will develop a 
residential complex at the Hong Kong Mass Transit Airport Railway Station at T&g Yi. When completed, 
the project is expected to consist of approximately 2.68 million square feet of residential space. The Company 
has an effective 60% interest in the project. Construction work began at the end of 1996 and is expected to be 
completed by the end of 1999. The development is intended for sale. 

King’s Road Site in North Point. The Company has a 39% interest in a joint venture which is 
constructing an office block and a hotel in North Point, on a site of approximately 36,641 square feet. The 
office block and hotel are expected to be completed in 1999. 

Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation (“KCRC”) Hung Horn Terminus. The Company will participate 
in the development of a commercial complex with a gross floor area of approximately 1.4 million square feet, 
consisting of three office towers, a hotel and a shopping arcade above the KCRC’s Hung Horn terminus. The 
Company will have a 25% interest in this project. Planning is well advanced on the project, which is scheduled 
to be completed in early 2000. The development is intended for sale. 

Ma On Shan Site. A joint venture company in which ‘the Company has a 50% interest expects to 
develop a 278,000 square foot site at Ma On Shan into a 1.39 million square foot residential complex. The 
project is scheduled to be completed in mid-1999. The development is intended for sale. 

Tai PO Site. The Company has a 35% interest in a site at Tai PO, which is to .be ,developed into a 
131,000 square foot residential complex. Completion is scheduled for 1998. The development is intende,d for 
sale. 

Broadcast’ Drive Site. The Company has a 50% interest in the former Hongkongl)Television Broadcast 
(TVB) office building site located at 77 Broadcast Drive. The project is expected to.iprotide approximately 
216,000 square feet of residential space, subject to the approval of the development pIa!@by the Hong Kong 
Government. The project is scheduled for completion in 1999. The development is intended for sale. 

Tung Chung Station Development Package III. 
j 

The Company and Cheung Kong entered into an 
agreement with the MTRC for the development of Tung Chung Town Lot No. 5 nmr the Tung Chung 
Station of the new airport railway. The development will comprise residential units and a sli+ping center with 
a total gross floor area of approximately 3.3 million square feet. Completion of this develoljment is scheduled 
for 2000. 

Tsing Yi Terminal 9 Building. The Company has a 55% interest in a project to constinct a commercial 
complex of approximately 2.5 million square feet, which will be located between the soon to be developed 
container terminal number 9 and the nearby residential complexes. Completion is scheduled in 2000. ,, 

Wan Hoi Street, Hunghom. The Company has successfully tendered for a piece of land ‘near the 
Harbourfront Office/Harbour Plaza Hotel to develop into a 0.7 million square foot residential and commercial 
complex. The Company has a 50% interest in the project. 

Principal Mainland China Properties under Development 

The Company’s major joint venture property projects currently under development in mainland China 
include: 
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Orient Plaza, Beijing. The Company has a 22.3% interest in this joint venture which will engage in the 
phased redevelopment, of certain properties at Dong Chang An Avenue in central ,Beijing. When completed 
the project will consist of an office complex,‘shopping arcade, luxury residential units and a hotel, comprising 
approximately 6.1 million square feet in total. The project is expected to be completed by the end of the year 
2001. Beijing Orient Plaza is expected to be held for long term investment. 

&fetvop,olitan Plaza, Chongqing. The Company has a 40% interest in a project to redevelop a 
200,000 square foot site in the central district of the city of Chongqing. To be completed in stages, the project 
will consist of approximately 1.9 million square feet of commercial/office/hotel space. Construction of the first 
phase comprising a commercial podium of 1.1 million square feet has commenced and is scheduled for 
completion for letting in 1997. 

Westgate Mall, Shanghai. The Company has a 21% interest in a project for the development of a 
553,000 square foot commercial podium with an office tower containing approximately 308,000 square feet of 
space at the intersection of Nanjing West and Jiangning Roads in Shanghai’s Jing An district. In addition, 
,carparks will be included for rental covering approximately 242,000 square feet of additional space. The 
commercial podium is expected to’ be completed in 1997. The project will be held for rental. Marketing of 
rental units for the commercial podium is currently in progress. 

Huamu Residential Development, Shanghai. The Company has a 50% interest in a joint venture for the 
development in stages of a 1.2 million square foot low-density housing project in Huamu, in Shanghai’s 
Pudong New District. Development commenced in 1996 and the project is scheduled for completion in 1998. 
The residential development together with a 200,000 square foot carpark is intended for sale. 

Xuhui District Urban Redevelopment Scheme, Shanghai. The Company is participating, through its 
interests in a joint venture, in an urban redevelopment scheme in Xuhui, Shanghai, which is being completed 
in three phases. Phase I of the project was completed in 1996 and consisted of 133,000 square feet of 
commercial/residential space. All residential and office space comprising Phase I of the project has been sold. 
Construction is in progress on Phase II of the project which will consist of approximately 256,000 square feet 
of commercial and residential space. Phase II is scheduled for completion in 1999. The Company has a 27.5% 
interest in Phase I and a 35% interest in Phase II of this project,,as well as a 40% interest in the development 
rights in the third and final phase of this urban renewal scheme. Phase III is to consist of approximately 
1,343,OOO square feet of commercial and residential space and is scheduled for completion in 2000. The 
development is intended for sale. 

Huangsha Underground Railway Station Redevelopment, Guangzhou. The Company has a 45% interest 
in a project for the redevelopment of property above the underground railway station in Huangsha, 
Guangzhou. The master plan has been completed for the first phase of the proposed redevelopment and the 
first portion of the land has been allocated. Work on the first phase of the redevelopment is awaiting the 
delivery of the site by the government authorities. The redevelopment, which will be completed in stages, will 
consist of approximately 1.3 million square feet of residential space and about 573,000 square feet of 
commercial space. The first phase of the redevelopment is scheduled for completion in 2000. The residential 
development is intended for sale and the commercial area and carparks are expected to be retained for rental. 

Pa&@ Plaza, Qingdao. The Company has a 30% interest in a property development project in Qingdao. 
When completed, this development will consist of approximately 847,000 square feet of commer- 
cial/residential space. During 1995 an office tower was pre-sold, and construction of the first phase of the low- 
rise residential units was completed during 1996. The first phase consists of 299,600 square feet of office/ 
commercial area and 62,600 square feet of residential area. The second phase, consisting of approximately 
485,000 square feet of high-rise residential area, is scheduled for completion in 1999. The development is 
intended for sale. 

Tang Jia Wan Residential Development, Zhuhai. The Company has a 35% interest in the development 
of luxury low-rise villas on a site at Tangjiawan, adjoining a golf club in Zhuhai. The project, which will be 
completed in phases, will’consist of approximately 3,607,OOO square feet of residential space. Construction of 
75 residential units in Zhuhai is expected to be completed in 1998. The development is intended for sale. 
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United Kingdom Properties under Development 

Royal Gate,Ke,nsington. The Company has an effective 47.5% interest in the College House, Wright’s 
Lane site in Kensington, London. The site is being redeveloped into a quality 140,000 square foot residential 
building which will contain 132 flats. The development is expected to be completed in 1998 and is intended for 
sale. 

!. 

Graham Terrace. The Company has an effective 50% interest in the Graham ?&race site located in 
Sloane Square, London, which is being developed into an approximately 61,000 &rare foot residential 
complex, which’ will contain 59 houses and apartments. The development is expected ‘td Sk completed in 1999 
and is intended for sale. 

Development Costs , :i (’ “’ 

The Company estimates that the Company’s share of total development co& for properties under 
development, whether for investment or for sale and scheduled to be completed by Dekember 31,2001, will be 
approximately HK$21,8 19 million, of which approximately HK$6,020 million will be Mated to properties in 
mainland China. The Company currently expects that the majority of these expenditures will be financed 
primarily by cash flow from consolidated operations and presales of properties under development and, to the 
extent required, by, external borrowing. 

Project Management ‘, 

Property developments undertaken by the Company are coordinated and super-vi&d by its professional 
project management team consisting of architects, engineers and quantity surveyors.,., ,, 

,J:i’ 
Rental Properties 

.i 

The Company owns and maintains a portfolio of approximately 9.2 million squa&f&l(net of Company 
occupied area) of commercial, office. industrial and residential properties in Hong ‘KMkVor rental. These 
properties currently ‘are substantially fully let and have been for the last three year$.~F&$Company’s rental 
properties include interests in Hutchison House and the China Building, office building$li)c&ed in the Central 
district of Hong Kong. The Company and Cheung Kong have their headquarters in Hr&?hi!&n House and the 
China Building, respectively. - 
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The following table sets forth the Company’s gross rental income and gross floor area of the Company’s 
investment properties for each of the periods shown: 

Gross Rental Income 
(HK$ in millions) 

Commercial 
Office 
Industrial 
Residential 

Total 

Gross Floor Area(l) 
(in thousands of Sq. ft.) 

Commercial 
Office 
Industrial 
Residential 

Total 

Rental Properties 

Year Ended December 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 - - 

404 522 584 594 578 
281 297 337 548 748 
205 389 420 489 482 

15 25 30 48 42 ~ - 
905 1,232 1,372 1,679 1,850 

2,330 2,565 2,555 2,567 2,542 
762 743 849 1,413 1,392 

3,757 4,417 4,292 4,187 5,083 
70 110 183 171 121 

6,919 7,835 7,879 8,338 9,188 

(1) Amounts shown are net of, floor area occupied by the Company. 

Princijal Rental Propertfes 

Set out below is a brief description of each of the Company’s principal rental properties. 

Hutchison House. Hutchison House is a 22-story, Grade A office building located in the Central district 
of Hong Kong. The Company has its headquarters in the building, which is 100% owned by the Company. The 
building, originally constructed in 1974, comprises approximately 504,000 square feet of office and commercial 
space. Long term tenants include Ernst & Young, Baker & McKenzie and Wardley Financial Services Ltd., 
each of which has been a tenant since at least 1990. At December 31, 1996, Hutchison House had an 
occupancy rate of lOO%, and the average effective monthly rental per gross square foot of office space was 
HK$67. 

,China Building. China Building is a 23-story, Grade A office building located in the Central district of 
Hong Kong. China Building, constructed in 1978, comprises approximately 259,000 square feet of office and 
commercial space. The Company has a 100% interest in the building. Cheung Kong has its headquarters in 
the building. Other long term tenants include Canadian Eastern Finance Ltd., Canadian Imperial Bank of 
Commerce and the Consulate General of the Netherlands, each of which has been a tenant since at least 
1992. At December 31, ‘1996, the China Building had an occupancy rate of lOO%, and the average effective 
monthly rental per gross square foot of office space was HK$73. 

Harbourfvont Ofice Towers. Harbourfront Office Towers are 23-story, Grade A twin office towers 
located at the site of the Company’s former distribution center adjacent to Whampoa Garden in ‘Hung Horn, 
East Kowloon. The towers comprise approximately 863,000 square feet of office space and were completed in 
1994. In addition, the towers have a total of 214 carparking spaces. The Company has a 100% interest in the 
towers. Over 80% of the office space was pre-let prior to completion of construction. Principal tenants in the 
buildings include Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation, STAR Television, Citibank and Hutchison 
Telecom. At December 31, 1996, each tower had an occupancy rate of lOO%, and the average effective 
monthly rental per gross square foot of office space in the office towers was HK$29. 
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Whampoa Garden. Whampoa Garden, completed in 1991, consists of 88 16-story residential towers on 
12 sites located on the former Hung Horn dockyards in East Kowloon. The Company sold the residential units 
and retained the commercial complex which, with approximately 1.7 million square feet of commercial space, 
is one of Hong Kong’s largest shopping complexes and has become a leading commercial center jn East 
Kowloon. Approximately HK$200 million is being spent for the phased renovation and upgrading of the 
commercial complex, which is intended to modernize and enhance the overall appearance of the shopping 
complex. The renovation, expected to be completed in 1997, is progressing according to plan and has already 
drawn increased shopping traffic to the area. The Company has a 100% interest in the commercial complex. 
Tenants include such retailers as Yaohan International Department Store, Wing On Department Store and 
UA Cinemas. The Company’s retail chain stores, Park’N Shop, Watson’s Personal Care Store and Bhs, also 
occupy space in the complex. At December 31, 1996, the complex had an occupancy rate of 99% for its 
commercial space, and the average effective monthly rental per leasable square foot of commercial space in 
the complex was HK$21. 

The Hongkong International Distribution Centve (“HIDC”). HIDC, located at the Kwai Chung 
container terminal in Kowloon, is one of the largest commercial/industrial complexes in Asia and was 
completed in 1992. HIDC comprises approximately 4.7 million square feet of office and warehouse area and 
has over 187 carparking spaces available for rental. The Company has an 88% interest in HIDC. At 
December 31, 1996, the complex had an occupancy rate of over 88% for its commercial space, and the average 
effective mqnthly rental per leasable square foot of commercial space in the complex was HK$9. 

Aberdeen Centre. Aberdeen Centre is a 345,000 square foot commercial complex located in Aberdeen 
on Hong Kong Island and was completed in 1982. Aberdeen Centre also has over 542 carparking spaces 
available for rental. The Company has a 100% interest in the Centre. Tenants include such retailers as Wing 
On Department Store and KPS Retail Store. At December 31, 1996, Aberdeen Centre had an occupancy rate 
of 97%, and the average effective monthly rental per leasable sqtiare’ foot was HK$311’ 

The following table summarizes certain information as of December 31, 1996, wifh:&espect to, the above- 
described properties and the Company’s other existing properties held for rent. 

Rental Properties 

Rental Properties 
Year 

Completed 

Commercial 
Whampoa Garden Sites 1-12 
Aberdeen Center 
Provident Center 
Belvedere Garden Phases 1 and 3 
Belvedere Garden Phase 2 
Others 

Various 
1982 
1984 

198711991 
1989 

Various 

Ofice 
Harbourfront Office Towers I and II 
Hutchison House 
China Building 
Park Commercial Center 
Johnston .Road 

1994 
1974 
1978 
1981 
1977 

,, 

Total Gross 
Floor Area’ 
for Reit(1) 

(in thousands 
of sq. ft.). 

1,67i ‘-~ 
332 
184 

‘145 
67 

143 
2,542 

545 
453 
259 
106 
29 ‘- 

1,392 
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Rental Properties 

/ 
Year 

Completed 
Percentage 
Ownership 

Industrial 
Hong Kong International Distribution Center 
Watson Center ., ~ 
,Cavendish Center 
Kwai Chung Industrial Building ’ 
Others 

1992 88% 
1978 100% 
1984 ,lOO% 
1980 100% 

Various Various 

Residential Various Various 
Total ‘1 

(1) Amounts shown are net of, floor area occupied by the Company, which is approximately 1.8 million square feet. 

“, 
Tenants 

Total Gross 
Floor Area 

for Rent(l) 
(in thousands 

of sq. ft.) 

4,190 
541 
238 
101 

13 
5,083 

171 
9,188 

The Company seeks to maintain long-term relationships w-ith high ‘quality tenants and to maintain an 
appropriate balance in its tenant composition. The Company believes that the implementation of its tenant 
strategy has been fundamental in retaining its core tenants and maintaining the strength of its rental income 
base. 

The following table sets forth the occupancy rate and the average ‘effective monthly rental for the 
Company’s commercial, office, industrial and residential spaces as at the’ date indicated: 

Occupancy Rate 
Commercial ( 1) 
Office(2) 

,, I’ 

Industrial (1) 
Residential (2) 
Average Effective Monthly Rental (in HK$) 
Commercial ( 1) 
Office(2) 
Industrial (1) 
Residential (2) 

11) Per leasable square foot. 

(2) Per gross square foot. 

At December 31, 

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 ___ ~ ~ ~ ___ 

96% .92% 90%) 93% 98% 
94 100 98s 97 99 
72 89 98 96 91 
93 98 100 84(3) 82(3) 

17 18 21 23 24 
44 46 48 43 43 

9 ,’ ,9 9 9 9 
19 19 ‘23 24 25 

(3) Decreases in occupancjr rates are due to renovations which were completed in karly 1997. 

The Company’s office space is generally leased to multinational corporations and leading Hong Kong- 
based corporations. The Company’s commercial space is typically occupied by shops, banks, restaurants and 
department stores. 

In ‘accordance with practices in the Hong Kong property market, the Company’s office leases are typically 
for three years, but in some cases are six or nine’ years in duration. Regardless of the duration of the lease term, 
the rent charged is generally adjusted every three years based upon market rates. Depending on market 
conditions, the Company has granted rent&free periods of one or two’months in the original letting of the. office 
and commercial property. Residential leases are typically for two years and are renewed based upon market 
rates. Commercial leases typically ,extend for two to three years, but in some cases are six or nine years in 
duration. Regardless of the duration of the lease term, the rent charged is generally ‘reviewed every two or 
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three years based upon market rates. The Company’s tenants are also charged a monthly management fee 
which covers building maintenance expenses, insurance and certain other costs. Tenants are also required t;o 
pay their utility charges and government rates. 

Pvopevty Taxation 

Government rates are collected annually by the Hong Kong Government on the Hong Kong properties of 
the Company. Such rates are currently imposed at an annual rate of 5.0% of the property’s ratable value. In 
general under the terms of their leases, such amounts are passed through to the respective properties’ tenants 
and, as a result, do not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operation. 

Pvopevty Management 

The Company also undertakes property management by providing professional day-to-day property 
management and maintenance services. The Company believes that its property management services 
complement and enhance the value and marketability of its investment and development portfolios. The 
Company provides management services. for its properties in Hong Kong, including Hutchison House, 
Whampoa Garden, Provident Centre, Aberdeen Centre and South Horizons, and its properties in mainland 
China. In addition to managing and maintaining the Company’s investment properties, the estate management 
division provides building management services to residential complexes with over 36@9 households covering 
over 30 million square feet of area. . , ,j: 

: ‘,\ , 
Competition 

With respect to its property development activities, the Company competes ~$3 E, number of other 
developers, principally for the acquisition of suitable development sites. The supp\X;‘Ff;:‘and available for 
development in Hong Kong is constrained by a number of factors, including geography and Hong Kong 
government policy. Land released for development by the government is usually sold at auction. 

With respect to its investment properties, the Company competes with other major developers and 
complexes to attract commercial and office tenants and to draw customers to the retail outlets, restaurants and 
hotels in its developments. The Company competes for office tenants primarily based upon the quality and 
location of its buildings, its reputation as a building owner, the quality of its support services and the rent 
charged. The Company competes for commercial tenants primarily based on the location of its commercial 
centers and their ability to attract customers using a balanced mix of tenants. 

Ports and Related Services 

The Company is one of the world’s leading operators of container terminals, holding interests in ports in 
Hong Kong and mainland China, the U.K., Myanmar and the Bahamas. The Company has been awarded a 
concession to operate port facilities at both ends of the Panama Canal, and has recently signed a joint venture 
agreement to build and operate a container port at Indonesia’s developing deep-sea part of Bojonegara. The 
Company also has interests in aircargo, ship repair, salvage and towage operations in Hong Kong. The 
Company has a long history in the port business and related services. HIT was established in 1974 and is now 
the successful centerpiece in the Company’s ports and related services division. 

,The Company’s strategy in its ports ‘and related services operations is to $$tinue to enhance the 
performance of its existing port operations while pursuing expansion opportunities in’ Hong Kong and 
elsewhere. Many ports around the world are currently owned and operated by the public sector. However, the 
Company has observed that, over the last several years; there has been a global trenrhtdwards the privatization 
of ports, which the Company believes will continue. The Company is applying its tra&record, experience and 
financial resources to capitalize on this global trend by identifying and acquiring,&y;,ports throughout the 
world. The Company seeks to improve the operating results of the ports it acquiresl&rupgrading existing 
infrastructure and management systems and installing management trained at its existirrglports. The Company 
has significantly expanded its port operations in mainland China in recent years and retinues to actively seek 
opportunities to acquire and develop new ports, and expand its existing ports, ‘inlcmainland China. The 
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Company believes that the continuing development of other ports in mainland China will have a beneficial 
effect on its existing facilities in Hong Kong as containerization of freight increases and the overall market for 
container handling services along the mainland China coast expands. 

The Hongkong and Whampoa Dock Company Limited traces its origins to #the last century, when it 
established a ship construction and repair business at Hung Horn. It later diversified into cargo handling. In 
1974, the Hongkong and Whampoa Dock Company Limited formed HIT to coordinate the services of its 
container handling subsidiaries. Following the merger of the Hongkong and Whampoa Dock Company 
Limited and Hutchison International Limited in 1977, HIT became a subsidiary of the Company. 

HIT is the world’s largest privately-owned container terminal operation in terms of throughput handled. 
In 1996, Hong Kong handled more containers than any other port in the world and HIT and COSCO-HIT 
handled approximately 42% of the container traffic passing through Hong Kong. 

The Company owns and operates Felixstowe, the largest container facility in the U.K. and the fourth 
largest container facility in Europe. 

In response to an increased volume of cargo to and from mainland China, the Company has significantly 
expanded its mainland China port operations in recent years. The Company holds interests in a number of 
ports in mainland, China, including Yantian, SCT and Delta Ports. 

The market for ports and related services is dependent on a variety of factors. The geographic location of 
the port is important to its flow of traffic. Ports in Hong Kong benefit from its strategic location in the center of 
the rapidly developing economies of Asia. A terminal operator must have sufficient capacity to meet the 
demands of its customers. HIT and COSCO-HIT together have the largest number of berths at Kwai Chung 
Container Port (“Kwai Chung”), the principal container port in Hong Kong. Shipping customers also focus 
on turnaround time at ports in order to minimize the amount of time their ships spend at ports. The Company 
aims to utilize the latest technology and management systems in its port operations in order to enhance 
turnaround performance at its ports. 

The’following table sets forth the container throughputs of ports operated by the Company’s subsidiaries 
and associated companies. 

Year hnded December 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

Container throughputs (thousands of TEUs) 
Local (1) 3,671.2 4,858.3 6,864.9 7,912.5 8,650.l 
Transhipment 686.8 796.9 1,566S 2,333.6’ 2,636.g 

Total 4,358.0 5,655:2 8,431.4 10,246.l 1 L286.9 

(1) A “TEU” is a twenty-foot equivalent unit that is based on the dimensions of a cargb container 20 feet long x 8 feet wide x 8 feet 6 
inches high kith a maximbm load of 24 tons. 

Hongkong Inteiwational Terminals Limited 

HIT is the world’s largest privately-owned container terminal operator in terms of throughput handled. 
The Company currently holds an 80% interest in HIT, after the acquisition in July 1997 of an additional 2.5% 
interest from a minority shareholder of HIT1 HIT’s scope of business includes the loading and unloading of 
containers to and’from container vessels, the handling of cargo, the storage of containers and the handling of 
containers within the container terminal premises. HIT operates ten berths at its three terminals at Kwai 
Chung. In addition, HIT’s 50% joint venture, COSCO-HIT, operates a two-berth terminal at Kwai Chung. In 
1996, approximately 5.7 million TEUs passed through the twelve berths operated by HIT and COSCO-HIT, 

. . an increase of 7% over 1995. The three terminals operated by HIT and the one terminal operated by COSCO- 
HIT occupy approximately 120 hectares of terminal space which is held under leases granted by the Hong 
Kong Government expiring on June 30, 2047. Historically, the Hong Kong Government has controlled the 
amount of land used for container terminals. 
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The following table summarizes certain information with respect to HIT. 

ye& Ended December 31, 
1992 ‘1993 1994 1995 1996 

Container throughputs (thousands of TEUs) 
Local 
Transhinment 

A 

Total 
Fixed assets (HK$ millions) 

cost 
Net book value 

,, 2,462;O 2,997.7 3,352.g 3,264.2 3,471.3 
439.5 ‘, 489.2 662.5 813.8 ~. 1,027.5 ~ - ___ 

4,015.3 2,901.5,- 3,486.9 4,078.O 4,498.g , 

The overseas destinations 

Destination/Origin 

North America 
Intra-Asia 
Europe 
Others 

Total 

9,563.g 12,191.O 12,696.3 . 13,423.2 13,850.3 
8,745.4 11,253.5 11,561.5 *i 12,017.7 11,993.l 

j ./ 
and origins.of throughput handled by HIT in 1996 were as follows! 

:i:, i 
Ap,qoeate 
Perchhge 

: i li41% 

’ ,%A% 
,’ .ii$& 

,. ,JJ+ 

: dclof% 
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HIT and COSCO-HIT handled over 60% of the throughput at Kwai Chung and approximately 42% of 
the total Hong Kong throughput in 1996. HIT’s dominant market share is attributable:to its large number of 
berths and the emphasis on the quality of service it provides to its customers. HIT’s contracts with customers 
are typically for one to ten years. HIT’s and COSCO-HIT’s major customers include significant shipping lines 
such as China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company, American President Lines, Evergreen, Wan Hai, Hyundai, 
Orient Overseas Container Line, Mitsui OSK Lines, Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha,~ Nedlloyd, Yang Ming and 
Compagnie Maritime D’Affretement. 

The operations of HIT are geared to meet its customers’ needs. HIT operates 24 hours a day, every day of 
the year except for Chinese New Year day. HIT’s employees possess significant experience in the operations 
of container terminals and are continuously trained to maintain and improve their level of professional 
expertise.. 

HIT utilizes advanced technologies including rail-mounted, high-speed stacking cranes and computerized 
port and management systems to assist, in efficient yard planning, berth utilization programming and container 
tracking. As of December 31: 1996, HIT owned’ 30 quay cranes (9 Panamax, 21 Post-Panamax (capable of 
handling vessels ,too ,large to pass through the Panama Canal) ) at its terminals for lo,ading and unloading at 
the quayside. HIT also maintains close electronic data interchange ,links with its. wstomers. The use of 
advanced equipment and management systems maintain efficient turnaround times at HIT’s terminals. HIT 
has been twice voted “Best Container Terminal Operator” at the Asian Freight In-&wards. 

In order to meet anticipated throughput growth in Hong Kong, the Hong, Kg%, :Government has 
approved plans for the development of container terminal number 9. The development,@ r;0ntainer terminal 
number 9 is expebted to add an additional capacity of 2.6 million TEUs’to Kwai Chun&#y 2001, its expected 
completion date. HIT has the rights to develop, own and operate two berths at contain~r;~erminal number 9 at 
an estimated cost of HK$5.3 billion. The Hong Kong Government is considering plans.for the development of 
two additional container terminals for completion after the year 2009, although nyl@rn plans have been 
approved. HIT would consider participating in any future development of container ~errninals in order to 
maintain or increase its market share of port services in Hong Kong. ,:m ,, 

‘,. ‘, I.,,!’ 
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Port of Felixstowe Limited 

The Company owns and operates Felixstowe, which was established in 1886 and is the largest container 
facility in the U.K. and the fourth largest container facility in Europe. The Company acquired a 75% interest 
in Felixstowe in 1991 and the remaining 25% interest in 1994. Felixstowe handled over 2.0 million TEUs in 
1996, a 7% increase over 1995. Felixstowe handled approximately 37% of the U.K.‘s container throughput in 
1996. It has three terminals: Trinity, which can berth nine of the largest container ships at any one time; 
Landguard, serving deep-sea and short sea operations; and Dooley, the U.K.‘s second largest roll-on, roll-off 
facility. The facilities at Felixstowe were expanded with the completion of Trinity III in early 1996, with the 
handling capacity increased to approximately 2.5 million TEUs. 

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to Felixstowe. 

Year Ended December 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

Container throughputs (thousands of TEUs) 
Local 1,209.2 1,266.8 L327.5 1,431.6 1,460.6 
Transhipment 247.3 294.6 359.3 453.1 553.3 

Total 1,456.5 1,561.4 1,686.8 1,884.7 2,013.9 
Fixed assets (HK$ millions) 

cost 3,244.9 3,239.7 3,607.5 3,906.2 4,374.3 
Net book value 2,243.6 2,128.3 2,295.7 2,657.9 2,905.9 

The overseas destinations and origins of throughput handled by Felixstowe in 1.996 were as follows: 
Approximate 

Percentage Destination/Origin 

Far East 
North America 
North Europe 

1 Middle East/India 
Africa 
Central and South America’ 
Mediterranean 

Total 

Yantian International Container Terminals Limited 

The Company has a ‘43.6%. interest in Yantian, which owns and manages the Yantian Port, the first 
deep-water port in southern China. Opened in July 1994, Yantian Port is located in Da Peng Bay, three 
kilometers from the Hong Kong border. Yantian Port’s two container berths handled throughput of over 
353,000 TEUs in 1996, a three-fold increase over 1995. With the completion of Phase II in 2000, Yantian Port 
will provide 118 hectares of yard space, six container berths and three general cargo berths with ,an annual 
handling capacity of 2.0 million TEUs. Yantian Port has a direct rail link to the Shenzhen-Guangzhou railway 
and a road network connecting to Hong Kong and southern China. Yantian Port has been designated the first 
container port in mainland China for the implementation, on a pilot basis, of customs procedures in the 
transhipment of cargo. 
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The following table summarizes certain information with respect to Yantian. 

Container throughputs (thousands of TEUs) 
Local 
Transhipment 

Total 

Fixed assets (HK$ millions) 
cost 
Net book value 

Year Ended December 31, 
1994 1995 1996 ~ ~ - 

12.9 105.8 353.5 
- ~ - - ~ - 

12.9 105.8 353.5 

2,569.5 2,788.6 2,967.4 
2,531.2 2,677.2 2,776.1 

The overseas destinations of throughput handled by Yantian in 1996 were as follows: 

Approximate 
Destinatipn Percentage 

North America 53% 
Europe 32% 
Intra-Asia 15% 

Total 100% 

Shanghai Contkner Terminals Limited 

The Company owns an effective 40% interest in SCT, which is a joint venture forn@i& December 1992 
with the Shanghai Port Authority. Operations under the joint venture structure started p August 1993. SCT 
manages three terminals at Zhang Hua Bang, Jun Gong Lu and Bao Shan, comprisini @,container berths. 
The Company provides senior personnel, expertise and technology for the management of the terminals. The 
Company also assisted in the conversion and upgrading of general cargo berths to new container berths, which 
raised SCT’s handling capacity to 1.7 million TEUs. SCT handled throughput of 1.44 million TEUs in 1996, a 
11.2% increase from 1995. SCT has been granted first rights of refusal to develop Shanghai’s future container 
terminals in the Pudong areas to cope with the anticipated greater volume of trade and increased usage by 
customers. 

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to SCT. 

Container throughputs (thousands of TEUs) 
Local 
Transhipment 

Total 

Fixed assets (HK$ millions) 
cost 
Net book value 

Year Ended December 31, 
1993 1994 1995 1996 ~ ~ 

395.3 1,057.l 1,130.6 1,133.4 
13.2 73.0 163.4 304.9 - - 

408.5 1,130.l 1,294.O Q438.3 

790.7 992.2 / 1,323.6 1,582.l 
773.9 948.3, 1,237.5 1,444.6 
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The overseas destinations of throughput handled by SCT in 1996 were as follows: 

Approximate 
Destination Percentage 

Japan 23% 
Hong Kong 20% 
North America ‘, 14% 
South Korea 10% 
Europe 11% 
Southeast Asia 9% 
Other 13% 

Total 100% 

Hutchison ,Delta Portk Limited 

Delta Ports, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was formed in September 1994 to hold and 
manage all of the Company’s existing interests in river and coastal ports in mainland China and to invest in, 
develop and operate new river and coastal ports in mainland China. Delta Ports currently operates and 
manages joint venture facilities in Jiuzhou, Gaolan, Nanhai: Jiangmen, Shantou and Haicang. Except for 
Shantou and Haicang, these joint venture facilities are 50% owned by Delta Ports. The Shantou port is 70% 
owned by Delta Ports and the Haicang Port is 49% owned by Delta Ports. 

Jiuzhou, Gaolan, Nanhai and Jiangmen handled a total of 426,000 TEUs and 1.35 million tons of general 
cargo in l996, an increase of 20% and 35%, respectively, over 1995. 

Including Shantou and Haicang, which are in their initial stages of operations and will be fully completed 
by the end of 1997, Delta Ports is developing into a major developer and operator of river and coastal ports in 
mainland China in conjunction with local government entities as its joint venture partners. 

,To finance the acquisition and development of river and coastal ports in mainland China, Delta Ports 
issued US$275 million of 7% mandatorily exchangeable guaranteed bonds in November 1994. The bonds are 
mandatorily exchangeable for shares of Delta Ports after an initial public offering of its shares, provided the 
initial public ‘offering meets certain specifications. If Delta Ports”initia1 public offering does not meet such 
specifications or if no initial public offering takes place on or before November 8, 2001, Delta Ports will be 
required to redeem the bonds at approximately 124% of their principal amount plus accrued interest. ‘,, 

Other Ports ,’ 

The, Company has a 75.5% interest in Mid-Stream Holdings Limited, which is the largest mid-stream 
operator in Hong Kong. Mid-Stream Holdings Limited achieved a throughput volume of 1.4 million TEUs in 
1996 through its waterfront depots at Tsing Yi, Stonecutters Island, Tseung Kwan 0 and Tuen Mun. 

A consortium in which the Company has an effective 33% interest, has been awarded the right to develop 
a 65 hectare river trade terminal at Tuen Mun, Hong Kong. This terminal is currently being developed and is 
scheduled to commence operations in late 1998, and the entire project will be completed by 2000. 

The Company,has a 50% interest in the Port of Freeport on Grand Bahama Island. This port currently 
provides a major cruise ship destination. The first phase of its two-berth, deep water, container terminal facility 
successfully commenced operations on April.1, 1997. The Port of Freeport is the closest offshore port to the 
east coast of the United States and is strategically located between Europe, North and South America and the 
Panama Canal. Freeport ‘Harbour Company, in which the Company has a 50% interest, exercised an option to 
acquire 100% of the Grand Bahama Airport Company, together, with 741 acres of industrial land joining the 
airport ,and harbour, which is to be developed as a sea/air business center. 
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The Company commenced operations of the ports of Balboa on the Pacific Ocean andiCristoba1 on the 
Atlantic Ocean on March 1, 1997, under a long-term concession. These two ports are located at either end of 
the Panama Canal. ,>I; 0, 

The Company has a 20% interest in a newly completed container port facility at ,JXlawa (Yangon), 
Myanmar, and start-up operations have commenced. .A 

The Company has recently signed a joint venture agreement to build and oper&te”a’container port at 
Indonesia’s developing deep-sea port of Bojonegara. ,, 

; iI 

Related Services / _, I. it s 

The Company owns 50% interests in both Hongkong United Dockyards Limiteq i’&JD”) and The 
Hongkong Salvage and Towage Limited (“HKST”). HUD provides both marine and’ground engineering 
services from its floating docks and workshop complex. In addition to ship maintenance and repair, HUD is a 
leading contractor for steelwork, mechanical and electrical engineering, and industrial+@ hvy engineering. 
HKST has the largest and one of the most modern fleet of tugs in Hong Kong. Its 21-vessel fleet includes two 
3,200 BHP harbor tugs acquired in 1995 and four, 4,000 BHP ocean-going multi-purpose .tugs acquired in 
1994. Its services include harbor towage, de,ep-sea towage, salvage, as well as tug &r&.supervision and 
consultancy. 

I _,I,1 
Retail, Manufacturing and Other Services 

The Company holds 100% interests in both ASW and Hutchison Whampoa (Chiria) Limited. ASW is 
one of Asia’s, largest retailers and.operates three major retail chains in Hong Kong and in several other 
countries in Asia in addition to manufacturing and distributing food and beverage producp in Hong Kong and 
elsewhere in mainland China. Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited has joint ventures with Procter & 
Gamble which manufacture and distribute certain Procter & Gamble products throughout mainland China. 
Hutchison Wliampoa (China) Limited also has joint ventures providing aircraft titehance services in 
southern China. The Company also owns; operates, acquires and develops hotels whicharelprimarily located 
in Hong Kong and elsewhere in mainland China. 

I 
The Company strategy in its retail and manufacturing operations is to, build on, &&e in Hong Kong 

through a policy of carefully managed growth, whiie tightly controlling costs. The C&my believes that it 
can use the retail and manufacturing expertise it has gained in Hong Kong to expanS1, a~$.grow its retail and 
manufacturing operations in mainland China and elsewhere in Asia. The Company,h&eves that the same 
keys to success in its Hong Kong operations, (tight cost control, hands on managem@ and careful quality 
control) can be transferred successfully to its expanding operations outside of Hong Kong. 

The Company has a long history in retail and manufacturing. ASW started business in the 1800s as a 
small dispensary in the southern Chinese province of Guangdong known for providing free medicines to the 
poor. Under the Watson family, it quickly ldiversified into the production of aerat&i ,waters as well as 
pharmaceutical and retailing operations. By the turn of the century, ASW had developa i&o a major trading 
force in Hong Kong; mainland China and the Philippines with more than 100 r&IIing and dispensing 
branches. Because of its long history, the Watson name is well recognized in a number of countries in Asia. 
ASW became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in 1981. “, ,, 

.,’ I ,~ 

A S Watson & Cdmpany Limited ,I ‘, 

ASW operates the Park’N Shop supermarket chain, Watson’s personal care storeohain and the Fortress 
electronics and electrical appliances chain. ASW serves millions of customers thrungh a total of 605 retail 
outlets; of which 303 are located outside Hong Kong. All store numbers in the text of+kis section are stated as 
of December 3 1, 1,996. The majority of ASW’s retail stores are rented, preserving the &&rational flexibility of 
the division. ASW also manufactures and distributes ice-cream products, soft drinks, ftilt juices and distilled 
water in Hong Kong, and mainland China. ASW, together with “their joint v&tire partner Nuance 
International Holdings Ltd, have been awarded the licences for the airside sale of ‘iietfume, cosmetics and 
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general merchandise at the new Hong Kong airport at Chek Lap Kok, which is due to open in 1998. The joint 
venture plans to pursue other airport retail opportunities within Asia. 

As customers throughout Asia become increasingly cost and quality conscious; ASW strives to provide 
customers with quality products at competitive prices. ASW’s operations are being expanded regionally into 
Taiwan, Singapore, Malaysia, Macau, mainland China, Thailand and Indonesia. The Company believes that 
significant benefits ,flow from the economies of scale inherent in operating an integrated retail organization 
throughout Asia. 

The ‘following table sets forth certain information with respect ,to ASW. 

Ye& Ended Decembe; 31, 

Number of Retail Outlets 

1992 1993 1994 - 7 - 

‘, Hong Kong 
~ Park’N Shop 

Watson’s Personal Care Stores 
: Fortress 

Others 
Sub-total 

Mainland China 
Park’N Shop 
Watson’s Personal Care Stores 

Sub-total 
Other 

Park’N Shop 
Taiwan 

Watson’s Personal Care Stores 
‘Taiwan 
Singapore 
Malaysia 
Macau 
Thailand 

Others ” ,. 
Sub-total 

157 ‘, 163 163 
61 '.61 69 
31 32 36 

0 0 1 
249 256 269 

,, 4 10‘ 22 
2' 5 7 
6.8 15 9 

13 20 32 

40 54 
24 30 

0 -0 
1 1 
0 0, 
0 0 - -’ 

78 105 

77 
33 

4 
2 
0 
3 - 

151 
Total 333 376 449 - - - - - - 

1995 

171 
73 
43 

4 

1996 

170 
81 
45 

6 
291 302 

42 
12 

60 
18 
78 54 

14 

98 
38 
13 
4 
0 

13 
180 
525 

O(l) 

130 
44 
29 

4 
3 

15 
225 
605 

(1) In 1995, the Company decided to close or sell its Pa+‘N Shop stores in Taiwan in view of the difficult operating environment for 
supermarkets in Taiwan. I 8, 

‘Rekail Chains 
88 

,Park’N Shop. The Park’N Shop supermarket chain serves more than 10 million shoppers a month in 
230 locations with centrally controlled product ranges and merchandising layouts. The Pa&N Shop 
supermarket chain puts particular emphasis on convenience, product life, display and selection. Checkout 
scanning equipment has’ improved customer service and brought benefits in stock control and customer 
analysis. 

The Park’N Shop chain, through its 176 outlets in Hong Kong, commands a market share of the 
supermarket business of approximately 30% in Hong Kong, as determined by data from an independent 
market research firm. Its principal competitor in Hong Kong, the Wellcome supermarket chain, has a slightly 
higher market share than Park’N Shop. Park’N Shop also faces competition on the sale of fresh foods from 
iJapanese department stores and local fresh food markets. Park’N Shop has increased its market share in Hong 
rKong over the last five years by opening stores in convenient locations in both high and low income areas and 
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by providing a wider and higher quality product range. The Company has achieved enaou&.ng results in the 
larger-format Park’N Shop supermarkets in the Company’s “garden city” developments&ncWhampoa Garden 
and South Horizons. Park’N Shop intends to open more larger-format supermarkets,:0 meet the one-stop 
shopping needs of its customers. ‘8. 

,,:i:,: , 
ASW seeks opportunities to expand selectively the Park’N Shop supermarket chfi in,mainland .China. 

With, 60 Park’N Shop stores strategically located in cities such as Shenzhen, Zhuhi, Guangzhou and 
Shanghai, the Park’N Shop supermarket chain is one of the largest non-domestic food retailers in mainland 
China. Park’N Shop stores in mainland China are established pursuant to joint ventures with local partners. 
ASW has a majority interest in most of these joint ventures. ASW believes that there is &&&ant potential in 
mainland China for the development of additional Park’N Shop stores. 

Watson’s The Watson’s personal care stores chain is one of Asia’s largest retailer of personal care 
products and enjoys strong brand name recognition in Hong Kong and in other countrl&srGh :&da. These stoics 
are similar in concept to a U.S. drug store except that most stores do not dispense prescription drugs. The 
Watson’s personal care stores offer a range of more than 25,000 products, including toil&es, medicines, 
cosmetics, magazines, confectionery, fashion items and toys. The chain operates 130 timin Taiwan, 81 in 
Hong Kong, 44 in Singapore, 29 in Malaysia, 18 in mainland China, 4 in Macau and 3 in Thailand. The 
Watson’s personal care stores face competition from other similar chains, such as Manning’s, department 
stores and independent stores. 

Fortress. Since its acquisition by ASW in 1990, the Fortress chain has emerged as $.&ding retailer of 
electronic equipment and domestic electrical appliances in Hong Kong. The chain of 45’ Fortress stores in 
Hong Kong has achieved a market share of approximately 30%, as estimated by !$e”C&rpany, through 
aggressive price promotions, product range expansion and after-sales product service *rough optional 
extended warranty plans. The Fortress chain faces competition from smaller similar chains, department stores 
and independent stores. Plans are being finalized for the controlled expansion of Fortress into mainland China 
and Taiwan. 

Other Retail Chains. ASW opened a Bhs store in Hong Kong, pursuant to a franchise agreement, in 
November 1996 to target the medium price range clothing retail segment. Bhs (formerly known as British 
Home Stores) is a well-known brand name in the U.K. ASW plans to open more Bhs stores in Hong Kong as 
well as a Bhs store in Malaysia in 1997. 

ASW has also established, pursuant to franchise agreements, smaller retail concepts in Hong Kong and 
elsewhere in Asia such as Tie Rack, which primarily sells neckties and scarves, and Knickerbox, which 
primarily sells intimate apparel. 

Manufacturing 

The manufacturing division of ASW manufactures and distributes Watson anh.i&r~~ational branded 
distilled and mineral water, beverages, juices and ice cream in Hong Kong and mainland China. ASW has 
achieved dominant market shares in many of these product areas. ASW utilizes mass rms& advertising to 
create product awareness and to differentiate its products. The manufacturing division of ASW also takes 
advantage of its close supply relationship with the Park’N Shop supermarkets chain to &tr’&tite its products. 

ASW’s manufacturing division has rapidly increased its manufacturing capacity in recent years. ASW’s 
current annual manufacturing capacity in Hong Kong is approximately 222 million liters forrwater, 19 million 
liters for juice and 55 million liters for soft drinks. The current annual manufacturing capacity of ASW’s joint 
ventures in mainland China is approximately 250 million liters for soft drinks and 44 m$lF/, liters for water. “0 

Product quality, sophisticated distribution and effective marketing have helped ASW to establish a 
dominant share of the market for bottled water in Hong Kong. ASW’s “Watson’s” and “Cool” brands are the 
two leading brands of water in Hong Kong. The Company applies stringent methods of;distillation to ensure a 
pure product: Every aspect of the production process, from manufacturing to bottle cap&sign, is researched 
and tested to ensure consistency and quality. Watson also markets imported bottled mineral waters such as 
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Pierval, SPA, San Pellegrino and San Benedetto. ASW’s distilled water business’ is also, growing in mainland 
China, with sales in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. 

“Mr. Juicy”, manufactured and distributed by ASW, is the best-selling brand of chilled fruit juice in 
Hong Kong. ASW also manufactures and distributes Ripe, another well-known brand of juice. 

ASW also manufactures and distributes other branded cordials and carbonated drinks and distributes a 
growing range of international drinks including Pepsi, 7UP and Sunkist. ASW has the bottling license for 
Pepsi Co. brands in Hong Kong and Sunkist drinks in Hong Kong and, elsewhere in China. 

ASW imports and produces quality ice cream products. ASW is Hong Kong’s largest supplier of such 
products, based on the value of such products, and its product lines include Dreyer’s, Lotte and Mountain 
Cream. In December 1996, the Company acquired the rights to the Dreyers brand name in Hong Kong and 
mainland China. ASW is also the dominant supplier of ice cream in Shanghai. 

In Hong Kong, the manufacturing division has two factories and ‘approximately 1,170 employees. In 
mainland China the division has interests in eight manufacturing joint ventures and has over 3,000 employees. 
ASW’s manufacturing division believes that there are significant opportunities for expanded production and 
distribution of many of its products in mainland China. 

Hotels 

The Company owns and operates several hotels in Hong Kong and elsewhere in China. The Company is 
considering opportunities for expansion of its hotel operations in Hong Kong and elsewhere in China. The 
Company also considers, from time to time, hotel acquisitions in other parts of the world. 

The following table sets, forth certain information with regard to the Company’s hotels in operation or 
under construction. 

‘8 1996 
Average 

Occupancy 
Category Rate Number of Rooms 

Percentage 
Ownership 

Year 
Opened 

Hotels in Operation 
The Harbour Plaza 

Hung Horn, Hqng Kong 
The Sheraton Hotel and Towers 

Nathan Road, Hong Kong 
The Great Wall Sheraton 

Beijing 
The Parkview Plaza Hotel 

Beijing 

Hotels Under Construction 
North Point .Hotel 

‘Hong Kong 
Metropolitan Plaza 

Chongqing 
Hung Horn KCRC Hotel 

Hong Kong 

5 star 

5 star 

91% 415 rooms 100% 1995 
96% 101 service apartments 100% 1995 
86% 789 39% 1974 

5 star 78% 

4 star 57% 

840 49.8% 1984 

496 95% 1990 

Category 
Number 

of Rooms 
Percentage 
Ownership 

Expected 
Opening Date 

3 star 806 39% 1998 

4 star 419 40% 1998 

4 star 700 25% 2000 

The Company owns The Harbour Plaza in Hung Horn, Hong Kong, which has 415 rooms and 101 service 
apartments. The Harbour Plaza commenced operations in July 1995. A hotel management company, 
Hutchison International Hotels, has been formed to manage the Harbour Plaza as well as certain other hotels 
the Company may ultimately acquire. 
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The Company has a 39% interest in the Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel and Towers, which is located ‘in 
Tsimshatsui, Hong Kong. The hotel has 789 rooms and commenced operations’.in 1974. Hotel facilities 
include international cuisine restaurants, function rooms and a shopping, mall. 

The Company has a 49.8% interest in the Great Wall Sheraton Hotel in Beijing, pursuant to a. joint 
venture with the Beijing Bureau of Tourism Administration. 

The Company acquired the Parkview Plaza Hotel in Beijing in June 1997. 

The Company has signed an~agreement for the acquisition of the Shenyang Times Square Hotel, a 4 star 
hotel with 2451 rooms and 30 office rooms. Construction activities have commenced on @he building, which is 
located in Shenyang, China. 

‘_ _I 
Hutchison Whampoa (China) 

In addition to joint ventures in several of its core businesses: namely property development, container 
ports, telecommunications, retailing, manufacturing and infrastructure, the Company is also engaged in other 
activities in.mainland China through its wholly-owned subsidiary Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited. The 
activities of Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited include the manufacture and distribution of personal care 
products and the provision of aircraft maintenance and engineering services. 

The Company has an approximately 31% interest in Procter & Gamble-Hutchison Limited, the 
Company’s joint venture with Procter ,& Gamble. The joint venture was established in 1988 and is now a 
leading producer of personal care products in mainland China. Products manufactured by the joint venture 
under the Procter & Gamble labels include hair and skin’ care products (Head and Shoulders, Rejoice, 
Pantene, Vidal Sassoon, Oil of Ulan (Olay)), toothpaste (Crest), soap (Safeguard), detergent ,(Tide and 
Ariel) ‘and feminine products (Whisper). Manufacturing plants of Procter & Gamble-Hutchison Limited,are 
located in Beijing, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Chengdu and Shaoguan. Procter & Gamble-Hutchison Limited has 
established an extensive sales and distribution network throughout mainland China. The joint venture 
aggressively markets its products in mainland China through the use of mass marketing techniques such as 
saturation advertising and sample distributions. These techniques have increased the brand awareness and 
market share of Procter & Gamble products. 

The Company has a 25% interest in Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Company 
(“GAMECG”), a joint venture with, China Southern Airlines and Lockheed Aircraft Services International. 
GAMECG serves both Chinese, and international airlines from its maintenance .,f@Iity .at Guangzh~ou’s 
Baiyun International Airport, conducting both routine maintenance and overhauls. cj#$ECO has invested 
additional capital to increase the level of vertical. integration at the facility in order @.:expand production 
capacity and profitability. GAMECO also provides management supervision for routine maintenance at 
airports in Hainan, Shenzhen and Changsha. Plans have also been finalized to develw,a new maintenance 
base in Wuhan. 

Telecommunications 

Since its formation in 1985, the Company’s telecommunications division has grown swiftly to become a 
significant participant in mobile telecommunications in Hong Kong and the U:f?‘Wtk Company has 
developed expertise as both cellular network operator and service provider offering a d&&prehensive and 
integrated range of wireless telecommunications. Cellular network operators are typically also service 
providers. Cellular service providers buy airtime wholesale from network operators and resell a’range of mobile 
communications services to their subscribers. The Company is also the leading provider,of paging services and 
is currently building a fixed line network in Hong Kong. The Company is already providing fixed line’services, 
including international dialing services. The Company, through associates, is also engaged in satellite 
communication and radio broadcasting services. The, Company’s telecommunications operations are mainly 
located in Hong Kong, Europe and the Asia Pacific region. I;, 1 

The Company is striving to become the leading operator of ‘wireless communications in Hong Kong and 
to develop wireless telecommunications as a platform for integrated service offerings 6f mobile, paging and 
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fixed line communications. The Company’s strategy is to increase its subscriber ‘base through competitive 
pricing and quality services. In Hong Kong, the Company has secured multiple wireless licenses giving it the 
ability to offer services using GSM, CDMA and PCS technologies, thereby giving it the widest spectrum 
allocation of any operator in Hong Kong and allowing it the opportunity to provide its customers in Hong 
Kong with roaming capability in countries with any one of the three technologies. 

The Company utilizes innovative marketing strategies such as providing the “Everyday” discount card to 
its qualified subscribers. In addition to providing cardholders with special offers for the Company’s 
telecommunications services, the “Everyday” discount card offers purchase discounts for merchandise at over 
500 independent and affiliaied merchant outlets. 

The Company plans to utilize its existing expertise in the Hong Kong telecommunications market to 
expand its overseas telecommunications operations. The Company presently has telecommunications opera- 
tions in the U.K., France, Germany, China, Australia, India, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and Singapore. 
The Company will also consider investing in other overseas telecommunications operations as licenses become 
available for ownership by foreign invested or controlled entities in various countries in Asia and elsewhere. 
The strategy of the Company’s subsidiary, Chung Kiu Telecommunications (China) Holdings Limited 
(“Chung Kiu”), is to establish viable telecommunications businesses in mainland China with careful 
management of growth in order to strategically position Chung Kiu to benefit front any future liberalization of 
the telecommunications industry in mainland China. 

The Company believes it can’ also achieve benefits ‘through the successful integration of its telecommuni- 
cations operations with its other divisions in Hong Kong. The Company’s large portfolio of commercial and 
office properties minimizes the difficulty of securing base station sites that will facilitate network configuration. 
The Company’s Fortress stores’in Hong Kong provide an established distribution channel for the Company’s 
telecommunications division. 

Hong Kong 
,’ 

” Industry Overview. Cellular communications services were first launched in Hong Kong in 1985. Until 
1992;all cellular communications networks in Hong Kong were analog systems. 

,, 
Since the launch of cellular services, the’ development of the cellular industry in Hong Kong has been 

assisted by the considerable emphasis placed by’the Government in the early 1990s on developing an effective 
telecommunications policy framework. The establishment of the Office of the Telecommunications Authority 
of Hong Kong (“OF,“) by the Hong Kong Government in July 1993’marked a significant stage in the 
development of the telecommunications regulatory environment in Hong Kong. OFTA is charged with the 
responsibility ‘of regulating and licensing telecommunications services, managing, the allocation of radio 
frequency spectrum ‘and ensuring the fair and effective operation and successful development of the Hong 
Kong telecommunications industry. One of its primary objectives has been to ensure the availability of 
telecommunications services at ‘a reasonable cost. 

In 1992, the Hong Kong Government decided that all operators of analog cellular systems should begin a 
process of conversion from analog to digital in order to alleviate congestion and improve spectrum efficiency. A 
spectrum imbalance had arisen as a result of existing operators of analog networks also operating the new 
digital networks. The government took measures to correct the imbalance which resulted in four existing 
cellular networks each having an individual allocated spectrum of 2 X 7.5 MHz in July 1997, and the fifth 
existing cellular network having an allocated spectrum of 2 X 7.5 MHz by July 2000. In order to achieve this 
goal, the Company, Hongkong Telecom CSL and Pacific Link are required, over time, to return spectrum 
allocation, including seed spectrum which had been allocated to them to facilitate the migration of existing 
subscribers of analog networks to their new digital networks. 
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The following table sets out the existing cellular network operators in Hong Kong together with the 
amount of spectrum currently allocated to them: 

Network Operator 

Hutchison 

Technology Date Service 
Standard Commenced 

AMPS (1) 

GSM 
PCS 

CDMA 
TACS (I) 

May 1985 
October 1995 
September 1989 
May 1995 
March 1997 
March 1987 
July 1993 
September 1989 
October 1992 
July 1997 
March 1993 

Hongkong Telecom CSL 

Pacific Link 

SmarTone 

Source: OFTA 

ETACS ( 1) 
TDMA 
PCS 
GSM 

(I) Analog technology which has migrated to digital. 

(2) Spectrum allocation by July 2000. 

Spectrum 
Allocation (MHz) 
at December 1996 

2 X 8.0 

2 x 7.5 
2 x 5.0 

2 x 11.2 

2 X 8.0 
2x 5.0 
2 X 6.5 

Spectrum 
Allocation (MHz) 

by July 1997 

2 x 7.5 

2 x 7.5 
2 x.5.0 

2 X 7.5(2) 

2 x 7.5 
2 x 5.0 
2 x 7.5 

In April 1994, OFTA published a report on the pricing and connection of cellular,$apdsets. The report, 
which’was prompted by concerns about the high cost of handsets and of connecting hgdscis to the cellular 
operators’ networks, concluded that, although the cellular network operators were required :by their licenses to 
connect handsets to their networks irrespective of where the handsets were purchased,’ the prices for 
connection charged by cellular network operators could have the effect of restricting the competitive provision 
of handsets in Hong Kong. Following discussions with OFTA, the cellular network operators agreed to reduce 
their connection fees and minimize, so far as possible, the processing time for connection. This OFTA 
initiative, together with increased competition, led to significant reductions in handset prices which contrib- 
uted, to the demise of the Company’s second-generation cordless telephone (CT2) in Hong Kong. The 
reduction in handset prices has also contributed substantially to the increased demand for cellular telecommu- 
nication services in Hong Kong and the rise in the number of new subscribers since 1994. 

In July 1996, the Joint Liaison Group approved OFTA’s selection of six consortia to receive licenses to 
operate PCS networks. Of the existing network operators, only the Company and Pacific Link received a PCS 
license. The remaining four licenses were awarded to new entrants to the market. The introduction of PCS is 
expected to increase competition and stimulate demand for digital cellular services in Hong Kong. The PCS 
networks will be based on the DCS 1800 technology. The Company participated in $he bidding for the 
PCS licenses in early 1995 with the primary objective of obtaining’ additional specttim to increase the 
capacity of its network. Initially 2 X 5 MHz of spectrum will be allocated to each PCS license holder, with 
another 2 X 5 MHz being allocated based on demonstrated need. The licenses are for a period of 10 years 
commencing September 1996. 
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The table below illustrates the rapid growth in Hong Kong’s wireless telecommunications industry over 
the last eleven years. 

Wireless Telecommunications 198’6-1996 

Ahnual figures December 

1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 

Total number Year on year 
‘Analog Digital of subscribers % change CT2 Pagers (1) - ~ 

10,000 10,000 281,356 
28,060 28,060 181 376,843 
5 1,280 5 1,280 83 486,640 
89,193 89,193 74 594,216 

133,912 133,912 50 711,420 
189,664 189,664 42 880,666 
233,324 233,324 23 37,444 1,046,384 
253,500 37.343 290,843 25 124,963 1,244,392 
237,508 194.261 431,775 48 178,651 1,356,177 
146,735 540.865 687,600 59 109,324 1,323,741 

17,633 1,193,047 1,210,680 76 0 1,089,094 

Source: OFTA 

(I) Number of pagers lice&d, including those not in use. 

As illustrated by the table above, the number of cellular subscribers grew over six-fold during the period 
between 1991-1996, at an average compound annual growth rate of 45 percent. Since the beginning of 1997, 
the number of new subscribers has continued to grow an average of 4.5 percent month-on-month. As at 
December 31, 1996, the number of cellular subscribers reached a market penetration of approximately 
19 percent with 1,210,680 subscribers. 

General. The Company is a leading provider of telecommunications services in Hong Kong. The 
Company believes it is one of Hong Kong’s most successful cellular telephone operators in terms of service 
quality and technological sophistication. The Company is also the leading provider of paging services in Hong 
Kong ,and, commencing in 1995, began to provide certain fixed line services. The Company’s Hong Kong 
telecommunications businesses are operating in a highly competitive and rapidly changing market place. 
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The following table sets forth certain operating data concerning the Company’s Hong Kong telecommu- 
nications services for the periods indicated. 

Hong Kong Operating Data 

Year Ended and At December 31, 

,’ 1992 1993 1994 - - - ;ra 

Cellular: 
Subscribers (in thousands) 107.3 115.9 112.5 110.5 
Market Penetration ( 1) 4.0% 4.8% 7.1% 10.9% 
Company Market Share 46.0% 39.9% 26.1% 16.1% 
Average monthly usage per subscriber (2). 308 305 299 277(3) 
Average monthly revenue per subscriber (in HK$) (5) 1,081 1,125 1,120 967 
Churn rate (6) 12.1% 9.9% 15.7% 31.9%(7) 
Number of operational base stations 69(8) 84(8) 104 236 
Number of switching centers 1 1 2 2 
Paging: 
Subscribers (in thousands) 363.6 405.2 412.5 377.6 
Market Penetration (1) 17.8% 20.7% 22.2% , 21.0% 
Company Market Share 34.7% 32.6% 30.4% 28.5% 
Churn rate (6) (9) 19.1% 23.5% 30.6% / &iO% I 

Switch capacity 1,050 1,300 1,300 .’ !’ 1,500 
Transmitter base stations 73 ~80 ST 95 

i 1. 
(1) Determined by dividing total market subscribers by the total population of Hong Kong at period end. 1 

1996 

293.0 
18.9% 
24.2% 

226 (4) 
695 

27.9%(7) 
399 

2 

325.2 
17.0% 
29.8% 
62.3% 
1,050 

113 

(2) Average monthly usage per subscriber is calculated by (i) for each month in such period, ,dividing the total number of minutes of 
usage during such month by the average number of active subscribers for that month and (ii) dividing the snm of such results by the 
number of months in the relevant period. 

(3) In 1995, the Company’s average monthly cellular usage ier subscriber decreased and its cellular churn’~& &eased significantly 
because a substantial number of the Company’s higher-usage subscribers switched”from the Company’s’&~uIar phones utilizing 
analog technology to competitors’ cellular phones utilizing digital technology. The Company comm& -its digital cellular 
telecommunications services in Hong Kong in May 1995. 

(4) The Company’s average monthly cellular usage per subscriber decreased in 1996 because of lower usage from new subscribers as the 
Company signticantly increased its number of subscribers during the year. 

(5) Average monthly revenue per subscriber is calculated by (i) for each month in such period, dividing the turnover during such month, 
excluding revenue from equipment sales and connection charges. by the midpoint of the number of subscribers (excluding 
promotional users and subscribers on temporary free rate plans) at the beginning and end of that month and (ii) dividing the sum of 
such results by the number of months in the relevant period. 

(6) The Company defines the “churn rate” as the total number of subscribers who disconnect from the network in a given period 
expressed as a percentage of the midpoint of the number of subscribers at the beginning and end of such period. 

(7) In 1995 and 1996, the Company’s cellular chum rate increased as a significant number of the Company’s subscribers switched from 
the Company’s cellular phones using analog technology to cellular phones using digital cellular services. The Company’s digital 
cellular services commenced services in Hong Kong in May 1995. 

(8) Estimated. 

(9) The Company’s paging churn rate has been increasing as the result of its paging service users switching to cellular phones 

Cellular. The Company is a leader in the development of the wireless telecommunications market in 
Hong Kong, having commenced its operations in 1985 shortly after cellular communications services were first 
launched in Hong Kong. The Company is the only cellular operator in Hong Kong offering both GSM and 
CDMA network services. It launched its PCS network services in March 1997. The Company’s PCS network 
has met all current requirements under its license. 

Following the launch of its digital networks described below: the Company expanded its subscriber base 
rapidly in 1996. During 1996, the Company tripled its subscriber base, increasing its subscribers from 
approximately 110,500 at December 3 1, 1995 to approximately 300.000 at December 3 1, 1996. As of May 3 1, 
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1997, the Company had approximately 432,800 subscribers, representing ‘a market share ‘of approximately 
29%. The Company believes this substantial growth in subscribers is attributable to a number of factors, 
including (i) increased network capacities, (ii) quality networks, (iii) affordable tariff plans, (iv) emphasis on 
customer service, (v) dramatically declining handset costs in Hong Kong, (vi) the Company’s strong 
distribution network through over 40 Hutchison Telecom retail outlets and (vii) increased awareness among 
consumers of the benefits of wireless telecommunications. 

The Company supplies handsets to dealers for resale, as well as directly to new subscribers through the 
Company’s Hutchison Telecom retail outlets, Fortress retail appliance stores and its direct sales force. The 
Company is actively considering expanding the distribution of its handsets through the use of its other retail 
chains in Hong Kong. 

The Company’s cellular networks interconnect with the PSTN (Public Switched ‘Telephone Network) 
operated by Hongkong Telecom and, through the PSTN, with Hongkong Telecom’s international gateways, 
enabling the Company’s subscribers to make, or receive calls to or from telephones outside the Company’s 
cellular system. Hongkong Telecom is required to permit other service providers to interconnect to its network. 

As discussed above, ‘the ‘Hong Kong Government mandated that all .existing analog cellular networks in 
Hong Kong be phased ‘out by the middle of 1997. The Company closed down’ its TACS (Total Access 
Communication System) analog network in June 1996 and its remaining analog network, Advanced Mobile 
Phone Service (AMPS), will be closed down in mid-1997. With the launch of the GSM and CDMA 
networks, subscribers on the TACS and AMPS systems were gradually migrated to the Company’s digitai 
systems. 

The Company commenced its digital cellular telecommunications services in Hong ‘Kong in May 1995 
using GSM technology and in October 1995 using CDMA technology. ‘As of December 31, 1996, the 
Company’s digital networks, including its new PCS network: have a’tdtal spectrum capacity of over 1,200,OOO 
subscribers using current technology. The Company’s digital networks currently include 2 switching centers 
with 9 mobile switches, 37 base station controllers and approximately 762 base station transceiver subsystems. 

The Company was the first operator in the world to launch a CDMA network on a commercial basis. 
CDMA-based cellular technology is a new variety of digital transmission which is not yet in commercial 
operation in any country other than Hong Kong, the United States, Canada and,Korea. Most of the digital 
cellular systems currently in use are based upon either the European GSM standard or the,Time Division 
Multiple Access IS-54 (“TDMA”) technology. Most Asian markets have adopted the GSM standard, 
whereas some cellular ‘carriers in the United States are pursuing commercial implementation of TDMA or 
DCS 1800 (GSM)’ technology. Nevertheless, several major PCS operators in the United States have 
committed to large scale CDMA systems and certain other major cellular carriers in the United States, 
Europe, Japan ‘and mainland China testing CDMA have expressed support’ for this technology and are 
obtaining CDMA equipment from major telecommunications manufacturers. CDMA technology has a 
capacity that is two to three times greater than TDMA or GSM in the same amount of bandwidth. 

The Company purchases its principal digital cellular equipment from Motorola: In addition, the handsets 
required to be purchased by the subscribers to the Company’s CDMA digital cellular network are currently 
produced by Samsung, Motorola and Qualcomm, Inc. Because these companies commenced manufacturing 
CDMA-based handsets only recently, such handsets are, initially available’ in limited quantities. Additional 
manufacturers, including Maxon Electronics Co., Ltd., Nokia Corporation and Oki Corporation are expected 
to commence supply of CDMA-based handsets in 1997. There are a large number of manufacturers of GSM 
standard handsets, including #Ericsson, Motorola and Nokia. 

The cellular telecommunications business in Hong Kong is becoming increasingly competitive. The 
Company’s current competitors are Hongkong Telecom CSL, Pacific Link and SmarTone. The Company will 
also compete with the four new operators in addition to Pacific Link which have been granted PCS licenses. In 
accordance with the PCS licence requirement, the Company launched its P’CS service in March 1997. The 
Company expects the launch of PCS services to increase competition in Hong Kong’s cellular communica- 
tions market.’ The Company believes that it is well positioned to meet any competitive pressures given its long 
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standing experience in the Hong Kong mobile communications market, the extensive potential capacity of its 
network with spectrum allocations in the GSM, CDMA and PCS frequencies, and its commitment to 
providing high quality coverage and excellent customer service. In addition, the Company’s approximate 30% 
market share in the local paging market, its involvement in the local tied-line market and the right to carry 
international dialing services traffic will allow the Company to provide more comprehensive telecom services 
than most of its competitors. 

Paging. The Company is the leading provider of paging services in Hong Kong, which has one of the 
highest levels of pager penetration in the world, at appropimately 17% of its population. The Company believes 
that it is the industry leader in Hong Kong in both technological progress and customer services. The 
Company offers digital, alphanumeric and Chinese character display paging and value-added paging services, 
including voice mail, stock price information, group paging and roaming in Macau and certain cities in 
mainland China. At December 31, 1996, the Company had approximately 325,000 paging subscribers in Hong 
Kong. The Company’s paging business in Hong Kong has been affected by a shrinking Hong Kong paging 
market occasioned by the availability of more affordable cellular telephones. In addition, the Company’s 
second-generation cordless telephone (CT2) business, in which it had been the dominant market leader’ in 
Hong Kong, was also adversely affected by rapid changes in technology and a shrinking market as customers 
migrated to cellular telephone services. The Company’s CT2 business (as well as the CT2 businesses of all 
other such service providers in Hong Kong) was, therefore, discontinued during 1996. However, the 
Company’s 80%-owned paging business in Macau, which had approximately 20,000 paging subscribers as of 
December 31, 1996, continues to show steady growth. 

The Company estimates that its share in the Hong Kong paging market was approximately 30% at 
December 3 1, 1994,29% at December 31, 1995 and approximately 30% at December 3 1,1996. The Company 
believes that approximately 5% of its paging customers are business users, a majority of its customers are in 
their twenties and that there is a growing market among younger men and women foq paging services. The 
Company also believes that the technological changes in telecommunications may pro@e opportunities for 
bundling paging services with cellular and fixed line services, thereby enhancing 9~: g@ket for paging 
services. In order to better position itself in this evolving market, the Company consolidated its telecommuni- 
cations marketing functions in 1996 to leverage off its experience and knowledge in the Hong Kong market 
and to facilitate marketing of paging services bundled with cellular services in order to stabilize the Company’s 
paging customer base. The Company estimates that approximately 15% of its cellular subscribers also 
subscribe to its paging service. 

The Company has a network of over 40 outlets throughout Hong Kong in which customers can obtain 
pagers and complete activation procedures. The Company is the exclusive dealer of Paqasonic pagers in Hong 
Kong and has developed its own low cost house brand pager. 

The paging business in Hong Kong is highly competitive. At December 31, 1996, there were 35 public 
radiocommunication service licenses issued for the provision of paging services in Hong Kong. Rapid 
technological change in telecommunications has also increased competition as other foms of services are able 
to compete on the basis of cost with paging. Paging companies in Hong Kong have become highly focused on 
gaining market share from competitors by providing free pagers and offering extreme$‘,Iow ,upfront sign-up 
fees and monthly charges. The Company believes, however, that it is also able to comp$F,& the basis of the 
quality of its value-added services and the reliability of its system resulting from its e$~~~nce in the paging 
business as well as its strong name recognition is an established network operator. /II .,, 

Fixed Line. The Company was awarded a license in June 1995 to provide fixed line setices along with 
two new domestic FTNS (fixed wireline telecommunications network service) operator% following the 
expiration of Hongkong Telecom’s fixed-line telecommunications domestic franchise in July 1995. The license 
was awarded by OFTA with the endorsement of the Joint Liaison Group. 

Hongkong Telecom has the exclusive license to provide all outgoing and incomingrhkmational public 
switched voice traffic between the rest of the world and Hong Kong until September 2006. As the dominant 
fixed wire-line telecommunications operator in Hong Kong, Hongkong Telecom is obligated to permit the 
connection of all cellular network operators and the three new fixed-line operators to its fixed network. OFTA 
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regulates the level of interconnection charges and although it encourages individual operators to negotiate 
their own interconnection arrangements, it will act as arbitrator in the event that the operators cannot reach 
agreement. All outgoing international dialing service traffic originating from a network operator is routed to 
the Hongkong Telecom gateways for connection to the overseas destinations. Hongkong Telecom pays the 
relevant network operator a delivery fee for delivering the outgoing international dialing service traffic to 
Hongkong Telecom’s network. 

Following the award of its license, the Company successfully launched an international dialing service in 
Hong Kong in September 1995. As of May 31, 1997, the Company had signed up more than 410,900 
subscribers for the service. The majority of the users are corporate and other business customers in Hong 
Kong. Following the launch of these services, a Personal Number service as well as a Calling Card and a 
Phone Card service have been introduced.. The Company introduced ‘on-net services in early 1997. The 
construction and development. of the Company’s fixed line network infrastructure is continuing on schedule. 
As a condition to being granted a fixed line license, the Company is obligated to meet certain minimum 
network installation ‘benchmarks by the end of 1996 and the end of 1999. The Company has fulfilled the 
minimum obligations required to be performed by the end of 1996, such as the installation of a customer 
access network to 80 buildings over 20 stories, and expects to fulfill the minimum, obligations required to be 
performed by the end of 1999> such as the installation of a customer access network of 200 buildings over 
20 stories. The Company estimates that its capital expenditures in respect of its fixed line network will be 
approximately HK$4,800 million for 1997 to 1999. 

Hong Kong Regulation. Hong Kong’s telecommunications industry is subject to comprehensive 
regulation by OFTA. 

Telecommunication services in Hong Kong are governed under two ordinances: The Telephone 
Ordinance (Chapter 269 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Telecommunication Ordinance (Chapter 106 of 
the Laws of Hong Kong). Until July 1, 1995, Hong Kong Telephone Company Limited (“HKTC”) exercised 
an exclusive concession over PSTN telephone services in Hong Kong. This concession was governed by the 
Telephone Ordinance which continues to regulate the prices which HKTC charges for various services. The 
Telecommunication Ordinance regulates all other telephone services, including fixed wire-line services 
(whether provided by HKTC or another operator) and public mobile telephone services. In August 1996, 
OFTA released a consultation draft of a bill to amend the Telecommunication Ordinance. The draft 
amendment bill proposes, among other things, to incorporate some provisions of the fixed telecommunications 
network service license into the Telecommunication Ordinance and to provide OFTA with formal legal powers 
in areas such as radio spectrum management and technical standards. It is expected that the amendment bill 
will be introduced in or after the second half of 1997. 

OFTA was established in July 1993 under the Telecommunication Ordinance as the regulatory authority 
of the telecommunications industry including the fixed wire-line and the wireless telecommunications sectors. 
OFTA, which reports to the Economic Services Branch of the Hong Kong Government, is responsible for the 
administration of both the Telephone Ordinance and the Telecommunication Ordinance and is, together with 
the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, empowered to grant licenses for all 
forms of telecommunications, including public radio communication service licenses and fixed telecommuni- 
cation network service licenses. OFTA also has the power to make rules and determinations in relation to the 
provision of telecommunication services, interconnections and facilities sharing arrangements between 
operators, and the fees paid among operators in respect thereof. 

In June 1995, as part of the liberalization of the telecommunications industry in Hong Kong, licenses to 
operate fixed wire-line telecommunications network services in competition with Hongkong Telecom were 
granted to the Company, New T & T Hong Kong Limited and New World Telephone Company Limited. In 
September 1996, public radio communication service licenses to operate PCS services were granted to the 
Company, Peoples Telephone Company, Mandarin Communications,’ P Plus Communications: New World 
PCS and Pacific Link. 

There can be no assurance that the existing regulatory and licensing framework will remain unchanged 
after China’s recent resumption of sovereignty over Hong Kong. Telecommunications is an area not 
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specifically provided for in the Joint Declaration or the Basic Law. It is possible that future changes in Hong 
Kong’s telecommunications regulatory environment will have an adverse effect on the Company’s telecommu- 
nications business in Hong Kong. 

1 
Europe: Orange plc 

The Company has a 49.02% interest in Orange, the operator of the Orange digital ‘Personal Communica- 
tions Network (“PCN”) telecommunications ‘network in the U.K. Shares of Ora&&-vir’ere listed on the 
NASDAQ Stock Market and on the London Stock Exchange in connection’ with W&r&s initial public 
offering in April 1996. ‘: :<’ 

‘,.. ;,cj 
Orange’s principal business is the operation of the Orange digital PCN telecomr@rtiications network in 

the U.K. and the sale and marketing of Orange services. Under the brand name “Qr&q#, Orange offers a 
broad range of mobile voice and data communications services. Orange is one of foup,operators of cellular 
telephone networks in the U.K., which in total operate six cellular networks - two.amrIog networks, two 
digital GSM networks and two digital PCN networks. !’ 

The number of cellular telephone subscribers in the U.K. has grown significantf$;&‘~recent years, from 
approximately 1.2 million subscribers at December 3 1, 1991 to approximately 6.8, &h&r subscribers at 
December 31, 1996. Since commencing commercial service on April 28, ,1994, Orangi:& grown rapidly. At 
June 30, 1997, Orange had approximately 981,000 subscribers? representing approximately 1312% of all 
cellular telephone subscribers in the U.K. and:approximately 20.9% of all digital cellulan~$&phone subscribers 
in the U.K. according to published industry data. At December 31, 1996, Orange was Wailable in an area 
covering more than 92% of Great Britain’s population. Management of Orange expects that coverage will be 
expanded to approximately 96% of Great Britain’s population by the end of Decembk;;. 1,997. - 

In addition to operating the Orange network, Orange provides a range of other biab$e,telecommunica- 
tions services in the U.K. ,Orange has been a service provider for the Cellnet and Vod&ne-cellular telephone 
networks in the U.K. since 1989 through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hutchison C&&u Services Limited 
(“Cellular Services Provider”). Orange also operates a nationwide paging network The U.K. through 
another of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Hutchison Paging (U.K;) Limited (“Paging”31 Orange operates in 
continental Europe through its subsidiaries, Hutchison Telecommunications (France) ‘B.A., a cellular service 
provider in France, and Hutchison Telecommunications GmbH, a cellular service proWI& in Germany. 

,,, ., 
The following table sets forth certain operating data of Orange ,and its subsidiaries for the periods 

indicated. 

, 
Orange Operating Data 

‘I,! 
ij;!,i 

Year E&irad~at December 31, 
1993 19!M(&)?l i 1995 1996 -- 

Orange Subscribers (in thousands) - ti9’ ” 379 785 
Average monthly usage per subscriber (mins) (2)’ - l$.,’ ,’ 1i8 i 

171 
Average monthly revenue per subscriber (&) (3) - : 1t3 37, 
Churri rate(4) - lS.+#’ 18.:; 18.6% 
Number of operational base stations 

-1 - 1,218 1,853 2,677 
Number of mobile switching centers - I.! 3. 5 9 
Number of Cellular Services Provider subscribers ‘(in thousands) i 161 168: 163 123 
Number of Paging subscribers (in thousands) 28 -!!lir;. 53 57 

(1) Orange data for 1994 is provided at December 31, 1994 and for the period’from September 1 to Decg&k 31, 1994. 

(2) Average monthly usage per subscriber is calculated by (i) for each month in such period, dividing the. @@I ‘number of minutes of 
usage during such month by the midpoint of the number of Orange subscribers (excluding promotional users and subscribers on 
temporary free rate plans) at the beginning and end of that month and (ii) dividing the sum of such~reaults~by the number of months 
in the relevant period. 
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(3) Average monthly Orange revenue per subscriber is calculated by (i) for each month in such ne,riod,, dividing the Orange ‘turnover 
during such month, excluding’revenue from equipment sales and connection charges, by the midpoint of the number of Orange 
subscribers (ekcluding promotional ‘users and subscribers on temporary free rate plans) at, the beginning and end of that month and 
(ii) dividing the sum of such’resultsby the number’of months in the relevant period. ’ ’ 

(4) Orange de&es the “churn rate”’ as the total number of subscribers who disconnect from the Orange network in a given period 
expressed as a percentage of the midpoint of the number of Omnge subscribers at the beginning and end of such period. Such churn 
rate includes Orange subscribers ,who disconnect during the first 14 days after connection pursuant to the 14-day money-back 
guarantee offered by Orange. 

Mainland China 
,‘/ ,.’ 

The Company’s subsidiary Chung Kiu, “through a joint venture company, provides consultancy and 
technical services and equipment to cellular telephone, paging and trunked radio network operators in 
mainland China. In addition, the joint venture is engaged in research and development projects and the 
manufacture of telecommunications equipment in mainland China, including pagers and trunked radio 
systems and handsets. The strategy of Chung Kiu is to establish viable telecommunications operations in 
mainland China with careful management of growth in order to strategically position itself to benefit from any 
future liberalization of the telecommunications industry in mainland China. 

.:, 
~ ,’ 

The development of Chung Kiu’s cellular-related businesses in mainland China are in the preliminary 
stages. Agreements for Chung Kiu to provide services and equipment in res,pect of cellular systems to joint 
ventures between the People’s Liberation Army and the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications of China 
have been signed covering 35 cities in six provinces in mainland China. 

/ ~ 
Chung Kiu has paging! activities in five cities in China pursuant to ‘agreements to receive performance- 

linked maintenance and consulting fees for the services provided. In addition, Chung Kiu has entered into 
agreements which .give it the right to participate in providing paging services on, similar terms in 77 other cities 
in eight provinces and three municipalities. The paging stations in allsuch cities ~$11 use the same frequency 
used by the Company’s paging operations in Hong Kong, which enables mainland China-Hong Kong roaming 
services to be available to the Company’s Hong Kong subscribers. The Company and Chung Kiu introduced 
this roaming service in November 1996. 

Chung Kiu also has agreements w-hich give it the right to provide equipment and services to trunked radio 
operators in 56 cities located in eight provinces and one municipality in China. Chung Kiu is to receive 
performance-linked maintenance consulting fees for services provided. 

.Chung Kiu has manufacturing facilities in Shenzhen to produce two-line Chinese,character display and 
one-line numeric. display pagers. The facilities have a normal production capacity of approximately 
10,000 pagers per month. Production capacity can be significantly’increased to meet higher demand. During 
1995 andsl996, Chung Kiu manufactured 78,235 and 94,910 pagers, respectively. Chung Kiu’also has facilities 
in Harbin to manufacture its own full-duplex trunked radio equipment. 

‘8 
Asia ,PaciJic m,, 

Established in 1989, Hutchison Telecommunications (Australia) (“I&k”), in which the Company has 
a’ 56% interest, ‘is one of Australia’s top three paging operators and a leading -nationwide supplier of 
telecommunications services. HTA operates sophisticated paging secret,ariab services and automated paging. 
In addition, in 1995, HTA commenced business as a cellular service provider on the Optus GSM network. 
Other interrelated services include messaging direct to pagers and mobile phones, internet services, and real- 
time information services. As of December 31, 1996, HTA had approximately 95,000 paging subscribers and 
approximately 65,000 GSM cellular subscribers. 

The Company also has a 29.4% interest in Hdtchison Max Telecom Limited (“Hutchmax”), an Indian 
company which provides cellular telephone services in Mumbai (formerly Bombay), ‘which is India’s leading 
financial, and business center and its largest city. Only one other company is licensed to provide cellular 
telephone services in Mumbai. Using GSM technology, Hutchmax commenced cellular service in Novem- 
ber 1995 and, as of December 31, 1996, Hutchmax had a leading market share with approximately 49,000 
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subscribers. The net number of new subscribers ‘of its cellular services averaged approximately 5,300 per 
month during the three months ended December 3 1, 1996. As of December 3 1, 1996, Hutchmax also provided 
paging services to approximately 71,500 customers in seven Indian cities. Hutchmax is constructing additional 
paging networks for the state of Punjab. The Company believes that Hutchmax is India’s second leading 
paging operator in terms of number of subscribers and the market share leader in all but one of the areas 
where it offers paging services. I 

The Company is involved in paging joint ventures in Thailand and Malaysia. The Thailand paging joint 
venture, in which the Company has a 45% interest, had, as of December 31, 1996, approximately 109,500 
paging subscribers, and the Malaysian paging joint venture, in which the Company has a 28.5% interest, had, 
as of December 31, 1996, approximately 27,000 paging subscribers. 

The Company is operating a paging joint venture in Indonesia, in which it has a 42.5% interest. Services 
in Jakarta, Bandung and Surabaya commenced in May 1996. The Company has been awarded a paging 
license in Singapore. The Company’s Singapore network commenced service on April 1, 1997. The Company 
also acquired Corporate Access in late 1995, which further enhances its existing telecommunications presence 
throughout the region. Corporate Access is engaged in the business of providing services and equipment 
relating to communications utilizing very small aperture terminals (VSATs). These services are principally 
provided for corporate customers. 

Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings ,Limited (‘AsiaSat’) 

The Company has an effective 22.98% interest in AsiaSat, a leading provider of high quality satellite 
transponder capacity in Asia. In January 1997, the Company’s effective interest in AsiaSat was reduced from 
33.33% to 22.98% upon the sale by the Company of a portion of its effective interest in AsiaSat to another 
significant shareholder in AsiaSat for approximately US$102 million. Shares of AsiaSat were listed on the 
New York and Hong Kong Stock Exchanges in connection with AsiaSat’s initial public offering in June 1996. 

AsiaSat currently operates two satellites, AsiaSat 1 and AsiaSat 2. AsiaSat 1, Asia’s first privately owned 
commercial satellite covering the Asian region, was launched on April 7, 1990, and commenced commercial 
service in June 1990. In order to take advantage of unsatisfied demand for high quality, high power 
transponder capacity in Asia, AsiaSat 2, which provides increased footprint coverage over AsiaSat 1 with a 
substantial gain in signal power, was launched on November 28, 1995, and commenced cammercial service in 
January 1996. Together, AsiaSat 1 and AsiaSat 2 provide coverage to more than !XI countries, with 
approximately 3.3 billion people, from Siberia to Australia and from Japan to the Middle East. AsiaSat 
intends to launch a third satellite, AsiaSat 3, with similar footprint coverage to AsiaSat,$. in late 1997, and a 
new satellite, AsiaSat 4, in 1999, at approximately the end of, AsiaSat l’s operational life, to take advantage of 
expected growth in satellite communications and satisfy rising demand in Asia for high,,quality, high power 
transponder capacity. ~ 

AsiaSat l’s transponder capacity (24 C-band transponders) has been virtually fully committed since the 
end of 1991 and, as of December 31, 1996, approximately 87% of available capacity was utilized. As of 
December 31, 1996, approximately 83% of AsiaSat 2’s transponder capacity (24 CT&.n,d and 9 Ku-band 
transponders) was committed under transponder utilization agreements and transponder p@hase agreements. 

AsiaSat provides satellite transponder capacity primarily to the broadcasting ati& t&Wmmunications 
markets, including the private communications network market. AsiaSat has entered int&r .s@Liiate transponder 
utilization agreements with over 50 customers from various countries, including mainlandE&a, Hong Kong, 
Malaysia, Myanmar, Pakistan, Mongolia, South Korea, Vietnam, Singapore, Australia,:GeIcttlany, Portugal, 
the U.K. and the United States. In 1994, 1995 and 1996, approximately 24%, 23% andW%;Irespectively, of 
AsiaSat’s revenues were derived from customers in mainland China. I ;, 

The Company believes that AsiaSat 1 is the leading satellite for regional telervision programming 
distribution in Asia. AsiaSat’s largest customer, STAR Television, is a Hong KongrbBsed international 
satellite television broadcasting company that broadcasts over the greater Asian region. Ad&at’s customers 
for television broadcasting also include the Ministry of Radio, Film and Television OP China, Pakistan TV, 
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Myanmar TV, Deutsche Welle of Germany broadcasting TV5 and MCM from France and RTVE from 
Spain, Marconi of Portugal broadcasting RTPI and Nine Television Network of Australia broadcasting Sky 
Channel. 

AsiaSat’s telecommunications customers include Hongkong Telecom International Limited, The Minis- 
try of ‘Post and Telecommunications of China, Singapore Telecom; Pakistan Telecom, Myanmar Post and 
Telecommunications, TimeSat of ‘Malaysia and Vietnam Telecom International. The Company’s customers in 
the private communications network market include, in China, the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic 
Cooperation, the People’s Bank of China, the Ministry of Water Resources and Xinhua News Agency and, 
elsewhere in Asia, Reuters Asia, Hutchison Telecommunications and the Telecom Foundation of Pakistan. 

Metro Broadcast 

,The Company has a 50% interest in Metro Broadcast, a bi-lingual commercial radio station in Hong 
Kong. Metro Broadcast was launched in, 1991 and its three channels now reach over 28% of Hong Kong’s 
commercial radio audience. 

8’ . 
,’ 

En&, Infrastructure, Finance and Other Investments ,’ 
The Company has a 84.58% interest in Cheung’Kong Infrastructure and a 49% interest in Husky Oil of 

Canada. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has a 35.74% interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings. The Company 
believes that Cheung Kong Infrastructure is well-positioned to achieve its goals of becoming one of the largest 
independent power producers in mainland China and one of the largest private investors in roads and bridges 
in mainland China. Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s cement and concrete businesses and its 35.74% interest in 
Hongkong Electric Holdings contribute ‘significantly to its recurrent income. The Company believes that 
Hongkong Electric Holdings is well-positioned to expand Hongkong Electric’s electricity generating and 
distribution business in Hong Kong to keep pace with Hong Kong’s rapid growth and development. Hongkong 
Electric Holdings, through its wholly owned subsidiary Hongkong Electric International Limited, plans to 
pursue opportunities elsewhere in Asia, including making equity investments in power plants and, where 
considered appropriate, participating with Cheung Kong Infrastructure in projects in mainland China. Husky 
aims to maximize its cash flow and profits by growing reserves and production while improving efficiency. The 
Company is considering investments in energy projects in mainland China and elsewhere with the potential for 
sustained growth. 

The Company receives income from its long term investments in managed funds and other investments. 
Managed funds are portfolios of listed or senior credit rated fixed income securities, primarily denominated in 
U.S. dollars, managed by independent professional fund managers in various financial centers around the 
world. The Company also invests in shares and convertible securities of listed companies. 

Cheung Kong Znfrast~ucture Holdings Limited 

In March 1997, the Company acquired a 84.58% interest in Cheung Kong Infrastructure. See 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operation and Financial Condition - Group Reorgani- 
zation”. Cheung Kong Infrastructure was organized in May 1996 for the purpose of acquiring certain 
infrastructure and infrastructure-related businesses of the Company, Cheung Kong and certain other 
companies. Shares of Cheung Kong Infrastructure were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 
connection with Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s initial public offering in July 1996. Based on the closing price 
of its shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on July 24, 1997, Cheung Kong Infrastructure had a market 
capitalization of approximately HK$58,497 million (US$7,567 million). 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure is engaged in the development, ownership, operation and management of 
infrastructure businesses’in mainland China, including power plants, roads, toll bridges and a water plant, and 
infrastructure materials businesses in Hong Kong and elsewhere in China, including the manufacture and sale 
of cement, the production and delivery of concrete, the production and laying of asphalt and the quarrying and 
selling of aggregates. Cheung Kong Infrastructure generally participates in such businesses through joint 
ventures. In March 1997, Cheung Kong Infrastructure acquired a 35.01% interest in Hongkong Electric 
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Holdings pursuant to #the Cheung Kong Group Reorganization in March 1997. Cheung Kong Infrastructure 
acquired a further 14,822,500 shares of Hongkong Electric Holdings in the open market, thereby increasing its 
interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings to 35.74%. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of’ 
Operation and Financial Condition - Group Reorganization”. 

.Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s strategy for its infrastructure businesses is to invest in a number of 
infrastructure projects clustered in fast-growing regions of mainland China with unddrdeveloped infrastruc- 
ture. Cheung Kong Infrastructure prefers to participate in such projects through jo& ventures with entities 
under the supervision of local Chinese government authorities. Cheung Kong Infrastrtrature believes that its 
clustering and partnership approach allows it to become a partner in the development iaf:,a city or region and 
not just an investor in individual projects, thereby allowing it to become an integral contributor to the city’s or 
region’s overall infrastructure and economic development. Cheung Kong Infrastructure pr&rs to invest in 
existing projects or in projects that are already under construction in order to benefit from immediate or 
imminent cash flow,,and to reduce project development risks. Cheung Kong Infrastruc ’ vi. 

e s objective is to 
obtain a relatively secure investment return from its infrastructure businesses by ensu 

:,.:'j ,J 
ii yfy, stable minimum 

financial return, with the potential for participation in excess profits. To this end, Cheung ong Infrastructure 
generally seeks to obtain multi-level guarantees with respect to the recoupment of its cal$,all$vestments and 
the payment of its investment returns in foreign currency, principally in U.S. dollars. &my oficheung Kong 
Infrastructure’s road and power businesses have a contractual minimum return or predot&+ net return in 
foreign currency, some of which are coupled with performance and payment guaranteeyrtbge$her with a fixed 
price construction project and a guaranteed completion time for construction. With~:t@:eiception of the 
Shantou Bay Bridge and the Shen-Shan Highway (Eastern Section), in which Cheumg$ungInfrastructure 
shares profitin proportion to the capital contribution ratio, Cheung Kong Infrastruct&Xs.~titled to’ receive 
assured returns in foreign currency from its infrastructure projects in mainland China. 1 I _ 
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The following table summarizes certain information with respect to Cheung ,Kong Infrastructure. 

Financial Information (millions- of HK$) : 
Turnover: ; 

: Infrastructure materials I 
China infrastructure 

Total turnover.’ 

Profit/ (Loss) before taxation: 
Infrastructure materials 
China infrastructure ,; 
Head office 

Total profit before taxation 

Profit attributable to shareholdem: 
/ ; ~ 

Dividends 
Fixed assets 
Joint ventures 
Shareholders funds 
Operating Information: 
Production: 

Cement (millions of tonnes) 
Concrete (millions of cubic meters) 
Asphalt (millions of tonnes) 
Aggregates (millions of tonnes) 

Toll roads (km) : 
Operational . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Under development , . . ,. . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . 

Toll bridges (km) : 
Operational . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Under development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . 

Installed power capacity (MW) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gross generation (MWh) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
On-grid output (MWh) . . . . . . . . . . . . .I. . . . . . . . . . . 

. . 

. . 

. . 

. 

. . 

. . 

. . 

. . 

Year Ended and as of December 31, 
1993 1994 1995 1996 

1,439 
- - 

1,439 
;, 

143 
(7) 

1,854 2,155 2,666 
64 184 375 

1,918 

262 
: 50 

- 

136 312 597 971 

133 
- 

1,643 
508 
545 

1.7 
2.0 
0.7 
1.4 

- 
- 

7 
- 
- 
- 
7 

300 569 
- - 

2,156 1,664 
1,273 1,784 
1,278 1,847 

1.9 
2.2 
0.5 
1.8 

1.9 2.0 
2.3 2.2 
0.3 0.8 
1.5 1.5 

- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
140 

2.5 6.1(l) 
- 4.1(2) 
400 400(3) 
550 708 (3) (4) 

1,093 1,295(3) (5) 

(1) Including the approach roads, the total operational length will be 59.0 km. (1995: 11.33 km) 

(2) Including the approach roads, the total length under development will be 51.0 km. (1995: NM) 

(3) Excluding Hongkong Electric Holdings. See YManagement’s Discussion and. Analysis ‘of Results of Operations and Financial 
Condition - Group Reorganization.” 

(4) Excluding Nanhai Jiangnan Power Plant as information relating to gross generation is not available. 

(5) Including Nanhai Jiangnan Power Plant on-grid output 535 MWh (1995: 569 MWh). 

2,339 3 041 I_ 

449 673 
171 259 
(23) 39 

886 
361 

1,627 
4,901 
8,350 

201.1 
70.9 

Cement and Concrete Businesses 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure, through Green Island Cement (Holdings) Limited (“Green Island”) and 
Anderson Asia (Holdings) Limited (“Anderson Asia”), is an integrated construction materials manufacturer 
involved in the production, distribution and sale of cement, concrete, asphalt and aggregates. 

Green Island. Cheung Kong Infrastructure, through Green Island, is the only integrated cement 
manufacturer in Hong Kong, supplying approximately 44% of Hong Kong’s annual cement requirements in 
1996. As of December 31, 1996: it had a kiln capacity of approximately 1.5 million tonnes of clinker (a semi- 
finished product in the cement manufacturing process) and a cement grinding capacity of approximately 2.5 
million tonnes per year. In addition to its own production of clinker, Cheung Kong Infrastructure imports 
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clinker for subsequent processing, sale and distribution in Hong Kong and elsewhere in the PRC. Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure also imports cement for sale and distribution in Hong Kong and elsewhere in the PRC. 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure operates as an integrated cement business starting with resource exploration 
and going through development, international shipping and cement manufacturing to ultimate down-stream 
distribution. In addition, Cheung Kong Infrastructure is involved in the disposal of solid waste (principally 
pulverized fuel ash) which is produced as a waste product of power generation by coal-fired power stations. 

Anderson Asia. Cheung Kong Infrastructure, through Anderson Asia, is one of Hong Kong’s market 
leaders in the production and delivery of concrete, the production and laying of asphalt and the quarrying and 
selling of aggregates. As of December 3 1, 1996, Cheung Kong Infrastructure had a concrete production 
capacity of approximately 4.7 million cubic meters per year, an asphalt production capacity of approximately 
0.8 million tonnes per year and an aggregate quarrying capacity of approximately 2 million tonnes, per year. 

Roads and Bridges I ; : 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure currently has interests in 27 toll roads and 13 toll bridge& in,painland China. 
The following table summarizes certain information with respect to Cheung Kong Infrastructure. 

Business Business Scale 

Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure’s 

Interest (1) 
(%I 

Guangdong Eastern 
Coastal Corridor 
Shantou Bay Bridge 
Shenzhen-Shantou 

Highway (Eastern 
Section) 

Nanhai Road Network 
Operational 

Under development 
Jiangmen Roads & 

Bridges 
Jiangmen Jiangsha 

Highway 
Jiangmen Jianghe 

Highway 
Jiangmen Chaolian 

Bridges 

2.5 km toll bridge(2) 
140.0 km toll road 

30 December E995( 3) 2028 
33.5 November 1996 2028 

2 toll roads (40.17 km) and 
5 toll bridges (3.55 
km) (4) 

49 

4 toll bridges (2.9 km) (6) 64.4 

20.92 km toll road 50 

20.29 km toll road 50 

2.05 km toll bridge 50 

Actual or 
Target 

Commencement 
Date of 

Operation 

August 1996(5) 

January 1999(7) 

December 19!%(5) 

March 1999 2028 

May 1999 ‘. 2028 

Joint Venture 
Expiration Date 

2020-2022 

2023-2024 

2026 
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Busindss 

Guangzhou East-South 
Ring Road 

Shenyang Roads 

Shenyang Roads 

Zengcheng Lixin 
Highway 

Tangshan-Jing Tang 
Port Expressway 

Zhumadian National 
Highway 107 

Total Roads and Bridges 

Business Scale 

19.4 km toll road 

3 toll road.s(l3.81 ‘km) and 
2 toll bridges (1.18 km) 

4 toll roads (17.414 km) 
4 elevated toll roads 

(6.42km) 
29.6 km toll road 

7 toll roads (179.887km) 

2 toll roads (113.685km) 

27 toll roads (601.596 km) 
and 13 toll bridges (12.18 
km) , 

Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure’s 

Interest (1) 
(%I 

37.5 

54.2 

52 December 1997 
52 December 1997 

Actual or 
Target 

Commencement 
pate of 

Operation 

June 1999 

July 1998 

51 May 1997 

51 - (8) - (81 

66 - (9) 

Joint Venture 
Expiration Date 

2029 

2027 
2027 

2022 

- (9) 

(1) This represents the approximate share of Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s contribution to the total investment of each project in the 
form of registered capital contribution and shareholders’ loans. It does not necessarily represent either the profit distribution ratio or 
the ratio of the distribution of assets upon the, termination or expiration of the joint venture. 

(2) The toll bridge, including the approach roads, will be 11.33 km in length. 

(3) The first phase of the Shantou Bay Bridge became operational in December 1995. 

(4) The five toll bridges, including the connecting roads, will be 47.7 km in length. 

(5) Date of injection of funds by Cheung Kong Infrastructure. 

(6) The four toll bridges, including the connecting roads, will be 49.8 km in length. 

(7) Pursuant to the,relevant contracts, if the toll bridges are completed and commence operation prior to such date, Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure shall be entitled to a certain percentage of the after-tax net profits of the relevant joint ventures, with the Chinese party 
receiving the majority of such after-tax net profits as a form of early completion bonus. 

(8) The joint venture will have a term of 26 years, which will commence upon issuance of a business license. 

(9) The joint venture will have a term of 27 years, which will commence upon issuance of a business license. 

Guar&oong Eastern Coastal Corvidov. Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into a joint venture contract 
with a number of entities in June 1993 for the construction and management of, and collection of tolls on, the 
Shenzhen-Shantou Highway (Eastern Section), a 140 km dual two-lane highway, which commenced 
operation in November 1996. Cheung Kong Infrastructure also entered into a joint venture contract with a 
number of entities in August 1993 for the construction and management of, and collection of tolls on, the 
Shantou Bay Bridge, a dual three-lane bridge with approach roads on the southern and northern sides of the 
bridge. The Shantou Bay Bridge became operational in December 199,5.‘The Shenzhen-Shantou Highway and 
the Shantou Bay Bridge form a section of an eastern coastal corridor which connects two of China’s five 
Special Economic Zones; and also forms a part of one of the two north-south national trunk highways that run 
across China. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has a 33;5% interest in #the Shenzhen-Shantou Highway (Eastern 
Section) and a 30% interest in the Shantou Bay Bridge. The total project cost (as stipulated in the joint 
venture contract) of the Shenzhen-Shantou Highway and Shantou Bay Bridge amounts to RMB 2.8 billion 
and RMB 670 million, respectively, of which Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund RMB 921 
million and RMB 200 million, respectively, through registered capital contributions and shareholder loans in 
cash. 

Nanhai Road Network. On May 10, 1996, Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into contracts for the 
acquisition of an interest in 11 PRC joint ventures, the scope of business of which is the construction and/or 
management of 11 roads in the Nanhai Municipality (the “Nanhai Road Network”). The Nanhai Road 
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Network forms a major part of the five north-south and four east-west highway network of Nanhai 
Municipality, which is strategically located to the,west of Guangzhou Municipality, the provincial capital and 
geographical center of the Guangdong Province and a major communications hub. Cheung Kong Infrastruc- 
ture has ” 49% interest in seven roads and bridges in the Nanhai Road Network and a 64% interest in four toll 
bridges, which are under development. The total project cost of the seiren roads ‘&l bridges tihich are 
operational amounts to US$210 million, of which Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund US$102.9 
million, thrbugh registered capital contributions and shareholder loans in cash. The total project cost bf the 
four toll bridges which are under development amounts to US$120 million, of which Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure is obligated to fund US$77.2 million, through registered capital contributions and shareholder 
loans in cash. Cheung Kong Infrastructure will also have a right of first refusal to participate in the 
development, management and/or construction of other toll roads in the Nanhai Municipality. 

Jiangmen Roads and Bridges. In December 1996, Cheung Kong’Infrastructure acquired a 50% interest 
in a joint venture that manages and operates the Jiangsha Highway. The total project cpetY6f the highway is 
HK$207 million, of which Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund HK$103 millic+or 50%, through 
registered capital contributions and shareholder loans in cash. The highway, which cwcts Jiangsha and 
Heshan, is 20.92 km long and has been operational since December 1996. 

In December 1996, Cheung Kong Infrastructure formed a cooper&ive jdint ve&& with two Chinese 
parties to construct and operate the Jianghe Highway. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has a 50% interest in the 
Jianghe Highway. The total project cost of the Jianghe Highway is RMB450 million, of which Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure is obligated to fund RMB225 million, through registered capital contribution+ and shareholder 
loans in cash. The highway, which links Jiangmen and Gonghe, is 20.29 km long with three interchanges and 
is expected to commence operation by March 1999: Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s Ij&nt venture partner is 
responsible for the construction of the highway at a fixed price with a guaranteed conlpletion date. 

In January 1997, Cheung Kong Infr?str&ture entered into a joint venture contract for the construction 
and operation of the Jiangmen Chaolian Bridge. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has .g 50% interest in the 
Jiangmen Chaolian Bridge. The total project cost is HK$l30 million, of which Cheu&Ktdng Infristructure is 
obligated to fund HK$65 million, through registered capital contributions and sharehdliir loani in cash. The 
bridge is approximately 2 km long. The approach road of the bridge and the toll system are under construction. 
The project is expected to be bperational in May 1999. 

Guangzhou East-South Ring Road. .In February 1997, Cheung ,.Kong Infrastwure, together with a 
subsidiary of Hopewell Holdings Limited, entered into a supplementary agreement .tith, a-Chinese party to 
invest in the 19.4 km East-South section of the Guangzhou East-South-West F$ing Royd. Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure has a 37.5% interest in the pl’oject. Total project cost is RMB2,OOO til&it of which Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund RMB750 million, through registered I.?$~ contributions and 
shareholder loans in cash. The expected completion date is 1999. 

-+ 
Shenyang Roads. Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered nine joint venture co&&s with two Chinese 

entities in Shenyang, Liaoning Province’s largest city, in November 1996. The nine.roa&and bridge projects 
primarily comprise a major section of the city’s outer ring road, two of Shenyang’s thtibridges over the Hun 
River and their approach roads. In May 1997, Cheung Kong Infrastructure signed aflJnh& four joint venture 
contracts in Shenyang for the construction and operation of four sections of the eleva&d,toIl roads. All of the 
roads and bridges are existing key sections~ of’ the city’s transportation network. tins&-n is underway to 
upgrade these roads and bridges by w-idening, renovating and building interchanges&d&l stations. 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s joint venture partner is responsible for the tu~Q~:;~~nstruction of the 
roads and bridges, subject to a guaranteed completion date. The coqtrac’ts have beef] flnprpved and the first 
capital injection was made in December 1996. Of the thirteen projects, eight are expected to commence 
operation by December 1997 and the remaining five by July 1998. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has on average 
a. 53% interest in the projects. The total project cost is RMB2,453 million; aPitii@h Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure is obligated to fund RMB1,295 million, through registered capital contfiutions and shareholder 
loans in ,cash. 
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Zengcheng Lixin Highway. In March 1997 Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into a joint venture for 
the construction and operation of the Lixin Highway. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has a 51% interest in the 
joint venture. The total project cost is HK$200 million, of which.Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to 
fund HK$lO2 million, through registered share capital contributions and shareholder loans in cash. The Lixin 
Highway is an important link between two national trunk highways: National Highway 107 - connecting 
Guangzhou and Shenzhen and National Highway 324 - running from Guangzhou to Shantou. This highway 
has a total length of 29.6,km and is a four-lane Class I highway that has been operational since October 1995. 

Tangshan-Jing Tahg Port Expressway. In June 1997, Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into seven 
joint venture c,ontracts for the ‘construction and operation of the Tangshan-Jing Tang Port Expressway. 
Cheung Kong Infrastructure has a 51% interest in the joint venture. The total project cost is RMB1,298.9 
million, of which Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obliged to find RMB662.4 million. 

Zhumadian National Highway 107. In June 1997, Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into two joint 
venture contracts for the construction and operation of the Zhumadian National Highway 107. Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure has a 66% interest in the joint ‘venture. The total project cost is US$69.9 million, of which 
Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund US$46.1 million. 

Power Projects in ikfuinl~hd China 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure currently has interests in nine power plants in mainland China, with an 
aggregate design capacity of 2,350 MW. The following table summarizes certain information with respect to 
Cheung Kong Infrastructure. 

Busineis 

Shantou Power Plants ” 
Shantou Chenghai Power 

Plant 
Shantou Chaoyang Power 

Plant 
‘Shantou Tuopu Power 

Plant 
Nan.hai Power Plants 

Nanhai Jiangnan Power 
Plant’ 

Nanhai Power Plant I 

Zhuhai Power Plant 

Fushm Power Plants 
Changshun Heat & 

Electricity 
Changshun Energy 

Changshun Power 

Total Power Plants 

Business Scale 

Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure’s 

Interest (1) 
(%I 

Actual or 
Target 

Commencement 
Date of 

Operation 

75 MW oil-fired 60 January 1995 
power plant 

90 MW oil fired 
power plant 

114 MW oil-fired 
power plant 

60 January 1995 

60 January 1995 

121 MW coal/oil-fired 36 .January 1995(2) 
power plant 

400 MW oil-fired 30 November 1996 (3) 
power plant 

1,400 MW coal-fired 45 November 1999 
power plant 

25 MW coal-fired 60 June 1997 
power plant 

25 MW coal-fired 60 June 1997 
power plant 

100 MW coal-fired 60 June 1997 
power plant 

2,350 MW 

Joint Venture 
Expiration Date 

2010 

2010 

2010 

2004 

2012 

2019 

2017 

2017 ’ 

2017 

(I) ‘This represents the approximate share of Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s contribution to the total investment of each project in the 
form of registered capital contribution and shareh,olders’ loans. It does not necessarily represent either the profit distribution ratio or 
the ratio of the distribution of assets upon the termination or expiration of the joint venture. 

(2) Date of injection of funds by Cheung Kong Infrastructure. 

(3) Unit 1 of Nanhai Power Plant I became operational in November 1996. Unit 2 is currently under construction and is expected to 
become fully operational in July 1997. 
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Shantou Power Plants. In the first half of 1993, Cheung Kong Infrastructure was invited by the Shantou 
Municipal Peopl’e’s Government to enter into joint venture agreements with the Shantou Municipal Power 
Development Company, a PRC state-owned enterprise, for the development and management of the Shantou 
Chenghai Power Plant, the Shantou Chaoyang Power Plant and the Shantou Tuopu Power Plant, three 
existing oil-fired power plants with an aggregate installed capacity of 279 MW. A joint Vknture contract was 
signed with l’espect to each of the three Shantoti power plants in October 1’993. The total project cost of the 
Shantou Chenghai Power Plant (“Chenghai Power Plant”), Shantou Chaoyang Power Plant (“Chaoyang 
Power ,Plant”) and Shantou Tuopu Power Plant (“Tuopu Power Plant” and, together with the Chenghai 
Power plant arid Chaoyang Power Plant, the “Shantou Power Plants”) is approximately US$41 million, 
US$SO million and U$$63 million, respectivily, of which Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund 
approximately US$24.6 million, US$30 million, and US$37.8 million, respectively, through registered capital 
contributions and shareholder loans in cash. Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s interest in each of the power plants 
in Shantou is 60%. 

The Chenghai Power Plant, located in ‘the Chenghai County, Shantou Municipality, Guangdong 
Province, is an existing 75 MW oil-fired hlant comprising: (i) four 2.5 MW diesel generators and (ii) six 10.89 
MW diesel generators. The Chaoyang Power Plant, located in the Chaoyang Municiphlity (a municipality 
which is under the supervision of Shantou Municipal People’s Government), Guangdong Province, is an 
existing 90 MW oil-fired power plant comprising: (i) five 1 MW diesel generators, (ii) three 3 MW diesel 
generators, and (iii) eight 9.5 MW diesel generators. The Tuopu Power Plant, locati within the Shantou 
Special Economic Zone, Guangdong Province, is an existing 114 MW oil-fired power plant comprising: 
(i) ten 1.22 MW diesel generators, (ii) eight 2.5 MW diesel generators, and (iii) eight Y&24 MW gtnerators. 

The joint ventures have entered into long term power purchase contracts (the “Shantou Power Purchase 
Contracts”) in respect of the Shantou Power Plants with the Shantou Municipal Power Industry Company 
(“Shantou Power Company”), each of which is coterminous with the applicable joint venture period. The 
Sha&ou Power Purchase Contracts stipulate that Shantou Power Company will purchase ;t?ll of the electricity 
generated by the Shantou Power Plants and guarantee to offtake certain annual mini+,!? Quantities. If the 
actual quantity of electricity purchased b+ Shantou Power Company in any year 18 l&s ‘than the annual 
minimum quantity stipulated, Shantou Ppwer Company is obligated to pay a su@emental fek to the 
applicable joint venture. In 1997, the minimum offtake quantity for the ,Chenghai Power Plant, the Chaoyang 
Power Plant and the Tuopu Power Plant is approximately 277.7 million KWh, 331.7 qwoq KWh and 420.7 
million KWh, respectively. 

Nanhai Power Plants. The Nanhai Jiangnan Power Plant (“Jiangnan Power Pla$’ j: ldcated in Xiqiao, 
Taiping, Nanhai Municipality, duangdong Province, is an existing 121 MW power bl’gd’t comprising the 
following steam turbine power generators which came into operation between 1987 an$1992: (i) one 3 MW 
coal-fired generator, (ii) one 6MW coal-fired generator, (iii) o?e, 12 MW coal-fired genkiator, (iv) three 25 
MW coal-fired generators and (v) one 25 MW oil-fired generator. The Nanhai Power,, y&nt I (“Nanhai 
Power Plant I”) is a 400 MW oil-fired power plant (comprising two 200 MW steam turbine generators) 
located in Xiqiao, Xintian, Nanhai Municipality, Guangdong Province. The Jiangnan ,I?Qw#r .Plant and the 
Nanhai Power Plant I are connected to the Guangdong Provincial ‘grid and were pritipilyrbuilt to provide 
electricity in order to help alleviate power shortages and meet the growing power requirements associated with 
commercial and industrial growth in the Nanhai Municipality. Cheung Kong Infrastructure F&$ a 36% interest 
in the Jiangnan Power Plant and a 30% interest in the Nanhai Power Plant I. The total pT$ect cost of the 
Jiangnan Power Plant and Nanhai Power Plant I is approximately US$29.98 million $nd,uS$228 million, 
respectively, of which Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund US$10.9 million and US$68 million, 

. respectively, through registered capital contributions and shareholder loans in cash. 

The joint venture has entered into a long term power purchase contract (the “Jiangnan ,Power Purchase 
Contract”) with Guangdong Province Nanhai Municipal Power Supply Bureau (“Nan@ ‘qdwer Bureau”). 
Pursuant to the Jiangnan Power Purchase Contract, Nanhai Power Bureau will purcliase all 6f the electricity 
generated by Jiangnan Power Plant and guarantees to offtake a certain annual mifiitim quantity. The 
Jiangnan Power ,Purchase Contract will expire on July 30, 2004, five months before the expiration of the joint 
venture term. 
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The joint venture has entered into a long term power purchase contract (the “Nanhai Power Purchase 
Contract”), which is coterminous Iwith the joint venture period, with Nanhai Power Bureau. Pursuant to the 
Nanhai Power Purchase Contract,, Nanhai Power Bureau will’ purchase all of the electricity generated by 
Nanhai Power I and agrees to offtake certain annual minimum quantities. 

Z&h& Power Plant. The first phase of the Zhuhai Power Plant. (“Zhuhai Power Plant”) is a 1,400 
MW coal-fired electrical power plant (comprising two 700 MW coal-fired generators) currently under 
development in the Western ‘District of Zhuhai Special Economic Zone, Guangdong Province. The Zhuhai 
Power Plant is being built to provide electricity to alleviate power shortages and meet the growing power 
requirements associated with commercial and industrial growth in and around Guangdong Province. Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure has a 45% interest inthe Zhuhai Power Plant. The total project cost is US$1,222 million, 
of which Cheung Kong Infrastructure is obligated to fund US$550 million,’ through registered capital 
contributions ,and shareholder loans in cash.. 

Eicshrin power Pl&. In January 1997, Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into a 20 year joint venture 
contract with Fushun Heat and’Electricity Plant, a state-owned enterprise under the supervision of the Fushun 
Municipal Government, for the management and operation of the three existing coal-fired power projects. The 
total’investment cost of the three’projects is HK$690 million. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has a 60% interest 
in’each of these projects and its share of the total investment cost is HK$41.4’million. The aggregate installed 
capacity of three projects is 150MW, provided by two 25MW and one 1OOMW generators. 

. ‘The power offtaker is North East Power Industry Bureau which is a state-owned enterprise under the 
supervision of the Ministry of Power. The steam offtakers are three large local industrial companies which are 
also state-owned enterprises. The PRC joint venture partner is responsible for fuel supply, maintaining all 
power generators and ancillary ,facilities and guaranteeing that the plants, can generate sufficient electricity and 
steam to satisfy the annual minimum power and steam offtake amounts. 

W&e;. PvojeCts -, 
(’ .” 

,,’ ,I 
In December 1996, Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into a joint venture contract for the manage- 

ment and operation of a water plant in Dongguan. The plant provides tap water service to the Qiaotau area in 
Dongguan. Cheung Kong Infrastructure has a 35% interest in the joint venture. The total investment cost is 
RMB42.6 million and Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s investment cost is ‘RMB14.91 million. The water plant 
has,a capacity of 50,000 tons per day and is currently operational. 8: ,. ; m1 I. ‘, : 

,b ” ., 
Hongkong Electric Holdings 

Hongkong Electric Holdings’ wholly-owned subsidiary, Hongkong Electric, generates, transmits, distrib- 
utes and is the sole provider of electricity to Hong Kong Island and Lamma Island.’ China Light & 1Power 
Company Limited (“CL&P”), which is not affiliated with Hongkong Electric, supplies electricity to Kowloon 
Peninsula and the New Territories. The MTRC system’s electricity requirements are supplied’ jointly by 
Hongkong Electric ,land CL&P. The division, of markets between Hongkong Electric and CL&P is based on 
practical considerations of geography and is not mandated by law orby,contract. The Company expects that 
the present arrangement will continue for the foreseeable future. 

Hongkong Electric has been supplying’electricity since 1890,when the first electric street lights in Central 
were switched on, making it one of the world’s oldest electricity companies.’ Over a century later, Hongkong 
Electric is supplying electricity to over half a million customers. ‘/ 1 

Hongkong Electric believes that the Central to Wanchai reclamation project, together with other major 
developments planned on Hong Kong Island, and the new MTRC airport line should result in a need for an 
increase in.generating capacity and system upgrading in the future. In order to’ meet the anticipated growth in 
demand, a new 350 MW coal-fired unit is currently under construction and is scheduled to be commissioned 
at the end of 1997. Hongkong Electric,‘also plans to add a‘new 250 MW gas turbine by 2001-. 

Hongkong Electric Holdings entered into an agreement on June’ 12, 1997 for the acquisition of 
approximately 25% effective equity interest in Siam Power Generation Company Limited, which owns a 450 
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MW power plant in Rayong, Thailand. Hongkong Electric Holdings, through its whully owned subsidiary 
Hongkong Electric International Limited, plans to pursue other opportunities elsewhere ini Asia, including 
making equity investments in power plants and, where appropriate, participating ‘with; Cheung Kong 
Infrastructure in projects in mainland China. 

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to Hongkong Electric Holdings. 

Operating Information: 
Electricity unit sales (million of kWh) 
Average net tariff (HK cents 

per kWh) 
Number of customers (thousands) 
Installed, capacity (MW) 

Year Ended and as of Decempber 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 - - - - 

7,215 7,751 8,257 8,380 8;873 
II ‘,J 

71.1 74.0 773 804 83.5 
456 472 $f+ 493 504 

2,605 2,605 2,6q5;, 2,955 2,955 
Financial Information (millions of HK$): I . .! 
Turnover’ 5,332 5,946 6,670:.,~ / 6,942 7,67,3 
Profit attributable to shareholders ‘, 3,050 3,380 3,848~ i ,“I 4,186 4,154 
Dividends 1,657 1,818 2,020 2,243 2,485 
Fixed assets 18,142 20,669 24,466 28,969 32,202 
Shareholders’ funds 10,242 11,804 13,632 15,575 ,/I 17,244 

Hongkong’ Electric’s power station is located on Lamma Island, and its installed’& 
it 

achy of 2,955 MW 
currently comprises seven coal-fired units with a total capacity of 2,150 MW and seven i&bed gas turbines 
with a total capacity of 805 MW. Of the total electricity units generated during 1996,‘99.&a/o were produced 
by the coal-fired units. During 1996, 3.5 million metric tonnes of low sulphur, low ash and competitively priced 
coal was burnt from such diverse supply source countries as Australia, China, Indonesia ‘arid South Africa. 

As a percentage of total unit sales in 1996, domestic customers accounted for 25’?$: ,$mmercial 69.3% 
and industrial 5.4%. ‘The system maximum demand peaked .at 2,118 MW during 19!$: ,, ! I 

The transmission network includes high capacity submarine cables. For envircm&@$aPland operational 
reasons, nearly all high voltage cabling on Hong Kong Island and Lamma Island is uhdk@kbuhd. Additionally, 
where cable-laying might cause serious disruption to the environment, Hongkong Electric has built cable 
tunnels. As of December 31, 1996, there were 3,101 high voltage distribution sum&& in the system 
operated by Hongkong Electric. Hongkong Electric’s system is interconnected with 9F,?y@ern operated by 
CL&P to provide additional spinning reserves for both systems. Generation, transmrss!gp ;tnd distribution are 
all controlled at Hongkong Electric’s computerized system control center, which ensurys/he safe, efficient and 
secure delivery of electricity to all of its customers. / ‘; I” 

The operations of Hongkong Electric are subject to the Scheme of Control Agrk&@k -with the Hong 
Kong Government (the “Scheme of Control”). The original Scheme of Control &$I&?& iri’ 1993 and was 
extended for another 15 years to December 31, 2008. This new Scheme of Control w&WM%ed by the Joint 
Liaison Group of the Chinese government. Under the Scheme of Control, shareholdera,#Hqgkong Electric 
are guaranteed a net return of 15% on net fixed assets,financed by shareholders’ funds y&g qinimum of 5.5% 
(13.5% permitted return minus a maximum of 8% interest costs) on net assets financd$y&orrowings. The 
Scheme of Control is designed to ensure a balance of benefits for both consumers and Hongkong Electric 
Holdings’ shareholders. . I , .! 

IjLCl, i.. 
In January 1997, Hongkong Electric implemented a 3.47%, or 2.9 Hong Kong cents pat!k+Vh, average net 

tariff increase. Since 1983, inflation in Hong Kong has gone up by over 180% compar&#oltlae corresponding 
increase of 43% in net electricity tariff: representing a reduction of 49% in its net electricw tariff in real terms. 

Associated Technical Services Limited, Hongkong Electric Holdings’ engineeringeonsuktancy subsidiary, 
provides a range of feasibility study, design, inspection, supervision, training and other s&ices for power 
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station and transmission/distribution projects overseas from the Middle East to Southeast Asia and mainland 
China, as well as civil construction and, other electrical projects in Hong Kong. : 

I 
Husky Oil -’ 1: 

Founded in 1938, Husky is a Canadian-based integrated oil and gas’company engaged in the exploration 
for and development’ of crude oil and natural gas, as well as the production, purchase, transportation, 
upgrading, refining and ‘marketing of crude oil, natural gas, NGLs, sulphur and’ petroleum coke, and the 
marketing of refined petroleum products, including asphalt. ,m 

Husky’s primary business objective is to maximize the cash flow and profit generated from its upstream 
and downstream operations. Husky plans to, achieve this objective through ‘a strategy that grows reserves and 
production with a focus on existing assets, reduces, finding and development costs, continues to improve 
operating and administrative efficiencies, expands pipeline and oil and gas! marketing operations, increases 
profits from refined products operations and optimizes performance of heavy oil upgrading operations. 

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to,Husky. 

Year Ende;i’ and as of December 31, 
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 ~ ___ - ,* 

Operating Information: 
Net proved reserves( 1) a 

Crude oil and NGLs (million barrels) 209.5 188.6 196.2 ” 191.0 205.0 
Natural gas (billion cubic feet) 1,202.5 983.7 948.0 1,010.2 1,015.l 

Average net, daily production 
Heavy crude oil (thousand barrels/day) 17.9 20.9 25.0 27.3 31.0 
Light and medium crude oil and NGLs 

(thousand barrels/day) 24.2 ‘25.2 25.4 23.4 ‘23.1 
Natural gas (million cubic feet/day) 198.1 “196.9 i94.0 239.5 220.3 

Average sales prices 
Heavy crude oil (Canadian dollars/barrel) 12.50 12.48 14.33 16.65 is.75 
Light and medium crude oil and NGLs 

(Canadian dollars/barrel) 20.72 19.04 18.47: 20.57 24.48 
Natural gas (Canadian dollars/thousand cubic 

feet) 1.30 1.59 1.76 1.50 1.82 

Financial Informakon (millions of $ankhian 
dollars) : 

Sales and operating revenues 720.8 819.6 919.7 1,080.6 1,272.9 
Net earnings (loss) under U.S. GAAP ’ (134.5) (201.5) ,(51.0) 44.0 60.1 
Total assets under U.S. GAAP 3,801.5 3,575.4 3,679,4 2,952.7 2,793.7 
Shareholders’ equity under U.S. GAAP (249.5) (441.4) (820,.7) (776.7) ,(503.3) 

(1) Reserves do not include crude oil discovered at the Terra Nova oil field, which is located off the east coast of Canada. The Canada- 
Newfoundland Offshore Petroleum Board estimates recoverable crude oil in the field at about 400 million barrels. A development 
plan has been filed with the relevant regulatory authority and production is projected to commence in the year 2000. Husky’s initial 
pooled interest in the Terra Nova field is 17.5%. 

Husky has a balanced portfolio of assets, including properties that produce heavy, light and medium’ 
gravity crude oil, NGLs, natural gas and sulphur.‘Husky generally has a high degree of operational control in 
its upstream operations. Husky has extensive gathering and processing facilities in the Lloydminster, Ram 
River and Rainbow Lake areas in western Canada and is currently the operator of properties which account for 
approximately 79% of its total working interest production. Husky’s net proved crude oil and NGLs reserve life 
is approximately 10 years and its net proved natural gas reserve life is approximately 13 years, based on 1996 
reserves and production. Husky also has a substantial undeveloped land base in the Lloydminster area, 
offshore the east coast of Canada and in the Madura Strait area offshore Indonesia. Husky believes that it is a 
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financially disciplined operator with.strong,‘technical capabilities and operational experience, especially with 
respect to the production, development, transportation and upgrading of heavy -crude, \oil. Husky also has 
extensive experience and expertise in enhanced crude oil recovery and horizontal drilling, as well as in natural 
gas exploration in the foothills along the Canadian Rocky Mountains. Husky has a strong presence in crude 
oil, natural gas and sulphur marketing and has established marketing networks for refined petroleum products 
through independently operated Husky branded outlets and through direct marketing to, end users, .: 1 

.In 1996, approximately 76% of Husky’s operating profit was generated by its upstream operations, which 
include the exploration for and the development and.production of crude oil, natural gas and NGLs. :Husky’s 
upstream operations are primarily in western Canada and 
some international ,upstream operations. Husky’s 1996 
Husky’s 1996 ‘total net production was 54,100 barrels/day of 
feet/day ,of natural gas. Approximately 1% of Husky’s total production of’drude 
from international operations. Husky’s 1996 upstream revenues were derived 
crude oil (35%) and light and medium crude oil and NGLs (34%)) 
natural gas-related operations (3 1%). As of December 31, 1996, Husky had total net pk&ed (reserves .of crude 
oil and NGLs and of natural gas of approximately 205 million barrels and 1 ,015 billion cubic feet, respectively. 
The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows of Husky’s proved reserves, calculated in 
accordance with SFASNo. 69, as of December 31, 1996, on a pre-tax basis was approximately 2.9 billion 
Canadian dollars (1.7 million Canadian dollars on an after tax-basis). On DecembemiQn@96, the Noon 
Buying Rate was 1 Canadian dollar = US$O.7301. Based on 1995 production, Husky &zanked as the 10th 
largest producer of crude’oil and NGLs and the 16th largest producer of natural gas in&&&da, as reported in 
Oilweek Magazine’s 1995 survey of Canada’s Top 100 Oil & Gas Producers. IILII/ (I : 

In 1996, approximately 24% of Husky’s operating profit was generated by ‘its &$r&tream operations, 
which include pipeline operations and oil and gas product marketing, refined products o$&atidns and heavy oil 
upgrading operations. Husky’s pipeline operations include the transportation of blend<$?$&y crude oil and 
diluent through its heavy oil pipeline systems ehich, in total, include over 870 miles, of pip&e. These, systems 
transport blended heavy crude oil from the Cold Lake region of Alberta and from wesf&nt’ral Saskatchewan 
to upgrading and refining\ facilities in Lloydminster, which is on the border between :/$$$a and Saskatche- 
wan, and to the Interprovincial Pipe Line system at Hardisty, Alberta. Husky’s pipelme,operations also include 
a synthetic crude oil pipeline from Lloydminster to Hardisty. In 1996, throughput on Hus [;,I!: . 

% 
9 prpeline systems 

averaged approximately 360,000 barrels/day. ’ ‘, “Ii, I, I,! 
.ili,rl.. t 8’ 

: Husky also is a major marketer of both its own and third party production of crude oil, NGLs, natural gas 
and sulphur. In 1996, Husky marketed approximately 230,000 barrels/day pf crude #,a~&NGLs, 600 million, 
cubic feet/day of natural gas, 1,400 long tons/ day of sulphur and 500 long tons/day’ of petroleum coke. 

Husky sells and distributes, refined petroleum products through approxima9dIy 314 independently 
operated Husky branded petroleum outlets, including service stations, truck stopsma- bulk distribution 
facilities located from the west coast of Canada to the eastern border of Ontario; s&r& ief which include 
24 hour restaurants, convenience stores, service bays, car washes, fast food sales, ba&matiM&, and propane 
sales. A number of these outlets are equipped with the Husky proprietary “Route Commander” cardlock 
system to. enable commercial users to purchase products using a card system whidh;eW$rically processes 
transactions and provides the user with detailed billing, sales tax and other informatronl ,, ,, )i 

Husky owns a 10,000 barrels/day light oil refinery in Prince George, British ‘Cbl&bia and a 25,000 
barrels/day asphalt refinery in Lloydminster. Husky also owns a 50% interest in, and is 
Pro,vincial Upgrader, a heavy oil upgrading facility located in Lloydminster 
approximately 54,000 barrels/day of synthetic crude oil. Husky supplies ali of 
Bi-Provincial Upgrader and purchases all of its output for resale. 

The oil and gas industry, both within Canada.and internationally, is highly comp&itiipe in all ,aspects. 
Husky competes in virtually every aspect of its businesses with other oil,and gas compti@In the exploration 
and development of oil and natural gas, Husky’s competitors include major integratedI&&& gas companies, 
numerous other independent oil and gas companies and individual producers and ope’r$&&s, In ,export markets, 
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Husky encounters active competition from other producers: both Canadian and foreign. In the downstream 
operations, the margins earned by Husky on its refined products are determined by competitive market 
conditions and are beyond the control.of Husky. The oil and gas, industry also competes with, other industries 
in supplying energy, fuel and related products to consumers. Husky believes it is competitive in the areas in 
which it operates. 

In June 1997, Husky and a partner applied to the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board for approval to 
jointly build and operate a 343 mile pipeline to serve northeastern Alberta crude oil producers. The proposed 
pipeline will run from Fort McMurray, Alberta to Hardisty. Alberta and will have an, initial shipping capacity 
of lS?,OOO barrels per day. Husky is also in the process of finalizing an Incremental’ Oil’ Recovery Contract 
with the China National Petroleum Corporation for enhanced development of the Pucheng Field located 
onshore in the’ Henan province of China. Contract completion and initiation of a front-end engineering study is 
planned for mid-1997. 

In November 1996, Husky issued US$150 million of 6.875% Senior Notes due November 15, 2003, 
US$lSO million of 7.125% Senior Notes due November 15, 2006, and US$200 million of 7.550% Senior 
Debentures due November 15, 2016. Husky primarily used the proceeds of the issuance to repay certain loans 
guaranteed by its shareholders and certain existing term credit facilities. 

I COMPASS Card 

The Company entered Hong Kong’s fast-growing credit card business at the end of 1995, teaming up with 
Dao Heng Bank subsidiary OTB Card Company Limited and Visa International to launch the COMPASS 
Card. Incorporating state-of-the-art technology, the COMPASS Card is the first credit card in the world to 
provide a chip-based program that complies with the Visa/Mastercard/Europay specification. COMPASS 
provides cardholders with an attractive usage-based bonus scheme. COMPASS had, as of May 31, 1997, more 
than 185,031 members. The Company’s investment in this venture is held through Hutchison OTB Card 
Limited, which is a 50150 joint venture with OTB Card Company Limited. 

Environmental Matters 

The Company’s operations are subject to various environmental laws. Compliance with such laws has not 
had, and in the Company’s opinion, is not expected to have, a material effect upon the Company’s capital 
expenditures, earnings or competitive position. 

Legal Proceedings 

The Company is not engaged in any material litigation or arbitration proceeding, and no material 
litigation or claim is known by the Company to be pending or threatened against it. 

Insurance 

The Company believes that its properties are covered by adequate property insurance by reputable 
companies and with commercially reasonable deductibles and limits, covering fire, earthquake, loss of rental 
and third party liabilities. 
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Employees 

As of December 31, 1996, the Company and its subsidiaries had a total of approximately 27,733 
employees. Hutchison Whampoa on its own has no employees. The following table shows the divisional 
allocation of employees as of December 31, 1994, 1995 and 1996: 

As of December 31, 
1994 1995 1996 - - - 

Property 1,598 2,196 2,292 
Ports and Related Services 4,062 4,316 4,846 
Retail, Manufacturing, and Other Services 14,230 14,758 15,052 
Telecommunications ( 1) 6,815 7,709 5,366 
Other 150 158 177 - - 

Total 26,855 29 137 - A 27,733 

(1) Excludes employees of Orange as of December 31, 1996. The flotation of Orange was completed in April 1996 and in 1996, Orange 
was accounted for as an associated company. 
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HONGKONG 

Until July 1, 1997, Hong Kong was a colony of the U.K. On July 1, 1997, sovereignty over Hong Kong 
was transferred from the U.K. to China, and Hong Kong became a Special Administrative Region of China. 
The agreement between the British and Chinese governments regarding this transfer is embodied in the ‘Joint 
Declaration, which was signed on December 19, 1984 and subsequently ratified by both governments. Acting 
pursuant to the Joint Declaration, in April 1990 China’s National People’s Congress (the “NPC”) adopted 
the Basic Law, which is the basic constitutional document of Hong Kong. Under the Basic Law, Hong Kong is 
to have its own legislature, legal and judicial system and full economic autonomy for 50 years. Defense and 
foreign affairs are the responsibility of the central government in Beijing, although Hong Kong will still be able 
to participate in international organizations and agreements, where deemed appropriate. The Basic Law 
provides that the Hong Kong dollar will remain the legal tender currency in Hong Kong and is to remain freely 
convertible, and that no exchange controls will be applied. Existing freedoms, including the rights of free 
speech and assembly, a free press, freedom of religion, and to strike and to travel, are ensured by law, and 
business ownership, private property, the right of inheritance and foreign investment are to be legally 
protected. 

Under the Basic Law, the laws in force in Hong Kong prior to June 30, 1997 will remain in force, except’ 
for any that contravene the Basic Law, and will be subject to amendment by Hong Kong’s legislature. The 
power of interpretation of the Basic Law is vested in the Standing Committee of the NPC, although the courts 
of Hong Kong may interpret the Basic Law in adjudicating cases before them, subject to certain limitations. 
The power of amendment of the Basic Law is vested in the NPC. The Basic Law provides that the Chief 
Executive of Hong Kong shall be recommended by a committee composed of Hong Kong residents, 
representing a broad spectrum of distinct constituencies, such as industry, labor, and the various professions, 
and appointed by the central government of China. 
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MANAGEMENT 

The directors of the Company are set forth below. 

Name 

Li Ka-shing 1 
Li Tzar Kai, Richard 
Fok Kin Ning, Canning 

Li Tzar-kuoi, Victor 
William Shumiak 

Susan M.F.’ Chow 

George C. Magnus 

Kam Hing Lam 
Frank J: Sixt 

Michael D. Kadoorie 

C.P. Langley 
Li Fook-wo 
Simon Murray 

P.A.L. Vine 
C.H. Wong 

1 , ;J ;I:‘,, 

Age - Position : 11’:);’ 

68 Chairman and Executive$,$ec#or 
30 Deputy Chairman and Exemtive Director 
45 Group Managing Directi)it&&;Executive~ 

Director 9’. 2l-i:. _, 

32 Executive.Director I :r; 1:,.tnt “8 :,, - 

65’ 
/i !.l.'i1 ._ " 

Group Finance Director, +rid, Fxecutive ‘. 
Director ; i;:: .: 

43 Executive Director :“I _‘i, ,’ 

61 Executive Director 
50 Executive Director ’ _,/I 

45 Executive Director ,i, 3 I : .~ . 

55” Director ’ 
,~;ii:I.!Ll. 

,i: ir,q 
52 Director ;;i,‘:,:rj 
80 Director ;~ d) i ~~ 

56 Director ,, 1. 

75 Director 

63 Director 

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of fifteen members. Set forth below is selected 
biographical information for each of the Directors: 

Li Ka-shing, age 68, CBE, JP has been an Executive Director since 1979 and Chairman since 1981. He is 
the founder and Chairman and Managing Director of Cheung Kong, a substantial shareholder of the 
Company, and has been engaged in many major commercial developments in Hong Kong for more than 
40 years. Mr. Li is an Advisor on Hong Kong Affairs to the Government of the PRC and a member of both 
the Preparatory Committee and the Selection Committee for Hong Kong. He is also an Honorary Citizen of 
Shantou, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Nanhai, Foshan, Jiangmen and Chaozhou, respectively. He also holds the 
title of honorary chairman in various community organizations. Mr. Li holds an Honorary Doctorate degree 
from Beijing University, and an Honorary Doctorate of Laws degree from both the University of Hong Kong 
and the University of Calgary and an Honorary Doctorate of Social Science degree from the Hong Kong 
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Li Ka-shing is the father of Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard, and Mr. Li 
Tzar-kuoi, Victor. 

Li Tzar Kai, Richard, aged 30, has been an Executive Director since 1992 and Deputy Chairman since 
1993. He is also a Director of Hongkong Electric Holdings. He is the founder of Satellite Television Asian 
Region Limited (STAR Television) and Chairman and Chief Executive of the Pacific Century Group. 

Fok Kin Ning, Canning, aged 45, has been an Executive Director since 1984 and the Company’s Group 
Managing Director since 1993. He is Chairman of Orange, Deputy Chairman of Hongkong Electric Holdings 
and Cheung Kong Infrastructure. He is also a Director of Cheung Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree 
and is a member of the Australian Institute of Chartered Accountants. 

Li Tzar-kuoi, Victor, aged 32, has been an Executive Director since 1995. He is Chairman of Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure and Deputy Chairman and Deputy Managing Director of Cheung Kong. He is also a 
Director of Hongkong Electric Holdings and The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. He 
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Master of Science degree in Structural 
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Engineering. He is an Advisor on Hong Kong’ Affairs to the’ Chinese’ government and a member of the 
Governor’s Business Council. 

., i 
William Shunziak, aged,,65, ‘is the Company’s Group Finance Director and has been an Executive 

Director, since 1984. He has broad ,experience in banking. He is a Director of Orange, Hongkong Electric 
Holdings and, AsiaSat. ? 1. ,, i: 

” S&&z M.F. Chow: aged” 43, has been an Executive Director since ‘1993. She is a solicitor and holds a 
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration. She is a Director of Orange and’also a Director of Hongkong 
Electric Holdings and an Executive Director of Cheung Kong Infrastructure. 

&orge C. McrgnuS, aged 61,’ has been an Executive .Directbi since 1980. He is also Chairman of 
Hongkong EIectric Holdings and ‘Deputy Chairman of Cheung Kong and Cheung ‘Kong Infrastructure. H-e 
holds a Master’s degree in Economics. ‘ ’ 

:1 (8. 
,, 

: Kam Hing Lam, aged 50, has’been an Executive Director~since 1993. He is also Deputy Managing 
Director of Cheung Kong, Group Managing Director of Cheung Kong Infrastructure and a Directorm’of Hong 
Kong Electric Holdings. He .holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering and ‘a Master’s degree in 
Business Administration. 

2 ,,’ 

Frank J.j Sixt, aged 45, hasbeen an. Executive Director since 1991:: He ,is, also,an Executive Director of 
Cheung Kong and Cheung Kong, Infrastructure. He holds a Master’s degree in Arts and a Bachelor’s degree in 
Civil Law, and is a member .of the Bar and of the Law Society of the Provinces.,of Quebec and Ontario, 
Canada. 1 x , : 

Michael DI K d 
*,m 

a oorie,, aged 55, has,been a Director since 1995. I!Ie is also Chairman of The Hongkong 
and Shanghai Hotels Limited, Heliservices (Hong Kong) Limited and China Energy Investment Company 
Limited as well as Chairman of-China Light & Power Company -Limited. 

C.P. Cangley; aged 52, GBE, was appointed a Director on January 9, 1996. He is the General Manager of 
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and holds directorships in a number of ‘listed 
companies in Hong Kong, mcluding Hang Seng Bank Limited, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, Hongkong 
Electric Holdings, Winsor Industrial ‘Corporation Limited and Winsor Properties. Holdings Limited.., 

.,’ . . , 

Li Fook-wo, aged 80, has been a Director since 1977. He is also the Chairman of The Bank of-East Asia 
Limited and a Director of Johnson Electric Holdings Limited. 

” 5,. _, _‘. 

Simon Murray, aged 56, CBE, ,has been a Director since 1984. Hem is the Executive Chairman of 
Deutsche Bank Group for the AsiaPacific Region. He is also aDirector of Cheung Kong and Orient Overseas 
(International) Limited. 1 

P.A.;. Vine, aged 75, OBE: LLD, VRD, JP. is a solicitor and has been a Director since 1977. He is also a 
Director of the Cross Harbour Tunnel Company Limited, and a number of other listed companies in Hong 
Kong ‘including International Maritime- Carriers (Holdings) Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investments Limited 
and Liu Chong Hing Bank Limited. f ‘_ ,);. .I 

C.H. Wong, aged 63, is a solicitor ‘and has been a Director since 1984.‘He is also a Director of The Bank 
of ,East, Asia Limited .and Hongkong Electric Holdings. 1, ,’ 

..‘, ‘,I ‘,., I, ‘,, 
: 

L, 

‘/ 
. ~ 
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TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES 

The Company enters into transactions (“Connected Transactions”) from time to time with Cheung 
Kong and other connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange). The 
Company’s practice is to seek to ensure that all such transactions are on an arms’ length basis and ‘in 
accordance with normal commercial terms and in compliance with the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock 
Exchange. The following is a brief description of the Company’s Connected Transactions over the period from 
January 1, 1994 to March 31, 1997. 

1. On March 18, 1994, Promising Land International Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, 
purchased from Cheung Kong and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ebony Limited (“Ebony”), all of the issued 
shares of Yemanbo Limited (“Yemanbo”) and Merrymaker Holdings Limited (“Merrymaker”) for 
HK$1,798,679.31 and HK$71,380,978.66, respectively. On the same date, Hutchison International Limited, 
another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, purchased from Cheung Kong and Ebony shareholder’s 
loans of HK$3,777,000.69 owed by Yemanbo and HK$124,747,021.34 owed by Merrymaker. The sole asset of 
Yemanbo is 3,872,OOO shares of Harbour Ring International Holdings Limited (“Harbour Ring”). The assets 
of Merrymaker ,consist of a HK$87,550,000 convertible redeemable note issued by Harbour Ring and 
51,200,OOO shares in Harbour Ring. 

2. On May 9, 1994, Yarra Group Limited and Cactus Holdings Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of 
the Company, purchased from Cheung Kong Investment Company Limited and Cheung Kong Finance 
Company Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of Cheung Kong, the entire issued share capital of, and loans 
(at their face value) to, Hey Wealth Limited (“Hey Wealth”) for an aggregate consideration of 
HK$450,732,235.75. Hey Wealth is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its principal asset is a 
commercial building known as Park Commercial Centre, 6-10 Shelter Street, Hong Kong. 

3. The Company and Cheung Kong have entered into various lease agreements in respect of 
approximately 53,579 square feet of office space in China Building. China Building is owned by a wholly- 
owned subsidiary of the Company. 

4. On August 31, 1995, Peniston Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,‘purchased from 
Motorola Asia Limited the remaining 25% interest in Hutchison Paging Holdings Limited not already owned 
by the Company. 

5. In November 1995, Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited, a wholl&owned subsidi- 
ary of the Company, purchased from Pacilic Century Telecommunications Limited the, m;ntire issued share 
capital of, and loans to, Pacific Century Technology Investment Limited (“PCTIZ~,), ,fior an aggregate 
consideration of US$74,488,000. PCTIL holds shares, directly or indirectly, in a groeI~!of companies that 
provides services and equipment, under the business name “Corporate Access”, relating to communications 
utilizing verJi small aperture terminals. ’ 1 

,,,: ‘i ,* 
6. On March 16, 1996, Shinta Limited, a 60%-owned subsidiary of the Compmyi afipointed Cheung 

Kong Real Estate Agency Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung Kong, as the p&&t’manager of the 
property development project at the Tsing Yi Airport Railway Station. 

,.,I ., ‘i 

7. In July 1996, the Company transferred to Cheung Kong Infrastructure all of it&&ting interests in 
joint venture companies involved in the development, ownership, operation and/or management of infrastruc- 
ture businesses in toll roads, toll bridges and power plants in China in exchange for shares representing, 
following Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s initial public offering, approximately 3.93% of the outstanding shares 
of Cheung Kong Infrastructure. 

8. On September 4, 1996, Hutchison Telephone Company Limited, a 70%-owned subsidiary of the 
Company, entered into an agreement with Motorola Inc. for the purchase of a DCS 1800 cellular system on a 
turnkey basis. 
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9. On January 6, 1997, Cheung Kong, the Company and Cheung Kong Infrastructure entered into an 
agreement pursuant to, which, cn Mar+ 10, 1997, (i) Cheung Kong, increased its interest in the Company 
from 45.36% to 48.93% of the Company’s outstanding ordinary shares, (ii) the Company increased its interest 
in,Cheung Kong Infrastructure from 3.93% to 84.58% of Cheung Kong Infrastructure’s outstanding ordinary 
shares, and (iii) the Company transferred its interest of 35.01% in Hongkong Electric Holdings to Cheung 
Kong Infrastructure. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis cf Results of Operations and Financial 
Condition - Group Reorganization”. 

.’ 

,, 

” 
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” ~DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES AND THE GUARANTEE 

“The’ Notes of each series are to be issued under a Fiscal Agency Agreement”(the’,“Fiscal Agency 
Agreement”) to be executed among the Issuer, the Guarantor and Bankers Trust Co+mpany, as fiscal and 
paying agent (the “Fiscal Agent”). Copies of the Fiscal Agency Agreement and the N&s!are available for 
inspection duringnormal business hours at the offices of the Fiscal Agent. The following &maries of certain 
provisions of the’Notes and the Fiscal Agency Agreement do not purport to be compfete’and are subject to, 
and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, the provisions thereof, including the”dtinitions therein of 
certain terms. Whenever particular defined terms from the Notes or the Fiscal Agency Agreement are referred 
to, such defined terms are incorporated herein by reference. 

General 
The Notes will be issued in four series and will mature on August 1, 2007 (in the case of the Series A 

Notes), August 1, 2017 (in the case of the Series B Notes), August 1, 2027 (in the case of the Series C 
Notes) and August 1, 2037 (in the case of the Series D Notes). The Series A Notes will be limited to 
US$750,000,000 aggregate principal amount, the Series B Notes will be limited to US$500,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount, the Series C Notes will be limited to US$500,000,000 aggregate principal amount and the 
Series D Notes will be limited to USS250,000,000 aggregate principal amount. The Notes of each series will 
bear interest at the rates per annum shown on the front cover of this Offering Circular from August 1, 1997 or 
from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for, payable 
semiannually in arrears on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 1998, to the person 
in whose name the Note (or any predecessor Note) is registered at the close of business on the preceding 
January 15 or July 15, as the case may be. Interest will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting 
of twelve 30-day months. Payments of principal of and interest on Notes represented by individual Notes in 
certihcated form will be made by check drawn on a bank in The City of New York or, in the case of any holder 
of more than US$l,OOO,OOO in principal amount of Notes, upon timely application, by electronic transfer of 
immediately available funds to an account of such holder at a bank in The City of New York. Payments of 
principal of and interest on the Global Notes will be made to the registered holder thereof in immediately 
available funds. Any payments of principal of and interest on the Notes to be made on a date that is not a 
Business Day may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on 
such date, and no additional interest shall accrue as a result of such delayed payment. “Business Day” means 
any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is not a day on which banking institutions are authorized or 
required by law or executive order to be closed in The City of New York or Hong Kong or Luxembourg. So 
long as any series of Notes is listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of such stock exchange 
so require, the Issuer will maintain a paying agent and transfer agent for such series of Notes in Luxembourg 
and payment of principal and interest on the Notes can be made at the offices of the paying agent in 
Luxembourg. The transfer of the Notes will be registrable and the Notes will be exchangeable at the 
Corporate Trust Office (as defined in the Fiscal Agency Agreement) in The City of New York, which initially 
will be the office of the Fiscal Agent, and at the office of the transfer agent in Luxembourg. In the case of the 
transfer of less than all of the principal amount of any individual Notes, a new individual Note will be 
delivered by the transfer agent to the transferee in respect of the untransferred portion. 

Ranking 
The Notes will constitute direct, senior, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking 

paripassu, without any preference or priority of payment, among themselves and with all other unsecured and 
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer. 

Guarantee 

The Guarantor will fully and unconditionally guarantee to each Holder of a Note authenticated and 
delivered by the Fiscal Agent the due and punctual payment of the principal of and interest on such Note (and 
any Additional Amounts (as hereinafter defined) payable in respect thereof), when and as the same shall 
become due and payable, whether at Stated Maturity, by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption, 
repayment or otherwise, in accordance with the terms of such Note and of the Fiscal Agency Agreement. The 
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Guarantee .will constitute a direct, senior, unsecured and unsubordinated obligation of the Guarantor and will 
rank pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor. 

Notes; Delivery and Form 

The statements set forth herein include summaries of certain rules’and operating procedures, of DTC, 
Euroclear and CEDEL which $11 affect transfers of interests in the ‘Global Notes, 

The Notes sold in offshore transactions in reliance on RegulationSwill be’initially in the form of one or 
more Regulation S Global ‘Notes without interest coupons, which will be deposited with Bankers’ Trust 
Company (in such capacity, the “Custodian”) for DTC and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 
of DTC. 

The Notes sold to QIBs in reliance on Rule 144A will be issued initially in the,form of one or more Rule 
144A Global Notes in registered ,form without interest coupons,. which, will be deposited with the .Custodian 
for DTC and registered in ‘the name of Cede ;Sr ,Co., as nominee of.DTC. The ‘Notes sold to Institutional 
Accredited Investors in the United States will be issued initiallysin the form of individual Notes in certificated, 
definitive registered form (“Restricted Individual Notes”). 

Notes issued in the form of individual definitive certificates willbe in registered form, without coupons, in 
denominations of US$lOO,O~O and in ,integral multiples of US$l,OOO above that amount. ,, 

.The Notes (including beneficial interests-in the Global Notes) will be subject to certain restrictions on 
transfer, set forth therein ‘and in the Fiscal Agency Agreement and will bear a legend regarding such 
restrictions as set forth under ‘fTransfer Restrictions”. Under certain circumstances, transfers may be made 
only upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent of a written certification (in the form(s) provided in the Fiscal Agency 
Agreement) : 

Until 40 days after the later of the commencement of the offering and the closing date, beneficial interests 
in a Regulation S Global Note may be held only through Euroclear or ‘-CEDEI+ unless delivery is made 
through the related Rule 144A Global Note in accordance with the certification requirements described in this 
paragraph. Prior to the 40th ,day after the later of the commencement of the, offering and the closing date, a 
beneficial interest in a Regulation S Global Note may be transferred to a person who takes delivery in the form’ 
of. an interest in the related Rule 144A, Global Note only upon receipt by the, Fiscal Agent of a- written 
certification (in the form(s) provided in the Fiscal Agency Agreement) (a) from the transferee to the effect 
that such transferee (i) is a QIB purchasing for its own account (or for the account of one or more QIBs over 
which account it exercises sole investment discretion) and (ii) agrees to comply with the restrictions on 
transfer set forth under “Transfer Restrictions”,‘and (b) from the’ transferor to the effect that the transfer was 
made’in a transaction meeting the requirements’of Rule 144A and~in’accordance with any applicable securities 
laws of any state of the United States or any other jurisdiction. After the 40th day after the later of the 
co’mmencement of the offering and the closing date, the certifications contemplated by clause (a) (i) and 
clause (b) of the preceding sentence shall no longer be required,“but the transferee will still be required to 
certify as provided by clause (a) (ii) of such sentence. After the 40th day after the later of commencement of 
the offering and the closing date (but not earlier), investors may also hold interests in a Regulation S Global 
Note through organiz,ations other than Euroclear or CEDEL that are either Participants (as hereinafter 
defined) or Euroclear Participants (as hereinafter defined) or CEDEL Participants (as hereinafter defined). 

Beneficial interests in a Rule 144A Global Note may be transferred to a person who takes delivery in the 
form of an interest in a Rule 144A Global Note without any written certification from the transferor or the 
transferee. Beneficial interests in a Rule’ 144A Global Note may be transferred to a person who takes delivery 
in the form of an interest in a Regulation S. Global Note only upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent of written 
certifications (in the form(s) provided in the Fiscal Agency Agreement) from the transferor to the effect that 
such transfer, is being made in accordance with Rule 903 or 904 of Regulation S or Rule 144 .under the 
Securities Act (if available) and that, if such transfer occurs on or prior to the 40th day after the 1,ater of the 
commencement of the offering and the closing date, the interest transferred will be held immediately 
thereafter through Euroclear or CEDEL. 
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Restricted Individual Notes (or any individual Notes issued in exchange for an interest in a Rule 144A 
Global Note under the circumstances described under “Individual Notes” below) may be transferred only 
upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent of a written certification from the transferor (in the form(s) provided in the 
Fiscal Agency Agreement) to the effect that such transfer is being made in accordance with tRe:restrictions on’ 
transfer set forth under “Transfer Restrictions”, and in the case of any resale other than a “Safe Harbor 
Resale” as defined under “Transfer Restrictions”, the execution and delivery by the transfeiee of a written 
certihcation (also in the form attached to the Fiscal Agency Agreement) and any additional documents or 
other evidence (including, but not limited to, an opinion of counsel) that the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent may, 
in its sole discretion, deem necessary or appropriate to evidence compliance with such Transfer Restrictions. 

Restricted Individual Notes (or any individual Notes issued in exchange for an interest in a Rule 144A 
Global Note under the circumstances described under “Individual Notes” below) may be transferred or 
exchanged for a beneficial interest in a Global Note only upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent of a i?iritten 
certification (in the form(s) provided in the Fiscal Agency Agreement) from the transferor or holder, 
respectively, to the effect that (a) in the case of a transfer for a beneficial interest in a Rule 144A Global 
Note, the transfer is being made to a person who the transferor reasonably believes is a QIB ,purchasing for its 
own account or for the account of one or more QIBs as to which account it exercises sole investment 
discretion and, in each case, in accordance with the requirements of Rule 144A and of any other applicable 
securities laws of any state of the United States or any~other jurisdiction, (b) in the case of an exchange for a 
beneficial interest in a Rule 144A Global Note, the holder is a QIB holding for its own account or the account 
of one or more other QIBs as to which account it exercises sole investment discretionand, in each case, such 
Restricted Individual Notes were acquired in transactions meeting the requirements of Rule 144A and any 
other applicable securities laws of any state of the United States or any- other jurisdiction or (c) in the case. of 
a transfer or exchange for a beneficial interest in a Regulation S Global Note, the person so certifying 
transferred or acquired (as applicable) such Restricted Individual Note in a transaction complying with Rule 
903 or Rule 904 of Regulation S or Rule 144 (if available) under the Securities Act and that, if such transfer 
occurs on or prior to the 40th day after the later of the commencement of the offering and the closing date, the 
interest transferred will be held immediately thereafter through Euroclear or CEDEL. 

Any beneficial interest in one of the Global Notes that is transferred to an entity who takes delivery in the 
form of an interest in the other Global Note will, upon transfer, cease to be an interest in such Global Note 
and become an interest in the other Global Note and, accordingly, will thereafter by subject to all transfer 
restrictions, if any, and other procedures applicable to beneficial interests in such other Global Note for as long 
as it remains such an interest. 

Investors may hold their interests in the Global Notes directly through DTC, CEDEL or Euroclear, as 
the case may be, if they are participants in such systems, or indirectly through organizations which are 
participants in such systems. CEDEL and Euroclear will hold interests in the Regulation S Global Notes on 
behalf of their participants through customers’ securities accounts in their respective names on the books of 
their respective depositaries, which are participants in DTC. 

Transfers between participants in DTC (the “Participants”) will be effected in the ordinary way in 
accordance with DTC rules. Transfers between participants in CEDEL and Euroclear (“CEDEL Partici- 
pants” and “Euroclear Participants”, respectively) will be effected in the ordinary way’ in accordance with 
their respective rules and operating procedures. I,_ 

Initial .settlement for the Notes will be made in same-day funds. So long as DTC:cpiinues to act as 
depositary for the Notes, the Notes will trade in DTC’s Same-Day Funds Settlement S~stem1 

Subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions applicable to the Notes, ctictictiarket transfers 
between DTC, on the one hand, and CEDEL or Euroclear Participants, on the other han& icifl be effected in 
DTC in accordance with DTC rules on behalf of Euroclear or CEDEL, as the case may be:@tlch cross-market 
transactions, however, will require delivery of instructions to Euroclear or CEDEL, as the+ CLase imay be,’ by the 
counterparty in such system in accordance with its rules and procedures and within its Mablished deadlines: 
Euroclear or CEDEL, as the case may be, will, if the transaction meets its settlement~requirements, deliver 
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instructions to DTC to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving payment in 
accordande with DTC’s Same-Day Funds Settlement System. 

Persons wh6 are not Participants may beneficially own interests in the Global Notes held by DTC only 
through Participants or Indirect Participants (as defined below) (including Euroclear and CEDEL). So long 
as Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Global Notes, Cede & Co. for all 
purpdses will be considered the $ole:,holder of such Notes. 

Payment of interest and principal ‘on the Global Notes will be made to Cede & Co., the nominee for 
DTC, as the registered owner of the Global Notes,by wire transfer of immediately available funds. Neither the 
Issuer, the Guarantor nor the Fiscal#Agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records 
relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the Global Notes or for 
maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interest. 

The Issuer has been informed by DTC that, upon receipt of any payment of interest on or the redemption 
price of the Global Notes, DTC will credit Participants’ accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to 
their respective beneficial interests in the Global Notes as show? on the records of DTC. Payments of interest 
on and ‘principal of the Notes held through CEDEL or Euroclear will be credited td the cash ac,counts of 
CED’EL Participants or Euroclear Participants, as the case may be, in accoraatice with the relevant systtm’s 
rules and procedures. Payments b;\i Participants $0 owners of beneficial interests, in th’e Global Notes held 
through s,uch Participants will be the responsibility of such Participants, as is the case with securities held by 
broker-dealers, either directly or through nominees, for the accounts Of customers and registered in “street 
name”. 

Because DTC can only act on behalf of Participants, who in’ &rn act on behalf,of Indirect Participants 
and certain banks, the ability of a person having a beneficial interest ;in the Glob~al Notes to pledge such 
interest to persons or entities that; do not participate in the DTC system, or to othe,nvise take actions in respect 
of such interest, may be affected ,by the lack of a physical certificate, 

So long a’s the Notes are represented by Global Notes and such Global Not& are held on behalf of DTC 
or any other clearing system, such clearing system or its nominee will be considered the sole holder of the 
Notes represented by the applicible Global Notes for all purpos’es under the ,@iscal Agency Agreement, 
including, without’ limitation, obtaining consents and waivers thereunder, and neither the Fiscal Agent, the 
Issuer nor the Guarantor shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. Neither the Fiscal Agent, the,Isstier 
nor the Guarantoi- shall have any responsibility or obligation witli respect to the accuracy of any records 
maintained by any cleaiing system or any Partidipant of such clearing @stern. The ‘klearing systems will take 
actions on behalf of their Participants ‘(and any such Participants will take’actions on behalf of any Indirect 
Participants) in accordance with their standard procedures. To the extent that shy clearing system acts upon 
the direction of the holders of the beneficial interests in the applicable Global Note and such beneficial holders 
give conflicting instructions, the applicable clearing system may take conflicting actions in accordance with 
such instructions. 

DTC-has advised the Issue* that’it will take any action permitted to bl taken by a holder of Notes 
(including, without limitation, the presentation of Notes for exchange as described below) only at the 
direction of one or more Participants and only in respect of the princihal amount of the Notes represented by 
the Global Note as to which such Participant or Participants has or have given such direction. 

CE,DEL or Euroclear, as the case may be, will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Notes 
(’ 1 d g, th t I’ t t’ mc u in wi ou lmi a ion, th,e presentation of Notes for exchange) on behalf of a CEDEL Participant or a 
EurocleaqParticipant only in accordance with its relevant rules and procedures and subject to its ability to 
effect such actions through DTC. 

DTC h$s advised the issuer as follows: DTC is a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws 
of the State ,of New York. a niember of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing cdrporatidn” within the 
meaning of the Uniform Commercial Code and a “Clearing Agency” registered pdr’suant to the provisions of 
Section 1’7A of the Exchange ,4ct. DTC was created to hold securities forI its Participants and facilitate the 
clearance and settlement of securities transactions between PBrticipants thrdugh electronic book-entry 
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changes in accounts of its Participants, thereby eliminating the need for the physical movement of certificates. 
Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations and may 
include certain other organizations. Indirect access to the DTC system is available to others such as banks, 
brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship width a Participant, 
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). 

Although DTC, CEDEL and Euroclear have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate 
transfers of interests in the Global Notes among participants of DTC, CEDEL and Euroclear, they are under 
no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued at 
any tinie. Neither tlie Issuer, the Guarantor nor the Fiscal Agent will have any responsibility for the 
performance by DTC, CEDEL and Euroclear, or their respective Participants or Indirect Participants, of their 
respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations. 

Individual Notes 
Notes initia!ly purchased by, or transfers of beneficial interests in the Global Notes to, Institutional 

Accredited Investors will be evidenced by Restricted Individual Notes registered in the name of the purchaser 
thereof. In addition, if DTC is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as depositary and a successor 
depositary is not appointed by the Company within 90 days or if there shall have occurred add be continuing 
an event of default (as described below) with respect~to the Notes, the Issuer will issue indjvidual Notes in 
certscated, definitive registered form in exchange for the Global Notes. 

Subject to the transfer restrictions set forth on the individual Notes in certificated$rm, the holder of 
such individual Notes in certificated form may transfer or exchange such Notes by surrendehng them at the 
Corporate Trust Office or at the office of the transfer agent in Luxembourg. Prior to any proposed transfer of 
individual Notes in ‘certificated form (other than pursuant to an effective registration &e&M), the holder 
may be,required to provide certtications and other documentation relating to the manner bf tich transfer and 
submit such certifications and other documentation to the Fiscal Agent or the transfer age&in Luxembourg 
as described under “Notes; Delivery and Forni” above. Upon the transfer, exchange or replacement of 
individual Notes ,in certificated form not bearing the legend referred to under “Transfer Restrictions”, the 
Fiscal Agent or the transfer agent in Luxembourg will deliver individual Notes in certificated form that do not 
bear the legend. Upon the transfer, exchange or replacement of individual Notes in certificated form bearing 
the legend, or upon specific request for removal of the legend on an individual Note in certificated form, the 
Fiscal Agent br the transfer agent in Luxembourg will deliver only individual Notes in certificated form that 
bear such legend or shall refuse to remove such legend, as the case may be, unless there is delivered to the 
Issuer such satisfactory evidence, which may include an opinion of counsel, as may reasonably be required by 
the Issuer that neither the legend nor the restrictions on transfer set forth therein are reqpired to ensure 
compliance wit@ the provisions of the Securities Act. 

I&den@& 
, 

Unless earlier redeemed (or, in the case of Series D Notes, repaid) in the limited circumstances skt f&h 
below, the Series A Notes will mature on August 1, 2007, the Series B Notes will rnature,on August 1, 2017, 
t&e Series C Notes will mature on August 1, 2027 and the Series D Notes will mature, ;on &gust 1, 2037 in 
each case at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof. The Notes of each qm may be redeemed 
at the option of the Issuer or the Guarantor, at any time in whole but not in part, upon ,nq 19s~ than 30 nor 
more than 60 days’ notice, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption if, as a result of any change in or amendment to the laws of’$e Cayman Islands, 
Hong Kong or the PRC (or of any political subdivision or taxing authority theredf’!m,therein). or any 
regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder or any change in the official int’erpretatiofi ot dfficial applicatioti 
of such laws, regulations or rulings, or any change in the official application or inte&&ation of, or any 
execution of or amendment to, any treaty or treaties affecting taxation to which the Caymarl Islands, Hong 
Kong or the PRC or.such political subdiviiion or taxing authority is a party, which chqge, amendment or 
treaty becomes effective on or after the date of this Offering Circular, the Issuer or the ,qawntor is or would 
be required on the next succeeding due date for a payment with respect to the Notes of such series to pay 
additional amounts with respect to the Notes of such series as described below under “Taxation”, and such 
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obligation cannot be avoided by’the use of reasonable measures available to the Issuer or the Guarantor; as the 
case may be. .Prior to any red,emption of the Notes of such series, the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may 
be shall deliver to the Fiscal Agent a certificate stating that the Issuer or the Guarantor; as the case may be is 
entitled toseffect such redemption and setting. forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent 
to the right of redemption have occurred. The.Notes are not otherwise subject to redemption at the option of 
the Issuer or the Guarantor. 

” ‘- 
Repayment 

The Series A Notes, the Series B Notes and the Series C Notes will not be subject to repayment at the 
option of the holders thereof,af any time prior to maturity. The Series D. Notes,will be subject to repayment at 
the option of the holders thereof on August 1,.2009 (the “Optional Repayment Date”), in whole or in part in 
increments of US$l,OOO (provided that any remaining principal amount of such Note will be at least 
US$lOO,OOO) , at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be repaid, ,together with interest accrued on 
such principal amount to the date of repayment (and any additional amounts), on notice given to the Issuer by 
such holder not more than 60 nor less than’30 days prior to the Optional Repayment Date. 

Additional Amounts 
All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes of.each series, and all payments pursuant to 

the Guarantee, shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any taxes, duties, 
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied,, collected, withheld or assessed by or 
within the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong or the PRC or any authority, therein or thereof having power to tax, 
unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In that event, the Issuer or the Guarantor, as 
applicable, shall pay such additional amounts as will result in receipt by the holders of the Notes of such series 
of such amounts as would have been payable to them had no such withholding ‘or deduction been required, 
except that no such additional amounts shall be payable: 

(i)’ in respect of any tax or other governmental charge that would not have been imposed but for a 
connection between the holder or, beneficial owner of a Note and the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong, 

” the PRC or any ‘political subdivisi,on or any authority’ thereof or therein, as the case may be, 
-otherwise than merely holding such Note or Guarantee or receiving principal or interest in respect 
thereof; or 

, (ii) in respect of any Note of such series or Guarantee presented. for payment more than 30 days after 
the relevant date, ‘except ,to the extent that the holder ~thereof ‘would have been entitled to such 
‘additional amounts on presenting the same for payment on the last day of such 30-day period. For 
this purpose, the “relevant date” in relation to any Note or Guarantee means (i) the due date for 
payment thereof and (ii) ‘if the full amount payable on such’ due date has not been received’in The 
City of New York by the Fiscal Agent on or prior to such ‘due date, the first date on which such full 
amount has been so received ,and notice to that effect has given to the holders of the Notes. 

,- .: Any reference in the Notes to principal and/or interest shall be deemed to include any additional 
amounts which may be payable as described above. 

,- ,. 
Certain Covenants 

~ Lien Covenant 
The Issuer will not, and wiil not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, create,’ incur, assume or permit to exist 

any Lien upon any of its property or assets, now owned or hereafter acquired,.to secure any Indebtedness for 
Borrowed Money of the Issuer or such Subsidiary (or any secured guarantee or indemnity in respect thereof) 
without, in any such case, making effective provision whereby the Notes will be secured at least ‘equally and 
ratably with such Indebtedness for Borrowed Money or by such other Lien as shall have been approved by the 
holders of the Notes as provided in the Fiscal Agency Agreement and such Notes. 

The Guarantor will not, and will not permit any of its Principal Subsidiaries (other than Listed Principal 
Subsidiaries) to create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien upon any of its’property or assets, now owned 
or hereafter acquired, to secure any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of the Guarantor or such Principal 
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Subsidiary (or any secured guarantee or indemnity in respect thereof) without, in any such case, making 
effective provision whereby the Guarantee will be secured either at least equally and ratably with such 
‘Indebtedness for Borrowed Money or by such other Lien as shall have been approved by the ,holders of the 
Notes as provided in the Fiscal Agency Agreement, for so long as such Indebtedness for Borrowed Money will 
be so secured, unless, after giving effect thereto, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of all such 
secured Indebtedness for Borrowed Money (excluding that of Listed Principal Subsidiaries and their 
respective Subsidiaries) entered into after the date of the initial issuance of the Notes would not exceed 30% 
of the Guarantor’s Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth. 

The foregoing restriction will not apply to: 

(a> 
@I 
cc> 

Liens existing on or prior to the Closing Date (as defined in the Purchase Agreement); 
Lie,ns for <taxes or assessments or other applicable governmental charges or levies; 
Liens created or arising by operation of law or created in the ordinary course of business, including, 
but not limited to, landlords’ liens ‘and statutory liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics, 
materialmen, vendors and other liens securing amounts which are not more than 60 days overdue or 
which are being contested in good faith; 

(4 

(e) 

(f) 

w 

(h) 

(9 

(j> 
W 
(1) 

Cm> 

(n) 

Liens incurred or deposits made in the ordinary course of business in connection with workers’ 
compensation, unemployment insurance and other types of social security or to secure the 
performance of tenders, statutory obligations, surety and appeal bonds, bids, leases, government 
contracts, performance and return of money bonds and similar obligations; 
easements, rights-of-way, zoning and similar restrictions and other similar charges of encum- 
brances not interfering with the ordinary conduct of the business of the Guarantor and such 
Principal Subsidiaries; 
Liens created on any property or assets acquired, leased or developed after the Closing Date; 
provided, however, that (i) any such Lien shall be cormned to the property or assets acquired, 
leased or developed; (ii) the principal amount of the debt encumbered by such Lien shall not 
exceed ‘the cost of the acquisition or development of such property or assets or a~$ improvements 
thereto or thereon and (iii) any such Lien shall be created concurrently with or within three years 
following the acquisition, lease or development of such property or assets; 
rights of setoff of a financial institution with respect to deposits or other accounts of the Guarantor 
or such Principal Subsidiary held by such financial institution in an amount not to exceed the 
aggregate amount owed to such financial institution by the Guarantor or such Principal Subsidiary, 
as the case may be; 
Liens on documents and the goods they represent in connection with letters of credit and similar 
transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business; 
Liens arising in connection with industrial revenue, development or similar bonds or means of 
project financing (not to exceed the value of the project tinanced and limited to the project 
financed); 

Liens in favor of the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary; 

leases, subleases, licenses and sublicenses granted to third parties in the ordinary course of business; 

attachment, ,judgment and other similar Liens arising in connection with the, court proceedings 
which are effectively stayed while the underlying claims ,are being contested in good faith by 
appropriate proceedings; i, :. 
any Lien against any property or assets of a Person existing at the time such Bedson becomes such a 
Principal Subsidiary or arising after such acquisition pursuant to contractual&rmmitments entered 
into prior to and not in’contemplation of such acquisition; I I’ : ‘-8 

any Lien existing on any property or assets prior to the acquisition thereof;iwhi& Lien was not 
created in connection with the acquisition thereof, except for Liens permitted, pursuant to clause 
(f) above; / 
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(0) Liens on any property or assets of the Guarantor or any such Principal Subsidiary in favor of any 
government or any subdivision thereof, securing the obligations of the Guarantor or such Principal 
Subsidiary under any contract or payment owed to such governmental entity pursuant to applicable 
laws, rules, regulations or statutes; 

(p) Liens created in connection with any sale/leaseback transaction; 

(q) any renewal or extension of any of the Liens described in the foregoing clauses which is limited to 
the original property or assets covered thereby; and ,, ‘_ 

(r) Liens in respect of Indebtedness for ‘Borrowed Money with respect to which the Guarantor or any 
Principal Subsidiary has paid money or deposited money or securities with.a trustee or depository to 
pay or discharge in full-the obligations of the Guarantor and its Subsidiaries in respect thereof 
(other than the obligations that such money or securities. so paid or deposited, and the proceeds 
therefrom, be sufficient to pay or discharge such obligations in full). 

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets 

‘Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor may, without the consent of the holders of any outstanding Notes, 
consolidate with or merge into any other Person in a transaction in which the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the 
case may be, is not the surviving entity, or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an 
entirety to, any Person unless, among other things, (i) any Person formed by such consolidation or into which 
the Issuer or the ,Guarantor, as the case may be, is merged or to whom the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case 
may be, ‘has conveyed, transferred or leased-its properties and assets substantially as an entirety is a 
corporation, partnership, ‘trust or other entity validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its 
organization ,and such Person assumes the Issuer’s or the Guarantor’s obligations, as the case may be, on the 
Notes’and under the Fiscal Agency Agreement (including, in the case of the Guarantor’s obligations, the 
Guarantee, and any obligation to pay any Additional Amounts), :(ii) immediately after giving effect to the 
transaction no Event of Default, and no event which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an 
Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing, (iii) any such Person not organized and validly 
existing under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of’Columbia or, as the case may 
be, Hong Kong or the Cayman Islands shall expressly agree in a supplemental Fiscal’Agency Agreement that 
all payments pursuant to the Notes or the Guarantee, as the case may be, in respect of principal of and interest 
on the Notes shall be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of,’ any’present or future taxes, 
duties,, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the 
jurisdiction of organization of such Person .or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, 
unless such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges are required by such jurisdiction or any such 
subdivision or authority to be withheld:or’ deducted, in which case such Person will pay such additional 
amounts of, or in’ respect of, principal. and interest (“Successor Additional Amounts”) as will result (after 
deduction of such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges and ‘any, additional taxes, duties,. 
assessments or governmental charges. payable in respect of such ‘Successor Additional Amounts) in the 
payment to the, holder of a Note of the amounts which would have been payable pursuant to the-Notes or the 
Guarantee, as the case may be? had no such withholding been required, subject to the same exceptions (other 
than the right to redeem the Notes as a result of such consolidation, merger, conveyance, lease or transfer) as 
apply with respect to the payment by the Issuer or the Guarantor of Additional Amounts in respect of the 
Notes or the Guarantee (inserting references to the taxing jurisdiction where appropriate) and (iv) if, as a 
result of the transaction; property of the Issuer or the Guarantor would become subject to a ,Lien that would 
not be permitted under “Lien Covenant?, the Issuer or the Guarantor or such-successor Person’ takes such 
steps as shall be necessary to secure the. Notes and the Guarantee equally and ratably with (or prior’ to) the 
indebtedness secured by such Lien. 

.’ / 
~’ 
I i 
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Events of Default 

Each of the following shall constitute an Event of Default with respect to the Notes of any series: ; 
(a) failure to pay principal of any Note of such series within five days after the,‘due date for such 

payment; 

(b) failure to pay interest on any Note of such series within 30 days after the due date for such 
payment; . 

(c) failure to perform any other covenant of the Issuer or the Guarantor in the Fiscal Agency 
Agreement or the <Notes continued for sixty days after there has been given, by registered or 
certified mail, to the Issuer or the Guarantor by the Fiscal Agent or by the holders of at least 25% in 
principal amount of the Outstanding Notes a written notice specifying such failure and requiring it 
,to be remedied and stating that such notice is a “Notice of Default” under the.Fiscal Agency 
Agreement and the Notes; 

(d) (i) failure to pay upon final maturity (after giving effect to the expiration of any applicable grace 
period therefor) the principal of any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of We Issuer, the 
Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary (other than a Listed Principal Subsidiary or any of its 
Subsidiaries), (ii) acceleration of the maturity of any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of the 
Issuer, ,the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary (other than a Listed Principal Subsidiary or any 
of ‘its Subsidiaries) following a default by the Issuer, the Guarantor or such Principal Subsidiary, if 
.such Indebtedness is not discharged, or such acceleration is not annulled, within 10 days after 
receipt of the written notice as provided’in the Fiscal Agency Agreement, or (iii) failure to pay any 
amount payable by the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary (other than a List,ed 

‘Principal Subsidiary or any of its Subsidiaries) under any guarantee or indemnity in respect of any 
Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of any other Person; provided, however, that no’ such event set 
forth in clause (i), (ii) or (iii) shall constitute an Event of Default unless”the aggregate 
Indebtedness for Borrowed Money to which ail such events relate exceeds US$30,000,000 (or its 
equivalent in any other currency); and 

(e) certain events in bankruptcy or insolvency in respect of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal 
Subsidiary (other than a Listed Principal Subsidiary or any of its Subsidiaries). 

If an Event of Default (other than an Event of Default described in clause (e) above) vviih respect to the 
Notes of any series shall occur and be continuing, the holder of at least 25% in aggregate!p,yFmzipal amount of 
the Outstanding Notes of such series by notice as provided’jn the Fiscal Agency Agreemerit may declare the 
principal amount’of such Notes of such series and any accrued and unpaid interest,t~&,ieop,,fo be due and 
payable immediately. If an Event of Default in clause (e) above with respect to the Note;,ryf such series shall 
occur, the principal amount of all the Notes of such series and any accrued and unpaid;!zte$st thereon will A 
automatically, and without any action by any holder of the Notes of such series, become immeplately due and 
payable. After any such acceleration but before a judgment or decree based on acceleration his been obtained, , c ;:,p 
the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Notes of sue 

9, 
,series may, under 

certain circumstances, rescind and annul such acceleration if all then existing Events ,o!;Def+ult have been 
cured or waived as provided in the Fiscal Agency Agreement. .Lti~ 

Modification and Amendment 
,’ 0, :_ 

‘I, ‘I ,, 
The Issuer may at any time, and the Fiscal Agent shall at any time after the Not&r& any series shall 

have become immediately due and payable due to an Event of Default, upon a requesbin writing made by 
holders holding not less than 10% of the outstanding principal amount of. the Notes of,ayseries, convene a 
meeting of holders of the Notes of such series. At a meeting of the holders of the Notes &any series,‘persons 
entitled to vote a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes of such series at the time outstanding 
shall constitute a quorum. In the absence of a quorum at any such meeting, the meeting may be adjourned; in 
the absence of a quorum at any such adjourned meeting, such adjourned meeting may be further adjourned; at 
the reconvening of any meeting further adjourned for lack of a quorum, the persons entitled to vote 25% in 
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aggregate principal amount of the Notes of such series at the time outstanding shall constitute a quorum for 
the taking of any action set forth in the notice of the original meeting. Any resolution at a meeting of holders 
of Notes of any series to modify or amend, or to waive compliance with, any of the covenants or conditions 
referred to above (other than those set forth below as requiring the consent of each holder of a Note affected 
thereby) shall be adopted if passed by the lesser of (i) a majority in aggregate principal amount of Notes of 
such series then outstanding and (ii) 75% in aggregate principal ainount of Notes of such series represented 
and voting at the, meet,ing. 

Modifications and amendments to the Fiscal Agency Agreement or the Notes of any series iequiring 
consent of holders may be made, and future compliance therewith or past defaults by the Issuer and the 
Guarantor may be waived, with the consent of the Issuer, the Guarantor and the holders of more than 50% in 
aggregate principal amount of the Notes of such series at the time outstanding, or of such lesser percentage as 
may act at a meeting of holders; provided that no such modification, amendment or waiver of the,,Fiscal 
Agency Agreement or any Note may, without the consent of each holder affected thereby, (i) change the 
stated maturity of the principal of or interest on any such Note; (ii) reduce the principal of or interest on any 
such Note; (iii) change the currency of payment of the principal of or interest on any such Note; (iv) change 
the provisions or procedures relating to the redemption or repayment of the Notes of such series; or (v) reduce 
the abovestated percentage of priri&pal amount ‘of Notes outstanding or reduce’ the quorum requirements or 
the percentage of votes required for the taking of Bny action. 

Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance 6 

The’ Fiscal Agency Agreement provides that the Issuer and the Guarantdr,’ at the Issuer’s or the 
Guarantor’s option, (i) will be dCem$d to have b&en discharged from ally’ And all’obligations in respect of the 
Notes of any series (except for certain’obligations to pay any additional amomits in respect of any withholding 
or deduction for Cayman Islands,’ Hong Kong ‘or PRC taxes (as d&scribed above under “Description of the 
Notes and the Guarantee - Taxation”) then’unknown, to register tht transfer of dr exchange N&es, to 
replace stolen, lost, destroyed or mutilated Notes upon satisfaction of certain requirements (including, without 
limitation, providing such security or indemnity as the Fiscal Agent, the Issuer or the Guarantor may require), 
to maintain-Paying Agents and to hold certain monies in trust for payment) or (ii) need not comply with 
certain restrictive, covenants of the Notes (including those described under “Certain Covenants”), in eadh 
dase if the Issuer or the Guarantor deposits, in trust with the Fiscal Agent, money in, an amount, or U.S. 
Government Obligations that through the scheduled payment of principal and inter&t in respect thereof in 
accordance with their terms will provide, not later than one day before the due date of any payment, money in 
an amount, or a combiriation thereof, in each ,case sufficient to pay &I the principal of, interest on, and any 
addi’tional amounts in respect to any withholding or deduction for Cayman Islands, Hong Kong or PRC taxes 
known at such time &d required to be paid with regard to, the Nqtes of such series, on the dates such 
payments are due in accordance with the terms ,of the Fiscal Agency, Agreement and the Notes of such series. 
In the case of discharge pursua$ to clause (i) above, the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may, be, iS 
required to deliver to the Fiscal Agent an opinion of counsel stating that (a) the Issuei or the Gu+ntor, as 
the case may be, has received from,, or there has been published by, the Unit&d States Internal ‘Revenue 
Service, a ruling, or (b) since the date of the Fiscal Agency Agreement, there has been a change in the 
applidable United States Federal income tax laws, in either case tb the &ffect that’the holders of tht Notes of 
such series will not recognize gain or loss for United States Federal income tax pu$oses as a result of the 
exercise of the option under clause (i) above and will be subject to Federal income tax on the same amount, in 
the same manner and. at the same times as would have been the casemif such option had not been exercised. 

Fiscal Agent 
Bankers Trust Company will be the Fiscal Agent under the Fiscal Agency Agreement. The Corporate 

Trust Office of the Fiscal Agent ‘is located at Four Albany Street, 7th Floor, New York, New York 10006, 
United States. The Fiscal Agent is an agent of the Issuer and does not have the duties’ of a trustee with respect 
to the holders of the Notes. 

The Fiscal Agent may resign at any time or may be removed by the Issuer. If the~Fisca1 Agent resigns, is 
removed or becomes incapable of acting as Fiscal Agent or if a vacancy occursin the office of the Fiscal Agent 
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for any cause, a successor Fiscal Agent will be, appointed in accordance with the provisions of the Fiscal 
Agency Agreement. 

Obligation Currency : 

To! the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Issuer’s obligation under t&Notes to make all 
payments in U.S. Dollars (the “Obligation Currency”) will not be satisfied by any payri&nt, ‘recovery or any 
other realization or proceeds in any currency other than the Obligation Currency. Th&%su& has agreed to 
indemnify the holders of the Notes in U.S. Dollars ‘for any shortfall in the aggregate*amount of Obligation 
Currency actually received by such holders and the ~aggregate amount of payments due. a&!@ayable: 

‘, 
Governing Law I 

The Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Notes and the Guarantee will be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of New York. 

Notices 

Notices to the holders of the Notes of any series will be mailed to them at their respective addresses in 
the register of Notes and shall be published (so long as the Notes of such series are listeclon the Luxembourg 
Stock Exchange and the rules of such stock exchange so require) in a leading newspaper having general 
circulation in Luxembourg (which is expected to be the Luxemburger Wort) . Any suchn&&. will be deemed 
to have, been given on the later of the date of such publication and the fourth day after&ing so mailed. So 
long as and to the extent that the Notes of any series are represented by Global Notes a$ puch Global Notes 
are held by DTC, notices to owners of beneficial interests in the Global Notes of such s$es may be given by 
delivery of the relevant notice to DTC for communication by it to entitled account hol@rs and such notice 
shall also be-published in the Luxemburger Wort as aforesaid. ,; ‘1 

Definitions 
‘2 ; 

Set forth below are definitions of certain of the terms used herein. Additional terms,am defined elsewhere 
above or in the Fiscal Agency Agreement. .m,, j,i 

“Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth” means the aggregate of (a) the amount paid t$&$redited as paid 
up on the issued share capital (including ordinary shares and preference shares) of the G$$n~or; and (b) the 
amounts standing to the credit of the Guarantor’s consolidated reserves (including but no!, ,muted to any such i 
balance on the share premium account, revaluation reserve and retained profits or losses);:a,qd (c) the amount 
of minority interests, all as shown by the then latest audited consolidated balance sheet o$[the Guarantor and 
its Subsidiaries;‘provided, however, that the aggregate of the amounts described in clauses, (a) through (c) 
above shall be adjusted, (to the extent that the same has not been taken into account,;~,sueh latest audited 
consolidated balance’ sheet) by (I) deducting therefrom the amount directly or indirect)7 .a$ibutable to the ‘i +’ 
Guarantor by which, the Market Value of any asset is less than its book value in ,uch latest audited 
consolidated balance sheet, and/or (II) adding thereto the amount directly or indi&$~~at$ibutable to the 
Guarantor by which the Market Value of any asset is greater than its book value mfudfi, latest audited 
consolidated balance sheet. ‘, :,a 

“Indebtedness for Borrowed Money” means any indebtedness for or in respect oP m6it%y borrowed that 
has a final maturity of one year or more from its date of incurrence or issuance and th&is evidenced by any 
agreement or other instrument, excluding trades payables; provided, however, that for the purposes of 
determining the amount of Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of the Guarantor outstanding at any relevant 
time, the amount included as Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of the Guarantor in. re@euk:of finance leases 
shall be the net amount from time to time properly characterized as “obligations uadtr&nance leases” in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in Hong Kong, -I _:. j ” 

“Lien” means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, encumbrance, hypothecation,‘title retention, security 
interest or, security ,arrangement of any kind. The term “Lien” shall not’ include an unsecured guarantee or 
Liens arising by operation of law. 
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“Listed Principal Subsidiary” means any Principal Subsidiary, the shares of which are at the relevant 
time listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or any other recognized stock exchange. 

“Market Value” means (a) the, best price at which the relevanf asse; (other than shares described ,in 
clause (b)) is expected to be sold on the,relevant date assuming (i) a wiliing seller; (ii) a reasonable period in 
which to negqriate’the’sale; (iii), value$ will remain constant during the negotiation period; (iv) the asset will 
be freely exposed to the market; and (G) there is no special purchaser; and (b) in the case of shares in 
associated companies which ?re quoted on any stock exchange, the value of :uch shares Faving regard to the 
underlying net Fssets of such associated companies and the percentage holding of the Guarantor and its 
Subsidiaries in such associated companies, in each such cast as reasonably determined by the board of 
directorssof the Guarantor after deducting (or, where such Market Value is to result in an adjustment to the 
then latest audited consolidated balance sheet, adjusting for) an estimate of the direct #tax liability #(if any) 
which: would arise on the sale of such asset at such price computed i solely by reference to such sale price and 
the cost. price for tax purposes. 

“Principal Subsidiary” means at any time a Subsidiary of the Guarantor: (1) as to which one or more of 
the following conditions is satisfied: (a) its net profits or (in the case of a Subsidiary of then Guarantor which 
has -one,, or more Subsidiaries,) consolidated net profits attributable to the Guarantor (in each case before 
taxation and extraordinary items) are at least 5% of the consolidated net profits of the Guarantor and its 
Subsidiaries (in each case before taxation and extraordinary items); or (b) its net assets or (in the case of a 
Subsidiary of the Guarantor ‘which has one or more Subsidiaries) consdlidated net assets attributable to the 
Guaraitor represent 5% or more. of .the consolidated net assets (after deducting minority interests in 
Subsidiaries) of the Guarantor,and its SubSidiaiies; all as calculated by reference to the the; latest audited 
accdimts (consolidated or, as the’ c&t may be, unconsolidated) of such’ Subsidiarjr and the then latest 
consolidated audited accounts of the GAarantor ,and its Subsidiaries, provided that! (i) in the case of a 
Subsidiary of the Guarantor acquired ‘after the end of the financial period to which the then latest relevant 
audited accounts relate, the reference to the then latest audited accounts for the purpbBes of the calculation 
above shall, until audited accounts for the financial period in which the acquisition is made are published, be 
deemed to be a reference to the accounts adjusted to consolidate the latest audited accounts of tlie Subsidiary 
in the accounts; (ii) if, in the case of a Subsidiary of the Guarantor which itself has one or more Subsidiaries, 
no consolid$ted ‘accounts are prepared and’ audited, its consblidated net assets and consolidated net profits 
shall be ‘determined on the basis of ‘pro forma consolidated accounts of the rele\)ant Subsidiary and its 
Subsidiaries prepared for this purpose by its auditors; (iii) if the accodnts of a Subsidiary of the Guarantor 
(not being a subsidiary referred to in (i) above) are not consolidated with those of fhe Guarantor then, 
with&t prejudice to the provisions of sub-paragraph (c) above, the determination. of ,whether or not the 
Subsidiary of the Guarantor is a Principal Subsidiary shall. if the Guarantor requires, be based on a pro forma 
consolidation of its, accounts (consolidated, if appropriate) with the consolidated accounts of the Guarantor 
and its Subsidi&i&; or (2) to which is transferred the whole or substantially the whole of the assets and 
undertaking of a Subsidiary of the Guarantor which immediately prior to the transfer was a Principal 
Subsidiary, provided that the Subsidiary of the Guarantor which so transfers its assets and undertaking shall 
forthwith upon the transfer cease to be a Principal Subsidiary (but without prejudice to clause (1) above) and 
the Subsidiary of the Guarantor to which the assets and undertaking are so transferred shall become a 
Princiljal Subsidiary; and for this purpose a certificate by the auditors of the Guarantor as to whether or>not a 
Subsidiary is a Principal Subsidiary shall be conclusive and binding on all parties in the absence of manifest 
error. ,,- “, 

“‘Subsidiary” mea’ns in relation to any herson and at any particular time any entity bf which more than 
50% of the issued share capital is then beneficially owned by such person and/or one or more of its 
Subsidiaries. 
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.( TAXATION 

Cayman bands 
: / _’ 

The Cayman Islands, currently have no exchange control restrictions and no income, ‘corporate or capital 
gains tax, estate duty, inheritance tax, gift tax or withholding tax applicable to the Is&& or any holder of 
Notes. Accordingly, payment of principal of (including any premium) and interest on, at&a$y transfer of, the 
Notes”wil1 not be subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands, no Cayman Islands withh&ing tax will be 
required on such payments to any holder of a Note and gains derived from the sale of Notes ti#‘not be subject 
to Cayman Islands capital gains tax. The Cayman Islands are not party to any double taxation treaties: I D 

The Issuer has received an undertaking from the. Governor-in-Council of the Cayman’ Mands’ that, in 
accordance with section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1995 Revis ion) of the Cayman Island& for a period of 
20 years from April 22, 1997 (the date of the undertaking), no law which is  enacted in the Oayman Islands 
imposing any tax to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciations shall apply to the Issuer’ or its  
operations and, in addition, that no tax to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciations or which is  in the 
nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall be payable by the Issuer (i) on the shares, dk%entures or other 
obligations of the Issuer or (ii) by way of the withholding in whole or in part of a payment of,dividend or other 
distribution of income or capital by the Issuer to its  members or a payment of principal or Merest or other 
sums due under a debenture or other obligation of the Issuer. .i,>, 11 

+. :I ill 
No stamp duties or s imilar taxes or charges are payable under the laws of the Cayman Iskurds in respect 

of the execution and issue of the Notes unless they are executed in or brought within (for example, for the 
purposes, of enforcement); the jurisdiction of the,Cayman Islands, in which case stamp duty of 0’.25% of the 
face amount thereof is  payable on each Note (up to a maximum of C.I.$250 (US$305)) unless stamp duty of 
C.I.$SOO (US$610) has been paid in respect of the entire issue of Notes. An instrument of transfer in-respect 
of a Note if executed in or brought within the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands will attract, a Cayman. Islands, 
stamp duty of C.I.$lO O  (US$122). I, 

2 
Hong Kong Taxation ‘, ., _, 

Under existing Hong Kong law neither the Issuer nor any paying agent will be req&e$,to declare or 
withhold for or on account of any Hong Kong taxes in respect of payments on the Notes. The Notes are not 
subject, to Hong Kong stamp duty upon issue or on any subsequent transfer. 

Hong Kong profits tax is  charged on every person carry ing on a trade, profession or business in Hong, 
Kong in respect of assessable profits arising in or ‘derived from Hong ,Kong from such trade, profession or 
business. Under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong ‘K&& as it is  currently 
applied, interest on the Notes will be subject to Hong Kong profits tax where such in&&t is  received by or 
accrues to: 

‘!, .,>, 
‘, ,?t 1J.t !, I ‘. 

(a) a financial institution (as defined in the ‘Inland Revenue Ordinance) and k&h ‘interest arises 
through or from the carry ing-on by the financial institution of its  business in &I@&Kong; or 

V) i I Cl 
(b) a corporation carry ing on a trade, profession or business in Hong Kong and suc l+i~#.~~est is  derived, 

from Hong Kong; or Ii..:; i 9 

(c)  a person, other than a corporation, carry ing on a trade, profession or business in Hong Kong and 
such interest is  derived from Hong Kong and is  in respect of the funds of $7, trade, profession or 
business. il- r  , 

Hong Kong is  not party to any income tax treaty with the United States. 

The foregoing summary is  of general nature only and is  based on Hong Kong law at the date of this 
O ffering Circular. Prospective purchasers of Notes should consult with their own professional tax advisors as 
to the particular consequences of holding the Notes which may affect them. 
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United States Taxation ” I 

‘The following is a general summary of the principal United States Federal tax consequences. of the 
ownership and sale of Notes, and is based on the United States Internal Revenue :Code of 1986, as ,amended 
(the “Code”), regulations thereunder, and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof, ail of which are 
subject to change with possibly retroactive effect. This summary applies only to holders that are the beneficial 
owners of the Notes, that purchase the Notes as part of their initial issuance at the initial offering price, and 
that hold the Notes as capital assets. The summary does not deal with special classes of holders, such as 
dealers in securities or currencies, banks, tax-exempt organizations, life insurance companies, persons that 
hold Notes as a hedge (or hedged against) currency or interest rate risks or that are part of a straddle or 
conversion transaction; or persons whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar. Prospective purchasers of 

‘Notes should consult their own tax advisors concerning the consequences of owning Notes in the purchasers’ 
particular circumstances, under the laws of the United States and any other relevant taxing jurisdictions. 

United States> Holders , 

Payments of Interest. Interest on a Note $11 be taxable to a United States Holder, as defined below, as 
ordinary income at the time it is ,received or accrued, depending on the United States Holder’s method of 
accounting for tax purposes. A United States Holder is a beneficial owner who or that is (i) a citizen or 
resident of the United States, (ii) a domestic corporation or (iii) otherwise subject to United States federal 
income taxation on a net income basis in respect of the Notes. 

Interest on the Notes, including Additional Amounts, if any, Will be income from sources outside the 
United States and, with ,certain exceptions, will be “passive” or “financial services” income which is treated 
separately from other types of income for purposes of computing the foreign tax credit allowable, if any, under 
the Code. 

Purchase, Sale and Retirement of the Notes. A United States Holder’s tax basis in the Note will 
generally be its cost. A United States Holder will generally recognize gain or loss on-the sale or retirement of a 
Note equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale or retirement (not including any 
amounts attributable to accrued and unpaid interest) and the tax basis of, the Note. Such gain or loss 
recognized on the sale or retirement of a Note will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Note was held for 
more, than one year. ‘, 

,, 
United States Alien Holders 

Payments of Interest. For purposes of this discussion, a “United States Alien Holder” is any beneficial 
owner of a Note who is for U.S. federal income tax purposes (i) a nonresident alien individual, (ii) foreign 
corporation or partnership or (iii) an estate or trust that is not subject to United States federal income tax on a 
net income basis in respect of income or gain from a Note. Subject to the discussion of backup withholding 
below, interest on a Note is exempt from United States federal income tax, including withholding tax, if paid 
to a United States Alien Holder, whether or not such Holder is engaged in a trade or business in the United 
States, unless: 

(i) the Holder is an insurance company carrying on a United States insurance business to which the 
interest is attributable, within the meaning of the Code, or 

(ii) the Holder or corporation has an office or other fixed place of business in the United States to 
which the interest is attributable and the interest is derived from the active conduct of a banking, 
financing or similar business within the United States or is received by a corporation the principal 
business of which is trading in stock or securities for its own account and certain other conditions exist. 

Purchase, Sale and Retirement of Notes 

A United States Alien Holder will not be subject to United States federal income tax on any gain realized 
on the sale or exchange of a Note unless (i) such gain is effectively connected with the conduct by the Holder 
of a United States trade or business, or (ii) in the case of a United States Alien Holder who is an individual, 
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such Holder is present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year &which such gain is 
realized and either the Holder has a “tax home” in the United State or the gain is attributable to an office or 
other fixed place of business maintained by such Holder in the United States. In additiorr’rhe Notes will be 
deemed to be situated outside the United States for purposes of the United States feder’+Iistate tax and will 
not be includible in the gross estate for purposes of such tax in the case of the estate ofa non-resident of the 
United States who was not a citizen of the United States at the time of death. 

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting , ‘-’ 

Certain information reporting requirements. and (in the case of certain non-corporate.&blders who fail to 
provide accurate taxpayer identification numbers or to report all interest and dividends,reqnired to be shown 
on their United States federal income tax returns) a 31% “backup” withholding tax may.appIy to payments of 
principal and interest made or deemed to be made to non-corporate holders in the United States (including 
payments made by wire transfer from outside the United States to an account maintained by the holder with a 
fiscal or paying agent in the United States). While United States Alien Holders are generally exempt from 
these withholding and reporting requirements (assuming the gain or income is not otherwise subject to United 
States federal income tax), non-resident alien individuals may be required to comply ,$ith certification and 
identification procedures in order to prove their exemption. Similar rules requiring rep&ting and withholding 
with respect to gross sale proceeds will apply to a United States Alien Holder who stills a Note through a 
United States office of a broker, and information reporting (but not “backup” withholding) will apply to a 
United States Alien Holder who sells a Note through (a) a non-United States branch of a United States 
broker or (b) a non-United States office of a broker that is a controlled foreign corporation for United States 
tax purposes or 50% or more of whose income is effectively connected with a United St@es.trade or business 
for a specified three-year period, in either case, unless the holder provides certification of non-United States 
status or otherwise establishes an exemption. 

EXCHANGE CONTROLS AND OTHER LIMITATIONSi 
AFFECTING NOTEHOLDERS 

Under existing Hong Kong law, (i) there are no foreign exchange controls or otI&r’laws, decrees or 
regulations that affect the remittance of interest or other payments on the Notes chxkd hereby to US 
residents and (ii) there are no limitations on the rights of non-residents or foreign owner’s to hold the Notes 
offered hereby. The Basic Law provides that no foreign exchange control policies shall be applied in Hong 
Kong. ‘8 :\‘lii / 
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

Subject to ‘the terms and conditions set forth in a purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) 
among the Issuer, the Guarantor and the,initial purchasers named below (the “Purchasers”), the Issuer has 
agreed to sell to the Purchasers and the Purchasers have agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase from the 
Issuer the respective principal’amounts of the Series A Notes, Series B Notes, Series C Notes and Series D 
Notes set forth opposite each of their names below. 

krincipal Principal Prkcipal Principal 
Amount of Amdunt of’ Amount of Amount of 

Purchaser Series A Notes Series B Notes Series C Notes Series D Notes 

,Goldman, Sachs & Co. ~us$307,500,000 US$205,000,000 Us$i05,000,000 us$102,500,000 
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith 

Incorporated 307,500,000 205,000,OOO 205,000,OOO 102,500,OOO 
Chase Securities Inc. 22,500,OOO i s,ooo,ooo 15,000,000 7,500,000 
HSBC Securities,, Inc. 22,500,OOO 15,000,000 1 ~,oqo,ooo 7,500,000 
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. ., 22,500,OOO 15,0~0,000 ‘15,000$00 7,500,000 
Peregrine Fixed Income Limited 22,500,OOO 15,000,000 15,000,000 

15,000,000 
7,5og,ooq 

UBS Securities’ LLC 22,500,OOO 15,000,000 7,5OO,OOO 
BancAmerica Securities, Inc. 4,500,000 3,000,000 '3,000,000 1,500,OOO 
CIBC Wood Gundy Securities Corp. ‘4,500,ooO 3,000,000 3,000,000 1,500,000 
CITIC Industrial Bank 4,500,oOO 3,000,000 3,000,000 1,500,000 
Citicorp Securities, ,Inc. 
Deutsche Morgan Grenfell Inc. 1’ 

4,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 1,500,000 
4,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 1,500,000 

Total .us$750,000,000 us$500,000,000 us$500,000,000 US$25O,OOO,OOO 
;, 

The Purchase Agreement provides that the obligations of the Purchasers to pay’for and accept delivery of 
the Notes are subject to the approval of certain legal matters by their counsel and certain other conditions. 
The closing of each of the Series,A Notes, the Series B Notes, the Series C Notes and the Series D Notes is 
conditioned upon the closing of each of the other three series. ,s 

The purchase price for the Notes will be the initial offering price set forth on the cover page hereof,less 
the discount applicable ‘to such series of Notes,. The Purchasers have advised the Issuer that they.propose 
initially to offer the Series A N’otes, Series B Notes, Series C Notes and the Series D Notes to investors at,the 
respective offering prices set forth on the cover page of this Offering Circular and to certain dealers at such 
prices less a concession not in excess of 0.40%, 0:50%, 0.50% and 0.40%, respectively; of the principal amount 
of the Series A Notes, Series B Notes, Series C Notes and the Series D Notes. The Purchasers may allow and 
such dealers may reallow a discount not in excess of 0.25% of the principal amount of the Series A Notes; 
Series B Notes,, Series C Notesor Series D Notes, as the case’may be,! to, certain other dealers. After the 
initial offering, the prices to investors, concessions and discounts may be changed. 

The Issuer and the Guarantor ,have agreed to indemnify the Purchasers against certain liabilities, 
including liabilities under the Securities Act, and to contribute to payments, the Purchasers may be required to 
make in respect thereof. In addition, the Issuer and the Guarantor have agreed to reimburse the Purchasers for 
certain of their expenses. ,’ 

The ‘Issuer ‘and the Guarantor have agreed in the Purchase Agreement that, for a period of 30 days after 
the date cf delivery of the Notes, they will not, without the prior written consent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. and 
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith’Incorporated, offer, sell,‘contract to sell or,otherwise dispose of any of 
its debt securities that are substantially, similar to the Notes of any series. 

The :Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may 
not be offered or sold in the United States except pursuant to an effective registration statement or in 
accordance with an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Accord: 
ingly, the Notes are being offered and sold by the Purchasers only (i) in the United States to QIBs pursuant to 
Rule 144A and to a limited number of Institutional Accredited Investors in transactions exempt from the 
registration requirements of the Securities Act (subject to the requirement that offers’and sales to Institutional 
Accredited Investors that are not QIBs may only be made by Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Merrill Lynch, 
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated) and (ii) outside the United States in reliance upon Regulation S. 
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Each Purchaser has severally acknowledged and agreed that, except as permitted by the preceding 
paragraph, it has offered and sold Notes and will offer and sell Notes (i) as part of their distribution at any 
time, and (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the later of the date upon which the offering of the Notes 
commences and the closing date, only in accordance with Rule 903 of Regulation S or Rule 144A under the 
Securities Act. Each Purchaser has agreed that, at or prior to conhrmation of a sale oE<Notes (other than a 
sale of Notes pursuant to Rule 144A), it will have sent to each distributor, dealer or person receiving’s selling 
concession, fee or other remuneration that purchases Notes from it or through it during the restricted period a 
confirmation or notice setting forth the restriction on offers and sales of Notes within the United States or to, 
or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons. 

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of the Notes, an offer or sale of the 
Notes within’ the United States by a dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the 
registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in compliance with 
Rule 144A or pursuant to another exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. 

Each Purchaser has severally acknowledged and agreed that (a) it has not offered or sold and prior to the 
date six months after the date of issue of the Notes will not offer or sell any Notes to persons in the U.K. 
except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of 
investments (as principal or agent) for the purpose of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which 
have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the U.K. within the meaning of the Public 
Offers’of Securities Regulations 1995, (b) it has complied, and will comply, with all applicable provisions of 
the Financial Services Act of 1986 of Great Britain with respect to anything done by it in relation to the Notes 
in, from or otherwise involving the U.K., and (c) it has only issued or passed on and will only issue or pass on 
in the U.K. any document received by them in connection with the issuance of the Notes to a person who is of 
a kind described in Article 11(3) of the Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment Advertisements) 
(Exemptions) Order 1996 (as amended) of Great Britain or is a person to whom the document may otherwise 
lawfully be issued or passed on. 

Each Purchaser has severally acknowledged and agreed that (a) it has not offered or sold and will not 
offer or sell in Hong Kong, by means of any document, any Notes, other than to persons whose ordinary 
business it is to buy or sell shares or debentures, whether as principal or agent, or in circumstances which do 
not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong 
and (b) unless it is a person permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong, it has not issued or 
had in its.possession for the purpose of issue and will not issue or have in its possession for the purpose of issue 
any advertisement, document or invitation relating to the Notes in Hong Kong other than with respect to 
Notes intended to be disposed of to persons outside Hong Kong or to be disposed of in Hong Kong only to 
persons whose business involves the acquisition, disposal or holding of securities whether as principal or agent. 

Each Purchaser has severally acknowledged and agreed that it has not made and willlnot make (on behalf 
of the Issuer) any invitation to the public in the Cayman Islands to subscribe for any 6f the Notes. 

In connection with the offering, the Purchasers may purchase and sell the NotesW the open market. 
These transactions may include over-allotment and stabilizing transactions and p&&~.&% to cover short 
positions created by the Purchasers in connection with the offering. Stabilizing transacttim consist of certain 
bids or purchases for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market m of the Notes; and 
short positions created by the Purchasers involve the sale by the Purchasers of a greater.number of Notes than 
they are required to, purchase from the Issuer in the offering. The Purchasers also may iTppose a penalty bid, 
whereby selling concessions allowed to broker-dealers in respect of the securities sold ia. the offering may be 
reclaimed by the Purchasers if such Notes are repurchased by the Purchasers in stgbilizing or covering 
transactions. These activities may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price’of the Notes, which 
may be higher than the price that might otherwise prevail in the open market; &MI these activities, if 
commenced, may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be affected on Ithe Ldxembourg Stock 
Exchange, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise. 

Chase Securities Inc. is an affiliate of The, Chase Manhattan Bank which is an ageqt and a lender to the 
Company under its HK!$I2,dOO million five-year loan facility agreement. 

I 
Application has been made to list the,Notes on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. No assurance can be 

given as to the liquidity of, or trading market for, the Notes. 
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TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS 

Because of the following restrictions, pau-chasers are advised to consult legal counsel prior to making any 
offer,, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Xotrs. I’ 

Each purchaser of the Notes of any series will be deemed to have represented and agreed as follows 
(terms used in this paragraph that are defined in Rule 144A, in Regulation~D or in Regulation S are used 
herein as defined therein): 

(1) it either (A) (i) is a QIB, (ii) is’aware that the sale of the Notes to it is being made in reliance 
on Rule 144A and (iii) is acquiring such Notes for its own account or the account of a QIB or (B) (i) is 
an Institutional Accredited Investor, (ii) is acquiring the Notes being sold to it, for its own account and 
(iii) is not acquiring such Notes with a view to any resale or distribution thereof other than in accordance 
with the’restrictions set forth below or (C) is outside the United States and is not a U.S. person;’ 

(2) it acknowledges that the Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered 
under the Securities Act or with any securities regulatory authority of ~ any jurisdiction and may not be 
offered or sold within the United States except as set forth’below; 

(3) it understands and agrees’ that if in the future it decides to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer 
any Notes or any beneficial interests in any Notes other than a Regulation S Global Note, such Notes 
may be offered, resold, pledged or transferred only (A) by an initial investor (i) to the Issuer; (ii) to a 
person whom the seller reasonably believes is a QIB that purchases ‘for its own’account or for the account 
of a QIB in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, (iii) in an offshore transaction meeting 
the requirements of Rule 903 or 904 of Regulation S under the Securities Act or (iv) pursuant to an 
exemption from registration under the Securities Act provided by Rule 144 under the Securities Act (if 
available) (resales described in subclauses (i) through (iv), of this clause (A), “Safe Harbor Resales”), 
or (B) by a subsequent investor, in a Safe Harbor Resale ‘or pursuant to any other available exemption 
from the registration requirements under the Securities Act (provided that, as a condition to the 
registration of transfer of any Notes otherwise than in a Safe Harbor Resale, the Issuer, the Guarantor or 
the Fiscal Agent may require delivery of any documents or other evidence (including but not limited to 
an opinion of counsel) that it, in its sole discretion, may deem necessary or appropriate to evidence 
compliance with such exemption), or (C) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act, and in each of such cases, in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any state of 
the United States and any other jurisdiction; 

(4) it agrees to, and each subsequent holder is required to, notify any purchaser of the Notes from it 
of the resale restrictions referred to in clause (3) above, if then applicable; 

(5) it understands and agrees that (A) Notes initially offered in the United States to QIBs will be 
represented by Rule 144A Global Notes, (B) that Notes offered to Institutional Accredited Investors will 
be in the’ form of Restricted Individual Notes and such Notes may not be held in book-entry form until 
they’have been transferred in accordance with the restrictions set forth below and no such transfer will be 
permitted unless the purchaser provides certification that the transfer complies with such restrictions, as 
described in “Description of the Notes and the Guarantee - Notes; Delivery and Form” and (C) that 
Notes offered outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S will be represented by Regulation S 
Global Notes; 

(6) it understands that the Notes, other than the Regulation S Notes,! will bear a legend to the 
following effect unless otherwise agreed to by the Issuer and the Guarantor: 

“THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY PURCHAS- 
ING THIS SECURITY, AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF HUTCHISON WHAMPOA FI- 
NANCE (CI) LIMITED (THE “ISSUER’) AND HUTCHISON WHAMPOA LIMITED (THE 
“GUARANTOR’) THAT THIS SECURITY MAY BE OFFERED,‘RESOLD, PLEDGED OR 
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (A) BY AN INITIAL INVESTOR (AS DEFINED 
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BELOW) (1) TO THE ISSUER OR THE GUARANTOR, (2) SO LONG AS THIS SECURITY 
IS ELIGIBLE FOR RESALE PURSUANT TO RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT 
(“RULE 144A”), TO A PERSON WHOM THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A 
QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A) IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH RULE 144A, (3) IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
RULE 903 OR 904 OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (4) PURSUANT 
TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 144 UNDER- 
THE SECURITIES ACT (IF AVAILABLE) (RESALES DESCRIBED IN SUBCLAUSES 
(1) THROUGH (4) OF THIS CLAUSE (A), “SAFE HARBOR RESALES”), OR (B) BY A 
SUBSEQUENT INVESTOR, IN A SAFE HARBOR RESALE OR PURSUANT TO ANY OTHER 
AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT (PROVIDED THAT, AS A CONDITION TO THE REGISTRATION OF 
TRANSFER OF ANY SECURITIES OTHERWISE THAN IN A SAFE HARBOR RESALE, THE 
ISSUER, THE GUARANTOR OR THE FISCAL AGENT MAY REQUIRE DELIVERY,OF ANY 
DOCUMENTS OR OTHER EVIDENCE (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED Ttj AN OPINION 
OF COUNSEL) THAT IT, IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, MAY DEEM NECESSARY OR 
APPROPRIATE TO EVIDENCE COMPLIANCE WITH SUCH EXEMPTION) OR 
(C) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURI- 
TIES ACT, AND IN EACH OF SUCH CASES IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE 
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES AND ANY OTHER 
JURISDICTION. SECURITIES OWNED BY, AN INITIAL INVESTOR’THAT IS NOT A 
QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER MAY NOT BE HELD IN BOOK,ENTRY FORM AND 
MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED WITHOUT CERTIFICATION THAT THE/TrRbNSFER COM- 
PLIES WITH THE FOREGOING RESTRICTIONS, AS PROVIDED IN THE FESCAL AGENCY 
AGREEMENT. THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY PURCHASING THIS SECURITY; REPRE- 
SENTS AND AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE ISSUER AND THE G&J~RANTOR THAT 
IT WILL NOTIFY ANY PURCHASER OF THIS SECURITY FROM IT iOF:THE RESALE 
RESTRICTIONS REFERRED TO ABOVE. I,/ I 

FOR ALL PURPOSES OF THIS SECURITY, THE TERM “INITIAL @E#TOR” MEANS 
ANY PERSON WHO, IN CONNECTION WITH THE INITIAL DISTRI~,~ION OF THIS 
SECURITY, ACQUIRES SUCH SECURITY FROM THE ISSUER OR &NY ,pITIAL PUR- 
CHASER (AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED IN THE FISCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT) PAR- 
TICIPATING IN SUCH DISTRIBUTION OR ANY AFFILIATE OF ‘ANY OF THE 
FOREGOING.“; J.! 

i ‘I 
(7) it understands that the Regulation S Notes will bear a legend to the following effect unless 

otherwise agreed to by the Issuer and the Guarantor: ;’ Ii 
.,, 

“THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGIST;&F) UNDER THE 
U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT’:‘&:;@ WITH ANY 
SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY JURISDICTION&~D, ACCORD- 
INGLY, MAY NOT BE REOFFERED, RESOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHEFWISE TRANS- 
FERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN ,E.#&lPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.“; 

;_: /. 
(8) it acknowledges that, prior to any proposed transfer of Notes in certificated form or of beneficial 

interests in Global Notes (in each case other than pursuant to an effective registration statement), the 
holder of Notes or the holder of beneficial interests in Global Notes, as the case ma+ &, may be required 
to provide certifications and other documentation relating to the manner of such tkik& and submit such 
certifications and other documentation as provided in the Fiscal Agency Agreemeilti’and 

(9). it acknowledges that the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Purchasers and<lothers will rely upon 
the truth and accuracy of the foregoing acknowledgements, representations andragreements and agrees 
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that, if any of such acknowledgements, representations or warranties deemed to have been made by virtue 
of its purchase of Notes are no longer accurate, it shall promptly notify the Issuer and the Guarantor, and 
if it is acquiring any Notes as a fiduciary or agent for one or more accounts, it represents that it has sole 
investment discretion with respect to each such account and that it’has full power to make the foregoing 
acknowledgments, representations and agreements on behalf of each such account. 

For further discussion of the requirements (including the presentation of transfer certificates) under the 
Fiscal Agency Agreement to effect exchanges of transfer of interests in Global Notes and’ of Notes in 
certificated form, see “Description ,of the Notes and the Guarantee - Notes; Delivery and Form”. 

AVAILABLEINFORMATION 

In order to preserve the exemptions for resales and transfers pursuant to Rule. 144A, the Guarantor has 
agreed to furnish, upon the request of any holder of a Note or of a beneficial interest in a Global Note, isuch 
information as is specified in paragraph (d) (4) of Rule 144A under the Securities Act to such holder or 
beneficial owner or to a prospective purchaser of such Note or interest in a Global Note in order to permit 
compliance by such holder or beneficial owner with Rule 144A in connection with the. resale of such Note by 
such holder or of such beneficial interest by such beneficial owner, unless, at the’ time of such request, the 
Guarantor is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13. or 15(d) of the’ United States Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) ? or is included in the list of foreign private issuers 
that claim exemption from the registration requirements of Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act (and therefore 
is required to furnish the Securities and Exchange Commission with certain information pursuant to Rule 
12g3-2 (b) under the Exchange Act). , 

,’ 
RATINGS 

,,', 
The Notes have received a rating of “A3” from Moody’s and “A+” from S&P. The ratings reflect the 

timely payment of principal of and interest on the Notes. The ratings do not address the payment of any 
Additional Amounts. The credit ratings accorded the Notes are not a ‘recommendation to purchase, hold or 
sell the Notes inasmuch as such,ratings do not comment as to market price or suitability for a particular 
investor. There can be no assurance that ‘the ratings will remain in effect for any given period or that the 
ratings will not be revised by the Rating Agencies in the future if in their judgment circumstances so warrant. 

VALIDITYOFTHENOTESASDTHE~~ARANTEE 

The validity of the Notes and the Guarantee under New- York law will be passed upon for the Issuer and 
the Company by Sullivan & Cromwell, Hong Kong and New York. Certain legal matters under United S’tates 
and New York law with respect to the Notes and the Guarantee will be passed upon for the Purchasers by 
Brown & Wood, a Multinational Partnership, Hong Kong. Certain legal matters under Cayman Islands law 
with respect to the Notes will be passed upon for the Issuer by Maples and Calder Asia. Certain legal matters 
under Hong Kong law with respect to the Notes and the Guarantee will be passed upon for the Issuer and the 
Company by Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, Hong Kong. Certain legal matters under Hong Kong law with respect to 
the Notes and the Guarantee will be passed upon for the Purchasers by Linklaters & Paines, Hong Kong. 

,‘. 

INtiEPENDENTAUDITORS. r/ 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company at December 31, 1994, 1995 and 1996 and for the 
years ended December 31, 1994. 1995 and 1996 included in this,Offering Circular have been audited by Price 
Waterhouse, independent auditors, as stated in their reports appearing herein. The consolidated financial 
statements of Cheung Kong Infrastructure at December 31, 1995 and 1996 and for the years ended 
December 31, 1995. and #1996 included in this Offering Circular ‘have been audited by Kwan Wong Tan & 
Fong, independent auditors, as stated in) their report appearing herein. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. The Regulation S Series A iVotes, the Regulation S Series B Notes, the Regulation S Series C Notes and 
the Regtilation S Series D Notes have been accepted for clearance through CEDEL and Euroclear with 
the Common Codes of,789?205,7893213, 7893221 and 7893248, respectively. The CUSIP Numbers for 
the Rule 144A Series A Notes, the Rule 144A Series B Notes, the Rule 144A Series C Notes and the 
Rule 144A Series D Notes are 448414Aq0, 448414AC6, 448414AE2 and 448414AG7, respectively, the 
CINS Numbers for the Regulation S Series A Notes, the Regulation S Series B Notes, ,the Regulation S 
Series C Notes and the Regulation S Series D Notes are G46715AA9, G467 15AB7, G46715AC5 and 
G46715AD3, respectively, and the CUSIP Numbers for the Restricted Individual Series A Notes, the 
Restricted Individual Series B Notes, the Restricted Individual Series C Notes and the Restricted 
Individual Series D Notes are 448414AB8, 448414AD4, 448414AF9 and 448414AH5, respectively. The 
International Securities Identification Numbers (“ISIN”) for the Series A Notes, Series B Notes, 
Series C Notes and Series D Notes are USG46715AA90, USG46715AB73, USG46715AC56 and 
USG467 15AD30, respectively. 

2. Application has been made to list the Notes on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The legal notice 
relating to the issue of the Notes, the Memorandum and Articles of Association and the By-laws of the 
Issuer will be registered prior to the listing with the Registrar of the District Court in Luxembourg 
(GrefJier en Chef du Tribunal d’Arrondissement de et ci Luxembourg),where such documents are 
available for inspection and where copies thereof can be obtained upon request. As long as the Notes are 
listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Issuer will retain a Paying Agentitidra,Fransfer Agent in 
Luxembourg. 1 !,,.j.: 

3. The Issuer and the Guarantor have obtained all necessary consents, approvals andiak!h&izations as may 
be required in connection with the issue and performance of the Notes, except as disclosed in this 
Offering Circular. The issue of the Notes was approved by resolutions of the Issuer passed on July 15, 
1997 and the giving of the Guarantee of the Notes by the Guarantor was authorized by resolutions of the 
Guarantor passed on July 15, 1997. 1 

4. Except as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no material adverse change in the financial 
position or prospects of the Company since December 31, 1996 and there has been no material adverse 
change in the financial position or prospects of the Issuer since its date of incorporation. 

5. Other than as referred to elsewhere in this Offering Circular, neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor nor any 
of the Guarantor’s subsidiaries is involved in any litigation or arbitration proceedings that if determined 
adversely to the Guarantor or any of its subsidiaries would in the aggregate have a material adverse effect 
on the consolidated financial position of the Guarantor and the Guarantor’s subsidiaries (including the 
Issuer) taken as a whole, nor is the Issuer, the Guarantor or any of the Guarant~$~aubsidiaries aware 
that any such proceedings are pending or threatened. 1 illal 1,: 

6. A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association and the By-laws of each’b;f %e Issuer and the 
Guarantor and copies of the Fiscal Agency Agreement and the Purchase A&&&ent (or, pending 
execution thereof, drafts thereof subject t’o modification) will, for so long as the’%& are listed on the 
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, be available for inspection during usual business’,hiilfrsdn any weekday 
(except public holidays) at the offices of the Fiscal Agent in Luxembourg. As ld&~s’any of the Notes 
remain outstanding, copies of the Guarantor’s annual report in English containii&‘tZll!audited consoli- 
dated financial statements and its most recent unaudited semi-annual interim report in English will be 
delivered to and be obtainable from the specified offices of the Fiscal Agent. 

7. The Issuer has not audited or published, and does not propose to audit or publv$. any of its accounts 
since it is not required to do so under Cayman Islands law. The Issuer is, how$e;r, required to keep 
proper books of account as are necessary to give a true and fair view of the state;: of its affairs and to 
explain its transactions. 

.N 
.‘I 

8. The Guarantor publishes annual report containing the audited non-consolidated:,balance sheet of the 
Guarantor and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company not later than five ,months 
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after the date upon which the financial period ended. The Guarantor publish& interim report containing 
the unaudited consolidated results of the Group for the first six months of each financial year not later 
than three months after the end of that six month period. The Guarantor does not publish audited interim 
consolidated nor non-consolidated financial statements. Copies of the’ annual report and the interim 

“report may be obtained at the oflice of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg. 

i 
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_’ 
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL, DIFFERENCES BETWEEN 
HONG KONG GAAP AND U.S. GAAP .I 

The akdited financial information of tl& Company is prepared and presented in accordance with Hong 
Kong GAAP. which differs in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. Certain significant differences 
between Hong Kong GAAP and U.S. GAAP relevant to the Company’s consolidated financial information 
are summarized below. Such summan; should not be construed to be exhaustive. Further, no attempt has been 
made to identify future differences between Hong Kong GAAP and U.S. GAAP as the result of prescribed 
changes in accounting standards. Regulatory bodies that promulgate Hong Kong GAAP and U.S. GAAP 
have significant projects ongoing that could affect future comparisons such as this one. Finally, no attempt has 
been made to identify all future differences between Hong Kong GAAP and U.S. GAAP that may affect the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements as a result of transactions or events that may occur in the future. 

1. Profit Recognition on Real Estate Development and Sales 

In Hong Kong, it is common for property, primarily residential: to be sold in advance of its completion. 

Under U.S. GAAP, profit is recognised in full on real estate sales using the full accrual method set out in 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate” (SFAS 66) if 
a) the profit is determinable, that is; the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured or the amount 
that will not be collectible can be estimated, and b) the earning process is virtually complete, that is, the seller 
is not obligated to perform significant activities after the sale to earn the profit. For retail commercial property 
sales profit is recognised in full when the development is completed and other conditions specified in SFAS 66 
relating to the expiration of the refund period, the amount of cumulative payments received, the receivable 
collection experience on the project as a whole and nonsubordination of receivables are met. Where these 
conditions are met but the development is not completed profit is required to be recognised by the percentage 
of completion method, provided the development has proceeded beyond its preliminary stages, can be 
completed according to plan and is practical. Where the conditions relating to collectibility of receivables have 
not been met profit is required to be recognized using the installment method prescribed by SFAS 66, if the 
conditions regarding the expiration of the refund period and the sufficiency of cumulative payments have been 
met and the seller is financially capable. If a retail ,land sales does not meet the criteria for accounting using 
the full accrual, percentage of completion or installment methods of revenue recognition then cash received 
from a buyer is accounted for as a deposit. Profit on construction in progress is required to be recognized either 
on the completed contract or percentage of completion method, depending on the circumstances. 

As allowed under Hong Kong GAAP, the Company recognizes profit on sales of property developed for 
resale on the date of sale or when the occupation permit is issued, whichever is later. 

2. Capitalization of Real Estate and Other Fixed Assets, Including Investment Property 

Under Hong Kong GAAP all direct and indirect costs relating to the acquisition or construction of fixed 
assets including interest costs on related borrowed funds during the construction period and certain operating 
expenses prior to the commissioning date are capitalised as fixed assets. 

Under U.S. GAAP interest attributable to the construction of fixed assets for the company’s own use or 
for sale or lease is capitalizable during the construction or acquisition period. Interest is capitalizable both on 
borrowings related to the relevant fLved assets and on borrowings that could have been avoided if expenditures 
for the assets had not been made. Indirect costs that relate clearly to a project under construction or 
development are capitalized. Other indirect costs are generally expensed as incurred. 

3. Revaluation of Assets 

As required by Hong Kong GAAP the Company’s real estate investment properties are restated in the 
consolidated financial statements on the basis of appraised values and an offsetting-entry is recorded in the 
Company’s consolidated reserves. Investment properties which are held on leases with unexpired terms of 
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more than 20 years are not depreciated as the appraised values take into account the state of each property at 
the date of appraisal. 

Under U.S. GAAP, real estate investment properties must be stated,at historical cost and depreciated 
over the estimated useful life of the asset. 

4. Land Held Under Lease 

As permitted by Hong Kong’ GAAP prior to 1996, the Company did not amortize land held under long 
term leases. U.S. GAAP requires all leasehold land to be depreciated over the term of the lease. 

Effective January 1, 1996 Hong Kong GAAP also requires all leasehold land to, be depreciated over the 
term of the lease. 

5. Deferred Expenditures 

Commissions paid to dealers and certain’ other selling costs incurred to, add new subscribers to the 
communication service networks are deferred and amortized on a straight line basis over periods of up to three 
years. ‘, “, 

Telecommunications and other projects’ pre-operating expenses, including, interest, are deferred and 
amortized over periods of up to ten years from the date of commencement’ of operations. 

Under U.S. GAAP costs incurred to add new subscribers to communications service networks are 
expensed as incurred. Pre-operating expenses of telecommunications’ and other projects are also generally 
expensed as incurred unless they are directly related to the construction of a fixed asset. 

.: 
6. Depreciation of Cellular Networks ,‘I ,, 

The Company depreciates certain of its cellular networks according to a pro&of depreciation rates that 
rise in later years to reflect the increase in the number of subscribers and related ‘network revenues as the 
service develops and matures: Under U.S. GAAP, depreciation is generally recognized on a straight line basis 
over the estimated useful life of an asset commencing when the asset is first placed ‘in service. 1 

7. Defeasance of Finance Leases 

In 1995 the Company recognized a gain in respect of the economic defeasance of lease obligations for its 
digital network in the United Kingdom. The defeasance arrangements did not qualify as an “in substance 
defeasance”‘of the lease obligations under U.S GAAP which’ requires such’ defeasance deposits to be held 
under a formal trust arrangement for the benefit of the lessor. Under U.S. GAAP, therefore, the gain would be 
spread over the life of the lease and the deposit and lease obligations shown gross in the Company’s 
consolidated balarme sheet at December 31, 1996. : ,, 

8. Restructuring and Other Provisions 

The Company and its subsidiaries periodically establish provisions for restructuring and/or closure of 
selected operations and estimated future losses of establishing busineses. Such ,provisions are established on 
the basis of Hong Kong GAAP. Certain of the provisions would be required to be adjusted, and the related 
expenses recognized in different periods; .to conform with the more prescriptive requirements of U.S. GAAP. 

9. Accounting for Impairment of Assets 

.There are no accounting rules in Hong Kong prescribing the circumstances in which an asset impairment 
should be recognized in a company’s financial statements nor the basis for determining the amount of such an 
impairment. U.S., GAAP requires asset impairments to be recognized and accounted for on the basis of the 
prescriptive requirements of SFAS 121 “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-lived Assets and for Long- 
lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” 
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10. Deferred Taxation 

U.S. GAAP generally requires that deferred taxation be provided for all future taxable timing differences 
regardless of when reversal is anticipated in accordance with Statement of Financial iAccounting Standards 
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. Statement 
109 also requires the recognition of deferred tax assets on future deductible temporary differences including 
tax loss and credit carry forwards if realization of such future benefits is more likely than not. Under Hong 
Kong GAAP, deferred taxation is calculated under the liability method in respect of the taxation effect arising 
from all timing differences which are expected with reasonable probability to crystallize in the foreseeable 
future. Tax deferred or accelerated by the effect of timing differences is accounted for to the extent that it is 
probable that a liability or asset will crystallize. fieferred tax net debit balances are not carried forward as 
assets, except to the extent that they are expected to be recoverable. 

il. Share of Results of Associated Companies and Joint Ventures 

Under U.S. GAAP, the share of results of investee companies accounted for under the equity method is 
generally.based on the investor’s ownership percentage applied to the investee’s net income, with the resulting 
share of the investee’s net income presented as a single amount in the investor’s financial statements. 

Under Hong Kong GAAP, the share of the investee’s results may also be presented as two separate 
amounts based on the equity share of (i) the investee’s income before income taxes and (ii) the investee’s 
income tax provision. 

12. Valuation of Marketable Securities 

The Company values investments in listed equity securities included within managed funds and other 
investments at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value, as permitted by Hong Kong GAAP. U.S. 
GAAP requires listed equity securities which comply with the definition of a marketable security under 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No,. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and 
Equity Securities” to be stated at market valye. The difference between cost and market value is either 
included in income or shareholders’ equity, depending on whether the security is classified as held for trading 
purposes or as “available-for-sale”. 

13. Pension Costs 

The Company operates several defined benefit schemes. Under Hong Kong GAAP,, ;the expected costs of 
providing pensions are charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the costs QV~ !he service lives of 
employees in the scheme in such a way that the cost is a substantially level percentage Q$ current and expected 
future pensionable payroll. 

Under US. GAAP, a net periodic pension cost is computed based on the standardW& tiethod set out in 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”. 

/‘(1, 

14. Dividends !, 

Under Hong Kong GAAP, dividends payable are recorded in the period to which’ the’ dividends relate. 

Under U.S. GAAP, dividends are recorded in the period in which they are declared. 

15. Earnings Per Share Iill ; 

Under Hong Kong GAAP common stock equivalents are ‘included in the calculation Iof fully diluted 
earnings per share but not in the calculation of basic earnings per share. Under U.S. GfiP, common stock 
equivalents, whicli are non-common stock securities which give their holders the right through conversion or 
exercise to acquire shares of common stock are added to common shares in computing primary earnings per 
share if they are dilutive in nature. 
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16. Consolidation of Financial Statements of Investee Companies 
According to the accounting practices in the United States, consolidation of the financial statements of a 

subsidiary company or equity joint venture into the consolidated financial statements of its parent company is 
generally required if the parent company has a controlling financial interest in the investee. Ownership of more 
than 50% of the company’s voting shares is normally required to evidence control although in limited 
circumstances consolidation may be required where the parent owns less than fifty per cent. of the company’s 
voting shares. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong require consolidation of the financial statements 
of a subsidiary company, as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, except in limited circumstances, 
including where the parent company cannot appoint a majority of the board of directors; does not own share 
capital carrying more than half the votes or where the parent company’,s ability to control the subsidiary’s 
assets and operations is significantly impaired. A company is considered a subsidiary if its parent company 
controls the composition of its board of directors, controls more than half of the company’s voting power or 
holds more than half of the issued share capital. 

17. Goodwill and other Intangible Assets 

Goodwill or negative goodwill on consolidation represents the excess of costs of investments over the fair 
value attributable to the net assets acquired or vice versa. ’ 

Under Hong Kong GAAP, there is no mandatory accounting ‘standard on goodwill and other intangible 
assets. Goodwill or negative goodwill attributable to the acquisition of subsidiary or associated companies is 
generally written: off or credited directly to reserves immediately upon acquisition or amortized over its 
estimated useful, life. The Company has elected to charge or credit goodwill arising upon acquisition to 
reserves in the year in which it arises in the Hong Kong GAAP financial statements. Goodwill arising on 
investments in associated companies and the, Company’s share of goodwill reported in associated companies’ 
accounts are also charged or credited against reserves in the year in which they arise. Intangible assets 
attributable to the acquisition of subsidiary or associated companies are ‘generally amortized over their 
estimated useful lives or stated at’cost, depending on the circumstances. 

U.S. GAAP requires positive goodwill and other intangible assets attributable to the acquisition of 
subsidiary or associated companies and the Company’s share of goodwill reported in the associated companies 
accounts, to be recorded on the balance sheet as intangible assets and amortized over the estimated life of the 
benefits received from the acquisition, generally using the straight line method over a period not exceeding 
forty years. 

18. Exceptidnal Items 

Under Hong Kong GAAP, items of operating income or expense-of such size or importance that their 
disclosure is necessary to explain the performance of the enterprise’ are separately disclosed in the profit and 
loss account as exceptional items. Under U.S. GAAP, all items of income or expense are disclosed in the 
profit and loss account according to their nature and there is no exceptional item category. ‘, 

19. Profit on Deemed Disposal 
As described in Note 25 of the Notes to the Accounts, as permitted by Hong Kong GAAP, subsequent to 

December 31, 1996 the Company realised a profit of approximately HK$1,200 million arising from the 
reduction of its effective interest in Hongkong Electric Holding Ltd. attributable to a reorganization. U.S. 
GAAP would not permit recognition of this gain in income. ~ 

20. Accounting Policies of Principal Associated Companies 
The Company’s principal associated companies are Husky Oil Ltd., Hongkong Electric Holdings Ltd., 

Orange plc (since April 1, 1996) and Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Ltd. 

The accounting policies of these companies, which are used to determine the Company’s share of results 
of, and investments in, associated companies, differ in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. There 
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follows a summary of such differences. Again, this summary should not be cons&u&d to be exhaustive and 
further differences might be identified if audited V.S. GAAP financial statements o$,each of the associates 
were prepared. .’ 

Husky Oil 
_’ 

Husky prepares its accounts in accordance with Canadian GAAP. The Comb&y equity accounts its 
attributable share of Husky’s Canadian GAAP net earnings on the basis that any restatements to Hong Kong 
GAAP would not be material. Differences between Canadian and U.S: GAAP affecti@,Husky’s net earnings 
include the following: -. ,, 

l Husky performs a cost recovery ceiling test for each cost centre which Ii&&s ,net capitalized costs 
to the undiscounted estimated future net revenue from pro&d oil and gas’ &&-&s plus the cost of 
unproved properties less impairment, using year end prices or average”$i& in that year if 
appropriate. In addition, the aggregate value of all cost centres is furthe?ri&ted by including 
financing costs, administration expenses, future removal and site restor&& costs arid income 
taxes. Under U.S. GAAP, companies using the full cost method of accqunting for oil and gas 
producing activities perform a ceiling test on each cost centre using dis&nted estimated future 
net revenue from proved oil and gas reserves using a discount factor of Npercent. Prices tised in 
the U.S. GAAP ceiling tests performed for this reconciliation weretihose in effect at the 
applicable year end. Financing and administration costs are excluded from-,the calculation under 
U.S. GAAP. 

l Husky defers unrealized gains and losses on translation of foreign d&tiinated long term 
monetary items which are amortized over the remaining lives of the items. ,under U.S. GAAP; 
gains or losses on translation of ‘foreign denominated long term monetary items are credited or 
charged to earnings immediately. 

,ri ‘. I’ 
!~ 1:_ t 

l Husky expenses costs related to medical and dental post retirement ben&@ as incurred. Under 
U.S. GAAP, companies are required to use the projected benefit met&@ prorated based on 
service. i, , 

l Husky carries the financial securities fund, which was a major asset of dismtinued operations, at 
cost less impairment and recorded gains and losses when realized. Under U& GAAP, companies 
are required to carry marketable securities not held to maturity at a markedto market value and 
record unrealized holding gains and losses for trading securities in earnings. 

l Husky records interest waived on subordinated shareholders’ loans and di+lends waived on 
Class C shares as a reduction of ownership charges. Under U.S. GAA$‘,;l$ived interest and 
dividends in those years would be recorded as interest on subordinated Wr&holders’ loans and 
dividends on Class C shares as capital contributions. ,.I / I. 

‘. ;.c, ,,’ 
Hongkong Electric Holdings Ltd. ‘Ill 

The principal differences between Hong Kong and U.S. GAAP affecting the re+~&operations of this 
company are as follows: ! ,J’ [ 

l offset of goodwill arising on consolidation against reserves in the year.,jll which it arises. See 
“Goodwill and other Intangible Assets” above. j..' 

l non depreciation of long term leasehold land. See “Land Held Under LeiiSe” above. 

l basis of accounting for retirement scheme costs. See “Pension Costs” aye, 

l capitalization of exchange gains and losses in respect of fixed assets,imder construction. U.S. 
GAAP generally requires such gains and losses to be expensed. j ,: ;’ 

l different basis for capitalizing interest- during the construction peri& ;of fixed assets. See 
“Capitalization of Real Estate and Other Fixed Assets, Including Investment Property” above. 
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l accounting for deferred taxation using the partial provision method U.S. GAAP requires use of 
the full provision method. See “Deferred Taxation” above. 

l presentation of the share of an investee’s results as two separate amounts. See “Share of Results of 
Associated Companies and Joint Ventures” above. 

l recognition of profit on sales of properties on the later of the date of sale or the date of issue of the 
relevant occupation permit, whichever is later. See “Profit Recognition on Real Estate Develop- 
ment and Sales” above. 

Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Ltd. 

The principal differences between Hong Kong and U.S. GAAP affecting the results of operations of this 
company are as follows: 

l different basis for capitalizing interest during the construction period of fixed assets. See 
“Capitalization of Real Estate and Other Fixed Assets, Including Investment Property” above. 

l expensing of most expenses incurred in the pre-operating period under U.S. GAAP. See 
“Deferred Expenditures” above. 

9 accounting for deferred taxation using the partial provision method U.S. GAAP requires use of 
the full provision method. See “Deferred Taxation” above. 

l recognition of transponder revenue in accordance with the terms of the agreements, which include 
escalation clauses. U.S. GAAP requires recognition of revenue under such agreements on a 
straight line basis. 

Orange plc 

Until April 1, 1996 Orange was a subsidiary of the Company and its results have been consolidated in the 
Company’s accounts up to March 3 1, 1996. Significant differences between the company’s accounting policies 
and U.S. GAAP affecting the consolidated results for these periods are described above and include the 
company’s policy of capitalizing commissions paid to dealers, the treatment of telecommunications projects’ 
pre-operating expenses the basis for depreciating cellular networks and accounting for a gain on defeasance of 
a finance lease. 

Cheung Kong Infrastructure 

Effective March 10, 1997 the Company acquired a controlling interest in Cheung Kong Infrastructure. 
The financial statements of Cheung Kong Infrastructure attached hereto as Annex I and used to prepare the 
pro forma profit and loss account of the Company for the year ended December 31, 1996 and at that date are 
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong GAAP which differ in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. 
Such differences include: 

l elimination of goodwill against reserves. See “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” above. 

l different rules for determining when a subsidiary should be consolidated. See “Consolidation of 
Financial Statements of Investee Companies” above. 

l inclusion of interest income in revenue. 

l accounting for deferred taxation on the partial provision method. See “Deferred Taxation” above. 

l deferral of pre-operating expenses. See “Deferred Expenditures” above. 

. accounting for defined benefit costs. See “Pension Costs” above. 
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‘, AUDITORS’REPORT I 

To the Members of Hutchison Whampoa Limited 
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

We have audited the accounts on pages F-5 to F-28 which have been prepared in, accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. ‘_ 

, 
Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors :. 

The directors are responsible for preparing accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing 
accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and 
applied consistently. 

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to 
report our opinion to you. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong 
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts 
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements 
made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether 
the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall 
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the state of the affairs of 
the Group at 31 December 1996 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 
Certijied Public Accountants 

Hong Kong, 26 March 1997 
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AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of Hutchison Whampoa Limited / 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

We have audited the accounts on pages ‘F-5 to F-28 which have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. 

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors 

pi “The directors are responsible for preparing accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing 
accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and 
applied consistently. 

It ‘is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to 
report our opinion to you. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong 
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts 
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements 
made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to-provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether 
the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we’ also evaluated the overall 
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view, in all material respects,‘of the state of the affairs of 
the Group at 31 December 1995 and of its profit; and cash flows for the year then ended. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 
CertiJied Public Accountants 

Hong Kong, 28 March 1996 
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AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of Hutchison Whampoa Limited 
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

We have audited the accounts on pages F-5 to F-28 which have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. 

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors 

The directors are responsible for preparing accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing 
accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and 
applied consistently. 

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to 
report our opinion to you. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong 
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts 
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements 
made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether 
the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall 
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of #them state of the affairs of 
the Group at 31 December 1994 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended. .- 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 
CertiJied Public Accountants 

Hong Kong, 23 March 1995 
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HUTCHISON WHAMPOA LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
for the year ended 31 December 1996 

Tdmover 

Operating profit 
Sliare of profits less losses of associated companies 

i ,, Exceptional item ‘. 
:Profit before taxation 
Taxation 
Profit after taxation 
Minority interests 
Profit Attributable to the Shareholders 
Dividends 
Profit for the Year Retained 

Earnings per Share 

Note 

2 

8 
9 

10 

1996 
(US$ millions) 

4,743 

810 
470 
530 

1,810 
169 

1,641 
86 

1,555 
738 
817 

US43 cents 

1996 1995 1994 
(HK$ millions) 

36,662 35,026 30,168 

6,262 
3,631 
4,100 

13,993 
1,311 

12,682 
662 

12,020 
5,703 
6,317 

6,523 
3,902 

756 

5,141 
5,099 

- 

11,181 
1.133 

10,048 
481 

10,240 
1,586 , 
8,654 

633 
9,567 8,021 
4.267 3.362 
5,300 4.659 

HK$3.32 HK$2.65 HK$2.22 

F-5 



HUTCHISON WHAMPOA LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
at 31 December 1996 

Note 1996 1996 1995 1994 
(USS millions) (HK$ millions) 

Fixed assets 
Deferred expenditures 
Associated companies 
Managed funds and other investments 
Current assets 
Current liabilities 
Net current assets (liabilities) 
Employment of Capital 

Share capital 
Reserves 
Shareholders’ Funds 
Minority interests 
Long term liabilities 
Deferred taxation 
Capital Employed 

11 8,174 
12 141 
13 3,411 

16 j 2,625 1 

(246) 
14,397 

17 117 
18 8.796 

8,913 
19 1,011 
20 4,458 
21 15 

14.397 

63,188 54,508 52,192 
1,086 2,536 1,153 

26,369 22,778 21,705 
22,551 15,965 13,223 

(1,903) (5,329) 361 
111,291 90,458 88,634 

905 904 905 
67,994 57,935 56,252 
68,899 58,839 57,157 

7,814 5,333 5,144 
34,459 26,174 26,i89 

119 112 144 
111.291 90,458 88,634 
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HUTCHISON WHAMPOA LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31 December 1996 

Note 

Net cash inflow from operating ‘activities 
Returns on investments 
Dividends received from associated companies 
Interest and other dividends received 

22(a) 

Servicing of finance 
Interest paid 
Dividends paid to minority shareholders 
Dividends paid to shareholders 

Taxation 
Hong Kong profits tax paid 
Overseas profits tax paid 

Investing activities 
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiary companies (net of 

cash and cash equivalents sold) 22(b) 
Proceeds on disposal of and repayments from 

associated companies 
Proceeds on disposal of other investments 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Interest capitalised as fixed assets 
Additions to deferred expenditures 
Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash and 

cash equivalents acquired) 
Purchase of and advances to associated companies‘ 
Additions to managed funds and other investments 

22(c) 

Net cash outflow before financing activities 
Net cash inflow from financing activities 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

22(d) 

22(e) 

1996 
(US$ millions) 

1,479 

1996 1995 1994 ~ ~ 
(HK$ millions) 

11,435 8,552 6,618 

310 
301 
611 

2,397 3,217 3,407 
2,32,8 1,972 1,303 
4,725 5,189 4,71b 

(365) (2,821) (2,808) (1,307) 
(57) (439) (523) (1,059) 

(594) (4,594) (3,614) (2,714) 

(1,016) (7,854) (6,945) (5,080) 

(101) 
(22) 

(123) 

11 

17 

1,424 
303 

(1,677) 

,‘(l:Q 

(30) 
(Low 
(1,178) 
(2,360) 

(1,409) 
699 

(710) 

(785) 
(168) 

(432) ,‘$ 
(112) ~ ___ L 

(953) (544) . (848) 

‘82 1,331 488 

132 -’ 472 

11,010 2,526 - 
2,343 1,513 4,294 

(12,964) (6,311) (7,162) 
8’ 261 
(1,378) (1,8& 

360 
(910) 

(229) (1,749) (1,391) 
(8,394) (2,767) (6,041) 
(9,106) (3,341) (3,027) 

(18,243) (10,650) (12,917) 

(10,890) (4,398) (7,517) 
5,404 8,348 14,039 

(5,486) 3,950 6,522 ~ ~ 

I 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

1. Principal Accounting Policies 

A. Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated accounts of the Group include the accounts for the year ended 31 December 1996 of 
the Company and of all its direct and indirect #subsidiary companies and also incorporate the Group’s interest 
in associated companies on the basis set out in note 1C below. Results of subsidiary and associated companies 
acquired or disposed of during the year are included as from their effective dates of acquisition to 
3 1 December 1996 or up to the dates of disposal as the case may be. Goodwill is eliminated against reserves in 
the year in which it arises. 

B. Subsidiary companies 

A company is a subsidiary company if more than 50% of the issued voting capital is held long term. 
Investments in subsidiary companies are carried at cost. 

C. Associated companies 

A company is an associated company if not less than 20% nor more than 50% of the issued voting capital 
is held as a long term investment and a significant influence is exercised over its man&ement. Results of the 
associated companies are incorporated in the accounts to the extent of the Group’s share of the post- 
acquisition results calculated from their accounts made up to 3 1 December 1996. The investment in associated 
companies represents the Group’s share of their net assets less provision for diminution ie yalue and goodwill, 
after attributing fair values to their net tangible and intangible assets at the date ?f acquisition. Goodwill 
arising on acquisition of the investments and the Group’s share of goodwill rep-@ in the associated 
companies’ accounts are eliminated against reserves in the year in which they arise. ‘, 

D. Managed funds and other investments Il. :I 

Managed funds represents the cost of the funds’ investments less provision for pe&kt&t diminution in 
value. Gains and losses on the sale of the funds’ investments and interest and dividend time are accounted . 
for on an accrual basis in the determination of operating profit. Other investments are,e@ed at cost less 
provisions for permanent diminution in value and represent listed and unlisted invest;me,@ in companies 
which are not subsidiary or associated companies. Results of these companies are includ@jn the accounts to 
the extent of dividends received and receivable. ;I 

E. Fixed assets 

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation. Leasehold land is atiortised over the 
remaining period of the lease. In prior years, leasehold land with a remaining lease peod:of more than fifty 
years was not amortised. Buildings are depreciated on the basis of an expected life of fifty years, or the 
remainder thereof, or over the remaining period of the lease, whichever is less. The period of the lease includes 
the period for which a right of renewal is attached. 

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided at rates calculated to write off their costs over their 
estimated useful lives on a straight line basis at the following annual rates: 

Motor vehicles 
Plant, machinery and equipment 
Container terminal equipment 
Leasehold improvements 

20-25% 
lo-20% 
5-20% 
Over the unexpired period of the lease or 15%, 
whichever is the greater 
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F. Investment properties 

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of vvhich construction work has been 
completed and which are held for their investment potential. Such prop,erties are included in fixed assets at 
their open market value on the basis of an annual professional valuation. ~ Ch,anges in the value of investme,nt 
properties are dealt with as movements in the investment properties revaluation reserve. If the total of this 
reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit on a portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the ,profit and 
loss account. Upon disposal of an investment property, the relevant revaluation surplus is credited to operating 
profit. Investment properties are not depreciated except where the unexpired term of the lease is twenty years 
or less. 

G. Leased ass&s 

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases and hire purchase contracts that transfer to the Group 
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership are accounted for as if purchased whereby an amount 
equivalent to cost is recorded as a fixed asset and as a long term liability. Depreciation is provided in 
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to the lessor are treated as consisting of capital 
and interest elements. The interest element is charged to the profit and loss account. All other leases are 
accounted for as operating leases, and the rental payments are charged to the profit and loss account on an 
accrual basis. 

H. Deferred expenditures 

Commissions paid to dealers and certain other selling costs incurred to add new subscribers to the 
communication service networks are deferred and amortised on a straight line basis over periods of up to three 
years. 

” 
Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and debt securities are deferred and amortised 

on a straight line basis over the period of the loans. 

Telecommunications projects’ pre-operating expenses, including interest, are deferred and amortised over 
periods of up to ten years from the date of commencement of operations. 

I. Properties under development 

Land for properties under development is stated at cost or valuation, and development expenditure is 
stated at the aggregate amount of costs, including capitalised interest, incurred at the balance sheet date. The 
profit and turnover on sales of property are recorded either on the date of sale or on the date of issue of the 
occupation permit, whichever is the later. 

J. Stocks 

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stocks consist mainly of retail goods and 
cost is determined as the estimated selling price less the normal gross profit margin. 

K. Deferred taxation 

Deferred taxation is provided for when there is a reasonable probability that such taxation will become 
payable within the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation is calculated by the liability method at the applicable 
tax rate on timing differences arising from the recognition of income and expenditures in different fiscal 
periods for accounting and for tax purposes. 

L. Foreign exchange 

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. 
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. 
Exchange differences are included in the determination of operating profit. 
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The accounts of overseas subsidiary and associated companies are translated in@,Hwg Kong dollars 
using the year end rates of exchange for the balance sheet items and the average rates of exchange for the year 
for the profit and loss account. In prior years the profit and loss accounts were transl&& a!tl[year end rates of 
exchange. The effect of this change on prior year results is not material and therefore’thg comparative figures 
have not been restated. Exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in reserve?!! ., , 

2. Turnover . . .: : 
Group 

1996‘ / ’ 1995 1994 
(HK$ millions) 

Sales of goods 16,032.7 14,269.l 12,337.6 
Rendering of services 18,268.0 18696.2 16,464.3 
Interest 2,209.9 1,924.9 1,267.2 
Dividends 151;4 135.4 98.4 

36,662.O’ 35,025.6 30,167.5 
I ,1,, I 

The turnover of the Group comprises the gross value of goods and services invoicedW customers, income 
from investments, proceeds from the sales of development properties, rental incomd~fr@m operating leases, 
interest income and finance charges earned. It does not include the turnover of associated companies. 

3. Exceptional Item 

Profit on flotation of Orange plc after a provision for 
Profit on disposal of investment in satellite television 

losses 

,)!, I Group 
199q 1 (, -,!995 1994 

(HK$ millions) 

4,100.o 

In April 1996, the Group’s associated company Orange plc issued 357.5 million ordinary shares in a 
global public offering and was listed on the London Stock Exchange and NASDAQ in the United States. As a 
result, the Group’s interest in Orange plc was reduced from 68.4% to 48.2% and an exceptional profit of 
HK$4,100 million, after a provision for estimated losses in building the business, was realised. 

:; 
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4. Profit Before Taxation _ 
I’ 

Profit before taxation is shown after crediting and charging the following items: 

Croup 
1996 1995 1994 

8, (HK$ millions) 

Credits: 
Share of profits less losses of associated companies 

Listed 
Unlisted 

Gross rental income from investment properties 
Less: Related outgoings 
Net rental income 
Dividend and interest income from managed funds and other investments 

Listed 
Unlisted 

Gain on defeasance of finance leases 
Profit on disposal of investment properties 

Charges: 
Interest 

Bank loans and overdrafts 
Other loans repayable within 5 years 
Other loans not wholly repayable within 5 years 

Less: Interest capitalised 

Depreciation of fixed assets 
Amortisation of deferred expenditures 
Operating leases 

Properties 
Hire of plant and machinery 

Auditors’ remuneration 

'328.0 '493.8 '210.5 
395.1 487.1 59.9 

2,818.3 2,896.6 1,607.O 
(261.2) (12.3) (359.8) 

2,557.l 2,884.3 1,247.2 
1,866.g 2,124.5 1,318.9 

663.1 482.2 174.2 

1,375.4 1,271.7 lJO1.9 
76.2 146.0 72.8 

,‘, ' 25.7 24.5 s 19.9 ~ ___ 

1,651.6 1,593.4 1,553.4 
1,979.g 2,308.3 3,545.6 
3,631.4 3,901.7 5,099.O 
1,964.7 1,878.5 1,521.2 
(423.7) (415.0) (306.0) 

1,541.0 1,463.5 1,215.2 

558.3 585.8 592.4 
333.2 186.1 84.1 

- 647.1 - 
- .9.2 1,185.g ~ ___ 

i.095.2 1.915.7 1.336.6 

The share of profits less losses of associated companies does not include the Group’s share of losses 
incurred by Orange plc during the year as these were accounted for as a provision against the exceptional profit 
described in note 3. 

5. Directors’ timolumehts :._ ‘, 

The emoluments of the. directors of theCompany are as follows: 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 - - ~ 

(HK$ millions) 

Fees. 0.8 0.8 0.8 
Basic salaries and allowances 37.4 34.2 '30.2 
Provident fund contributions 3.2 3.2, 2.9 
Bonuses 75.6 50.7,,, 40.0 
Benefit from share options exercised 68.7 6.9 10.7 - - - - - - 

.' 1 
The emoluments of the non-executive directors of the Company are HK$0.3 million (1995 - HK$0.3 

million; 1994 - HK$0.3 million). 
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No management remuneration was paid to Mr Li Ka-shing during the year other than a director’s fee of 
HK$50,000 which he paid to Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited. 

The Senior Executive Share Option Scheme provides share options to selected senior executives, 
including certain directors. Details of the Scheme are set out in note 17. 

Emoluments of all directors of the Company are analysed as below: 
Number of Directors 

HK$ 

Nil 1 ,ooo,ooo 
2,500,OOl - 3,000,OOO 
3,500,OOf - 4,000,000 
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 
5,000,001 - 5,500,OOo 
6,500,OOl - 7,000,OOO 
7,500,OOl - 8,000,OOO 
8,000,OOl - 8,500,OOO 
9,000,001 - 9,500,000 

11,000,001 - 11,500,000 
12,500,OOl - 13,000,OOO 
18,000,OOl - 18,500,000* 
20,500,OOl - 21,000,000* 
25,000,001 - 25,500,000* 
26,000,OOl - 26,500,OOO 

‘27,000,OOl - 27,500,000* 
28,000,OOl - 28,500,000* 
37,500,OOl - 38,000,OOO 

1996 1995 - - 

7 8 
- 1 
- 1 
- 1 

2 - 
- 1 
- - 

1 1 
- 1 
- 2 

1 - 
1 - 

- 1 
-’ ‘- 

2,1r, j- 
- 1 

1 - 
1’ ” ;- 
1 - 

! ,’ 

1994 

7 
1 
2 

- 
- 
- 

1 
.1 
1 
1 

- 
- 
- 

2 
- 

- 
- 
- 

* Includes benefits~ from share options exercised of HK$68.7 million (1995 - HK$&$tiion and 1994 - 
HK$10.7 million). 

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest for the year were four directors of the Company 
and one director of a subsidiary of the Company. The remuneration of the director of the subsidiary company 
consisted of basic salary and allowance - HK$3.5 million; provident fund contribution - HK$0.2 million; 
bonuses - HK$4.3 million; and benefit from share options exercised - HK$28.0 million. 

6. Pension Schemes 
: 

The Group has established pension schemes for employees located in Hong Kong and in some overseas 
locations. Total pension expense for the year was HK$230.4 million (1995 - HK%;2f)f)&million; 1994 - 
HK$163.1 million) of which HK$76.2 million (1995 - HK$72.3 million; 1994 - HK$54.3 million) related 
to overseas schemes. Contributions to all plans are charged to the profit and loss accodnb in the year incurred. 

The-Group’s Hong Kong employees who commenced employment prior to 1 January 1994 are members 
of ‘a scheme which provides benefits based on the greater of employee and employer vested contributions plus 
a minimum interest thereon of 6% per annum, and a benefit derived by a formula based on the final salary and 
years of service. Employees’ contributions are either 5% or 7% of basic monthly salary. The employers’ annual 
contribution is designed to fully fund the scheme as advised by independent actuaries:‘~~~$&+mal independent 
actuarialvaluation using the aggregate cost method completed at 30 June 1996 reporte&market value of the 
scheme assets of HK$1,449.6 million and a level of funding of 110% of the accrued actuarial liabilities on an 
ongoing basis. The main assumptions in the valuation are an investment return of 8.596rwr.annum and salary 
increases of 6.5% per annum. The valuation was performed by Mark Baxter, Fellow of the Institute of 
Actuaries of Australia, of William M Mercer Limited: The Scheme was registered under the Occupational 
Retirement Schemes Ordinance on 31 October 1995. 
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The Group’s Hong Kong employees who commenced employment subsequent to 31 December 1993 are 
members of a defined contribution scheme. All contributions are made by the employer at either 7.5% or 10% 
of basic monthly salary. Benefits are equal to the vested contributions plus a minimum interest thereon of 5% 
per annum. The Scheme was registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance on 21 May 
1996. Except for the employees of the Group’s port business in the United Kingdom, overseas employees are 
members of defined contribution schemes in their respective country of operation. Forfeited contributions of 
the Group’s defined contribution schemes in the amount of HK$l0.3 million (1995 - HK$3.8 million; 
1994 - HK$0.3 million) were used to reduce the current year’s level of contributions and HK$0.9 million 
(1995 - HK$1.3 million; 1994 - HK$l.5 million) is available at 31 December 1996 to reduce future years’ 
contributions. 

The employees of the Group’s United Kingdom port business are members of’s defined benefit scheme. 
Employees contribute 5% of pensionable salary. The employers’ annual contribution is designed to fully fund 
the plan as advised by an independent actuary. A formal valuation using the projected unit method completed 
at 1 January 1995 reported a market value of the scheme assets of HK$559 million and a level of funding of 
106% of the accrued actuarial liabilities on an ongoing basis. The main assumptions in, the valuation are an 
investment return of 9.5% per annum and pensionable salary increases of 7% per annum. The valuation was 
performed by Colin Hedderwick, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries. 

7. Taxation 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 ~ ~ ~ 

(HK$ millions) 

Current taxation expense 

Hong Kong 
Subsidiary companies 
Associated companies 

Overseas 
Subsidiary companies 
Associated companies 

Deferred taxation expense (credit) 

557.4 539.8 853.5 
274.5 568.5 668.0 

209.8 87.7 141.5 
82.7 35.4 5.7 

1,124.4 1,231.4 1,668.7 

Hong Kong 
Subsidiary companies (1,.5) (31.9) (43.2) 
Associated ‘companies 49.5 (132.4) 23.9 

Overseas 
Subsidiary companies (7.6) - 
Associated companies 146.1 65.8 (63.9) ~ ~ 

186.5 (98.5) (83.2) ___ ___ 
1,310.9 1,132.9 1,585.5 ~ ~ 

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (1995 and 
1994 - 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit less available tax losses. 
Overseas taxation has been provided for at the applicable rates on the 
estimated assessable profit less available tax losses. 

The potential tax liabilities (assets) which have not been provided for in 
respect of the current year are as follows: 

Arising from accelerated depreciation allowances on continuing operations (31.3) (331.6) 302.4 

Arising from tax losses (258.2) (31.7) 158.7 ~ ~ ___ 
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No provision for taxation has been made for taxes which would arise on the remittance of retained profits 
of overseas companies to Hong Kong as it is not anticipated that these amounts will~be remitted in the near 
future. ,,’ /, 

, 
8. Dividends I _’ I 

,‘, 
,.,*I f Group 

1996 1995 1994 - ~ ~ 
-I ( (MffB millions) 

Interim dividend paid of 42 cents per share (1995 2 33 cents and 
,;jli,,. 

1994 - 26 cents) 1,520.5 1,193.2 ” 941.1 
Proposed final dividend of 108 cents per share (1995 - 85 cents and 

1994 i 67 cents) 2,421.l “3:073.4 4181.9,“: 

s-_ : 4,266.6 5,702.4. 3,362.2 -I.- ~ 
;., C]‘. I 

9. Profit for the year retained ! 
‘~ 

Profit for the year retained after deducting minority interests is as follows: 
.,I, : 
!,I 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 ~ ~ ~ 

(HK$ millions) 

Retained by Company and subsidiary companies 
Profit for the year 
Dividends 

Retained by associated companies 
Profit for the ‘year 
Dividends 

11,200.3 9,377.5 
($702.4) /: (966.6) 
5,497.9 $110.9 

3,048.5 .,:.. 5,289.0 

(2,228.g) ” (3,099.4) 
819.7 189.6 

6,117.6 
(3,362.2) 
2,755.4 

4,424s 
(2,521.4) 

1,903.l 
4.658.5 

10. Earnings per share 

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to the shareholders of HK$12,020 
million (1995 - HK$9,567 million; 1994 - HK$8,021 million) and on the weighted average of 
3,616,784,011 shares. in issue during 1996 (1995 - 3,614,332,483 shares; 1.994 - 3$ig;b93,652 shares). 
Fully diluted earnings per share is not shown as the dilution is not material. 
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il. Fixed assets - group 

Investment othkr Other 1996 
properties properties assets Total 

(HK$ millions) 

Cost or valuation 
At 1, January 21,227.4 20,462.g 21,301.O 62,991.2 
Exchange’ translation differences 
Additions 
Disposals. 
Relating to subsidiaries acquired 
Relating to subsidiaries disposed 
Revaluation 
Transfer between categories 
At 3i December : ” 

- 227.8 
154.6 9,193.7 

(7.1) (2.2) 
- 

370.7 
25,373.2 

- (IO;(,) 
3,627.6 - 

(10.3) (360.4) - 
29,767.2 16,882.2 72,022.6 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 January - 
Exchange translation differences - 
Charge for the year 
Disposals ‘- 
Relating to subsidiaries acquired - 
Relating to subsidiaries’ disposed - 
Transfer between categories 
-At 3 1 December - 

Net book value at 31 December 

Net book value at 31 December 1995 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

25,373.2 

21,227.4 

Net book value at 3 1 December 1994 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 201.0 A 
Cost or valuation at 31 December 1996 
At cost - 
At valuation 25,‘373.2 

25,373.2 

Net book value of investment and other properties comprises: 

Hong Kong 
Long leasehold (not less than 50 years) 
Medium leasehold (less than 50 years but not less than 10 years) 
Overseas , 
Freehold 
Long leasehold 

( 

31.2 259.0 
3,615.g 12,964.l 
(464.7) (474.0) 
409.3 409.3 

7,650.O) (7,754.6) 
- ‘3,627.6 

967.5 7,515.4 8,482.9 
46.8 55.7 102.5 

368.9 1,497.9 1,866.8 
(327.8) (327.8) 

(1x.4) (1,:::::) (1;:~~:;) 
(3212) 32.2 - 

1,332.6 7,502.2 8,834.g 
28434.6 9 380.0 63 187.8 > A 
19,495.3 13,785.6 54,508.3 

17,361.g 10,629.l 52,191.9 
vm-. 

29,767.2 16,882.2 46,649.4 
- - 25,373.2 

29,767.2 16,882.2 72,022.6 

1996 1995 1994 ,- 
(HK$ millions) 

48,267.4 35,605.7 37,483.2 
163.3 119.8 83.8 

182.0 481.7 506.5 
1,989.4 1,311.2 1,348.l 

Medium leasehold : 3,189.g 3,176.2 2,121’.9 
-Short leasehold (less than 10 years) 15.9 28.1 19.3 

53,807.S 40,722.7 41,562.g 

-Properties under development are included in other properties in the amount of HK$l 1,709.6 million at 
31 December 1996 (1995 - HK$2,195.9 million; 1994 - HK$344.6 million). 

The investment properties have ,been’ revalued as at 31 December 1996 by Knight Frank & Kan, 
professional valuers, on an open market value basis. ,. 
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12. Deferred expenditures 
Deferred expenditures comprise: 

Subscribers’ costs 
Pre-operating expenses 
Loan facilities fees 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 

(HK$ millions) 

491.8 1,516.6 438.7 
374.0 874.8 539.1 
220.6 144.9 174.6 ~ ___ 

1,086.4 2,536.3 1,152.4 ~ ~ 

13. Associated companies 

Unlisted shares 
Listed shares, Hong Kong 
Listed shares, overseas 
Share of undistributed post-acquisition reserves 
Investment in associated companies 
Amounts due from associated companies 
Amounts due to associated companies 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 ~ ~ 

(HK$ millions) 

5,322.0 4,678.l. 4,410.O 
6,732.0 6,352.6 6,352.6 

741.5 - 38.0 
2,599.2 2,795.3 2,086.6 

15,394.7 13,826.0 12,887.2 
11,2@.6 9,011.2 8,846.6 

(29N)* (59.5) (29.0) 
26,368.6 22,77,7.7 21,704.g 

The market value of the listed investments at 31 December 1996 was HK$35,502.2 million (1995 - 
HK$18,008.7 million; 1994 - HK$15,211.6 million). ,,i ,, 

Particulars regarding the principal associated companies are set out on pages P-i5 to F-28. 
IS !:, 

14. Managed funds and other investments 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 - - - 

(HK$ millions) 

Convertible notes 

Managed funds, overseas 
Unlisted shares and advances 

Managed funds, overseas comprise: 

Listed shares, Hong Kong 
Listed shares, overseas 
Long term deposits 

189.,9: 

13,1&2 ‘9,588.O 

:., 643.1 
22,550.6 15,964.g 

540.3 

- - 

444.8 
4,554.8 2,065.6 
1,345.g 236.4 
2,75Q‘Ji 2,986.9 

Listed marketable securities 
Cash and cash equivalents and accrued interest 

9,666.2 :,7’,236.6 
3,503.o. 12J51.4 

9,588.0 13,169.2 ~ - 

The market value of the listed investments at 31 December 1996 was HK$16$4L# million 
HK$9,176.0 million, 1994 - HK$7,620.1 million). ,‘I, i. 

9,100.9 
1,014.o 
1,445.0 

236.4 
800.0 
627.0 

13,223.3 

#6,394.3 
2,706.6 
9,100.9 

(1995 - 

Convertible notes carry interest and are convertible into ordinary shares of the issuers which are listed 
companies in Hong Kong. 
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15. Current assets 
Group 

1996 1995 1994 
(HK$ millions) 

Stocks 
Debtors 
Bank ‘balances and cash equivalents 

2,463.9 2,689.0 1,957.9 
5,081.O 4,570.6 3,379.6 

10,839.7 16,398.6 12;513.1 
18,384.6 23,658.2 17,850.6 
7 

16. Current liabilities 
Group 

1996 1995 1994 
(HK$ millions) 

Bank loans and overdrafts 6,156.9’ 14,282.5 6,319.9 
Other loans 42.3 30.4 16.1 
Creditors 9,290.5 10,770.7 7,985.6 
Taxation 615.8 830.6 746.8 
Proposed final dividend 4,181.9 3,073.4 2,421.l 

20,287.4 28,987.6 17,489.5 

The bank and other loans of the Group are secured to the extent of HK$78.2 million (1995 and 1994 - 
Nil). 

17. Share capital 

1996 
Number of shares 

1995 

” Company 
1994 1996 1995 1994 

(HK$ millions) : 

Authorised: 
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 

each 

7.5% cumulative redeemable 
participating preference 
shares of HK$l each 

Issued and fully paid: 
Ordinary shares 

At 1 January 
Senior Executive Share 

Option Scheme 
Repurchased and cancelled 
At 31 December 

4,350,000,000 4,200,000,000 4,200,000,000 1,087.5 1,050.O 1,050.O 

402,717,856 402,717,856 402,717,856 402.7 402.7 402.7 

1,490.2 1,452.7 1,452.7 

5 

3,614,859,733 3,619,644,720 3,616,882,378 903.7 904.9 904.2 

2,963,891 1,664,013 2,762,342 0.7 
- (6,~9,0~) - 

3,617,823,624 3,614,859,733 3,619,644,720 904.4 903.7 904.9 

Pursuant to a Senior Executive Share Option Scheme, options to purchase ordinary shares in the 
Company are granted to selected executives and executive directors. The option price is the average of the 
closing bid prices of an ordinary share of the Company on the five dealing days immediately preceding the 
date on which an invitation to apply for the option is given. The options granted under the Scheme are 
exercisable between the third and tenth anniversaries of the Grant Date. At 31 December 1996 options to 
purchase 3,651,017 ordinary shares at option prices from HK$8.19 to HK$l 1.12 per share were outstanding 
(1995 - 6,614,908 ordinary shares; 1994 - 8,595,735 ordinary shares). 
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18. Reserves 2 / 

‘, 

Group 
At 1 January 
Premium on exercise of share options 
Share issue expenses 
Shares repurchased and cancelled 
Revaluation surpluses (deficits) 
Revaluation surpluses of associated 

companies 
Valuation released to profit and loss 

account 
Transfer between categories 
Net goodwill on’ consolidation 
Exchange translation differences 
Exchange translation differences of 

associated companies 
Profit for the year retained 

At 31 December 

Including retained reserves of associated 
companies 

Investment 
Share properties 

premium revaluation 

13,633.4 15,879.0 
23.7 - 
(0.2) - 
- 
- 3,565.8 

203.4 

(7.0) 
- (0.3) 
- - 
- - 

- - 
- - 

13,656.9 19,640.9 

570.2 

Exchange Retained Total 
transition profit 1996 1995 ~ - ___ 

(HK$ millions) 
1994 

(567.2) 28,989.5 
- 

- - 

- - 
0.3 

(294.6) L 

249.3 - 
- 6,317.6 

(612.5) 35,308.8 

57,934.1 56,252.0 ‘48,156.5 
23.7 15.2 24.0 
(0.2) (0.1) (0.1) 

(172.4) - 
3,565.8 (1,655.6) 4,119.9 

., 
203.4 366.8 

(7.0) (702.5) (14.8) 
- - - 
1.4 (1,593.6) (446.2) 

(294.6) 2.2 (245.8) 

249.3 122.2 
6,317.6 5 300.5 4,658.5 

67,994.l 57,934.7 56,252.0 

413.6 3,413.8 2,430.O 3,271.o 2,589.l 

Included in share premium of the Group is a capital redemption reserve of HK$404.3 million (1995 - 
HK$404.3 million; 1994 - HK$402.7 million). Reserves of the Company available for distribution to 
shareholders,,,amount to HK$4,984.8 million,,(1995 - HK$3,755.6 million; 1994 - HK$3,203.6 million). 

19. Minority interests 

_, 
Equity interests 
Loans - interest free 
Loans - interest bearing 

Group 
W96 1995 1994 

(HK$ millions) 

3,683.3 1,145.0 535.8 
1,713.7 1,485.4 1,427.7 
2417.0 2,702.7 3,180.3 
7,8i4.0 5,333.l 5,143.8 

The loans are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. At 1995, loans having interest at market 
rates are repayable as to HK$2,482.5 million (1994 - HK$3,075.0 million) in 1997 and the remainder after 
five years.. 

1..ii: ,, II 
> ->‘I 

.A:‘-. It 

. . ,, 

i 
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20. Long term liabilities 

Bank loans repayable within 5 years 
Bank loans not wholly repayable within 5 years 
Other loans repayable within 5 years 
Other loans not wholly repayable within 5 years 

Creditors 

The loans are repayable ‘as follows: 
Bank loans 
After 1 year, but within 2 years 
After 2 years, but within 5 years 
After 5 years 
Other loans 
After 1 year, but within 2 years 
After 2 years, but within 5 years 
After 5 years 

‘./ 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 

(HK$ millions) 

19,342.2 12,847.0 19,071#.5 
” 6;975:8 5,109.9 375.0 

2,155.6 90.0 23.0 
5,980.l 8,105.8 ’ 6706.1 

3445317 26,152.7 26,175.6 
5.7~ 21.7 13.3 ) ,r 

34,459.4 26,174.4 26,188.9 
1. ,.’ 

,, 

31853.9 6,402.5 8,097.3 
17,951.5 7441.3. lL137.2 
4,512.6 4,113.l 212.0 

15.5 32.4 14.5 
2,149.7 65.6 34.4 
5,970.5 8,097.8 6,680.2 

34453.7 26,152.7 26,175.6 

The bank and other loans of the Group are secured to the extent of HK$2,844.7 million (1995 - 
HK$4,796.0 million; 1994 - Nil). 

Other loans repayable within five years include HK$2,125.8 million (1995 and 1994 - HK$2,125.8 
million) of 7% exchangeable bonds. The bonds are exchangeable for shares of Hutchison Delta Ports Limited, 
a wholly owned subsidiary company, after an initial public offering of its shares. If there is no such offering, the 
bonds will mature in 2001. 

Other loans not wholly repayable within five years mainly represent HK$5,959.8 million (1995 - 
HK$5,959.8 million; 1994 - HK$4,533.6 million) of floating rate notes bearing ‘interest at LIBOR plus 0.85% 
due in 2004. 

21. Deferred taxation 

The movements in deferred taxation, arising from accelerated depreciation allowances, are as follows: 
Group 

I, 1996 1993 1994 
(HKwris) 

At 1 January 
Exchange translation differences 
Relating to subsidiaries acquired 
Net credit for the year 

111.8 143.9 184.8 
1.9 2.3 

14.1 
(04, 

(9.1) (31-9) (4y2.2) - - 
At’ 3 1 December 118.7 111.8 143.9 

The potential tax liabilities (assets) which have not been provided for in the 
,accounts are as follows: 
Arising from accelerated depreciation allowances 
Arising from tax losses 

486.6 517.9 849.5 
(392.0) (133.8) (102.1) 

Properties revaluation surpluses do not constitute a timing difference for taxation purposes because the 
realisation of the surpluses would not be subject to taxation. Therefore the above potential liability does not 
include deferred taxation related to the revaluation surpluses. 
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22. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 

(a) Reconciliation of profits before 
taxation to net cash inflow from 
operating activities 
Profit before taxation 
Dividend and interest income 
Interest expenses 
Share of profits less losses of associated companies 
Exceptional item 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Loss (profit) on sale of fixed assets 
Profit on disposal of subsidiary 

companies, associated companies 
and other investments 

Gain on defeasance of finance leases 
Increase in stocks 
Increase in debtors 
Increase in creditors 
Other non cash items 
Net cash inflow from operating 
activities 

(b) Disposal of subsidiary 
companies 

Net assets disposed of 

Fixed assets 
Deferred expenditures 
Associated companies 
Stocks 
Debtors 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank and other loans 
Creditors and taxation 
Goodwill 
Minority interests 

Profit on disposal: 
Included in operating profit 
Included in exceptional item 

Satisfied by: 
Increase in net assets of 
associated companies 

Cash consideration 

,.;, 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 

(HK$ millions) 

13,993.l 11,180.9 10,239.4 
(2,361.3) (2,060.3) (1,365.6) 

2,557.l 2,884.3 1,247.2 
(3,631.4) (3,901.7) (5,099.O) 
(4,100.O) (756.3) - 

2,5299.9 2,606.7 1,493.l 
57.1 (1,067.9) (180.7) 

(314.0) (250.5) (330.3) 

(1371) [ : : i : : ;  (375.2) 
(1,602.3) (1,082.2) (704.7) 
4,534.9 2,323.l 1,573.5 

(91.1) (16.9) 120.2 

L434.9 1 8,552.0 6 617.9 L 

6,X%.4 
2JM.3 

- 
362.2 

1,401.o 
J07.8 

(5J61.5) 
(6,285.l) 

524.3 
2,OH.3 _ 
L659.7 

5.5 
- 

0.8 
2.3 

(2.1) 
(5.1) 

(2.1) 
(0.7) 

(23.9) - 

535.0 

(32.1) 
2.2 
7.0 

14.4 

(3T3) 
1.7 

469.0 

0.8 0.7 17.1 
4,100.o - - 
5,760.5 - 486.1 

5,320s - - 
439.7 486.1 

517@-$, - 486.1 

(3OY:8) - (14.4) 

5,+2.1 471.7 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents sold 
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Group 
1996 1995 1994 

(HK$ millions) 
(c) Purchase of subsidiary 

companies 

Net assets acquired. 

Fixed assets ‘. 
Deferred expenditures 
Associated companies 
Managed funds and other investments 
Stocks 
Debtors 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank and other loans 
Creditors and taxation : 
Deferred taxation 
Goodwill 
Minority interests 

Discharged by. 

Cash payment 
Less: Cash and cash 

equivalents purchased 

(d) Analysis of changes in financing, 
during the year 

‘At 1 January 

Issue of ordinary share capital less expenses 
New loans 
Repayment of loans 
Issue of shares by subsidiary companies 

to minorities 
‘Redemption of subsidiary companies 

preference shares 
Cash consideration for repurchase of shares 
Proceeds from sale of network assets to lessor 
Amounts placed on deposit with 

defeasance banks 

Share 
capital 

and premium 

~ 14,537.l 

” 24.2’ 
- 
- 

- 

- 

- 

235.7 812.7 536.0 

(8;::) 1 221.8 - 
- 4.3 - 
- 71.8 1.3 

283.0 22.2 5.9 
34.1 43.3 9.5 

(16,1.5) - (5.7) 
(142.8) (131.9) (3.1) 

(14.1) - - 
:71.1 1,566.2 303.4 
38.4 (596.1) 331.4 

263.3 1,792.j 1,400.5 

263.3 1,792.j 1,400.5 

(34.1) - (43.3) (9.5) 
229.2 1,749.2 1,391.0 - ___ 

Group 
Banli and Minority 1996 1995 1994 

other loans interests Total Total Total 
(HK$ millions) 

1 ‘, 

40,371.6 5,333.l 60,241.g 52,010.7 38,346.1 

- - 24.2 15.5 24.6 
19,113.6 2,602.8 21,716.4 14,645.5 23,380.4 

(13,871.9) (2,547.5) (16,419.4) (6,951.3) (9,408.9) 

- 84.3 84.3 65.8 43.2 

(1.3) (1.3) (21.7) (0.7) 
- - - (174.0) - 
- - 4,745.j 

- - - (3,977.3) - 

Net cash inflow from financing 24.2 5,241.7 

Purchase of minority interests - - 
Minority interests in profit 

1, - - 
Dividend paid to minority interests - - 
Exchange translation differences 7 2.6 
Relating to subsidiary companies acquired - 161.5 
Relating to subsidiary companies disposed of - (5l61.5) 
Reserves movement for repurchase of shares - - 
Gain on defeasance of finance leases - 
Provision for defeased leases - - 

138.3, 5404.2 

(102.8) 
662.2 

(438.9) 
51.8 
64.4 

2,085.3 
- 

(102.8) 
662.2 

(438.9) 
54.4 

225.9 
(3,076.2) 

- - 

8,348.0 

166.2 
480.9 

(523.4) 
(612) 
429.9 

(4.2) 
174.0 

(647.1) 
(121.1) 

4,038.6 

(376.0) 
633.2 

LO59.2) 
395.0 

50.3 
(23.9) 

- 
- 

6.6 Others - 20.6 20.6 (10.9) 
At 31 December ,14,561.3 62,991.2 60,241.g 52,010.7 40,615.9, 7,814.0 
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Group 
1996 1995 1994 - ~ 

(HK$ millions) 

(e) Movement in cash and cash equivalents 

At 1 January 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents 
At 31 December 

(f) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash 
equivalents 

Bank balances and cash equivalents 
Bank overdrafts 

23. Continge’nt Liabilities 

Guarantees have been executed in respect of bank and other borrowings 
facilities available as follows: 

To associated companies 

16,282.9 12,333.5 5,811.9 

(5,485.9) 3,949.4 6,521.6 
10,797.0 16,282.9 12,333.5 

10,839.7 16,398.6 12,513.l 
’ (42.7) (115.7) (179.6) 

&& 16,282.9 12,333.5 

I’. 

Group 
1996 1995 1994 

(HK$ millions) 

*:;. 
l315.8 4,656.4 5,087.g 

At 31 December 1996 the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of other guarantees amounting to 
HK$1,750.9 million (1995 - HK$522.1 million; 1994 - HK$360.5 million). 

An associated company has arranged two finance leases whereby if the finance leases terminate due to the 
insolvency of either of the deposit banks, the obligations of the associated company to pay future rentals are 
replaced’ by an obligation to pay a termination sum under each finance lami EEader the contractual 
arrangements with the lessor, the lessor has agreed to bear the risk of non payment of that portion of the 
termination sum that was to be settled through a demand under the letters of credit issued by the defaulting 
deposit bank. The Group has agreed to indemnify its 68.42% share if the associated compau~y is unable to pay 
the remainder of the termination sum to the lessor. 

,I I. 
24. Commitments ., :I 

Outstanding Group commitments not provided for in the accounts at 31 Decembe&UX?6 are as follows: 
,. .,‘, 

Capital commitments .. ‘1 
:I 

1. Contracted for: ‘:. 

i. Container terminals: Hong Kong - HK$236.4 million (1995 - HK$301.9 million; 1994 - 
HK$l22.6 million). f ,:i,, 

ii. Container terminals: China - HK$1,287.3 million (1995 - HK$#?& million; 1994 - 
HK$1,119.4 million). ,,!i, ,,I 

iii. Container terminals, other - HK$143.3 million (1995 and 1994 - I$!‘:;’ ” 

iv. Telecommunications - HK$1,117.5 million (1995 - HK$907.5 milli& ;994 - HK$863.0 
million). .!1. ..I 

V. Other fixed assets - HK$35.7 million (1995 - HK$297.4 m.&&; 1994 - HK$551.5 
million) . 

vi. Investments in China ports - HK$445.3 million (1995 and 1994 - Nil). 
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vii. Investments in ‘China’ properties joint venture projects - HK$5 19.0 million ( 1995 - 
HK$521.4 million; 1994 - HK$368.4 million). ’ 

viii. Other investments - HK$125.7 million (1995 - HK$207.8 million; 1994 - HK$184.5 
million). 

ix. Property developments in Hong Kong - HK$2,180.1 million (1995 - HK$3,277.5 million; 
1994 - Nil); 

2. Authorised but not contracted for: 
,I, ._ 

i. Container terminals, Hong Kong - HK$2,823.6 million (1995 - HK$1,740.2 million; 
1994 - HK$1,184.3 million). 

ii. Container terminals, China - HK$2,474.4 million (1995 - HK$1,117.8 million; 1994 - 
HK$389.8 million). -/ : 

iii. Container terminals, other - HK$616.0 million (1995 and 1994 - Nil). 

iv. Telecommunications - HK$3,152.1 million (1995 - HK$5,207;.5 million; 1994 - 
HK$3,242.5 million). ” 

v. Other fixed assets - HK$2,312.5 million (1995 - HK$1,481.2 million; 1994 - HK$1,759.0 
million) 

vi. Investments in China ports - HK$220.6 million (1995 and 1994 - Nil). 

vii. Investments in Hong Kong properties joint venture projects - HK$2,760.9 million (1995 - 
HK$1,626.6 million; 1994 - HK$237.0 million). 

viii. Investments in China properties joint venture projects - HK$3,310.9 million (1995 - 
HK$3,075.1 million; 1.994 - HK$940.8 million). 

ix. Other investments - HK$858.7 million (1995 - HK$809.8 million; 1994 - HK$517.3 
million). 

X. Property developments in Hong Kong - HK$11,055.1 million (1995 - HK$8,678.0 million; 
1994 - Nil) . 

Operating lease commitments - amount payable within one year for land and buildings leases 

1. Expiring in the first year- HK$269.4 million (1995 - HK$182.8 million; 1994-HK$211.1 
million). 

2. Expiring in the second to fifth years inclusive - HK$820.6 million (1995 - HK$885.8 million; 
1994 - HK$804.8 million). 

3. Expiring after the fifth year - HK$191.2 million (1995 - HK$214.1 million; 1994 - HK$165.7 
million). 

Operating lease commitments - amount payable within one year for other assets 

1. Expiring in the first year - HK$13.3 million (1995 - HK$25.5 million; 1994 - HK$21.7 million). 

2. Expiring in the second to fifth years inclusive - HK$33.9 million (1995 - HK$200.4 million; 
1994 - HK$55.3 million). 

3. Expiring after the fifth year - HK$l.O million (1995 - HK$86.1 million; 1994 - HK$10.2 million). 

25. Subsequent event 

Subsequent to the year end, an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders approved the transfer of the 
Group’s 35.01% interest in Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited (“Hongkong Electric”) to Cheung Kong 
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Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“Cheung Kong Infrastructure”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange 
of Hong Kong, in exchange for 39.3% of Cheung Kong Infrastructure shares at a market value of 
approximately HK$18,743 million and the purchase of a further 42.88% of Cheung Kong Infrastructure shares 
from Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, a major shareholder of the Company, for a cash consideration of 
HK$5,568 million and the issue of 254,316,978 ordinary shares of the Company at a market value of 
HK$14,877 million. After the completion of these transactions on 10 March, 1997 the Group held an 
aggregate 84.58% interest in Cheung Kong Infrastructure including its interests held before the transactions, 
and the issued ordinary share capital of the Company increased from 3,617,823,624 shares to 3,872,140,602 
shares. As a result of the Hongkong Electric transaction, the Group realised a profit of approximately 
HK$l,200 million. 

26. Comparative figures 

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation. 

27. US Dollar equivalents 

The US dollar equivalents of the figures shown in the accounts have been translated at the rate of 
HK$7.73 to US$l. 

,’ “I ,,,; 
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 
at 31 December 1996 

Subsidiary and associated companies 

Property 
Aberdeen Commercial Investments Limited 

# Afford Limited 
# Bayswater Development Limited 

#+ Becogate Limited 
+Y Chesgold Limited 
# Cheung Wo Hing Fung Enterprises 

Limited 
# Conestoga Limited 

Elbe Office Investments Limited 
# Forton Investment Limited 

Foxton Investments Limited 
Glenfuir Investments Limited ” 

# Glory Sense Limited 
Grafton Properties Limited : 
Harley Development Inc 
Hey Wealth Limited 
Hongkong and Whampoa Dock Company, 

Limited 
Hongville Limited 
Hutchison Estate Agents Limited 
Hutchison Properties Limited 
Hutchison Whampoa Properties Limited 
Hutchison Whampoa Properties 

(Management and Agency) Limited 
Hybonia Limited 

# Montoya (Hong Kong) Limited 
Mossburn Investments Limited 

# New China Sheen Limited 
# New China Target Limited 

Omaha Investments Limited 
Palliser Investments Limited 
Provident Commercial Investments Limited 

#+ Randash Investment Limited 
#+ Ranon Limited 

Rhine Office Investments Limited 
#+ Secan Limited 

Shinta Limited 
# Southern Mount Limited 

#+ Talent Sun Limited 
Trillium Investment Limited 

Turbo Top Limited 
Vember Lord Limited 

# Wonder Pacific Investment Limited 
Ports and Related Services 

# C&P (Myanmar) Pte Limited 

# COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong 
Kong) Limited 

#+ Freeport Harbour Company Limited 
Hongkong International Terminals Limited 

# The Hongkong Salvage and Towage 
Company, Limited 

# Hongkong United Dockyards Limited 

Hutchison Delta Finance Limited 

Hutchison Delta Ports Limited 

country of 
incorporation/ 

principal 
,I country of 

operations 

Nominal value of 
issued ordinary 

share capital 

Percentage 
of equity 

attributable 
to the Group Principal activities 

Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
British Virgin Islands 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
British Virgin Islands 

HK$ 
HK$ 
US$ 
HK$ 
HK$ 
US$ 

2 
20 

2 
4 
4 

100 

100 
45 
50 
50 
50 
35 

Property owning 
Property investment 
Property investment 
Property investment 
Property investment 
Property investment 

Hong Kong HI‘3 10,000 24 Property developing 
Hong Kong HK$ 2 100 Property owning 
Hong Kong HK$ 4 50 Property investment 
Hong Kong HK$ 10,000 100 Property owning 
Hong Kong HK$ 1 ,ooo,ooo 100 Property owning 
Hong Kong HK$ 100 50 Property investment 
Hong Kong HK$ 100,000 100 Property owning 
Panama/Hong Kong US$ 2 100 Property owning 
Hong Kong HK$ -2 100 

HK$ 139254,060 
Property owning 

Hong Kong 100 Holding company 

Hong Kong HK$ 2 
How Kong HK$ 50,000 
Hong Kong HK$ 166,758,910 
Hong Kong HK$ 2 
Hong Kong HK$ 20 

IOil 
100 
100 
100 
100 

Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
British Virgin Islands 
Bahamas/Hong 

Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 

HK$ 
HK$ 
HK$ 
HK$ 
HK$ 
HKS 
HKS 
HK$ 
HK$ 
HK$ 
HKS 
HK$ 
HK$ 
HK$ 
US$ 
US$ 

20 
140 

1,000 
4 
4 

10,000 
100,000 

2 
2 
2 
2 

19 
2 
4 

100 
1,060,000 

100 
39 

100 
50 
50 
88 

100 
100 

50 
50 

100 
50 
60 
50 
35 

100 

Property owning 
Property management 
Holding company 
Holding company 
Property management 

& related services 
Property owning 
Property investment 
Property owning 
Property investment 
Property investment 
Property owning 
Property owning 
Property owning 
Property developing 
Property owning 
Property owning 
Property owning 
Property developing 
Property developing 
Property investment 
Property owning 

HK$ 
HK$ 
HK$ 

2, 
2 
4 

Property developing 
Property owning 
Property developing 

Myanmar 

Hong Kong 

Bahamas 
Hong Kong 

Kyats 

HK$ 

B$ 
HK$ 

2,000 

40 

2,000 
20 

100 
100 

50 

20 

39 

50 
78 

Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 

Cayman Islands/ 
Luxembourg 

Cayman Islands 

HK$ 

HK$ 

US$ 

20,000,000 

Container terminal 
operating 

Container terminal 
operating 

Port operating 
Holding company & 

container terminal 
operating 

Tug fleet operating 

76,000,OOO 

3 

Ship reparing & 
general engineering 

Finance 

US$ 2 

50 

50 

100 

100 Holding company 

F-25 



Subsidiary and associated companies 

Country of 
incorporation/ 

principal 
country of 
operations 

# Jiangmen International Container 
Terminals Limited 

Mid-Stream Holdings Limited 

China 

British Virgin Islands 

# Nanhai International Container Terminals 
Limited 

China 

Panama Ports Company, S.A. Panama 

Port of pelixstowe Limited 
# River Trade Terminal Holdings Limited 

# Shanghai Container Terminals Limited 

United Kingdom 
British Virgin Islands/ 

Hong Kong 
China 

Yantian International Container Terminals 
Limited 

# Zhuhai International Container Terminals 
(Gaolan) Limited 

# ihuhai International Container Terminals 
(Jiuzhou) Limited 

Retail, Manufacturing and Other Services 
A. S. Watson & Company, Limited 
A. S. Watson Asia Pacific Holdings 

Limited 

China 

China 

China 

Honi Kong 
British Virgin Islands 

A. S. Watson Group (Hong Kong) 
Limited 

British Virgin Islands/ 
Hong Kong 

Cavendish Hotels (Holdings) Limited 
+ Consolidated Hotels Limited 

Fortress Limited 
#+ Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance 

Engineering Company Limited 
*#+ Hanny Holdings Limited 

*#+ Harbour Ring International Holdings 
Limitbd 

Hutchison Hotel Hong Kong Limited 
Hutchison International Hotels Limited 
Hutchison Whampoa (China) Limited 

Mountain Cream (International) Limired 

Pan Asian Systems Limited 

Park’N Shop Limited 

#+ Procter & Gamble - Hut&son Limited 

Shanghai A. S. Watson Yimin Food 
Company Limited 

, 
Shanghai Park’N Shop Supermarket 

Company Limited 
# Shenzhen Park’N Shop Supermarkets 

Limited 
United Soft Drinks Limited 

Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
China 

Bermuda/Hong Kong 

Bermuda/Hong Kong 

Hong Kong 
British Virgin Islands 
Hong Kong 

H&g Kong 

Hong Kong HK$ 100,000 

Hong Kong HK$ 1 ,ooo,oOO 

Hong Kong us 44,930,ooo 

China uss 18,000,OOO 

China HK$ 15,600,OOO 

China HK$ 25,000,OOO 

Hong Kong HK$ 34,500,oOO 

Nominal value of 
issued ordinary 

share capital 

us 7,793,087 
RMB 20,OOO.OOO 
uss 25.400 

uss 22;OOo.OOo 

US% 2 

GBP 
us5 

100,002 
100 

RMB2.000,000,000 

HKS 1.200,000,000 

us 

us 

23,500,000 

52,000,OOO 

HK$ 109X0,965 
us5 1 

US$ 1 

HK$ 100,000,000 
HK$ 78,000,000 
HK$ 20 
us 27,500,OOO 

HK$ 353,379,408 

HKJ 172,112,740 

HKS 2 
u‘s! 1 
HKS 15,000,000 

HKS 1,000 

Percentage 
of equity 

attributable 
to the Group Principal activities 

50 

15 

50 

100 

100 
33 

40 

44 

50 

50 

100 
100 

100 

i 

Container terminal 
operating 

Holding company & 
mid-stream 
container operaling 

Container terminal 
operating 

Container terminal 
operating 

Holding company 
River trade terminal 

operating 
Container terminal 

operating 
Container terminal 

operating 
Container terminal 

operating 
Container terminal 

operating 

Holding company 
Holding’ company 

Retailing, 
supermarket 
operating, 
manufacturing & 
distribution of 

,i 
water, beverage, 
fruit jtiice & frozen 

I products 
51’ ’ ‘Investment in hotel 
99’! I ‘Hotel operatini 

NJ0 i ‘Retailing 
25’. 1 I “Aircraft maintenance 

; !, 

34 ’ 

21 

100 
100 
100 

100 

100 

100 

31 

51 

70 

50 

51 

“Data storage media 
manufacturing & 

-) distributing 
Toys trading & 

manufacturing 
1 Hotel operating 
‘Holding company 
’ Investment holding & 

China services 
Frozen products 

manufacturing & 
distributing 

Satellite equipment 
trading 

Supermarket 
operating 

Investments in 
manufacturing 
toiletries products 

Frozen products 
manufacturing & 
distributing 

Supermarket 
operating 

Supermarket 
operating 

Beverage distributing 
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.I ” 
Country of 

incorporation/ 
principal 

country of 
operations 

Nominal value of 
issued ordinary 
share capital 

Percentage 
of equity 

attributable 
to the Group Subsidiary and associated companies 

+ Watson Asia Beverage Company Limited 

Watson Park’N Shop (Taiwain) Limited 
Watson’s Personal Care Stores Pte Limited 
Watson’s The Chemist Limited 
Telecommunications 

*#+ Asia Satellite Telecommunications 
Holdings Limited 

# Chung Kiu Telecommunications (China) 
Limited 

Principal activities 

China us 2,722,500 60 

‘Taiwan NT$ 7 l’l,O60,000 100 
Singapore S$ 5,000,000 100 
Hong Kong HI.3 1 ,ooo,ooo 100 

Bermuda/Hong Kong HK$ 39,000,000 

us 10,000 

33 

British Virgin Islands/ 
China 

50 

Hutchison Communications Limited Hong Kong HK$ 20 100 

# Hutchison Max Telecom Limited India 

Hutchison Paging Limited Hong Kong 
#+ Hutchison Serting Telecom Sdn Bhd Malaysia 

Hutchison Telecommunications (Hong Hong Kong 
Kong) Limited 

Hutchison Telecommunications Limited 
Hutchison Telecommunications Technology 

Investments Limited 

Hong Kong 
British Virgin Islands 

INR 1,000,000,000 

HK$ 10,000 
M$ 5,000,000 
HK$ 20 

HK$ 10,000 
US$ 10 

29 

100 
25 

100 

100 
100 

Hutchison Telecommunications (Australia) 
Limited 

# Hutchison Telecommunications (Thailand) 
Company Limited 

Hutchison Telephone Company Limited 

Thailand 

A$ 18,750,OOO 

THB 360,000,OOO 

HK$ 1 ,ooo,ooo 

HK$ 1 ,ooo,ooo 
GBP 239,607,187 

56 

45 

Hong Kong 70 

# Metro Broadcast Corporation Limited Hong Kong 
*# Orange plc United Kingdom 

50 
48 

Energy, Finance and Investment 
Binion Investment Holdings Limited 
Cavendish International Holdings Limited 

*#+ Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited 
#+ Husky Oil Ltd. 

Cayman Islands 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Canada 

100 
100 
35 
49 

Hutchison International Finance (BVI) 
Limited 

Hutchison International Limited 
Hutchison Whampoa (Europe) Limited 
Lunogo Limited 
Sandalwood Group Limited 
Strategic Investments International Limited 

British Virgin Islands 

US$ 3 
HK$ 2,898,985,782 
HK$ 2,020,334,691 
a 559,368,303 

us 1 100 

Hong Kong HK$ 446,349,093 100 
United Kingdom GBP 100 
British Vi&i Islands 

1,000 
us 1 78 

British Virgin Islands US$ 359,582,OOl 100 
British Virgin Islands us 1 78 

Union Faith Energy (H.K.) Limited 
Union Faith (Lincoln) Limited 
Yanlock Limited 
Zeedane Investments Limited 

Hong Kong HK$ 10,000 100 
Canada a 1 100 
British Virgin Islands us 1 100 
British Virgin Islands us 1 100 

Beverage 
.manufacturing & 
trading 

Retailing 
Retailing 
Retailing 

Satellite owning 

Trading & 
manufacturing of 
communications 
equipment 

Fixed line 
communications & 
paging services 

Cellular & paging 
services 

Dormant 
Paging services 
Telecommunications 

Holding company 
Holding company 

and corporate 
access networks 

Holding company & 
telecommunications 

Paging services 

Cellular mobile 
telephone services 

Radio broadcasting 
Holding company & 

telecommunications 

Portfolio investment 
Holding company 
Electricity generating 
Investment in oil and 

gas 
Finance 

Holding company 
Consultancy services 
Portfolio investment 
Portfolio investment 
Portfolio investment 

& treasury 
Holding company 
Finance 
Portfolio investment 
Portfolio investment 

The above table lists the principal subsidiary and associated companies of the Group which, in the opinion of 
the directors, principally a&Sect the results and net assets of the Group. To give full details of subsidiary and 
associated companies would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. 
Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its country of 
incorporation. The activity of portfolio investment is international, and not attributable to a principal country 
of operation. 
Except Hutchison International Limited which is 100% directly held by the Company, the interests in the 
remaining subsidiary and associated companies are held indirectly. 



* Company listed in Hong Kong except Orange plc which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and the 
NASDAQ Stock Market. 

# Associated company. 
+ The accounts of these subsidiary and associated companies have been audited by firms other than Price 

Waterhouse. In this respect, (a) the turnover (excluding the turnover of associated companies) is HK$946 
million, (b) the profit before taxation of subsidiary companies and the profit before taxation attributable to 
Hutchison Whampoa Limited of associated companies is HK$3,554 million and (c) the net, assets are 
HK$3,178 million. 
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES 
at 31 December 1996 

Description 

Aberdeen Centre, Aberdeen, ‘Hong Kong 
Provident Centre, Wharf Road, Hong Kong 
Hunghom Bay Centre, Hunghom, Kowloon 

Approx. gross Estimated 
floor area 

G&p’s (sq. ft. unless 
completion 

date 
Lot number interest otherwise stated) Type (96 complete) 

A.I.L. 302 & 304 100% 345,026 C Existing 
I.L. 8465 100% 193,569 C Existing 
R.P. of H.H.M.L.’ 1 100% 80,402 C Existing 

A composite development at 41 Smithfield Road, 1 I.L. 6075 
Kennedy Town, Hong Kong (site area 
approximately 964 sq. ft.) ~ 

A commercial development at 661-665 King’s Road, I.L. 8885 
North Point, Hong Kong (site area approximately 
36,641 sq. ft.) - - ,’ - - 

7-13 Chiu Lung Street, Central, Hong Kong I.L. 5571, 5570 & 
5569 

Trust Tower, Unit B, Basement, G/F and 
Mezzanine Floors, 68-74 Johnston Road, 
Wanchai, Hong Kong 

Trust Tower, l/F-20/F, 68-74 Johnston Road, 
Wanchai, Hong Kong 

Shops Nos. 4-9 Smithfield Court, 41A & 43 
Smithfield Road, Hong Kong 

Shopping Centre of Greenview Court, 
Castle Peak Road. Tsuen Wan. 
New Territories ’ ’ 

Shopping Ckntre of Belvedere Garden, 
Phase I 
Phase II, 

Phase III, 
: 

Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, 
New Territories 

Park Commercial Centre 
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong 

Watson House, Wo Liu Hang Road, 
Shastin, New Territories 

Hongkong International 
Distribution Centre, 
Kwai Chung, New Territories 

Whampoa Garden, Hunghom, Kowloon K.I.L. 10750 
Sec. A-H & 
Sec. J-L 

Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong I.L. 8286 
China Building, 29 Queen’s Road, Central, I.L. 2317 

Hong Kong 
Cheung Kong Center, I.L. 8887 

2 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong (site area 
approximately 103,937 sq. ft.) 

Chun Fai Centre, Chun Fai Road, ” I.L. 8734 
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong 

12/F Kwun Tong Harbour Plaza K.T.I.L. No. 711 
182 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon 

l/F of Frankie Centre, Junction Road,’ N.K.I.L. 5746 
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon 

IL 4280 & R.P. of 
Sec. A of 
M.L. 64A 

I.L. 4280 & R.P. of 
Sec. A of 
M.L. 64A 

Sections C & D of 
I.L. 906 

Sec. A of 
T.W.T.L. 96 

T.W.T.L. 308 
T.W.T.L. 316 

(Plot A) 
T.W.T.L. 316 

(Plot B) 

Subsection of 
I.L. 1149 

S.T.T.L. 61 

M/F to 6/F on 
K.C.L. No. 4 

G/F on K.C.L. 
No. 4 

100% ‘1,713,990 C Existing 

100% 503,715 C Existing 
100% 258,i51 C Existing 

100% 1,260,OOO C 1998 (5%) 

100% ” 

100% 

100% 

100% 

32,270, C Existing 

24,586 C Existing 

23,027 C Existing 
., 

4,690 k/c 1997 (15%) 

39% 348,901 H 1999 (9%) 
212,170 c 1999 (9%) 

50% 

100% 

39,585 C Existing 

4,993 C Existing 

43% 56,260 C Existing 

100% 

100% 

1,054 C Existing 

39,834 C Existing 

100% 
60% 

100% 

21,340 C Existing 
120,039 C Existing 

131,945 C Existing 

100% 

lbO% 

88%, 4,705,141 C/W Existing 

106,330’ C Existing 

280,900 C/W Existing 

78% 737,394 Cl W Existing 
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Description Lot number 

Approx. gross Estimated 
floor area completion 

Group’s (sq. ft. unless date 
interest otherwise stated) Type (% complete) 

Watson Centre, 16-24 Kung Yip Street, K.C.T.L. 258 
Kwai Chung, New Territories 

13 Chong Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon K.T.I.L. 444 
(site’area approximately 10,394 sq. ft.) 

Watson’s Water Centre Tai PO Town 
6 Dai Li Street, Tai PO Industrial Estate, Lot No. 1 
New Territories Sec. B. SS2 

LG/F of Edwick Industrial Centre, 4-30 Lei Muk R.P. of 
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories K.C.T.L. 302 

Cavendish,Centre, 23 Yip Hing Street, ALL. 399 
Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong 

One half of M/F, whole of 6/F-10/F & the Roof, R.P. of 
l-l 1 Ka Ting Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories K.C.T.L. 129 

F.S.S.T.L. 97 Food distribution depot, 
Sheung Shui, New Territories 

682-684 Castle Peak Road, Kowloon 
,(site area approximately 14,940 sq. ft.) 

Provident Villas, 27, 29 & 30 Sassoon Road, 
Pokfulam, Hong Kong 

Peak Villas, 86-88 Peak Road, Hong Kong 
Knightsbridge Court, 28 Barker Road; Hong Kong 

16 Houses El to E16, Las Pinadas, Clearwater Bay 
Road, Sai Kung, New Territories 

2 & 2A Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout, 
Hong Kong 

N.K.I.L. 2598 
Sec. A’& 
N.K.I.L. 3b53 

R.B.L. 648 
R.P. & 
R.B.L. 650 

R.B,L. 308 
R.B.L. 126 

& Extension 
Lot 250 in 

Demarcation 
District 223 

I.L. 6930 

23 Coombe Road, Hong Kong 
Laguna City (Phase IV), Cha Kwo Ling, 

Kwun Tong, Kowloon 
South Horizons,’ Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen, 

Hong Kong 

R.B.L. 731 
N.K.I.L. 6055 

A residential development at Tai PO 
(site area approximately 164,688 sq. ft.) 

A residential development at 77 Broadcast Drive 
(site area approximately .50,880 sq. ft.) 

A residential development at Tsing Yi ilirport 
Railway Station (site area approximatel>- 
581,250 sq. ft.) 

R.P. of 
A.L.C.I.L. 121 

T.P.T.L. 97 

N.K.I.L. 5104 

T.Y.T.L. 132 

A residential development at Ma On Shan 
(site area approximately 277,980 sq. ft.) 

6/F of Beijing Tower, 10 Dong Chang An Jie 
Beijing, China 

S.T.T.L. 446 

Dong Chang An 
Jie, Beijing 

798 guest rooms & shopping mall at the Sheraton K.I.L. 9172 
Hong Kong Hotel 8z Towers, Salisburq Road, 
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon 

One and Two Harbourfront and Sec. A, B & R.P. of 
The Harbour Plaza Hotel H.H.M.L. 6 and 
Hunghom, Kowloon extension thereto 

KCRC freightyard extension development, Hunghom K.I.L. 11077 
Bay, Kowloon (site area approximately 538,837 sq. 
ft.) 

39% 729,945 

100% 862,988 
100% 473,623 

25% 

100% 

64% 

992,734 
430,:98 

687,200 

124,725 

100% 

100% 

100% 

255,138 

13,570 

00% 

00% 

25% 

100% 

100% 
100% 

00% 

00% 

00% 
50% 
50% 
50% 
50% 
50% 

50% 

60% 

50% 

50% 

,163,O;r5 i 

179,285 

_1 
19,338 

,I. 

H Existing 

C Existing 
H Existing 

c 2000 (2%) 
H 2000 (2%) 

I Existing 

I 1998 (20%) 

I Existing ,’ 

I Existing 

I Existing 

I Existing 
,’ 

i Existing 

I/O 1998 (12%) 

R Existing 

R Existing 
R Existing 

R Existing -, 

fge,,, f R Existing 

1.332 

41,641 
2,785 

131,750 

R Existing 
R Existing 
C Existing 
C Existing 
R Existing 
R 1998 (10%) 

216,2ijb F 1999 (5%) 

i,i5q$j. & 1998 (30%)’ 
1,524,8fj6 R 1999 (20%) , ,L i: ! 

(>I, :. 
1,389,900, R ‘1999 (1%) 

23,644 s C Existing 
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Description Lot number 

Oriental Plaza 
Dong Chang An Jie, Beijing 
(site area approximately 1,018,557 sq. ft.) 

Dong Chang An 
Jie, Beijing 

Phase 1 
Phase 2 
Phase 3 

The Greenery, 
Tianhe, Guangzhou, China 

Huangsha, Guangzhou, China 
(site area approximately 369,060 sq. ft.) 

Lake&w, Hwang Gang Lake, Dongguan, 
Guangdong, China 

1 (site area approximately 7,910,291 sq. ft.) 
Metropolitan Plaza, Chongqing,‘China 

(site area approximately 201,468 sq. ft.) 

Low Cost Housing, Chongqing, China 
(site area approximately 982,129 sq. ft.) 

Westgate Mall, Mei Long Zhen, Shanghai, China 
(site area approximately 127,424 sq.ft.) 

Zhang Jia Zhai, Beijing Road West, Shanghai, 
China (site area approximately 102,250 sq. ft.) 

Pudong Huamu, Shanghai 
(site area approximately 2,559,559 sq. ft.) -’ 

Tang Jia Bay, Zhuhai, China 
(site area approximately 4,796,943 sq. ft.) 

Walton Plaza 
Xuhui, Shanghai, China 
(site area approximately 346,353 sq. ft.) 

Pacific Plaza, Qingdao, China 
(site area approximately 238,192 sq. ft.) 

Royal Gate Kensington 
Kensington, London, United Kingdom 
(site area approximately 21,456 sq. ft.) 

Graham Terrace 
Sloane Square, London, United Kingdom 
(site area approximately 47,243 sq. ft.) 

Container Terminal No. 4 
Kwai Chung, ‘New Territories 

No. 3 North 
Residential 
District. Tiyu 
Road East, 
Tianhe, 
Guangzhou, PRC 

Huangsha MTR 
Station Podium 

Phase I.1 
Phase I.2 
Golf Course 
Ba Yi Lu I 

Zhou Yung Lu, 
Chongqing 

Phase 1 
Phase 2 
Phase 3 
Yane He District. 

Ci;ongqing 
Phase 1.2 
Phase 1.3 
Nanjing Xi Lu/ 
Jiang Ning Lu, 

Shanghai 
Shanghai Beijing 

Xi Lu I 
Shi Mun Er Lu 

Pudong Huamu 
Road, Shanghai 

Tang Jia Bay, 
Zhuhai 

Phase 1 
Phase 2-4 
Changsu Lu / 

Changle Lu 
Xuhui District, 
Shanghai 

Phase 2 
Phase 3 
Dong Hai Lu, 

Qingdao 
Phase 1 

Phase 2 
Kensington, London 

Westminster, 
London 

K.C.L. No. 4 78% 
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Approx. gross Estimated 
floor area compleiion 

Group’s (sq. ft. unless date 
interest otherwise stated) Type (5% complete) 

‘, 

22% 1,868,396 
22% 1,722,282 
22% 
65% 

2,529,602 
67,076 
31,600 

45% 1,868,721 

10% ~ ‘210,138 
10% 399,706 
46% 14,244,106 

40% 1.102.837 
40% ‘32418 14 
40% 437,169 

‘1 .f 

50% 775,008 
50% i 818,064 
21% 861,120 

R 1997 (20%) 
R 1998 (10%) 
C 1997 (80%) 

25% 516,810 R/C 2002 (1%) 

50% l,151,737 R 1998 (10%) 

35% 165,500 R 1998 (5%) 
35% 3,441,789 R 2003 (1%) 

35% 255,591 R/C 1999 (2%) 
40% 1,343,347 R/C 2000 (1%) 

30% 

30% 
48% 

129,641 C Existing, 
2,271 R Existing 

484,672 R 1999 (5%) 
140,024 R 1998 (10%) 

;50% 61,020 R 1999 (1%) 

70.08 
acres 

CT Existing 

c 2000 (1%) 
c 2001 (iwj 
c 2001 (1%) 
R Existing 
C Existing 

R/C 2000 (1%) 

R Existing 
R Existing 
C 1998 (2%) 

c 1997 (75%) 
H 1999 (15%) 
c 2000 (10%) 



Descriotion 

Container Terminal No. 6 
Kwai Chung, New Territories 

Container Terminal No. 7 
Kwai Chung, New Territories 

Container Terminal No. 8, East, 
Kwai Chung, New Territories 

Container Terminal at Felixstowe, 
United Kingdom 

Port Operation at Freeport, Bahamas 

Container Terminal at Freeport, Bahamas 

Container Terminal at Yantian Port 
Shenzhen, China 

Container Terminal at Jiuzhou, Zhuhai 
Guangdong, China 

Multi-purpose Terminal at Zhuhai Port, 
Gaolan, Zhuhai, Guangdong, China 

Container Terminal at Zhuchi Port, Shantou, 
Guangdong, China 

Jun Gong Lu 8z Bao Shan, Shanghai, China 
Container Terminal at Zhang Hua Bang, 

Lot number 

K.C.L. No. 6 

Approx. gross Estimated 
floor area completion 

Group’s (sq. ft. unless date 
interest otherwise stated) Type (% complete) 

78% 

K.C.L. No. 7 78% 

K.C.L. No. 8 

Felixstowe, 
County of 
Suffolk 

Freeport, Grand 
Bahama Island 

Freeport, Grand 
Bahama Island 

Yantian, 
Shenzhen, 
Guangdong 

Shihua Donglu 
Zhuhai SEZ 

Jun Gong Lu & 
Bao Shan 

Zhuhai Port, 
Zhuhai 
Guangdong 

Zhuchi Port, 
Shantou 
Guangdong 

Zhang Hua Bang, 

39% 

100% 

50% 

50% 

43% 

50% 

50% 

70% 

40% 

50% 

50% 

20% 

Container Terminal at San Shan Port, Nanhai, San Shan Island, 
Guangdong, China Nanhai 

Guangdong 

Container Terminal at Gaosha Port, Jiangmen, Geoshawei, Baishi 
Guangdong, China Administration 

area 
Jiangmen, 
Guangdong 

Container Terminal at Yangon, Myanmar Thilawa, Yangon 
Myanmar 

Note. 

71.13 
acres, 

77.87 
acres 

72.13 
acres 

800 
acres 

1,636’ 
acrei 

56 acres 
‘/ , 

7,755,206 

1,659,592 

2,238,891 

4,582,505 

8,915,639 

2,152,783 

1,337,675 

185.33 
acres 

CT Existing 

CT Existing 

CT Existing 

CT Existing 

, 

j P Existing 

‘.CT 1997 (87%) 

., 
CT Existing 

CT Existing 

CT Existing 

CT 1998 (4p%) 

CT Existing 

CT 1997 (50%) 

CT Existing 

CT 1999 (2%) 

Except for properties at Peak Road and at Coombe Road, Hong Kong, which are medium ~lehsehold, all of the 
other Hong Kong properties are long leasehold. China properties are medium leasehold. All overseas 
properties are freehold except the container terminals at Felixstowe which is long leaA??hold. , 

C - Commercial H - Hotel I - Industrial I/O - IndustriaUOjice R -Residential 
CT - Container Terminal W - Warehouse P - Port Operation G - Golf Course 
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CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE 
i REPORT OF THE AUDITORS 1 

REPORT OF THE AJJD!TORS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 

CHEUNG KDNG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED 

’ 

Kwan Wong Tan C Fong 
(incorporated in Bermuda with Omited liabiiftyi Certified Public Accountants 

&I -BF Et A % 3 IT6 77 

We have audited the financial statements on pages 70 to 87 which have been prepared in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.~ 

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS 

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financia! statements which give a true and fair 

view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate 

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. 

ft is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report 

our opinion to you. 

BASIS OF OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong 

Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts 

and disclosures in the financral statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and 

judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the 

accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and 

adequately disclosed. 

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered 

necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall 

adequacy of the Fesentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a 

reasonable basis ‘or cur opinion. 

OPINION 

In our opinion :he financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s and the Group’s 

affairs as at 31 st December, 1996 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have 

been prooerly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

KWAN WONG TAN 81 FONG 

Certified Pub//c Accountants 

Hong Kong, 20th March, 1997 
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1 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31st December 

HK$ /nil/ion Note 1996 1995 

Turnover 3 3,041 2,339 

Profit before taxation 4 971 597 
‘, 

Taxation 5 (67) (29) 

Profit after taxation 884 568 

Minoritv interests 2 1 
1 

Profit attributable to shareholders 6 886 569 

,! Dividends 7 (361) - 

Profit for the year retained 525 569 

Profit for the year retained by: 

The Company and subsidiary companies 525 569 

Earnings per share 8 HK$0.75 HK$0.55 
i 

‘, 
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1 BALANCE SHEET 1 
I I 
I as at 31st December 

Note 

Group Company 

1996 1995 1396 

Fixed assets 9’l l&l 1,664 

Subsidiary companies - i- 1’ / IO ‘I.- 8,158 

Associated companies II,, 95 (8) ,‘, ,, 
Joint ventures 12 4,901 1,764 ,, r./ 
Other non-current assets 13 14!, 83 

Total non-current assets 6,778 3,523 8,158 

Stocks and work-in-progress 

Debtors and prepayments 

Dividend receivable 

14 142’ 130 

584 536 
/_ ; - 480 

Bank balances and cash ‘3,883 296 49 

: ‘, Total current assets 4,588 962 529 __-------- ----------- ___--------- 
,,‘I ~, “,, 

8’ Bank loans 15 - ,I’ 8,855 1 
Creditors and accruals 81,’ 515 286 11 , 
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary 8, 139 ,,,‘I’ 
Provision for taxation :, 1 i;sv, 25 

Proposed dividends 361 361 

Total current liabilities 3,080 450 372 ____------ --_L------------ 

Net current ass&s 1,589 512 157 
,‘/ 

tong-term loans 1s 2,177 ,,I 
Deferred taxation 17 4 9 ,,, ‘8 
Minority interests /, j k 2 

Total long-term liabilities 1 91 2,188 

Net assets 6,350 1,647 8,315 

Representing: ‘8’ ,_,,, 

Share capital 18 1,368 1,368 - 

Reserves 19’ 6,982 1,847 6,947 

Total shareholders’ equity 8,358 ,! ‘1 ‘1,847 8.315 
” 

LI Tzar Kuoi, Victor 

Director 

20th March, 1997 

IP Tak Chuen, Edmond 

Director 
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1 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT i *. :,. 
for the yeat, ended 31st December 

HK$ million 

Net cash inflew from operating activities 

Returns on investments and servicing of finance 

Note 1996 1995 

20/a) F 943 537 

I 

Interest received 

Interest paid 

Returns on investments received from joint ventures 

159 IO 
, .I! 

(54) 19) 
[, I Z” .’ 173 62 

Finance lease charge received 

Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing 

of finance .r’91PlJ:I. f!,.’ 
280 66 

Profits tax paid ‘, “;I”: i,: (48) (3) 

Net cash inflow before investing activities l;“ir !::jr; . 1,175 600 

Investing activities ,$J:j .: .’ 
Purchase of fixed assets ,:’ <: ‘,I ?a’-. uw (176) 

Disposal of fixed assets c (’ 8 481 _’ 
Increase in investments in joint ventures (31031) w4 

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from joint ventures 9 (12) 
Increase in investments in associated companies (94) - 

Decrease in finance lease debtors 9 4 

Increase in deferred expenditure (43) (17) 

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (3,310) (113) 

~Net cash (outffow)/inflow before financing :. .i’! 
(2,135) 487 

Financing 

Issue of new shares for cash 

IPO Reorganisation and share issue expenses 

Repayment of long term loans 

Loan from Cheung Kong Group 

Capital contributions from minority shareholders 

Bank loans 

Repayment to a fellow subsidiary company 

20.(& 

4,326 - 

(148) - 

(2.177) PO1 i 

I;800 - 
I.:>: 5 - 

L- -/ 2,055 - 

,,I, (139) (‘3 
Net cash inflow/(outflow)from financing !i!~ I 5,722 1264) 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,587 223 

Bank and cash balances at 1st January 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 

:.rsbioll!int::: 296 73 
*-,--- 1. 

3,883 296 

Bank and cash balances at 31st December 3,883 296 

,n.J, i 
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/ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I, GROUP REORGANISATON AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINAN& STATEMENTS 
:: The Companyvvas incorporated:ir Bermuda on 28th May, 1996 as a wholly:owned subsidiary company of Cheung Kong ,I, ~~ ‘, ,, 

Holdings. mpreparing for the,listin,g of the Company’s shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Company and its 

subsidiary companies now comprising th,e Group-were reorganised in July 1996 (the “IPO Reorganisation”), pursuant to the .,, 
terms of the restructuring agreement as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 4th July, 1996 (the “IPO Prospectus”). 

I, The Company has’been a listed company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Since,l7th July, 1996 after completion of the 

placing and new issue of~shares as more fully described in the IPO Prospectti’s: d 
,, “I 

For accounting purpose, the Group has been treated as a continuing entity and accordingly the consolidated financial 

statements have been prepared on the basis as if the present group structure had been in existence throughout the two years 

-.ended:3) st December, ;1996, and also incorporate the Group’s interest in associated cpmpanies set out in note 2(e) below. 

s., pesults of subsidiarycompanies acquired after the IPO Reorganisation are jncluded, as from their respective dates of acquisition. 

‘I. : 

1, ,’ 
2. PRINCIP~ ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1’ i;1 1, 

! ,I ,’ ‘/,. 
a) Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost cdnvention, and inaccordance with applicable Hong 
,‘, ’ ‘Kong Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong ‘Kong Companies Ordinance. 

“! I! ,,, : ,‘, ~8 i, ,_ I,, ,’ ,,,,j,’ 

b) Bask of’thsolidatiod .I ~ ‘,, : 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies 

made up to 31st December together with the Group’s interests in associated companies on the basis set out in (e) 

below. 
1,’ 

Results of subsidiary and associated companies acquired or disposed of during the year are accounted for as from or up 
,” 

to the effective dates’of acquisit/on or disposal. 
1’ I 

,’ .’ ‘,I! ,, 

c) Goodyill ~ ,’ 

i .Goodwill represents the excess of costs of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net assets of 

(’ subsidiary and associated companies acquired and is eliminated against reserves in the year of acquisition. 

,:, 

d) Subsidiary Companies 
1.. ,L 

:A subsidiary company is a company in which the Group has a long-term equity interest of over 50 per cent. or the Group 
‘. ?’ ,, 8: ‘, 

controls the composition of ‘its board of directors. lnvestments’in subsidiary companies are carried at cost less provision 
,(I ,. 

for any permanent diminution ‘in value where appropriate. ’ 
;,, 

I’“., ’ ‘. i ., -3’5, ,- 

,1 
2’ :‘, ‘I ;, ,,,’ 

,I.(, ! ! .; !, ,, ,“, I,,,’ ‘Em, ,’ 

“. .’ ,” 
,73 



[ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
I 

continued ) 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 

e) Associated Companies 

An associated company is a company other than a subsidiary company in which the Group has a long-term equity 
‘_ 

interest of over 20 per cent. and over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence over its 

74 

‘management, including participatioh in th-e’financial and operating policy decisions. 

investments in associated companies are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of their net 

assets. Income from associated companies is stated in the consolidated profit and loss,statement at the Group’s share 

of post-acquisition results of the associated companies. 
: 

f) Joint Ventures ,,I’ ,, 

,. /’ Sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC in respect of’which the partners’profit-sharing ratios and asset 

entitlement upon termination or dissolution of the joint ventures are in proportion to their capital contribution ratios as 

defined in the joint venture contracts are classified and accounted for as subsidiary companies (where the Group 

controls the composition of the board of directors) or associated companies (where the Group exercises significant 

influence over their management). 
jflq[:J~#ji.i 

1 3zril 
Sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC in r,espect,of which the partners’ profit-sharing ratios and share of net 

assets upon their termination or dissolution are not in proportion to their capital contribution ratios but are as defined in 

the joint venture contracts and in respect of which the Group is not entitled to share the assets of the joint ventures at 

the end of the joint venture period are classified as investments under Joint Ventures and carried at cost less 

amortisation over the contract period upon commencement of operation. 

g) Fixed Assets and Depreciatidn 

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated to write off their carrying values over their estimated useful lives using the 

straight line method, at the following rates per annum: 

Land Over the MM@ed lease term of the land 
,, Buildings 2% -3-l/3% 

Plant, machinery and equipment 3-I/3% - 33-l/3% 

Others 5% -33-l/3% 

.:,rizd.;2 ., 
In previous years, no depreciation was provided on land held on long leases which, qre defined as leases having a lease 

term of over 50 years. With effect from 1st January, 1996, the Group amortises its land held on long leases over the 

remaining unexpired terms of the leases in accordance with the requirements of Statement of Standard Accounting ,. ,.. / 
Practice No. 17 for Property, Plant and Equipment, issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants 

h) Stocks 

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost, computed on a weighted-average or a first-in first-out basis, and net realisable 

value. Cost includes cost of materials purchased and in the case of work-in-progress and finished goods, direct labour 

and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated 

sales proceeds less estimates of costs to completion and selling expenses. 



2. 

‘! 

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 

i) Contracts Work-in-progress 

Contracts work-in-progress are stated at cost plus attributable profits’less foreseeable losses and progress payments 

received and receivable. ‘Cost comprises cost of materials, direct labour, other direct and indirect expenses. 

” ,181, ,, 

j) Revenue Recognitidn 3 “~1 

(i) Sale of goods : ” ,., 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the time when the goods are delivered or title to the goods passes to the 

customers. Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales returns and discounts and does not include sales taxes. 

,I!, ‘I 
(ii) Contract revenoe 

,,/ ,~ ; 

Income from contracts is recognised acc’ording to the stages of completion. 
,’ 

(iii) Returns from joint ventures 

Returns from joint ventures are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and conditions of the joint 

venture contracts. 

;, 
(iv) Interest income : ;, 
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis. 

k) Foreign Currencies 

The profit and loss and cash flow statements of overseas subsidiary and associated companies are translated into Hong 

Kong dollars using average rates ,of exchange. Balance sheets are translated at closing rates. 

Exchange differences arising on the translation at closing rates of the opening net assets and the profits for the year 

retained by overseas subsidiary and associated companies are taken to reserves. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Hong Kong dollars at rates approximatihg those ruling at the relevant 

transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet 

date. Exchange differences arising in the normal course of trading and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities 

are dealt with in the profit and loss statement. 

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current rate of taxation in respect of material ti,ming differences between profit 

as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset is 

expected to crystallise in the foreseeable future. 

m) Operating leases 

line basis over the lease term. 

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the lessors are accounted for 

as operating leases.. Rental payable under operating leases are recorded in the profit and loss statement on a straight 

I) Deferred Taxation 
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1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
‘,, .> continued 

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 

nl 

0) 

8, P) 

Finance leases 

Leases that substantially transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership of the Ifeased assets to the lessees are 

,accounted for as finance leases. The amounts due from the lessees under finance lease contracts are recorded as 

finance lease debtors. The finance lease debtors comprise the minimum lease payments under the finance lease 

contracts less gross earnings allocated to future accounting periods. Gross earntrrgsrfram finance leases are recognised 

over the terms of the respective leases. 

Deferred Expenditure 

Deferred expenditure, which represents pre-operating expenses incurred prior to commercial operation of the projects, is 

amortised on a straight line basis over a period of 10 years commencing from the’date of commercial operation of the ~ ,_ ,i 
respective projects. 

Retirement Benefits 1 .// 

The Group operates defined contribution and defined benefit retirement schemes for~~teemployees. The costs of 

defined contribution schemes are charged to the profit and loss statement as and when the contributions fall due. The 

costs of defined benefit schemes are charged against profit on a systematic basis with any surpluses and deficits 
:’ 

allocated so as to spread them over the expected remaining service lives of the employees affected. 

31 T~JRNOVER " " 

Turnover represents net sales from infrastructure materials businesses and returns on investments and interest income 

received and receivable from joint ventures, net of withholding tax, where applicable. aaalysed as follows: 

,‘I - ‘:. 
HK$ mi/lion 1996 1995 

PRC Infrastructure ,I 375 184 

Infrastructure Materials 2,666 2,155 

Turnover is geographically analysed as follows: ‘, 

HK$ million ~!4!191biL 1996 1995 

Hong Kong ; :,-.‘~ 2,624 2,028 

The PRC ,i,, f I 417 311 

Total , *Ii 3.041 2.339 

‘. 

‘j, 

” : / 
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( NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
-cOnfi-ilP;.“~ 

4. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 

.I i: 
HK$ ,7Jli/;Ol? 

,I’/,: . ,, .I 1996 1995 
,, 

Profit before taxation is stated after ckediting: ’ 
,’ ,!‘, 

8, 
Bank interest income ” ” 

: , /, : ,, 
163 10 

Finance lease income 2 3 

and charging: 

Interest on bank and other borrowings, 

wholly repayable within five years 
,’ ,,/‘I 8. Depreciat/on anb amortisatidn 

O’,! ,‘, ‘, ‘, 
dperatin9 iease rehtal ‘- 
‘#” .‘L;nd ;Ad buil&n’gsl .,,I, 

Vessels 

Directors’ remuneration (note 22,1 

62 9 
.,i ‘, 

289 183 

,: 
23 19 

1,.. I ,. : 
118 174 

10 - 

Audrtors’ remuneratron 2 2 

Profit before taxation is geographically analysed as follows: 
I’ 

HK$ miiiion 1996 1995 

Hong Kong ,1 749 449 

The PRC ‘I 222 148 
-, / 

Total 1~ !I 971 597 

:, ‘f 

5 TAXATION 

HK$ miiiion 

The Group: 

I 
-’ I I, 1996 1995 

, ,N :” 

L’( 

Hong’Kong :. ,,.r 

91 26 , Profits tax 

/’ .Deferred tax (5) 1 

Overseas income tax ~ ;,, ,,i 1 2 

Total 87 29 

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the.iate of 16.5 per cent. (1995: 16.5 per cenf.) on the estimated assessable profits for 

the year after setting off available tax relief from losses brought forward. 0vkkea.s taxation ik-pfovided for at the applicable 

rates of taxation in the relevant foreign jurisdiction on the estimated assessable income for the year 

6. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 

Profit attributable to shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the Company amounts to HK$484 million. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

continued 

7. 

8. 

9. 

DIVIDENDS 
As stated in the IPO Prospectus, no interim dividend was declared by the Company. A final dividend of HK$0.16 per share 

(1995: nil) was proposed and payable on 2,254,209,945 shares in issue, after taking into account the issue of 886,209,945 

new shares of the Company to Hutchison Whampoa for the purchase of 707.295.862 shares in Hongkong Electric after the 

year end (note 24/a)). 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 
The calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to shareholders of HK$886 million (1995: HK$569 

million) and on the weighted average number of 1.184.977.077 shares (1995: 1,026,000.000 shares) in issue and deemed to 

have been issued during the year. The shares issued under the IPO Reorganisation in July 1996 were deemed to have been in 

issue since 1 st January, 1995. 

FIXED ASSETS 

HK$ million 

cost 

At 1 st January, 1996 

Additions 

Disposals 

Medium 
Long term term 
leasehold leasehold 

land and land and 
buildings in buildings in 
Hong Kong the PRC 

833 11 

3 - 

- (I) 

Short term 
leasehold 

land and 
buildings in 

/ ./j i,:‘., 

Furnitures, 
Plant and / fixtures and 

Hong Kong machinery others Total 

90 1.231 177 2,342 

- 120 47 170 
- (211 (IO) (32) 

At 31 st December, 1996 836 IO 90 1,330 214 2,480 

Accumulated depreciation 

At 1 st January, 1996 112 1 66 424 75 678 

Charge for the year 26 - 8 115 35 184 

Disposais - - - (4) (5) I91 

At 31 st December, 1996 138 1 74 535 105 853 

Net book value 

At 31st December, 1996 

At 31 st December, 1995 

! .I, .,“. _. 

698 9 16 795 109 1,627 

721 10 24 807 102 1,664 
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I 1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
I 

‘/“, ( continued 1 

10. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

HK$ million 1996 

Unlisted shares, at cost 4,014 

Amounts due by subsidiary companies 4,144 

At 31st December ; ,,,,, ,, 61 8,158 

Particulars of the subsidiary companies which, in the opinion of the Directors,“significantly affect the results or net assets of 

the Group are set out inAppendix 1 on page 88. 
8’ 

11, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 

HK$ mi/lion 1996 1995 

Share of net assets (liabilities) of unlisted associated companies 
;I I 

25 (9) 

Amounts due by unlisted associated companies ” 70 1 

At 31st December 95 (8) 

Particulars of the associated companies which, in the opinion of the Directors) significantly affect the results or net assets’of 

the Group are set out in Appendix 2 on page 89 

12. JOINT VENTURES 

Group 
,, HK$ million 1996 1995 

Cost of investments 4,658 1,627 

Amortisation (126) (22) 
4,532 1,605 

Amounts due by joint ventures 

At 31st December 

369 179 
‘, 

4,901 1,784 

The cost of investments represents contributions to joint ventures by way of registered capital or shareholders’ loans which 

carry interest or returns. Amounts due by joint ventures include principally returns receivable from the joint ventures. 
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1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
continued 

13. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Other non-current assets comprise the following: 

HK$ rni//iO~ 

Deferred expenditure, net of amortisation of HK$l million (1995: nil) 

Retention receivables 

/‘I 
_, 

Group 

1996 1995 

133 70 

12 7 

14. 

15. 

Finance lease debtors non-current portion 2 6 ‘I c 

At 31st December 147 83 

Details of finance lease debtors are further shown below: 

HK$ million 

;3rax22k Group 

1996 1995 I 
Total outstanding finance lease debtors 

Less: Amounts due within one year included in current: assets 

BANK LOANS 

counter-indemnity. 

6 15 ,:I ?,i 

,:, (4) (9) 
n 

Cost of assets acquired for leasing under finance leases, 31 44 

STOCKS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

HK$ mi//iJn 

Group 

1996 1995 

Raw materials 

Work-in-progress 

Finished goods 

Stores, spare parts and operating supplies 

33 16 

9 20 

10 3 

76 86 

Sub-total 128 125 

Contracts work-in-progress 

Costs plus attributable profits less foreseeable losses 

Less: Progress payments received and receivable ,, 

i 4 iJ t ,:: : *: 
7-w-m.. .” =r 

35 37 

(26) (37) 

Sub-total 9 - 

Completed properties for resale 5 5 

The loans are unsecured and bear interest based on Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate plus a spread. The loans, which are due 

18 months after its drawndown date, are guaranteed by Cheung Kong Holdings against which the Company has provided a 
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1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1 
continued 

16. LONG-TERM LOANS 8’ 

Long-term loans represent loans due to shareholders as at 31st December, 1995 which have been fully repaid upon the IPO 

.; -.: Reorganisation. 

,’ 

,,’ 1, 18’ 

,m, :, 

17. DEFERRED TAXATION :’ ,:; 
Deferred tax has been provided in respect of material timing differences arising from dgpreciation allowances claimed for 

taxation purposes in excess of depreciation charges in the financial statements. The potential,deferred tax liabilities (assets) 

which have not been provided for are as follows:- -; L 

HK$ mi//lon 
/ ‘11 

1996 1995 

Depreciation allowances in excess of related depreciation 98 97 

Unutilised tax losses (2) (35) 

Net potential-liabilities ynprpvided ” 96 62 

,The Group does not expect the unprovided potential deferred tax liabilities to crystallise in the foreseeable future, 

“,’ 
: /,’ 

18. SHARE CAPITAL I’ II, 

Authorised: 5 ‘,, ‘: 

2,000,000,000 shares of HK$l each 
,,, ,c’: J’ 

2,000 

Issued and fully paid:. 

1,368,000,000 shares of HK$l each 1,368 

The Company was incorporated on 28th May, 1996 with an initial authorised share capital of HK$100,000 divided into 

‘, .I 00,000 shares of HK$l each. On 1st July,! 1996! the authorised share capital was increased from HK$lOO,OOO to 

HK$2,000,000,000 by the creatiqn of an additional 1.999.900.000 shares of HK$l,each., 

On 29th May, 1996, 100,000 shares of HK$l each were issued as initial capital. ‘Oh 12’th July, 1996, 1,025,900,000 shares 
,, 

were issued at par as consideration for the acquisition of the interests in subsidiary ‘and’associated companies pursuant to 

the IPO Reorganisation. Pursuant,to:the IPO in July 1996, 342 million shares were jssued at HK$12.65 per share for proceeds 

of approximately HK$4,178 million, net of expenses. 
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1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
continued 

19. RESERVES 
f ;,I 28 - i+b lb’, 

Group 

Share Contributed Revenue 

HK$ million premium surplus reserves Total 

At 1 st January, 1996 - - 1,847 1,847 

Reserves arising from the 

~IPO Reorganisation - 774 - 774 

Premium on issue of shares 3,984 - - 3,984 

IPO Reorganisation and share 

issue expenses (148) - - (148) 
Profit for the year retained - - 525 525 

At 31st December, 1996 3,836 774 2,312 6,982 

During the year, the Group’s associated companies remained either dormant or were not y’et operational and hence no results 

were shared by the Group. 

Company 

Share Contributed Revenue 

HK$ m////on premium surplus reserves Total 

Reserves arising from the 

IPO Reorganisation - 2,988 - 2,988 

Premium on issue of shares 3,984 - - 3,984 

IPO Reorganisation and share 

issue expenses (148) j)::Fy, 
- (148) 

Profit for the year retained - - 123 123 

At 31st December, 1996 3,836 2.988 123 6,947 
,_ 

Contributed surplus of the Company arose when the Company issued shares in exchangefor the shares of subsidiary and 

associated companies being acquired pursuant to the IPO Reorganisation, and represents&! difference between the value of 

net assets of the companies acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued. Under the Company Act of 1981 

of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders. 

Total distributable reserves’of tlie Company amounted to HK$3,111 million as at 31st Deckmher, 1996 
‘,, 
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1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
continued 

20. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWSTATEMENT 

(a) Peconcijiation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow from operating’activities 

HK$mi//ion’ ” ” 
~ i 1996 1995 

‘Profit befbre taxation ’ 
II 

971 597 

Returns from joint ventures (289) (133) 

Interest income ” ” 
” 

(2491 (61) 

, , ,  ” ~ Interest expenses ,# /I 

Finance lease income i 

i Depreciation and amortisation I : 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 

Increase in stocks and work-in-progress 

Increase in debtors, prepayments 

9 1 62 I 

(21 (3) 

“I ; 289 163 

‘, 15 - 

(121 (71 
I 

and retention receivable ” ” 

Increase in creditors and accruals 

,I’ 
(29) (108) 

‘I,, : 
187 60 

Net cash ,inflow fr,om operating activities ‘1, I, ‘, 943 537 

,I ,’ ,I 

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year 
Amount due 

Share to a fellow 
capital and Bank and subsidiary Minority 

HK$ million premium other loans company interests Total 

At 1 st January.1 996 - 2,177 139 2 2.316 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 4,178 I’,678 (139) 5 5,722 

Shares issued upon IPO Reorganisdtion 1,026 - - - 1,026 

Capitalisation of the loan (note(c)) - (1,800) ‘- - (1,800) 

Minority’s share of loss 
‘,, - - - (2) (4 

At 31st December, 1996 5,204 ~ 2,055 5 7,254 

(c) Major non-cash transaction 

During the year, a loan of HK$1,800 million made by Cheung Kong Group was capitalised pursuant to the IPO 

Reorganisation. !i 
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~ 
1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME‘NTS .~ 

continued 

21. RETIREMENT SCHEME 3: ,I; I,!‘; 

The Group provides defined contribution retirement schemes for its emplqyees with the exception of a subsidiary company 

which provides a defined benefit scheme. Contributions to the defined contribution schemes are made by either the employer 

only or both the emplo\jeI and the employees at 10% on the employees’ salary. Contributions to the defined benefit scheme 

are made by the employees at either 5% or 7% on the employees’ salary and contributions.made by the employer are based 

on the recommendations of an independent actuary according to the periodic actuarial valuat,ion of the scheme. 

The latest actuarial valuation of the defined benefit scheme was completed in July, 1995 by Mr. Joseph K. L. Yip, a fellow 

member of the Society of Actuaries, of The Wyati Company (HK) Limited. The actuarial methbd adopted was Attained Age 

Funding M&hod and the main assumptions used included the annual rate of investment return on the scheme assets at 10% 

and the annual salary increases at 8%. 

The market value of the defined benefit scheme’s assets as at 1st July, 1995 was HK$99 million and the latest actuarial 

valuation shows that the scheme’s assets covered 106% of the value of benefits accrued to the members, allowing for future 

increases in salaries of the members. 

Forfeited contributions and earnings for the year under the defined contribution sch.t#$&@mting to HK$l million 

(1995: HK$l million) have been used to reduce the existing level of contributions. The Group’s costs on employees retirement 

schemes for the year amount to HK$18 million (1995: HK$15 million). 
/,, ,I 
,’ 

,’ :22. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND ~SENIOR EXECUTIVES 

-I (a) Directors’ Remuneration ,,,, “_ 
The following table shows t3e remuperation of the Co,mpa,ny’s, Directors: 

HK$ /nil/ion 1996 1995 I 
Salaries, benefits in kind and fees 2 - ,,, ’ ,, 
Contributions to retirement schemes - - -,‘gT7t: ;, - I. 
Bonuses 

-a-- 
8 - 

Total 10 - I, 

The Directors’ rembnerarion’for the year included fees bayable of HK$240,000 (1995:~#Rc$40,000) of which HK$95,000 

(1995: HK$‘ZO,OOO) was payable to Non-executive Directors of the Company. ‘: ‘1’~ 

The table below shows the number of Directors whose remuneration was within the following bands: 

Remuneration band 1996 1995 

NII HK$l ,OOO,OOO 5 8 

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2.000.000 1 - 

HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 1 - 

HK$4,000,001 HK$4,500.000 1 - 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
continued 

: : / I  !  ,  

I  

./ 5  

/, i .’ 

22. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORSAND SENIOR EXECUTIVES comtinued 

(b) Senior Executiires’Remuneration’i ’ :.1 .‘, 

Of the five individualslwith the highest emoluments, one (1995: nil) is a Director whose emoluments are disclosed 

above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other four (1995: five) individuals are as follows: 

,i'l 
Ha miliion 1996 1995 

Salaries and benefits in kind 

Contributions to retirement schemes 

Bonuses 

10 IO lN’,,f, ,I 
1 1 I 

12 11 

Total 23 22 

The four (1995: five) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: 

Remuneration band 1996 1995 

HKj?..+b,OOl HK$3,gOO,OOO ” - 1 

HK$3’,000,001 - &$3,500,060 ‘, 
,, #I I’,’ 

- 1 

HK$3,500,001 ~K$4,000.000 

,_ 
‘3 ‘i 

1 - 
‘, 

HK$4,500,001 HK$5,000,000 - 1 

HK$5,000,00T - HK$5,500,000 ,! I .‘; I ~ 1 - 

HK$5,500,001 -~HK$6,000,000 >: - 2 

HK$6,000,001 HK$6,500,000 ! 8.. 1 ,, 1 - 

HK$6,500,001 - HK$7,000,000 1 - 
,,, 

I ‘,8-s 8, ;, 

/ .  
, .  :  23. CO~+ITMENTS 

‘, 

8, 

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st December not providedlfor in the financial statements are as follows: 

8. ,, i I ,/ ,‘,,,‘!’ II’ Contracted but not Authorised but not 
provided ,fpr contracted for 

HK$ rlyJn 1996 1995 1996 1995 
,, ,,_ ,, ,, 

Investments in i;frastructure and related projects in .,,,: i 
the PRC’ ” 

z ” 
i.023 1.527 - - 

,’ 
the Philippines 59 - 31 80 

2,082 1,527 31 80 
:i i !- 

Plant and equipment 75 19' 248 124 
” :I, 8, 

Total 2.157 1.546 279 204 
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I 1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .I 

continued 

23. COMMITMENTS continued 

(b) At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments under operating leases payable in the following year as follows: 

Land and buildings Others 

HK$ mihn 1996 1995 1996 1995 

Leases expiring: 

within one year 

in the second to fifth years inclusive 

after the fifth vear 

~7 ‘9 56 16 

13 5 - - 

2 7 - 

Total 22 21 56 16 

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
,I 

(a) On 6th January, 1997, Cheung Kong Holdings, Hutchison Whampoa and the Company,(collectively as “the Parties”) 

entered into an agreement to reorganise pursuant to which certain transactions (“Transactions”) were to be 

implemented. Details of the Transactions had been set out in the circulais dated 15th February, 1997 issued by the 

Parties to their respective shareholders. 

On 3rd March, 1997, the Special General Meeting of the Company was duly convened and the Ordinary Resolutions as 

set out in the Notice of the Special General Meeting were duly passed and approve&The Transactions were completed 

on 10th March, 1997 and, as a result of which, 
/ 

(i) the Group acquired from Hutchison Whampoa 707,295,862 shares in Hongk&ic, representing approximately 

35.01 per cent of the issued capital of Hongkong Electric based on the price of HK$26.50 per share, for a 

consideration of approximately HK$18,743 million, satisfied by the issue to Hutchison Whampoa of 886,209,945 

new shares of HK$l .OO each in the Company at HK$21 .I 5 per share credited as ully paid and ranking pari passu in 
‘:lFy!1’ 

all respects with the existing shares of the Company; ‘/ ‘; 

(ii) Cheung Kong Holdings transferred its entire holding of 966.689.000 shares in the Company to Hutchison 

Whampoa; &I 

(iii) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$2.000,000,0~ to HK$4,000,000,000 by the 

creation of an additional 2.000.000.000 shares of HK$l .OO eack, such shares to rank pari passu in all respects with 

the existing issued shares of the Company. 

(b) On 14th March, 1997, the Group acquired in the open market 14.822.500 shares in Hongkong Electric by cash at an 

average price of HK$27.19 and thereby increasing its shareholding in Hongkong Elec)ric from 35.01 per cent. to 

35.7 per cent. 1~ 
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1 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1 
continued 

25. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 

The Directors consider that the Company’s ultimate holding company as at 31 st December, 1996 was Cheung Kong Holdings, 

With effect from 10th: March, 1997, after the completion of the Transactions as disclosed in note 24(a)(i) and (ii), the 

Directors consider tha’tl the Company’s ultimate holding company is Hutchison Whampoa. Cheung Kong holdings a’nd 

Hutchison Whampoa are incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong 

Stock Exchange.’ ‘: ~ 

26. COMPARATIVE FIGURES ’ 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. 
;I ,m 

27. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

: The financial ‘statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20th March, 1997. 

/’ 
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1 APPENDIX 1 I PRINCI 

T  

PAL,SUBSlDlARY COMPANIES 1 

Share 
Effective 

percentage 

: 
As at 31st December, 1996 

‘1.8 capital issued 
Par value 

Number ., per share 

of equity 
interest held 
by the Group Principal activities 

INCORPORATEDIN HONGKONG 
Anderson Asia (Holdings) Limited 

A.nderson Asohalt Limited 

Anderson Asia Concrete Limited 

Asia Stone Company, Limited 

Cheung Kong China 
Infrastructure Limited 

China Cement Company 
(Hong Kong) Limited 

China Cement Company 
(International) Limited 

Green Island Cement 
Company, Limited 

Green Island Cement (Holdings) Limited 

Ready Mixed Concrete (H.K.) Limited 

Sukvit Investments Limited 

2 ordinary 
65.780.000 

non-voting deferred 

36,000 ordinary 

HKS0.5 
HKS0.5 

800,000 ordinary 

33,000,OOO ordinary 

2 ,ordinary 

HK$lOO 

HK$l 

HK$l 

HK$l 

597,200,OOO ordinary HK$l 

2 ordinary HK$l 

76.032.000 ordinary HK$2 

101.549.457 ordinary 

50,000,000 ordinary 

HK$2 

HK$l 

2 ordinary 
10,000 non-voting deferred 

HK$l 
HK$l 

INCORPORATED INTHEBRITISH 
VIRGIN ISLANDS 
Cheung Kong Infrastructure (BVI) 

Limited 
1.682215 ordinary 

Daredon Assets Limited 1 ordinary 

100 Investment holding 

yo:.. ( Production and laying of 
asphalt and investment holding 

100 Investment holding 

100 Quarry operation and 

“1 iAs,,.; manufacture of aggregates 

100 : ” Investment holding and 
investment in infrastructure 

projects in the PRC 

HK$O.l 

US$l 

100 

100 

108 

100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

Manufacturing, sale and 
distribution of cement 

and property investment 

Investment holding 

Investment holding 
and property investment 

Investment holding 

Production and sale of concrete 
and investment holding 

Investment holding 

Investment holding 

Fund investment 

Note (1) Except for Cheung Kong Infrastructure (BVI) Limited which is a direct subsidiary company of the Company, the shares of all other subsidiary 
companies are indirectly held by the Company. 

Note (2) The principal place of operation of the above companies were in Hong Kong except the following: 

Alame Place of Operation 
Cheung Kong Infrastructure (BVI) Limited PRC and Hong Kong 
Cheung Kong China Infrastructure Limited PRC 
Daredon Assets Limited Asia Pacific 
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APPENDIX 2 

As af 31st December, 19% 

PRINCI PAL ASSOCIATED COMPANIES-j 

Share 
capital issued 

Par value 
Number per share 

Approximate 
share of equity 

shares held 
by the Group 

(per cent.) Principal activities 

INCDRPORATED AND OPERATING 
IN THE PHILIPPINES 

Lazi Bay Resources 
Development Inc. t 

1 ,OOO,OOO ordinary 1 Peso 40. 
77,000,OOO preferred 1 Peso 100 

Operating limestone reserves 

Lo-Oc Limestone and 
Development Corporation t 

19,100,000 ordinary 1 Peso 28 Development of 
limestone reserves 

+ Not audited by Kwan Wang Tan & Fong. 

1 APPENDIX 3 1 
1 SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES 1 

Approximate 
floor/site area 

attributable 
to the Group 

(sq. m.) Location 
tot Group’s 

Number Interest 
Existing Lease 

Usage Term 

14-18 Tsing Tim Street, Tsing Yi 

7 Tin Wan Praya Road, Aberdeen 

TMTL 201 Tap Shek Kok 

Certain units of Harbour Centre Tower 2, 

8 Hok Cheung Street, Hunghom 

TYTL 98 100% 3,355 I tong 

Al L 409 100% 3,528 I Short 

TMTL 201 100% 152,855 I Long 

KML 113 100% 5.712 C tong 

I : industrial C : commercial 
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~ GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN TERMS 

Aggregates-rock, generally granite, which has been crushed into different sizes for use in the 
construction industry. 

ASW - A.S. Watson & Company, Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 

Basic Law -the Basic Law of the Hong Kong SAR, which, together with the Joint Declaration, 
provides that the Hong Kong SAR will have a high degree of legislative, judicial and economic autonomy. 

CDMA - Code Division Multiple Access cellular telephone technol,ogy, 

Cellular network operator - an operator of a cellular telephone network. Cellular network operators are 
typically also cellular service providers. 

Cellular service provider - company which buys airtime wholesale from cellular network operators and 
resells a range of mobile communications services to their subscribers. 

Cheung Kong - Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, which is the largest shareholder of the Company, 
owning approximately 49% of its issued share capital. 

Chung Kiu - Chung Kiu Telecommunications (China) Holdings Limited was established by the 
Company to provide management and technical services and equipment to cellular telephone, paging and 
trunked radio network operators in mainland China. 

Clinker - a semi-finished product in the cement production process, 

COSCO-HIT - a 50-50 joint venture between a 77.5%-owned subsidiary of the Company and China 
Ocean Shipping (Group) Company. 

CT2 - the Company’s second-generation cordless telephone system. 

Delta Ports - Hutchison Delta Ports Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company 
located in mainland China. 

Felixstowe - Port of Felixstowe Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company located in 
United Kingdom. 

FTNS - Fixed wireline telecommunications network. 

GSM - Global System for Mobile Communications cellular telephone technology. 

HIT - Hongkong International Terminals Limited, which is a 77.5%-owned subsidiary of the Company. 

Husky - Husky Oil Ltd.: which is a Canadian-based integrated oil and gas company in which the 
Company has a 49% interest. 

Joint Declaration - the Sino-British Joint Declaration on the Questions of Hong Kong, which? together 
with the Basic Law, provides that the Hong Kong SAR will have a high degree of legislative, judicial and 
economic autonomy. 

km - kilometer. 

Kwai Chung - Kwai Chung Container Port, which is the principal container port in Hong Kong. 

MFN - Most Favored Nation. 

MTRC - Mass Transit Railway Corporation. 

MW - megawatt, equal to 1,000 kilowatts. 

NGLs - natural gas liquids. 

NPC - the National People’s Congress of China. 

OFTA - Office of the Telecommunications Authority of Hong Kong. 

G-l 



Orange - Orange plc, which is a 49.02%-owned associated~ company of the Company located in the U.K. 

PCS or P,CN - Personal Communications Service, System or Network cellular telephone technology. 

PSTN - Public Switched Telephone Network. 

SAR - Sp’ecial Administrative Region of China. 
I , 

XT - Shanghai Container Terminals Limited, which’ is a ,40%-owned as&ziaiqd company of the 
Company located in mainland China. ..: 

sq. m. - square meter (equivalent to approximately 10,764 square feet). 
/ii 

TEU - Twenty foot equivalent unit, which is the amount of cargo that can be’!#@&d in a cdntainer 20 
feet long by 8 feet wide by 8 feet 6 inches high with a maximum load of 24 tons. 

TDMA - Time Division Multiple Access IS-54, a digital cellular system. ‘I” “’ ” 

Yantian - Yantian International Container Terminals Limited, which is a 43.6%-owned subsidiary of 
the Company located in mainland China. 

I ._ 

:* ;  --. 

!  i , ,  
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No dealer, salesperson or other individual has been 
authorized to give any information or make any repre- 
sentations not contained in this Offering Circular and, 
if given or made, such information or representations 
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by 
the Issuer, the Company or the Purchasers. This 
Offering Circular does not constitute an offer of any 
securities other than those to which it relates or an 
offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, to any 
persons in any jurisdiction where such an offer or 
solicitation would be unlawful. Neither the delivery of 
this Offering Circular nor any sale made hereunder 
shall, under any circumstances, create any implication 
that there has not been a change in the facts set forth 
in this Offering Circular or in the affairs of the Issuer 
or the Company since the date hereof. 
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Hutchison Whampoa Finance (CI) 
Limited 

US$750,000,000 6.950% Notes due 2007 
US$500,000,000 7.450% Notes due 2017 
US$500,000,000 7.500% Notes due 2027 
US$250,000,000 6.988% Notes due 2037 

unconditionally and irrevocably 
guaranteed by 

Hutchison Whampoa 
Limited 

OFFERING CIRCULAR 

Goldman, Sachs & Co. 
Merrill Lynch & Co. 

Chase Securities Inc. 
HSBC Markets 

J.P. Morgan & Co. 
Peregrine Fixed Income Limited 

UBS Securities 
BancAmerica Securities, Inc. 

CIBC Wood Gundy Securities Corp. 
CITIC Industrial Bank 
Citicorp Securities, Inc. 

Deutsche Morgan Grenfell 

July 24, 1997 


